¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council

Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall

Abbey Foregate

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

Date: 11 September 2024

Committee:
Health and Wellbeing Board

E Date: Thursday, 19 September 2024
Time: 9.30 am
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury,

Shropshire, SY2 6ND
You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached
There will be some access to the meeting room for members of the press and public, but

this will be limited. If you wish to attend the meeting please email
democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check that a seat will be available for you.

Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the
agenda

The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the meeting on the
Shropshire Council Youtube Channel Here

Tim Collard
Assistant Director - Legal and Governance

www.shropshire.gov.uk
General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper



mailto:democracy@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/streams

Members of Health and Wellbeing Board

Kirstie Hurst-Knight — PFH Children & Education

Cecelia Motley — PFH Adult Social Care and Public Health (Co-Chair)

Rachel Robinson - Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing and Prevention

Tanya Miles — Executive Director for People

Laura Fisher — Housing Services Manager, Shropshire Council

Simon Whitehouse — ICB Chief Executive Officer, NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin (Co-Chair)
Claire Parker — Director of Partnerships, NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin

Patricia Davies - Chief Executive, Shropshire Community Health Trust

Ben Hollands — Health and Wellbeing Strategy Implementation Manager, MPFT

Nigel Lee - Director of Strategy & Partnerships SATH and Chief Strategy Officer NHS STW (ICB)
Paul Kavanagh-Fields — Chief Nurse and Patient Safety Officer, RJAH

Nick Henry — Paramedic & Patient Safety Director WMAS

Lynn Cawley - Chief Officer, Shropshire Healthwatch

Jackie Jeffrey - VCSA

David Crosby - Chief Officer, Partners in Care

Stuart Bill - Superintendent, West Mercia Police

Your Committee Officer is Michelle Dulson
Tel: 01743257719 Email: michelle.dulson@shropshire.gov.uk




AGENDA

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

Disclosable Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare their disclosable pecuniary
interests and other registrable or non-registrable interests in any matter being
considered at the meeting as set out in Appendix B of the Members’ Code of
Conduct and consider if they should leave the room prior to the item being
considered. Further advice can be sought from the Monitoring Officer in advance
of the meeting.”

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2024

(attached).
Contact: Michelle Dulson Tel 01743 257719

Public Question Time
To receive any questions, statements or petitions from the public, notice of

which has been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14. The deadline for
this meeting is 12noon on Friday 13 September 2024.

Suicide Prevention Strategy Update (Pages 7 - 16)

Gordon Kochane, Public Health Consultant, Shropshire Council

Inequalities Plan, Progress update (Pages 17 - 28)

Mel France, Public Health Principal, Integration & Health Inequalities,
Shropshire Council
Tracey Jones, Head of Health Inequalities, STW ICB

Rural Proofing - approval and progress (Pages 29 - 58)

Clir Heather Kidd, Chair of Rural Proofing in Health and Care Task and Finish
Group, Shropshire Council
ClIr Geoff Elner, Chair of Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Shropshire



10

11

12

13

Council

CYP JSNA update (Pages 59 - 308)

Jess Edwards, Public Health Inteligence Manager, Shropshire Council

Cost of Living Dashboard update (Pages 309 - 312)

Jess Edwards, Public Health Inteligence Manager, Shropshire Council

ICP Dashboard update (Pages 313 - 326)

Jess Edwards, Public Health Intelligence Manager, Shropshire Council

Women's Health Hub Progress report (Pages 327 - 340)

Naomi Roche, Public Health Principal - Healthy Population Lead & Women’s
Health Hubs Lead, Shropshire Council

Chairman’'s Report

Clir Cecilia Motley, Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Public Health,
Shropshire Council

ShIPP Update (Pages 341 - 344)

Penny Bason, Head of Joint Partnerships, STW ICB & Shropshire Council



Agenda Item 3

Committee and Date

WAY SNropShire | icu ans weeing s

Council

19t September 2024

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 16 JULY
2024
9.30 -11.23 AM

Responsible Officer: Shelley Davies
Email: shelley.davies@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel: 01743 257718

Present

Councillor Cecilia Motley — PFH Adult Social Care and Public Health (Co-Chair)

Rachel Robinson - Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing and Prevention, Shropshire
Council

Claire Parker - Director of Strategy & Development, NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin
Nigel Lee - Director of Strategy & Partnership SaTH/Chief Strategy Officer, STW ICB
David Crosby - Chief Officer, Shropshire Partners in Care (Remote)

Ben Holland — Health and Wellbeing Strategy Implementation Manager, MPFT (Remote)

1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies had been received from:

Simon Whitehouse — ICB Chief Executive Officer, NHS Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin
(Co-Chair)

Lynn Cawley - Chief Officer, Shropshire Healthwatch

Patricia Davies, Chief Executive, Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust

Laura Fisher - Housing Services Manager, Shropshire Council

Kirstie Hurst-Knight — PFH Children & Education, Shropshire Council

Jackie Jeffrey - Chief Officer, Citizens Advice, Shropshire

Tanya Miles — Executive Director for People, Shropshire Council

2 Disclosable Interests
None received.
3 Minutes of the previous meeting

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 April 2024 by agreed and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

4 Public Question Time

None received.

Page 1



[ Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 16 July 2024

5  Shropshire Integrated Place Partnership Strategic Plan & Local Care
Neighbourhood Working Update

Members received a report and presentation from Penny Bason, Head of Joint
Partnerships, STW ICB & Shropshire Council and Claire Parker, Director of Strategy
& Development, NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin which provided an update on
Shropshire’s Integrated Place Partnership Strategic Plan and Local Care
Neighbourhood Working.

Rachel Robinson, Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing and Prevention thanked all
involved in this work on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board and stressed that
the alignment of services was key to ensure resources were best used for
communities. She noted that the next stage was to consider how best to share this
work more widely.

In response to queries regarding the promotion of the work Claire Parker agreed with
the suggestions made to do this through Parish Councils or WI meetings to ensure
rural areas were included. Penny Bason added that a comprehensive communication
plan was in progress and explained that the work would complement the Making
Every Contact Count (MECC) programme.

In response to suggestions the Chairman agreed that the item be brought back to a
future meeting and be promoted outside of Shropshire.

After further discussion it was RESOLVED:

1) That the progress of ShIPP in 2023/24 be noted;

2) That the ShIPP Strategic Plan for 2024/25 be approved,;

3) That the system descriptor pack for Local Care be noted; and

4)  That the communications plan includes promotion of the work outside of
Shropshire.

6 Primary Care Update

Members received a report and presentation from Nicola Williams, Associate Director
of Primary Care, NHS Shropshire Telford & Wrekin which provided an update on
Primary Care including Community Pharmacy, Dentistry and Optometry.

Nicola Williams outlined the expansion of primary care services to enhance patient
care and access and noted the efforts to improve appointment accessibility through
digital telephony systems and online consultations. Preventative Programs such as
Pharmacy First which allow pharmacists to prescribe medications for common
conditions were highlighted.

In response to questions Nicola Williams explained that the service was trying to
improve access to dentistry services to pre-covid levels and noted that she would be
happy to link up with colleagues after the meeting in the relation to the following
areas:

Contact: Shelley Davies on 01743257719 2 |
Fage 2




[ Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 16 July 2024

e Pharmacies

e Dental communication/education

e Dentistry Development session

e The promotion of sight loss training within the voluntary sector

RESOLVED:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the contents of the update.

7 Better Care Fund - End of Year Report

Members received a report from Laura Tyler, Assistant Director of Joint
Commissioning, Adult Services, Shropshire Council & the Service Manager
Commissioning & Governance, Shropshire Council which provided a summary of
both the Better Care Fund End of year plan for 2023-24 and the Better Care Fund
Annual plan for 2024-25.

Laura Tyler discussed the Better Care Fund's progress and future plans,
emphasizing the importance of continued partnership and collaboration across the
health and social care sectors to improve patient outcomes. It was noted that a
number of workshops had been arranged which were aimed at reviewing the Better
Care Fund and aligning it with system-wide health priorities and strategies. David
Crosby requested an invite to the workshops.

RESOLVED:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board approve the Better Care Fund End of Year
Report 2023-2024 and the Better Care Fund Annual plan 2024-25 in appendices 1
and 2.

8 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

Members received a report from Jess Edwards, Public Health Inteligence Manager,
Shropshire Council which gave an update on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA).

Jess Edwards highlighted the progress on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA), including the development of place-based JSNAs and the upcoming mental
health needs assessment. It was noted that several place-based assessments had
been published and others were underway.

Laura Tyler requested to be involved in the mental health needs assessment.

The Chairman felt that promotion of the JSNA process was important, Rachel
Robinson agreed to look at this with colleagues from the Communications Team.

Contact: Shelley Davies on 01743257719 3|




[ Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 16 July 2024

10

RESOLVED

That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the update to work programmes and
timescales.

Joint Forward Plan

Members received a report from Claire Parker, Director of Strategy & Development,
NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin.

Claire Parker provided an update on the Joint Forward Plan, outlining the progress
made and the alignment with the ICB's operating model for strategic healthcare
planning. The alignment of the plan with broader healthcare strategies was
emphasised and the commissioning intentions were detailed.

RESOLVED:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the contents of the report.

Chairman's Report

The Chairman read out the following statement:

As a health and wellbeing board, we naturally have a focus on the best interests and
the health and wellbeing of our local communities, which lies at the very heart of
what we do.

We are therefore mindful of the recent national coverage in Channel Four Dispatches
programme on the Royal Shrewsbury Hospital, which came to light following the
recent Care and Quality Commission’s (CQC) report published in May on the area’s
two acute hospitals, the Royal Shrewsbury and Princess Royal in Telford.

As a board we recognise the serious concerns and issues these have raised among
our communities.

We want to acknowledge this, and | know the concerns raised following the media
attention and the publication of the CQC report will be examined at the next Joint
Health Overview Scrutiny Committee (JHoSC) where the committee members will
meet with our health colleagues to review the challenges and actions required to
Improve patient care and outcomes.

As a board we will monitor these discussions and will review and support the work
undertaken by SaTH and as a system, to help improve the outcomes for our patients.

Contact: Shelley Davies on 01743257719

Page 4



[ Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 16 July 2024

11 ShIPP Update

Members had before them a report which gave an update on the work of ShiPP.

RESOLVED:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the contents of the report.

Contact: Shelley Davies on 01743257719




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Shropshire
together
JE_ ™ oL ) AYY » >l ;i_ S |
SHROPSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Report

Meeting Date 19t September 2024

Title of report Shropshire Suicide Prevention Update

This report is for Discussion and x| Approval of Information only
(You will have been advised | agreement of recommendation (No
which applies) recommendations s (With recommendations)
discussion by
exception)
Reporting Officer & email | Gordon Kochane Gordon.kochane@shropshire.gov.uk
Which Joint Health & Children & Young | x Joined up working X
Wellbeing Strategy People
priorities does this Mental Health X Improving Population Health X

Healthy Weight & Working with and building strong X
Physical Activity and vibrant communities

Workforce X Reduce inequalities (see below) X

report address? Please
tick all that apply

What inequalities does
this report address?

People at greater risk of suicide and those who have been impacted
or bereaved by suicide.

1.0 Executive Summary

1.1 Purpose
To update the HWBB on the local response to the recently published data indicating an increase in the

local suicide rate and progress with delivery of the objectives within the Shropshire Suicide Prevention
Strategy.

1.1.2 Latest Shropshire Suicide Rate and Response

Latest national data indicates the suicide rate for Shropshire has increased. During the reporting period
2020-2022 the Shropshire rate was higher than the England average. However, recently published
data in September 2024 covering the period 2021-2023 indicates the Shropshire rate has reduced
slightly and is now statistically similar to the England average rate. It is noted, that although the
Shropshire suicide rate is no longer higher than the national average, the local rate of 12.8 per 100,000
population is still high compared to previous years and above many other local areas in the West
Midlands region, sois therefore important suicide prevention continues to be a system priority.

Following the published suicide data for 2020-22 earlier this year which indicated an increase in the
suicide rate, an exceptional meeting of the Action Group agreed a number of actions as an immediate
response and focused around improving local knowledge around these deaths. Activities have included:

e An audit of Coroner inquest reports for suicide deaths during this period — to review patterns, trends
or commonalities that may indicate differing circumstances for deaths during this period. This has
been led by Public Health with key messages to follow.

e Progression with enhancing the local real time suspected suicide real time surveillance model —
expanding the partners who contribute towards the system to record which services individuals
accessed inthe 12 months prior to death and to facilitate conversations on possible targeted earlier
interventions. Partners have been trained and due to start contributing by September 2024
(following information sharing agreements being finalised).

e Recruitment of a data co-ordinator operating across Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin to support the
above process.

Page 7


mailto:Gordon.kochane@shropshire.gov.uk

e Escalation of progress to design a suicide death review panel utilising a similar methodology as the
drug alcohol death review panel. Atestand learn first panel is being planned prior to end of calendar
year.

1.1.3 Updates and Progress with delivery of the Strateqy

e Review of multi-agency Suicide Prevention Action Group to ensure the right representation from
partners and review of priority action plans

e Confirmation to continue delivery of the suicide bereavement service across Shropshire, Telford &
Wrekin. Working with Support After Suicide to evaluate the suicide bereavement service

e Establishmentof two survivors of bereavement by suicide (SOBS) peer led support groups for adults
impacted by suicide loss

e Continued delivery of subsidised and free to access suicide prevention training across the system
Introduction of suicide risk awareness as part of the safeguarding session for taxi drivers applying
for a taxi license

e Continuation of implementing dedicated workstreams for addressing needs for high-risk cohorts and
integration with partners including (but not limited to) men, rural communities, substance use,
domestic abuse, housing & homelessness, and military veterans

e Currently finalising a suicide prevention toolkit for GPs and Primary Care practitioners to support
conversations where concerns of suicide are raised, including involvement of family and carers as
well as support for professionals impacted by suicide or other traumatic events.

2.0 Recommendations (Not required for ‘information only’ reports)

That the Board

I Considers endorsement of the activities presented within this update

i. Contribute and support the continued delivery of the Suicide Prevention Strategy and
evolution and delivery of the Action Plan

. Support the recommendation that system partners continue to prioritise suicide
prevention actions and promote the workforce to access suicide prevention training to
help contribute towards efforts in reducing local deaths

V. Will receive regular updates on progress with suicide prevention activity

3.0Report

3.1 Introduction

Every death by suicide is a tragedy for the individual, their families and friends, and for their local
communities. Whilst there is much activity happening nationally to help prevent suicide, local action is
critical to save lives and this requires strong multiagency groups, partnership working and excellent
local leadership to develop and deliver robust suicide prevention plans specific and tailored for the local
population.

In Shropshire, we believe that suicide is preventable; but it requires all of us to seek every opportunity
to achieve this. A refreshed Suicide Prevention Strategy for Shropshire was launched in September
2023 with ambition to build upon the foundations laid by the previous strategy with recognition of new
presenting challenges over the past years that can be associated with increased suicide risk (including
impact of COVID, economic and social uncertainty related to world events and rising costs of living).

The agreed objectives from the 2023 Suicide Prevention Strategy are displayed in the following
diagram.

Page 8




Objectives

This strategy intends to reduce the number and rates of suicides across Shropshire through the
following commitments;

Improve the quality of data Improve the mental wellbeing
and intelligence on suicide and and social outcomes for people
suicide risk, utilising tools such as bereaved by suicide through
Real Time Surveillance to better timely connection and support.
understand and respond to This includes bereavement and
demographic need and emerging Objective Objective practical support as well as
trends. Implement learning ongoing opportunities to access
reviews and audits with partners one two postvention services as required.
to ensure recommendations are This will include review of the
implemented. sustainability and evolution of
existing models for long-term
investment.

Enhance the universal offers to Ensure that all professionals,
mitigate suicide and self-harm risk partners and volunteers across
to raise awareness of suicide. This . . ) ) Shropshire are suicide risk
builds upon the previous Strategy ObJectlve Ob]ect'lve aware, and have the

and involves close partnership knowledge, skills and

with representatives from high risk four three confidence appropriate to their
cohorts to co-produce targeted role.

offers and messages for suicide

risk mitigation.

3.2 Data Intelligence and Latest Position

Data from the Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID) covering the 3-year period 2020-
2022, has identified an increase of the suicide rate for Shropshire. Although this moved Shropshire to
having a higher than England average suicide rate, latest data published in September 2024 reports
the rate has slightly reduced and is now considered statistically similar to the national average rate.

As is displayed in Chart 1 below, the rate of suicide in Shropshire for 2020-22 was 12.9 per 100,000,
compared to the England average rate at 10.3 per 100,000. This related to 108 suicide deaths in this
period and 9 additional suicide deaths compared to the previous reporting period. In 2021-23 the
Shropshire suicide rate was 12.8 per 100,000 compared to the England average rate of 10.7 per
100,000. Thisrelated to 110 suicide deaths during this period and 2 additional suicide deaths compared
to the previous reporting period.

It should be noted that statistical modelling has been used by OHID to take into account low numbers
(as a small change in number can have a significant impact on rate).

Page 9




Chart 1

Suicide rate (Persons, 10+ yrs), Directly standardised rate - per 100,000

Show confidence intervals ~ Show 99.8% Cl values » More opti

15 Recent trend: Could not be calculated
Shropshire
.OO O..o (:)O.O Pss% 95%

S 10 WW Period Gount value Lower Gl Upper CI England
§- 00O 2001-03 [ ] 98 129 105 158 103
- 2002 - 04 (@] 91 122 9.8 15.0 10.2
2 s 2003 - 05 o 90 120 97 148 101
2004 - 06 (o] 81 10.6 8.4 132 938
o 2005 - 07 o 79 101 8.0 128 9.4
2001 2005 2009 2013 2017 2021 2006 - 08 (@] 74 9.2 72 11.6 9.2
-0 -0 -1 - -re -a 2007 - 09 o 78 96 76 120 93
& England 2008 - 10 o) 94 16 94 142 9.4
@ Shropshire 2009 - 11 [} 98 121 98 148 95
2010-12 ] 98 121 9.8 14.8 9.5
2011 -13 [e] 94 1.3 9.1 13.9 98
2012 -14 (e} 90 10.8 8.7 134 10.0
2013-15 Q 81 97 7 121 101
2014-16 o 64 7.8 6.0 9.9 9.9
2015-17 Q 67 8.0 6.2 10.3 95
2016 - 18 (e} 72 87 6.8 1.0 96
2017 -19 o 84 10.0 8.0 125 10.0
2018-20 [¢] 96 1.5 93 141 10.3
2019 -21 Q 99 "y 95 143 104
2020 - 22 [} 108 129 104 153 103
2021-23 [¢] 10 12.8 10.3 15.2 10.7

Source: Office for National Statistics

Chart 2 compares the Shropshire suicide rate to other LAs in the West Midlands, with a regional average
rate of 10.7 suicide deaths per 100,000 population. It can be seen during the 2021-2023 reporting
period the Shropshire rate was the 3 highest in this cohort. During this period, it is also noted that 6
local areas in the West Midlands experienced an increase in suicide rate and 8 reported a decrease to
varying degrees. It is noted that in addition to Shropshire, Worcestershire is the only other LA in the
region that has moved to a rate higher than the national average during 2020-2022.

Chart 2
Area Ffri:::l Count Value Lii:/;r UQ;;/;r
cl cl

England - 16,158 107 ] 106 109
West Midlands region (statistical) - 1,669 107 H 102 112
Stoke-on-Trent - 98 147 I 19 180
Worcestershire - 223 130 I 12.1 15.8

» Shropshire - 110 128 — 103 152
Telford and Wrekin - 57 17 89 152
Warwickshire - 185 1.4 — 98 131
Herefordshire = 54 109 e 8.1 143
Solihull - 59 105 | 8.0 136
Staffordshire - 247 105 — 92 1.8
Sandwell - 86 99 || 79 123
Birmingham - 279 97 — 85 10.9
Dudley - 74 88 _ 6.9 1.1
Cowventry - 78 86 | | 8.7 107
Walsall - 62 86 — 85 1.0
Wolverhampton - 57 8.3 —_— 6.3 10.8

Chart 3 compares the Shropshire suicide rate to nearest statistical neighbours as defined by NHS
England (local authority areas with similar characteristics, geography and demography). It can be seen
during the 2021-2023 reporting period; the Shropshire rate was the 7" highest in this cohort. Similar to
the regional position, there is variation of trends from the previous reporting period with 7 statistical
neighbour areas reporting an increase in suicide rate and 7 reporting a decrease.

Page 10




Chart 3

Neighbour 95% 95%
Area Recent Rank Count Value Lower Upper

Trend

Cl cl
England - 16,159 107 (] 106 109

Neighbours average - - - - - -
Cumberland - 7 133 19.0 157 222
Cornwall - 1 244 16.1 141 182
Westmorland and Furness - 5 93 155 124 191
Northumberland - 10 122 149 122 176
Devon - 14 293 13.7 I 12.1 15.3
Dorset - 12 132 135 I — 11 159
» Shropshire - - 110 128 — 103 152
Somerset UA - 4 189 12.6 108 145
Cheshire East - 15 133 125 — 103 14.6
East Riding of Yorkshire - 3] "7 124 | 101 147
North Yorkshire UA = 1 202 122 — 105 139
Herefordshire - 3 54 109 — 81 143
Suffolk - 8 217 10.8 — 94 123
Gloucestershire - 9 183 1086 — 90 121
Wiltshire - 2 142 106 — 88 123
West Berkshire - 13 29 6.8 — 45 97

Source: Office for National Statistics

Considerations for the Health and Wellbeing Board to be aware of regarding the increased suicide rate:

e Our local Suicide Prevention Strategy was published in September 2023 which is outside of the
reporting period for the higher suicide rate.

e |t is recognised that the latest reporting period includes the period during the COVID pandemic and
lockdown period and is acknowledged there may have been delays in completion of some inquests
within the year of death due to disruption of usual services which may have an impact on data.

Initial Response to increasing rates

A briefing paper was shared with the Suicide Prevention Action Group and exception meeting called to
agree a co-ordinated response. A key outcome was the need to improve understanding of
circumstances surrounding suicide deaths during this period and if there have been any thematic
changes that may have contributed towards this increase. This also links with the Strategy ambition to
improve data and intelligence on suicide death and suicide risk.

The recommendations for initial response included:

e Audit of Coroner inquests where a verdict of death by suicide has been recorded to better
understand nature of circumstances around suicide deaths during this period

e Enhancement of Real Time Surveillance to include additional partners to record if the individual was
known to services (supporting opportunities for earlier intervention as appropriate)

e Escalation of design and implementation of a multi-agency suicide death review panel where the
individual was known to service, to review any gaps, missed opportunities and consider
recommendations to mitigate similar future risk

Audit of Suicide Deaths

The audit of Coroner inquests where suicide was recorded as verdict has been led by Public Health
and is to complete soon. Outcomes from the audit will be used to inform further priority actions for the
Suicide Prevention Action group. Detailed findings will be restricted given the sensitive nature of the
information.

A real time suspected suicide surveillance system has been introduced across Shropshire, Telford &
Wrekin which provides function to capture primary detail related to recent probable and possible suicide
deaths. The purpose is to enable multi-agency collaboration to provide ability to learn from, and react
to, emerging patterns and trends in local suicide. Key partners have included West Mercia Police,
Midlands Partnership Foundation University Trustand Public Health.

A new dedicated Real Time Surveillance Co-ordinator post has now been recruited, to ensure enhanced
use of real time surveillance and to work collaboratively with a broader range of partners to provide
greater understanding as to the social circumstances and services contacted in the period prior to death,
providing further insights for prevention planning. Expanded partners who will be included within the

Page 11




real time surveillance process include drug and alcohol services, domestic abuse services,
representatives from the local mental health voluntary sector as well as Local Authority Adult Social
Care and Housing teams. Further partners that could support are also being explored.

Suicide Death Review Panel

A new process for thematic review of suicide deaths is currently being designed, with intention to create
a multi-agency suicide death review panel. The purpose of this panel is to invite system partners to
thematically review whether there may have been any additional opportunity for prevention and
consideration of any gaps that could have reduced risk that need to be addressed. Learning and
recommendations from these reviews will be shared with appropriate partners or escalated as
necessary to mitigate similar future risk in others. Outcomes from the panel will also be used to
influence Suicide Prevention Action Group activities.

An initial test and learn approach to the new suicide death review panel is being planned before end of
calendar year.

3.3 Updates for delivery of the Shropshire Suicide Prevention Strateqy

This section provides an update of activity against the 4 Suicide Prevention Strategy objectives
Objective 1. Improve data quality and intelligence on suicide and suicide risk

Access to meaningful data and intelligence is essential for effective suicide prevention planning and to
ensure the right offers are available and accessible to those impacted by suicide and thoughts of
suicide.

The Real Time Suicide Surveillance system now has a dedicated Co-ordinator with purpose to manage
the surveillance system, ensure data completeness through developing relationships with multi-agency
partners and support both Action Groups with data reports and flagging emerging trends and risks. A
real time surveillance approach provides a more timely opportunity to review risk in the community, as
it is recognised Coroner inquest may take a longer time due to the additional detail collated.

Both Action Groups continue to invest in the surveillance system and are keen to expand the information
captured from both existing partners (providing further insights about the individual that could establish
further patterns of risk) and to explore working with additional system partners.

We are continuing to explore opportunities to collect intelligence from partners agencies who respond
to suicide (or suspected suicide) attempts, which will assist in using an evidence-based approach to
targeted intervention planning. It is recognised there are challenges in collecting this (including
challenges around subjectivity and formats of how databases store information). A new “Improving data
and intelligence” subgroup of the Action Group is being created to support these conversations.

Obijective 2: Improved outcomes for people bereaved by suicide

It is estimated that for every person who dies as a result of suicide, at least 115 people are affected.
There is much evidence that people bereaved by suicide are at greater risk themselves of suicide or
poor health, social and economic outcomes and greater risk of trauma.

The suicide bereavement service operating across STW was one of the first systems to implement a
suicide bereavement service and is now well established. It is delivered in partnership by Shropshire
MHS and Telford Mind, with a focus on practical, therapeutic and advocacy support. There were 75
referrals into the service from Shropshire residents during 2023-24. Feedback is collected from clients
who have accessed the service and has been very positive. Example comments collected from recent
reports include;

e “Being able to see you and talk things through before | feel worse helps me so much”

Page 12




e  “You were able to help me plan for how | was going to get through the funeral, it helped me to
get through it and reassured me | can reach out to ask for help”

e ‘I wouldn't be here today if it hadnt been for you seeing me and spending time with me. My
family dont understand”

o “Thank you so much for listening without judging me”

e “Knowing that the support is here is great, it makes such a difference”
“Talking to you relieves so much”

Referrals into the suicide bereavement service can be inconsistent so there is ongoing discussionto
promote opportunity for our suicide bereavement officers to meet with agencies and teams across
Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin to promote the service, what the offer includes and how to access. Plans
are also in place for a refresh of the communications to promote the service across STW which will
include updated printed materials to be made available.

Although the suicide bereavement service is not a counselling offer, there are alternative pathways for
people needing these offers. This includes strong links with local bereavement voluntary sector
providers where supported signposting and connections are in place via the Council customer services
team where people are impacted by bereavement, grief or loss for any reason including suicide
bereavement.

Shropshire now has two peer led support groups for adults impacted by suicide loss. This is delivered
by trained volunteers from Survivors of Bereavement by Suicide (SoBS) and currently has regular
groups in Shrewsbury in Oswestry.

Objective 3. Promoting a suicide risk aware workforce with skills and confidence to respond to
concerns of suicide

Subsidised access to suicide prevention training continues to be provided for some teams and agencies
(including voluntary, community sector). This is to support the ambition of creating a suicide aware
Shropshire and developing a culture free of stigma to encourage more open discussion about suicide
and raise awareness of the range of offers and support that can help those impacted by suicide or
thoughts of suicide.

The Action Group continues to work with system partners to promote the range of suicide prevention
training available (both locally subsidised, self-funded and broader peer reviewed suicide prevention
training). This includes ongoing discussionon how to ensure time to train where services may be facing
capacity issues due to high service demands.

During 2023/24 subsidisedtraining was provided to almost 200 representatives from across Shropshire.
These include (but are not limited to) faith groups, VCSE counselling services/mental health agencies,
sexual and domestic abuse support services, Fire & Rescue workforce, carer support services,
community hospitals, NHS (including NHS Mental Health services), the Shropshire RESET team
(supporting rough sleepers), the Shrewsbury Ark, refugee support services, Shrewsbury Colleges,
foodbanks, Healthy Lives Social Prescribers, Community Hub staff, drug and alcohol services, Local
Authority housing team and social care staff.

The training courses provided during 2023/24 include:

e Suicide prevention awareness training

e Suicide First Aid (understanding suicide interventions)

e Suicide First Aid lite

e Suicide First Aid CYP (trial)

Feedback is collected from all who undertake subsidised training to influence future delivery and has

been mostly positive in terms of participants demonstrating how they will/lhave been able to utilise the
learning within their usual roles. Example of recent feedback is highlighted below;

Page 13




e “ am utilising this learning already, fully informed and confident in asking correct questions at
right time”.

e ‘It is a heavy subject to talk about, but the course was presented in a way to enable free and
open discussion, which made it an excellent learning environment. | now feel better equipped to
offer help and support to someone in crisis until professional help can be sought”.

e “lwas pleased I took the course as it has helped me so much in my job. on some of the courses
| have been on | have found some of them very boring and | start to lose interest”.

e “A good course that has definitely helped me with my role and has increased my confidence
when dealing with people with suicidal thoughts and intentions”

In addition, roughly 45 individuals that work within Shropshire were able to access 3 jointly funded
ASIST 2-day suicide prevention workshops, which provide a more in-depth opportunity to both learn
and practice suicide prevention skills using role play.

The free to access Zero Suicide Alliance training continues to be promoted and is now embedded into
the Leap into Learning platform. Specialist categories linked to the Zero Suicide Alliance free training
also continue to be promoted, specifically for:

e Taxi drivers — connections have been made with the licensing team to include a suicide risk
awareness element is built into safeguarding awareness sessions for taxi license applications. This
includes provision of the ‘Pick up the phone you are not alone’ z-card and details of the free online
suicide awareness training aimed at taxi drivers

e Veterans — shared with the Armed Forces covenant

e Prisons

e Probation

It is also recognised that Shropshire Council has invested in a STORM{train the trainer model to address
suicide and self-harm risk for people working with children and young people.

A new training offer from Papyrus has been made available for Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin until end
of 2024 with funded spacesto access SP-OTand SPEAK suicide awareness sessions as well as further
ASIST 2-day workshops. Please contact Gordon Kochane at Gordon.kochane@shropshire.gov.uk for
further details and expressions of interest.

Objective 4: Enhance offers that mitigate suicide risk and target higher risk groups

The Strategy identified a number of groups which based on national evidence have a higher risk of
suicide compared to the general population. These higher risk groups include men, people who self-
harm, people in contact with services where suicide risk is identified, farming and rural communities,
military veterans and people with protected characteristics. Additional groups of focus include children,
young people and young adults as well as those impacted by wider social risk (including but not limited
to financial insecurity, domestic abuse, problem gambling, housing insecurity, criminal justice contact,
substance use dependency and relationship breakdown).

There are already existing links with many programmes of work across the system to ensure suicide
prevention is embedded or opportunity to identify and respond to risk considered. To date, there has
been focus on promoting access to suicide prevention training and sharing of resources that can be
used by services and teams to support conversations about suicide, support for suicide and support for
bereavement by suicide. This includes distribution to GPs, libraries and a range of other partners in the
community of the Pick up the Phone You Are Not Alone zcard, bereavement support materials and
TogetherAll leaflets (promoting the online emotional wellbeing peer support platform for adults in
Shropshire). It is recognised however, that although it is important to have universal access to support,
there may be different approaches and messaging required to have best impact when supporting
different groups. To help identify priority actions for targeted offers, a number of new workstream
subgroups of the Suicide Prevention Action Group have been formed. Although still being established,
these subgroups provide a more focused space to invite people with lived experience along with
stakeholders who actively work (or have interest) with the target group, to consider the challenges and
potential opportunities that could mitigate and manage risk.

Page 14



mailto:Gordon.kochane@shropshire.gov.uk

To date these groups, include; people known to services, men, rural communities, wider determinant
risks and a children and young people workstream planned for end of August. Additional focused
workstream discussions have included improving data and intelligence and training.

The purpose is to encourage integrated approaches to addressing shared ambitions, with workstream
outputs influencing priorities within the suicide prevention action plan. It also provides opportunity to
take recommendations from the Action Group to other system Boards and working groups to work in
partnership (recognising their may be instances where others expertise may be better placed to
influence).

If there is interest in supporting any of the workstreams please contact
Gordon.kochane@shropshire.gov.uk for further information.

Examples of local enhanced offers to date

Farming and rural community:

e Connected with the rural health check programme delivered at livestock markets, whereby
representatives from the Outreach team have been trained in suicide first aid to support anyone
impacted by suicide or thoughts of suicide.

e Close working connections with Shropshire Rural Support as key partners of the Action Group.

e Continue to explore opportunities to connect with those that work closely with the farming
community (suchas suppliers and animal veterinarians) to promote subsidised access to suicide
awareness training and information on signposting for support

People known to services
e A new toolkit aimed at supporting GPs and Primary Care with suicide prevention is currently
being finalised. This has been designed in collaboration with the Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin
named GPs for Safeguarding and provides details on how to identify risk, consideration of
engaging language and example conversation openers taking a trauma informed approach,
safety planning materials and detailing the specific role that GPs and primary care practitioners
could undertake to help keep people safe and well and/or appropriately involve and support
family or carers. The toolkit also includes information for practitioners to look after themselves.
The toolkit is due to launch before end of calendar year.
e Funded 2-day ASIST workshop suicide prevention training for Shropshire Recovery Partnership
staff to provide additional practitioner knowledge for supporting substance use clients with
thoughts of suicide

Military Veterans
e Targeted subsidised training provided to services supporting military veterans with a spotlight
focus as part of the 2023 World Suicide Prevention Day promotions

Communications and Messaging

e A communications plan to promote messages of suicide prevention and appropriate signposting
has been agreed by the Action Group.

e AChristmas and New Year poster campaign was launched in December 2023 to promote offers
of support available during a period where many usual services may be closed and recognising
this can be a challenging time for some. This was widely promoted throughout Shropshire,
Telford & Wrekin with positive feedback.

Although the Suicide Prevention Action Group is responsible for delivery of the Strategy, it is recognised
suicide prevention is everyone’s role. There is reliance on system partners to understand their role and
promote messages and signposting information to people who they support. The Action Group welcome
ideas and suggestions for further integration with wider strategies and programmes that work with
similar cohorts.

Risk Assessment and Partner agencies are asked to continue to prioritise suicide
Opportunities Appraisal prevention, related actions and opportunity to release staff as

Page 15



mailto:Gordon.kochane@shropshire.gov.uk

appropriate to access suicide prevention training in order to support
reduction in the higher rate of deaths

Financial implications No financial decisions are explicitly required for this report.
(Any financial implications of
note)

Climate Change Appraisal Not applicable for this report
as applicable

Where else has the paper System Partnership MH, LD &A Board
been presented? Boards

Voluntary Sector

Other

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not include
items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your organisational
lead e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead —

ClIr. Cecilia Motley, Portfolio holder for Adult Social care, Public Health, and Communities

Appendices
(Please include as appropriate)

Page 16



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

Shropshire
together

of P

Agenda Iltem 6

SHROPSHIRE HEALTHAND WE

AYY & . G WY
LLBEING BOARD

Report

Meeting Date | 19t September 2024
Title of report | Inequalities Plan, Progress Update
This report is Discussion and X Approval of Information only
for agreement of recommendations (No
(You will have recommendations (With discussion by recommendations)
been advised exception)
which applies)
Reporting Melanie France, Public Health Principal (Melanie.France@shropshire.gov.uk)
Officer & Phillip Northfield, Public Health Development Officer
email (Phillip.Northfield@shropshire.gov.uk)
Which Joint Children & Young X Joined up working X
Health & People
Wellbeing Mental Health X Improving Population X
Strategy _ Health
this report Physical Activity building strong and
address? vibrant communities

y Workforce X Reduce inequalities (see X
Please tick all

below)

that apply
What The Inequalities Plan for Shropshire focuses on the main types of inequalities, including
inequalities health and wider determinants, using a population health model approach. The plan is
does this particularly focused at those mostin need of additional support. This report presents an
report update on the Plan’s delivery which was endorsed by the HWBB in November 2022.
address?

Report content - Please expand content under these headings or attach your report
ensuring the three headings are included.

1. Executive Summary

Purpose: To update the Health & Wellbeing Board (HWBB) on the ongoing work undertaken by health,
local authority and voluntary and community sector agencies to reduce inequalities within the County, as
outlined in the Shropshire Inequalities Plan (2022-2027) and the delivery of the plan to date.

Introduction: Health inequalities are “avoidable, unfair, systematic differences between population
group that stem from wider societal inequalities.” These include how long people are likely to live, the
health conditions they may experience and the care that is available to them. The conditions in which
we are born, grow, live, work and age can impact our health and wellbeing. These are sometimes
referred to as determinants of health.

Determinants of health are often interlinked. For example, someone who is unemployed may be more
likely to live in poorer quality housing with less access to green space and less access to fresh, healthy
food. This means some groups and communities are more likely to experience poorer health than the
general population.

The Inequalities Plan: Endorsed by the HWBB in November 2022, the Plan aims to improve the lives
of those with the worst health fastest and break the link between people’s background and healthy life
prospects.

l1|Page

Page 17



mailto:Melanie.France@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:Phillip.Northfield@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/25751/shropshire-inequalities-plan-executive-summary.pdf

Across the County, Health, the Voluntary, Community & Social Enterprise sector (VCSE) and Local
Authority partners and organisations spanning Shropshire have, and continue to, deliver work aimed at
reducing and tackling inequalities — this report outlines the progress and success of these activities, as
well as looking forward to future priorities, and how best to build on the excellent work already
completed to date.

The Inequalities Plan presented areas of work across 6 categories, these being:

1. Wider Determinants 4. Integrated Care System (ICS)

2. Healthy Lifestyles 5. Social Inclusion Groups

3. Healthy Places 6. Primary Care Network (PCN) Inequality
Plans.

This report outlines some of the key work completed to progress and reduce inequalities within
Shropshire. Delivery of the inequalities plan involved close working with ICS colleagues and inequalities
leads, as the plan is also aligned to the Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS Inequalities Implementation
Plan. Moving forward, the full Plan will be updated and reporting to Board on an annual basis. Alongside
this, a bi-annual Inequalities Report will be prepared which will focus on emerging issues and trends, or
deep dive into a part of the Plan delivery in more detail. These reports will be monitored via Shropshire
Integrated Place Partnership (SHIPP) and the ICS Prevention and Inequalities Group.

Please note, in addition to the originally outlined objectives included in the Plan, work to support
reduction in further identified local needs has taken place, and this is also highlighted within this report.

The report demonstrates progress against 54 of the 70 actions expected to be taken forward during the
reporting period, 12 remain under review for refresh with the service leads and 4 projects were reviewed
and replaced with new actions.

2. Recommendations

For members of the Health & Wellbeing board to:
¢ Note the progress made in delivery of the Shropshire Inequalities plan to date, and for the
HWBB partner agencies to continue to work together to deliver the Plan commitments.
Approve the forward plan and priorities outlined for the next 12-month period listed in this report.
e Receive yearly updates on the continued progress of the Inequalities plan.

3. Report

High Level Indicators - Indicators of Inequality Across Shropshire

Since the Inequalities plan was written, the UK has faced unprecedented circumstances in the form of
both the aftermath of the COVID-19 Pandemic, and the subsequent, and ongoing, cost-of-living crisis
and their impact on inequalities. Whilst we cannot say what the situation would have been without these
events; it is clear that the steps taken by partners in various sectors during the 2 years since the original
plan have undoubtedly focused on, and have, mitigated some of the impacts and severity of these
events on the residents of the county. At this time, we cannot measure the extent of these measures on
mitigating any further inequalities. It should be noted however that the issues relating to these factors
facing Shropshire represent national trends, and the County is not unique in this regard.

Rurality continues to be a significant driver of inequalities within Shropshire, and these impacts are well
known — having been noted within the original plan and more recently becoming a key focus within
Shropshire via the deployment and adoption of the Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit.

Healthy Life Expectancy in Shropshire and Inequality in Life Expectancy

The Inequalities Plan provided key measures for capturing the impact of inequalities on our population’s
health. These included performance on:

2|Page

Page 18




e Healthy Life Expectancy - a measure of the average number of years a person would expect to
live in good health, rather than with a disability or in poor health.

e Inequality in life expectancy — a measure indicating the number of years people living in the least
deprived areas of Shropshire live longer compared to those living in the most deprived areas.

Indicator Shropshire

HLE Males (2018-20) (Years)
Inequality in life expectancy at birth Males (2018-20) (Years)

HLE Females (2018-20) (Years)

Inequality in life expectancy at birth Females (2018-20)
WCES)

This data indicates that healthy life expectancy for males in Shropshire is similar to the national position,
and for females, better than the national position — however, this data has not been updated by OHID
(Office of Health Improvement and Disparity) since the publication of the Inequalities Plan. Public health
will therefore continue to monitor data updates as they are produced and alongside seek to develop
proxy measures to support tracking of the Inequalities Plan delivery and impact, and will be included
within the system Inequalities dashboard, currently under development.

Inequalities Plan Delivery

The next section of the report provides an overview of the key delivered actions and outcomes from the
Inequalities Plan to present day, broken down into the 6 original categories within the report.

Wider Determinants

The wider determinants of health are a diverse range of social, economic, and environmental factors
which influence people’s mental and physical health. Systematic variation in these factors constitutes
social inequality, an important driver of the health inequalities. They account for up to 90% of health-
related issues outside of the healthcare environment, and can include items such as education,
housing, transport, and leisure amongst others.

Of the 11 priorities related to Wider Determinants that were assigned/in progress at the time of the
report, 9 have been initiated and are ongoing. The final 2 remain planned for delivery and updates on
these will be provided for the next report.

Key developments and areas of focus for this section that have been delivered to date include but are
not limited to:

e The introduction of Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact Assessments (ESHIA) across
the council, to be completed by all service areas upon submission to cabinet. These are
reviewed/amended as required to mitigate negative health impacts of any service changes.

e The embedding of Supplementary Policy 6 (SP6 — Health & Wellbeing) within the adopted Local
Development Plan (LDP) — with an agreement in principle to include developer-completed
Health Impact Assessments within the next version of the plan, whichis currently under
development.

e Delivering of the Talk Boost programme in early year’s settings across Shropshire to support
speech and language development in 3—4-year-olds. Talk Boost - Speech and Language UK:
Chanqing young lives

e The publishing of the Affordable Warmth Strategy, and support given via the Warm Welcome
initiative launched by the Social Task Force. Over 80 Warm Welcome Hub venues were
provided by Shropshire Council & Partners including Libraries, Community Hubs and more.

e The completion of a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) for the next version of the Local Transport
Plan (LTP4) — which was shared with the external consultants and provides a framework to
ensure that all health impacts are appropriately considered and mitigated or enhanced as
appropriate.

3|Page

Page 19



https://speechandlanguage.org.uk/educators-and-professionals/programmes-for-nurseries-and-schools/talk-boost/
https://speechandlanguage.org.uk/educators-and-professionals/programmes-for-nurseries-and-schools/talk-boost/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s35826/Appendix%20I%20-%20Sustainable%20Affordable%20Warmth%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/cost-of-living-help/a-warm-welcome-in-shropshire/

e Shropshire Council is on track to complete its Bronze level submissiontothe ‘Thrive to Work’
West Midlands Award — and will pick this work up again next spring.

e Joint Communications campaign developed with partners, including key Cost-of-living
messages, a self-help checklist, leaflets, Cost-of-living help page
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/cost-of-living-help/ and suite of cost-of-living locally themed
videos. Targeted leaflet distribution to households identified as vulnerable via our Revenues and
Benefits team. To ensure inclusivity and accessibility, communications were available in a
variety of languages and accessibility formats.

e Cost-of-living helpline delivered by Customer Services team. Targeted outbound calls to
the most vulnerable households, alongside dealing with incoming enquiries. 25,000
people were contacted between October 2022 and March 2023.

e Partnership development and oversight of principles to ensure the Household Support Fund
allocated proactively to the most vulnerable households. Distribution of the Household Support
Fund was via both targeted and application-based approaches. Allocations included targeted
payments to households identified as being at high risk; holiday meal support for 8000 children
entitled to free school meals; a Welfare Support Fund to provide support to low-income
households who are mostin need of help with food, energy and water bills and other wider
essential costs; and funding for support with energy costs administered by partner agencies.

¥ Shropshire Household Support Fund (HSF) 4

Counclil
March 2023 to March 2024 Funded by HM Government *Data sets not mutally exclusive

7027 households 7481 8017 children
with children, Households received free
3893 with pensioners, helped with school meals

846 with a disabled person j§ targeted vouchersin ~ \".
Supported from HSF support* school holidays

585 I 1346 — [ 361
households households households
helped with helped with supported by
energy and energy debt & community
water costs enabling grants partners

Household Support Fund success March 2023-March 2024

e HSF 2 - April-30™" Sept 2022 - £2.1 million

e HSF 3 - Oct2022- March 2023 - £2.1 million

e HSF 4 - April 2023 — March 2024 - £4.2 million
e HSF 5 - April — Sept 2024 - £2.1 million

Actions remaining to be progressed include the completion of the next iteration of the Local Transport
Plan (LTP4) — following the guidance and advice set out within the Health Impact Assessment (HIA) that
was shared with the external consultants leading on this project, this work remains ongoing, with reqular
attendance at the steering groups. The household support fund has recently been extended/additional
funding will be provided; funding allocation is yet to be agreed by partners but remains on track for
delivery.

Healthy Lifestyles

Our health behaviours and lifestyles are the second greatest influence on our health. They include
behaviours such as smoking, drinking, diet and exercise or physical activity. Improved lifestyle
approaches will lead to a reduction in avoidable diseases and issues, and an increase in healthy life
expectancy.

4|Page

Page 20



https://www.wmca.org.uk/what-we-do/thrive-into-work/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/cost-of-living-help/

Of the 3 priorities related to Healthy Lifestyles/Behaviours that were assigned/in progress at the time of
the report, all have been initiated and are ongoing, and subsequently have associated action plans that
are currently in the process of being delivered upon. These are large scale significant programmes,
aiming to deliver improved health outcomes across the county.

Key developments and areas of focus for this section that have been delivered to date include but are
not limited to.

o Healthy Lives Stop Smoking Service has been enhanced with an expanded offer launching in
September 2024. This is enhancement/expansion of existing behavioural stop smoking support
using ‘Local Stop Smoking Services and Support’ (LSSSS) grant funding. This is delivered by
dedicated stop smoking advisors and aims to support an increase in both the number of
smokers in Shropshire who set a quit date and the number of successful quits.

e This complements existing support provided by NHS LTP tobacco dependency treatment
services. A business case and comms plan have been developed, and a multi-agency
stop smoking planning group is in place chaired by a Shropshire Council Public Health
Consultant.

e There has been identification of key target groups, including those eligible for Targeted
Lung Health Checks, and ‘With You’ clients who smoke and would like support to quit.

e Thereis planned data recordina usina PharmOutcomes, with quarterly reporting against
annually settargets sent to the Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID) in
line with grant conditions.

e The Shropshire Healthier Weight Strategy 2023-2028 (HWS) including high-level action plan
was published in January 2024 following endorsement by the HWBB.

e There is ongoing sharing of the HW'S with system partners via strategic meetings and
boards, including activity to develop the high-level action plan with key partners. The
focus of Year 1 (2024) delivery is developing training to upskill front-line workers with
appropriate training to enable them to have sensitive conversations with residents about
healthy weight and resources and support available to them. A particular focus on pre-
conception advice, including health weight, to pregnant women through the emerging
Women’s Health Hubs is also being prioritised.

e The Holiday Activities and Food Programme, funded by the Department for Education, has
provided eligible children and young people free access to holiday activity during the three main
school holidays since 2021. The programme is aimed primarily at children and young people
aged 4 to 16, in receipt of benefits related free school meals (FSM). Children meeting wider
eligibility criteria can also access the programme. The programme is delivered in partnership
with organisations from across the county in the private, voluntary, and public sectors. In 2023 -
3,484 HAF eligible Children and Young People took part in the programme, with over 18,494
meals provided.

e Energize have established #TogetherWeMove, a social movement to promote physical activity.
Over 900 people have benefitted from an active lifestyle as a result of activities created by the
movement, with 10 champions all busy helping people to participate.

The above Smoking Cessation and Healthier Weight programmes are ongoing, and delivery is due to
commence imminently.

Healthy Places

The places and communities we live in, and with are represented by our local environment, whichis a
key influence on our health, and our behaviours. Additionally, there is a strong link between mental
health, and our social and community relationships.

Of the 5 priorities related to Healthy Places that were assigned/in progress at the time of the report, all
have been initiated and are ongoing.

Key developments and areas of focus for this section that have been delivered to date include but are
not limited to.

5|Page

Page 21



https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/healthy-shropshire/stopping-smoking/support-to-stop-smoking/#:~:text=Skilled%20Healthy%20Lives%20advisors%20can,concerns%20or%20long%20term%20conditions.
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/healthy-shropshire/healthy-lifestyles/shropshire-healthier-weight-strategy-2023-2028/
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/holiday-activities-and-food-programme-haf/

e The two Air Quality Action Plans (AQAP), covering the two statutory Air Quality Management
Areas (AQMA) within Shropshire (Shrewsbury & Bridgnorth) have been written, with an ESHIA
completed, and are due to be reviewed at the November cabinet. These aim to reduce the levels
of NO:z to acceptable levels. At the time of writing, they are out for public consultation.

e Health Impact Assessments (HIA) have been agreed in principle with planning colleagues to be
included within developer submissions as a matter of course for all new applications. These
submissions willinclude considerations on access to services, green space, and other health
considerations.

e The Shaping Places for Healthier Lives programme (funded by the Health Foundation in
partnership with the Local Government Association) will reach completion in September 2024.

e Taking a complex systems change approach, the programme has brought communities
and organisations together to focus on actions which prevent food insecurity with the aim
of increasing health and wellbeing and reducing inequalities including:

e Partnership working, community engagement and the development of system-wide
communications.

e Actions to support residents maximise household income (Maximising income
communications including ‘Worrying about money’ leaflet & Healthy Start campaign),
Training for frontline staff and volunteers to support residents to navigate local support
system (Advice First Aid pilot and development of Ask, Assistand Act toolkit and
training), funding for Citizens Advice advisor in SW Shropshire foodbanks.

e Actions to increase understanding of the causes of and experience of food insecurity with
the aim of reframing food insecurity and reducing stigma (including Food basket
research, stigma video).

e Grant funding for co-produced community-led solutions in S/W Shropshire.

e Within the library service, the Early-Years targeted offer ‘Bookstart’ packs are delivered directly
to pre-school settings in specifically targeted disadvantaged areas.

e Additionally, Bookstart baby packs are delivered to health visitors for distribution.

e Libraries also offer regular rhyme/story times to support Speech, Language and
Communication (SLC) and Home Learning Environments (HLE).

Actions remaining to be progressed include implementation of the agreed HIA developer submission
documents (a tool has been completed for review) and continued joint working with the Internal
Infrastructure Group (lIG) to promote health-positive outcomes in Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
funded projects across the county. The recently built Highley Medical Centre being a prominent
example of JSNA data being utilised to meet required need and being part-funded by the IG and CIL
monies in conjunction with additional funding streams including the UK Shared Prosperity Fund
(UKSPF), NHS funding and support from Halo Leisure.

NHSE Healthcare Inequalities within the Integrated Care System

Work within this category is being led by the systemwide ICS Prevention and Inequalities Group and
includes the NHSE 5 nationally agreed key lines of enquiry (KLOE). Reporting from Q4 of 2023-24
noted there were 20 priority areas with 37 programmes or projects to be delivered. 13 of these are
making good progress and are on a green rating, 15 programmes are currently amber, and progress is
red on 5 programmes, with these requiring more focus. 4 areas from the original healthcare inequalities
plan are no longer applicable for delivery.

Restore NHS Services Inclusively
e Anew System IIA (Integrated Impact Assessment) template is now in place that builds in
enhanced screening of inequalities and inequity impact.

Leadership & Accountability
e Senior Reporting Officers (SROs) have been appointed for each health organisation and form
the membership for the newly established Prevention and Health Inequalities Group.

6|Page

Page 22



https://newsroom.shropshire.gov.uk/2024/04/new-highley-health-wellbeing-centre/

Obesity
o 47/52 GP Practices (Across ICS, STW) made referrals to the NHS Digital Weight Management
Programme in 2023-24. 1536 eligible referrals were made this year achieving 81% of our total
target. Increases in referrals can be seen throughout April — June and December — March with
declines in activity over Summer and the lead up to Christmas.

Vaccinations (COVID-19 & Influenza)

e There was a completion of Equity Audits on Campaign uptake. Additionally, there was utilisation
of national communications material including in other languages and easy-read.

e Vaccination sites offering walk-ins are made available in areas of highest deprivation. Clinics are
offered 7 days a week including evenings and weekends to support access.

e There has been reviewing of historical uptake in areas of highest need and using this insight to
inform future targeted plans, as well as utilising existing resource, contacts, and partner
relationships to promote uptake to target groups.

e Satellite clinics and pop-ups in target areas (using fire stations, community, and cultural centres)
have also been set up as needed.

e Data and information on vaccinations & immunisations are reqularly included within updates to
both the HWBB and the STW Health Protection Quality Assurance (HPQA) Board.

ICS Action Plan Monitoring

The Inequalities Plan will now be updated to include the NHSE Healthcare Inequalities Plan. Updates
and progress will be included in reports to the board.

Collaborative Projects
Community & Family Hubs, including Integrated Multi-Disciplinary Teams

The community and family hubs are a cornerstone for tackling inequalities within our communities. This
means an integrated approach to delivering services closer to peoples’ homes, in local communities,
working across health, care and the voluntary and community sector. The hubs are there to offer face-
to-face assistance and supporting people to help themselves through the digital and other community
offers. Governance & reporting for this programme involves updates to the HWBB, SHIPP and its own
internal Community & Family Hub board.

e Community and Family Hubs will be for all-ages providing a single access point — a ‘front door’ —
to universal services for families with children of all ages (0-19) or up to 25 with special
educational needs and disabilities (SEND), with a Start for Life offer at their core.

e Beyond Children and Families, the hubs aim to support adults and older people to access the
support and activities they need to keep themselves as well as possible, including being able to
connect with preventative health services, carer support and other social support.

e Hubs provide services and professionals with a shared space to make it easier for people of all
ages to access the services they need, and these include physical locations, but also outreach
support.

Development of Community and Family Hubs, includes:

Integration CYP Multi-Disciplinary Teams

Health and wellbeing Drop-Ins — led by ShropCom

Proactive Care

Women’s Health and Wellbeing Hubs

ASC Multi-disciplinary Teams

Library Transformation/ Shropshire Local

Open Access Clinics (Health Visitor and Family Support Workers)

Currently, there are 5 multi-agency integrated community and family hubs in operation, covering
Southeast, Southwest, Central, Northeast and Northwest Shropshire, which will be further developed in
line with local needs.

7|Page

Page 23




Digital Exclusion - Digital Skills Programme (DSP) (2023 to 2026)

The DSP is an inclusive service, aimed at providing support for our most vulnerable citizens. Access to
free digital support is across the whole of Shropshire, with more providers than ever before. There are
25 learning locations, 13 of which are in local Libraries. Specialist provision is available for people
seeking work through the Council’s Enable service, for people with visual impairment through Sight
Loss Shropshire, and for people with learning difficulties through Taking Part. We are delighted that in
addition, 10 voluntary and community groups are delivering the programme, including one Food Bank.
Many providers work closely with their local Food Banks and GP surgeries.

Free devices and SIM cards with 6 months of free data are available from all DSP providers for people
in need. The programme works closely with the Good Things Foundation, the biggest national digital
inclusion charity, that provides the free SIM cards. Most participants learn on their own device, at their
own pace.

update:

DSP performance info to 30 June 2024:

855 people have participated in the Digital Skills Programme to date.

321 people have completed an 8-week volunteer-led programme of free digital support.
534 people have participated in a free Digital Drop In.

Learner average hours of digital support: 7.85 hours

Learner digital skills average start score: 28%.

Learner digital skills average completion score 59%.

Learner average increase in digital skills 31%

78 Digital Volunteers are currently engaged with the programme.

Healthy Start

Healthy startis an NHS Scheme that supports families on low incomes to buy fruit, vegetables, milk and
access free vitamins. At Shropshire Council we have encouraged eligible families to apply for Healthy
Start. Public Health have been working with partners including the Shropshire Food Poverty Alliance
and the Trussell Trust to improve awareness and uptake of the NHS Healthy Start Scheme. All
professionals across the ICS working with pregnant people and young families have been playing a key
role by talking about Healthy Start and promoting the offer. The scheme is digital, making the
application process easier.

m Healthy Start Scheme

Planning

December 2021- January 2022

+ Formation of Task and Finish group (Public
Health, Shropshire Food Poverty Alliance, The
Trussell Trust)
Explored data and refined objectives
Mapping of existing offer underway
Target of 5% increase agreed * QR code embedded
Aligned with Shropshire’s Health Inequalities + Healthy Start ‘Ask your midwife or Health
Plan Visitor about Healthy Start’ stickers

* SWAY crealed for professionals

49% 70%
uptake uptake
Review of feedback & funding
secured
January 2022- May 2022
Feedback from stakeholders collated
and reviewed

- SIS

Online
communications
campaign

August 2022

Communications material
produced
May June 2022
Leaflet for families developed
+ Professionals poster produced outlining
key Healthy Start messages

Shrop, e Council
social media, intranet
{all relevant webpages)

2021 2023

Campaign went live
July 2022- August 2022

Engagement with
stakeholders and

professionals

January 2022-April 2022
Engagement with relevant
partners (Health, Social Care,
VICSE etc)

* Knowledge gap highlighted by

professionals who work with families

* Healthy Start digitalisation
» Costed and budget secured through

Shaping Places for Healthier Lives
Project

Positive feedback received
from organisations and
professionals

= Additional organisations
requesting resources
through word of mouth

-
This campaign was jointly developed by; Shropshire Council (Public Health), SFPA and the o M E

Trussell Trust

cHEME B WRe

Ongoing
August 2022 to present

Shrcnpch.'re Council and
partners

* Review of engagement
with social media comms
campaigns

~

Page 24

8|Page




Social Inclusion Groups

Above and beyond the areas listed above, the original Inequalities plan specifically targeted groups who
require additional support and looked to include plans/projects and actions that would reduce the
inequalities faced by these cohorts in particular.

Of the 15 priorities related to the additional Social Inclusion Groups that were assigned/in progress at
the time of the report, 10 have been initiated and are ongoing. 5 remain on the plan for delivery, with
updates pending at the publication of this report.

Key developments and areas of focus for this section that have been delivered include but are not
limited to.

e The Domestic Abuse Needs Assessmentis in the in process of being reviewed/updated, with the
subsequent Strategy to be updated imminently during Autumn 24.

e The ICS are supporting the Local Authorities with the Education, Health, and Care Plan (EHCP)
process to support Children and Young People (CYP) with Learning Disabilities & Autism
(LD&A) to reach their potential.

e Publishing of Homeless and Rough sleeping strateqy — ESHIA completed with additional health
protection advocacy included for those unable to support themselves through infectious disease
incidents.

e Farmers Health Check’s programme rolled out by Shropshire Council’s Public Health
Community Outreach Team. Additionally, this team provides support to Bulgarian & other
Eastern European communities including advice, support, and translation assistance.

e Shropshire Council’'s Housing team continues to support Syrian, Afghan and Ukrainian
households/refugees, including registration support with local GP’s where required.

e Early adoption through the Home Adaptation Policy pilot shows an improvement and reduction in
time spent waiting for grants. This is due to be rolled out after approval by cabinet.

e The new Community Equipment Service has been in place since 1% April 2024 — and is
shared with the ICS/T&W.

e The planned Human Library Pilot working alongside Stoke Heath Prison took place, but this
initiative will not be moving forward beyond pilot stage.

Actions remaining to be progressed include the continuation of the Outreach work, implementation of
the relevant housing strategies and the proposed inclusion of Autism support sessions within the
Children and Family Hubs.

PCN Inequality Plans

Delivery of PCN Inequality plans was funded for a fixed period of 6 months during 2022. This funding is
no longer provided and so this work is currently not being progressed. Various aspects of these
priorities, however, are incorporated within the ICS Inequalities plan, and there is an intention for greater
engagement with PCN’s moving forward within the next 12 months.

Forward Plan

Reflecting on the work completed on this plan previously, there has been a huge investment from
partners across Local authorities, Health and VCSE partners. Looking forward to the future, and
considering the evidence obtained from the review, we propose the following priorities over the next 12
months for approval by members of the Health and Wellbeing board.

Strategic
¢ Refresh of the Inequalities plan to focus on key objectives that deliver the greatest change in
inequalities - to include a focus on health and wider inequalities and to support improved
tracking of key deliverables.
e Collaborative working across the system, to enable joint reporting with the ICS Inequality group.
e Continued need to focus on rurality and inequalities - to include the implementation of the Rural
Toolkit.

9|Page

Page 25



https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/27880/draft-preventing-homelessness-and-rough-sleeping-strategy-2024-2029_.pdf
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk/health-checks-for-the-farming-community/
https://humanlibrary.org/first-prison-to-host-a-human-library/

Projects/Programmes

Healthier Weight - To progress the implementation of the Healthier Weight Strategy (HWS) via
the assigned action plan.

e ICS - NHS Digital Weight Management - Targeted plan to check in with lower referring
practices, focusing especially on those in higher areas of deprivation and rurality to be
developed.

Children & Family Hubs — focused development with system partners of hubs and spokes
based on local needs.

Stop Smoking & Vaping — Continuation and promotion of the smoking cessation work as
outlined above, including a Vaping plan within the refreshed strategy.

e |CS-Tobacco Dependency Teams (TDT) - Continued close working with Community
Pharmacies to increase the number of pharmacies signed up to and delivering smoking
cessation services.

e Smoking is a leading cause of preventable mortality and a leading modifiable
cause of health inequalities amongst Core20PLUS communities. Smoking
cessation is therefore highlighted in the Core20PLUS5 as a key area of
improvement which, if addressed, can lead to a positive impact across all 5 key
clinical areas of the Core20PLUSS5 in adults.

Suicide Prevention Strategy — deliver on the actions and deliverables in the refreshed strategy.
ICS - Severe Mental lliness (SMI) - Improving lifestyles - Greater focus on engagement with the
third sector to support educational and practical advice on healthy eating, weight management
and other lifestyle choices. Greater engagement with Public Health network including joint offer.
InHIP — Continued implementation of the InHIP programme supported and delivered by a
system partnership. Year 2 is currently in delivery.

ESHIA - Updating and improving of internal ESHIA processes via the inclusion of
supplementary documents such as the HEAT (Health Equality Assessment Tool).

Housing — Continue to work closely with both planning and regulatory service colleagues on
possible future involvement in infrastructure and housing projects to support a reduction in
inequalities.

e Explore the potential for Health Impact Assessments to be included as part of developer
submissions for planning application, to be reviewed by council planning officers as part
of due process.

e Submit the Housing and Health action plan to the November 2024 HWBB for
endorsement and implementation following system workshops commissioned by the
Board.

Drugs & Alcohol - To develop and implement the 2024/25 Drug & Alcohol Strategy.

¢ Roll out and pilot the M-Pact programme.

e Continue delivery of RESET, multidisciplinary team to support people who are rough
sleeping or at risk of rough sleeping with drug and alcohol needs.

e Publish the Schools Drug, Alcohol & Vaping Toolkit (Autumn 24)

Risk

Due to the continued cost pressures on families, as well as financial pressures on

Assessment the local authority and system partners as a whole, there is the potential for

and

increasingly adverse impacts on the population, particularly those who are most

Opportunities | vulnerable. Tracking of inequalities and delivery of the above programmes is

Appraisal

therefore crucial to ensure or mitigate against avoidable outcomes.

Financial e There are no financial implications.

implications
(Any financial
implications of

note)
Climate ¢ Not applicable, associated Climate Change project (LTP4) has had
Change appropriate climate change involvement.

Appraisal as
applicable

System Partnership Boards N/A

10|Page

Page 26




Where else Voluntary Sector N/A
has the paper [Gier N/A
been

presented?

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not include items
containing exempt or confidential information)

N/A

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your organisational lead

e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead

« CllIr CeciliaMotley— Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities
« Rachel Robinson — Executive Director, Health, Wellbeing and Prevention

Appendices
N/A

Page 27

11 |Page



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Shropshire
together

Ay L O A1y N > O WY __1

SHROPSHIRE HEALTHAND WELLBEING BOARD
Report
Meeting Date 19/09/2024
Title of report Report of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee-
Rural Proofing in health and Care
This report is for Discussion and Approval of X | Information only
(You will have been agreement of recommendations (No
. . . recommendations (With discussion by recommendations)
advised which applies) exception)
Reporting Officer & Sophie Foster Sophie.foster@shropshire.gov.uk
email
Which Joint Health & Children & Young Joined up working
Wellbeing Strategy I\PAGOE)I? Health | ing Population Health
P . ental Hea mproving Population Heal

priarities does ’t>h|S Healthy Weight & Working with and building strong and
r_eport address? Please Physical Activity vibrant communities
tick all that apply Workforce Reduce inequalities (see below) X
What inequalities does The report has rural health and care inequalities at its focus
this report address?

Report content:

1. Executive Summary
This paper reports the findings and recommendations of the Rural Proofing in Health and
Care Task and Finish Group following their investigation looking at the options to
effectively ‘rural proof the amendment or introduction of strategies, plans, policies and
service design and provision in health and care in Shropshire which have been adopted
by the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2. Recommendations
Note the report and recommendations of the Task and Finish Group attached at appendix
A.
From the 14 recommendations that were outlined in the report, the HWBB are asked to
endorse those which relate to the Board which are included in section 7 of the report.

3. Report- For full report see Appendix A

This is the report of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee which adopted the
report of the Rural Proofing in Health and Care Task and Finish Group. It sets out key
findings, conclusions and recommendations of their work considering delivering health
and care services to rural communities.

The members of the Task and Finish Group have been clear from their first meeting about
the topic, that addressing any inequalities of service provision between rural and urban
areas requires a system wide understanding of the opportunities and challenges. Having
this will help to identify the most suitable and effective options that need to be explored
and implemented to effectively ‘rural proof the amendment or introduction of strategies,
plans, policies and service design and provision in health and care in Shropshire.

This work arose from Members of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (now Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee) frequently
highlighting concerns about rurality and access to health and care services through their
work. This Task and Finish Group was therefore commissioned to draw together the key

Page 29


mailto:Sophie.foster@shropshire.gov.uk

points and observations that have arisen through the work of the committee during
2022/2023, to review the latest local and national evidence on rural proofing, hear from
local system providers and take the opportunity to learn from other areas of the country.

Against this context, the Task and Finish Group has looked in detail at the available data
and information, carrying out a desk top review of the available research and case studies
into rural proofing and the impact of living rurally on access to health and care services.
Hearing from customers, service users, and patients about their experiences of accessing
health and care when living rurally. Hearing from providers of health and care services
about current approaches to delivering to/serving rural communities and sought evidence
and learning from other areas of the country.

The system and organisations that have fallen within the scope of this work are complex,
multi-dimensional and dynamic. With national, regional and local actions and activity
being identified and reviewed whilst the Task and Finish Group has been in operation.

The Group made 14 recommendations which they believe will contribute to addressing
inequalities of service provision between rural and urban areas.

These recommendations were unanimously adopted by the Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and included recommendations: to Shropshire Council and to the Integrated
Care Board, promoting a system working approach across all Integrated Care System
stakeholders promoting a consistency of approach with local and regional partner

Councils

Risk assessment and
opportunities appraisal
(NB This will include the
following: Risk
Management, Human
Rights, Equalities,
Community,
Environmental
consequences and other
Consultation)

See Appendix A

Financial implications
(Any financial implications
of note)

Whilst there are no direct financial implications from this report,
should the HWBB partners wish to adopt any of these
recommendations then appropriate financial advice on the costs
involved should be sought.

Climate Change
Appraisal as applicable

Work completed by the Task and Finish Group has identified the
following points related to their work which could have benefits
for climate change and the environment:

By undertaking an end-to-end evaluation of the travel and
transport infrastructure which supports the Shropshire health
and care system the Groups recommendation has the potential
to benefit the climate by reducing the number of individual car
journeys made by residents and so reducing carbon emissions
and improving air quality.

Where else has the
paper been presented?

System Partnership ShiPP

Boards

Voluntary Sector

Page 30




Other HOSC, People Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, JHOSC, Integrated Care
Board, Shropshire Council Cabinet

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not
include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your
organisational lead e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead

ClIr Cecilia Motley

Appendices
Appendix A- Report of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee- Rural Proofing in Health

and Care

Page 31



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

a¥ Shropshire

Council

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report of the Rural Proofing in Health and Care Task and
Finish Group

20 November 2023

Page 33



Acknowledgments

The Task and Finish Group would like to thank the officers, partners and witnesses who have
given up their time to share their knowledge, experience, and perspectives on the challenges
and opportunities associated with delivering health and care services to rural populations. The
Group were very appreciative of the positive levels of engagement from all parts of the health
and care system and have used the evidence collected to propose a consistent set of criteria
to be recommended for use to evaluate rural proofing in strategies, plans, policies and service

design and provision in health and care in Shropshire.

Members of the Task and Finish Group

e Clir Heather Kidd (Chair)

e Clir Geoff Elner

e ClIr Roger Evans

e ClIr Julia Evans

e CliIr Julia Buckley

e Clir Edward Towers

e Clir Ruth Houghton

¢ Clir Roy Aldcroft

Contents
Section Title Page no.
1 Context 3
2 Scope of the work 6
4 What the Task and Finish |7
group have done
5 Who the Task and Finish 7
Group Heard From?

6 Key Findings 7
7 Conclusions 20
8 Recommendations 22
9 Appendices 25
10 References 26

Page 34




Report
Introduction

Context

Ensuring access to health and care services is a complex, multi-dimensional challenge which
has become more pressing with the impact of wider societal factors such as the coronavirus
pandemic and the cost-of-living crisis. Dimensions of access are particularly evident in rural
health and care systems such as Shropshire where additional structural barriers make access
more challenging.

Members of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (now Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee) frequently highlight concerns about rurality and access to
health and care services through their work. This Task and Finish Group was therefore
commissioned to draw together the key points and observations that have arisen through the
work of the committee during 2022/2023, to review the latest local and national evidence on
rural proofing, hear from local system providers and take the opportunity to learn from other
areas of the country.

The members of the task and finish group have been clear from their first meeting about the
topic, that addressing any inequalities of service provision between rural and urban areas
requires a system wide understanding of the opportunities and challenges. Having this will
help to identify the most suitable and effective options that need to be explored and
implemented to effectively ‘rural proof’ the amendment or introduction of strategies, plans,
policies and service design and provision in health and care in Shropshire.

With this clarity, the Task and Finish Group scoped their work around three key stages:

o A desk top review of the available research and case studies into rural proofing and the
impact of living rurally on access to health and care services.

e Hearing from customers, service users, and patients about their experiences of
accessing health and care when living rurally.

e Hearing from providers of health and care services about current approaches to
delivering to/serving rural communities.

The view from the national perspective

The challenges of delivering health and care services to rural communities have been
identified nationally by several organisations and observers, including the House of Lords
Select Committee on the Rural Economy, which considered rural health services as part of its
2019 inquiry into the rural economy. Amongst its findings, the committee’s report, ‘Time for a
strategy for the rural economy’’, published on 27 April 2019, said challenges included:

Older populations

Funding challenges

Access to services

Poor connectivity

Issues of isolation and loneliness

The House of Lords reaffirmed their concerns over how health care was being delivered to
rural populations nationally in the ‘In Focus’ article published on 17 February 20232, which
included recommendations from the Royal College of Nursing, Nuffield Trust, Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) and the All-Party Parliamentary Group on
Rural Health and Care which was published February 2022. With the government currently

Page 35 3



reviewing the issue of health and care in rural areas as part of its wider ‘Levelling Up’ agenda
which incorporates twelve ‘missions’, including health.

In March 2021, the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) published its
report ‘Rural proofing in England 20203. The term ‘rural proofing’ describes when policy
makers and analysts consider how to achieve their policy objectives in rural areas. The report
was published in response to recommendations made in the House of Lords Select Committee
on the Rural Economy’s report, ‘Time for a strategy for the rural economy 2019%.

The foreword to ‘Rural proofing in England 2020’ said that it aimed to “improve transparency
and accountability by illustrating how rural proofing is planned and coordinated across
government, and by demonstrating the various innovative ways in which rural needs are being
successfully identified and met”.

Defra’s second report on rural proofing published in September 2022 ‘Delivering for rural
England’ sets out the national ‘rural position’ as follows, which reflects the findings of other
organisations:

¢ In 2018 in England, the average life expectancy was 79.6 years for men and 83.2
years for women. Life expectancy is slightly higher in rural than in urban areas.

e The rural population is older than the urban population and its average age is
increasing faster with implications for health and social care needs.

o Distance can mean that some health services are less accessible. The average
minimum travel time to a hospital is approximately one hour in rural areas, compared
with approximately half an hour in urban areas, with difficult road conditions meaning
that emergency transfers can take longer for rural residents.

o Delivering community-based care can be more expensive in more sparsely populated
rural areas.

e |t can be more difficult to recruit health care professionals to rural areas.

The report, noted that the government had a number of measures in place to address
challenges of delivering health care in a rural setting:

e Pharmacy access scheme. This £20mn scheme provides funding to support
pharmacies to stay open to provide accessible primary care. The government has said
that there are 1,230 rural pharmacies in England and 46% of these qualify for support
under the scheme. The scheme will remain in place “until at least the end of 2023”.

o NHS community pharmacist consultation service. This scheme, launched by NHS
England in October 2019, enables patients to get same-day appointments with a
community pharmacist for minor ilinesses or the urgent supply of a regular medicine.
The government has said that this improves access to services and provides
convenient treatment closer to a patient’'s home. The service includes referrals from
general practice and the government has said that it is looking at whether the approach
could be further expanded.

e Targeted enhanced recruitment scheme. This scheme funds a £20,000 salary
supplement to encourage trainee GPs to work in areas where training places have
been unfilled for a number of years. The government has said this includes rural
communities. The government has been increasing the number of places on the
scheme. There were 550 in 2021 and ‘Delivering for rural England’ said the
government would fund 800 places in 2022. The government has also said that
trainees on the scheme “usually stay after training, helping to sustain the GP workforce
in rural areas”.

e ‘Delivering for rural England’ also considered health care in rural areas as it is
impacted by other factors. On transport, Defra said that rural areas typically suffered

Page 36 4



from poor connectivity. It said that the Department for Transport’s forthcoming ‘Future
of transport: Rural strategy’ would “guide local authorities, transport operators, and the
private sector towards a future transport system which maximises the benefits of new
technologies and business models for rural and remote communities”. The report said
this would make it easier for people to access health care. A written answer given on 9
February 2023 said that the ‘Future of transport: Rural strategy’ was “soon to be
published”.

In a November 2022 written answer®, the government stated that integrated care boards
(ICBs) are responsible for making appropriate provisions to meet the health and care needs of
local populations. It has said that the core ICB allocations formula is adjusted to allow for
differences in the costs of providing health care between rural and urban areas. P5-10

The local perspective

Shropshire is the second largest inland county in the country and whilst there are eighteen
market towns, the remainder of the county is more rural and sparsely inhabited. Although there
are no stark levels of deprivation across the county, there are pockets of deprivation in market
towns and rural areas, particularly with issues of low pay and poor physical and digital access
to services and facilities.

,."i

/\ ", -

\ o n y - 1 = Maost deprived

7 { > "f:: Y & - 2

T . e ,-"G,_m:" i"*flm'ltc — \} ’.;’ i ;{N ; - 3
& e ‘*——

o ‘ P! 1 = 10% most deprived LSOAs in

B Y N ‘ W S
b oy ; = England
NS

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govemmem EJ Crown copyright 2019 - E]
Office for National Statistics,© Crown copyright 2019 Bl o -tesstdeprived

The Task and Finish Group found that the rural nature of Shropshire and the opportunities and
challenges this can pose are acknowledged in local health and care systems policy
development and strategic planning. The Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin Integrated Care
System Priorities include deprivation and rural exclusion. There is also an acknowledgement
within the Joint Forward Plan 20237 that “a largely rural Shropshire in contrast with a relatively
urban, deprived Telford & Wrekin provides challenges to developing consistent, sustainable
services with equity of access and long drive times to access acute services.” P27

Page 37 5



Within Shropshire Council’s strategic ‘Shropshire Plan 2022-2025 there is a commitment to
“tackle inequalities, including rural inequalities, and poverty in all its forms; providing early
support and interventions that reduce risk and enable children, young people, adults and
families to achieve their full potential and enjoy life” P1

Within Shropshire Council’'s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-2027° it is recognised that
“Shropshire has many strong and vibrant rural and town communities. We will work with our
communities to engage and find out what matters, reduce inequalities, promote prevention,
increase access to social support and influence positive health behaviours. We will also pool
information and resource to support people in our communities.” P9

The Group was able to find the beginnings of these priorities translating into collective action
form the Local Authority and Integrated Care Board. The Joint Strategic Needs Assessments
data being identified by system partners as providing opportunities to further develop effective
joined up working by identifying the strategic priorities which will inform the commissioning of
services and activities by the Integrated Care System going forward.

On the wider issue of funding for rural residents, the Rural Services Network (RSN) has
argued that rural local authorities such as Shropshire are not getting enough funding.
Referencing the 2024 local government finance settlement'?, the RSN stated that:

e Rural areas in 23/24 will still receive some 38% (£135) less per head in Government
Funded Spending Power (which excludes Council Tax) than their urban counterparts.

e Rural residents will pay, on average, 17% (£1040) per head more in council tax than
their urban counterparts due to receiving less government grant.

e Rural residents will get 13% per head less in social care support overall.

The RSN said that “rural residents pay more, receive fewer services and, on average, earn
less than those in urban areas and that is inequitable”. They state that “closing the gap
between the Government grant to the urban dweller and the rural dweller by only 10% over 5
years (for instance) would make a massive difference to rural services. In Shropshire it would
provide an extra £13,000,000 per annum at the end of this five-year period.”""

The RSN also states that in respect of Public Health Grant allocations for 2023/24
predominantly rural councils receive £45.70 per head of population compared to £73.85 for
those councils serving predominately urban areas.

Scope and focus of the work
The task and finish group sought to:

o Set out/define what ‘rural’ and ‘rurality’ means for the Shropshire Council area,
including inequalities and access to services

¢ Understand what rural proofing means for Shropshire

¢ Identify a view/position on rural proofing affecting Shropshire communities and services
(based on work during the year), and through additional research

e Use the evidence collected to propose a consistent set of criteria to be recommended
for use to evaluate rural proofing in strategies, plans, policies and service design and
provision in health and care in Shropshire

Page 38 6



What has the task and finish group done?
To conduct this review the group:

e Carried out an initial scope of the issues that it wanted to investigate and to determine
the evidence that it would need to conduct the review.

o Conducted desktop research and analysis to inform the consideration of rural proofing
in health and care services.
Undertook desk top research to identify best practice from other parts of the country.

o Heard from a range of different witnesses across the voluntary, health, care, and public
sectors.

o Heard from service users, customers, and patients about their experiences of
accessing health and social care when living in a rural community.

o Members considered the findings of the work completed by the National Centre for
Rural Health and Care and Rural England C.I.C to produce the Rural proofing for
Health Toolkit.

Who the Task and Finish Group Heard From?

The Task and Finish Group heard from a wide range of people and organisations via written
submissions and through attending their meetings; providing the opportunity to share their
knowledge and experience of receiving or delivering health and care services in rural
communities. Please see Appendix 1 for the full list of whom the group heard from during their
considerations and meetings. Appendix 1

Key Findings

Rural living is often thought of and portrayed as idyllic and can have a huge appeal. For
example, rural areas are perceived as offering more peace and quiet, a slower pace of life and
access to beautiful countryside. Rural living is seen to offer opportunities to stay active and as
having a greater sense of community spirit. Yet, as the findings of this report shows, for many
of those living in rural areas, especially those with additional needs or vulnerabilities rural life
can be very different. The Group found that the situation in Shropshire is reflective of what this
report described in the national context for rural communities.

Shropshire contains significant areas which are sparsely populated, with scattered dwellings
and settlements further apart from each other than in urban areas and with poorer transport
infrastructure, making it harder to access vital services, get to work and maintain social
connections. The evidence reviewed has shown that on average people living in rural areas
have higher life expectancies and report slightly better wellbeing (Annual Population Survey,
2018'2). There are higher levels of home ownership and evidence of stronger social capital
compared to their urban counterparts; with 78% believing people in their neighbourhood could
be trusted, compared to 61% of urban dwellers (Understanding Society, 2012'%). National
Statistics often mask the rural situation in local areas. Look beneath these figures and you can
see that there are inequalities. The When the Safety net Fails 2023"* report produced by
Citizens Advice Shropshire outlined that those higher levels of home ownership disguise
higher levels of fuel poverty, with many homeowners ‘asset rich’ but ‘cash poor’. The people
they spoke to told them they must make tough choices with their money all day, every day,
with no room for errors. For those they spoke to, this balancing act was often impossible. It
was common for people they interviewed to have gone without essentials such as adequate
shelter and food.

Strong community spirit and social capital mask pockets of social isolation. Higher than
average life expectancies overall hide some communities with much poorer health outcomes.
The geography of rural areas can prove problematic for delivery of and access to health and
care. The Task and Finish Group sessions have identified a range of the issues and

Page 39 7



challenges, as well as potential solutions and possible action areas for rural proofing of health
and care services.

The general themes identified by Members from the evidence reviewed in relation to which
areas needed to be considered when thinking about rural proofing health and care services
were:

Geography

The largest population centres in Shropshire are located in the market towns, the remainder of
the county is more rural and sparsely inhabited. There are communities living across the
wonderful landscape unlike authorities such as Cumbria where there are areas which are
uninhabited. The Group therefore recognised that their recommendations must be based on
an understanding of Place that embraced the fact that different communities had different
needs and therefore ways to meet them.

Shropshire’s beautiful landscape whilst an undeniable asset can also pose issues. The Task
and Finish Group heard from community transport voluntary sector organisations, care
providers and service user case studies that some rural areas in Shropshire comprise such
steep valley topography that it presents an accessibility challenge. The issue of the
remoteness of some homes was also highlighted with them being described as very difficult to
access safely as they are up steep roads with no pavements, no public transport which serves
them and poor road conditions meaning that physical and social isolation is a real risk,
especially in adverse weather conditions. The Group heard from voluntary sector
organisations, service user testimonies and Shropshire Council Officers how it is very difficult
to receive and provide care especially domiciliary care in these circumstances.

Page 40 8



Provision

Comparison of geographic provision
(Locations identified as geographic neighbours/sharing services, and family group local authorities)

Local Area Population Population 65+ Population Additional Hospitals in the
Authority (sq. (Census increase population density (per | comments area
miles) 2021) hectare) (Acute and
Community)
Shropshire 1,235 323,600 5.7% 25% circa 1 Households 1x Acute Hospital
person per are spread (RSH)
hectare across all 3x Community
areas of the Hospitals (providing
geography. MIU)
1x Health Centre
(providing MIU)

Telford and 1121 185,600 11.4% 17.6% 5.7 1x Acute Hospital

Wrekin (PRH)

Powys 2,008 133,200 0.2% 27.7% 0.26 Large areas 9x Community
are not Hospitals (4
inhabited providing MIU)
due to
landscape/
geography

Northumberland | 1,936 320,600 1.4% 24% 0.6 97% rural 1x Specialist
50% live in Emergency Care
3% of urban 3x General
land in the Hospitals (Urgent
SE of county | Care Centres)

5x Community
Large areas Hospitals (3
are not providing MIU)
inhabited 1x new integrated
due to health and social
landscape/ care scheme for
geography patients requiring
inpatient support
for people following
iliness, injury or
time in hospital)
1x NHS Centre

Cornwall 1,376 570,300 7.1% 25% 1.4 40% live in 1x Acute Hospital
communities | 1x Hospital with
of less than 24hr Urgent Care
3000 people Centre
4m tourists 10x Community
per year Hospitals (9

providing MIU)

15

The Group observed that Northumberland having a similar sized population and
specifically older population to Shropshire provides health services through a model
which included a larger amount of local provision community hospitals. The Group did
note that the distribution of the population within the two areas was very different with
Shropshire seeing households spread across the whole county whilst in
Northumberland most were clustered around a particular urban area in the Southeast.

Page 41




Demography

The geography of rural Shropshire has huge appeal for many, including to those in later life
who look to retire to the countryside. The table below '® outlines the growth in the 50+
population and this is predicted to continue to grow in the future.

Population change (%) by age group in Shropshire, 2011 to 2021

fall rise

801084

751079
701074

651069

This is how Shropshire compares.
There has been an increase of 29.5%
in peaple aged 65 years and over, an
increase of 0.1% in people aged 15 to
64 years, and a decrease of 2.5% in
children aged under 15 years.

The Centre for Ageing Better summarises the findings of the Group in its Ageing in a Rural
Place 2021 report.’” Shropshire like society more widely, is undergoing an age shift with
Shropshire showing a 29.5% increase in the number of people aged 65 and over between
2011 and 2021. The rapid demographic change in rural areas is often driven by inward
migration of older people seeking to retire and the outward migration of young people heading
to towns and cities for education and work opportunities. The increase in the older population
presents a specific challenge to the delivery of health services owing to greater incidences of
chronic illness, disability and mortality within this demographic. Those aged 85+ are, on
average, likely to have more complex (and expensive to meet) needs. This all highlights the
need for rural areas to focus on a preventative approach to ensure that those in mid-life now
reach later life in good health, whilst staying financially secure and socially connected.

Transport

For most people the Group spoke to, transport was a big issue. Bus routes have been cut over
many years, leaving a fractured public transport system and rural residents more dependent
on cars. We know from 2021 Census Data that in Shropshire 28.5% of people in employment
aged 16 years and over travel 10km or more to work. Of those, 54.8% travel to work by driving
a car or van. There is therefore a reliance on private motor vehicles which can impact on those
not old enough to drive, who can no longer drive or who don’t have access to a vehicle. The
Group heard that essentials such as fuel are more expensive in rural places with the Rural
Services Network reporting that it is on average 1.2 p per litre more expensive. The cost-of-
living crisis has intensified these pressures making affording a car or fuel for it more
challenging than ever for some.

The RSN has produced figures for 2022/2023 which show that in respect of public transport,
predominantly urban authorities budgeted to spend £76.3 per head of population being some

Page 42 10



74% more than predominantly rural councils (at £20.1 per head.) Public transport is a
discretionary service and overall RSN figures show for 2022/2023 that predominantly urban
councils budgeted to spend almost double the amount on discretionary services per head
compared to predominantly rural authorities (£131.3 compared to £67.0.)

Transport for young people in rural areas, in particular came through, with high costs and
reductions in services causing anxiety for young rural residents and their families. Although not
directly a health or care issue the Group felt it was important to highlight these concerns as it
was likely to have an impact on their wellbeing, access to opportunities and may be a
contributing factor to the changes explored in the demographics section of this report.

Challenges for people to access health and care appointments in rural areas, came through
very strongly. Patient Travel Support which provides free transport to and from hospital for
eligible people including:

o those whose condition means they need additional medical support during their journey

o those who find it difficult to walk

e parents or guardians of children who are being transported
was identified as posing several challenges. Patient and service user experiences laid out that
the criteria for eligibility was complex and unclear with many rural residents being signposted
to community transport groups to provide support with travel to hospital even though they were
not within their delivery area. The Group heard that transport provision overall for health and
care services was confusing for service users to navigate.

The Group heard from community transport providers who work across the England and
Wales border that Powys has an effective Patient Transport System and could be investigated
to identify best practice.

Community transport was identified as an essential feature of community life where volunteer
drivers help people access social events, shops and services including health appointments.
The Group identified some areas of the county where there is no public or community
provision available, and people rely on expensive taxies or family and friends to support them.
This is feasible for a one-off appointment, however the group heard that for patients requiring
regular ongoing treatment that costs and pressures can make attending their appointments
impossible. Several risks and issues were shared which prevent current schemes expanding
or new ones being created to support those in need including barriers such as:

e Fuel
Parking
Rising costs
Reduction in the numbers volunteering
Growth in demand
Increased legislation

It was highlighted by voluntary groups who co-ordinate and organise health and social support
for those living rurally how vital community transport is to their service users. Many would not
be able to access their services without it and highlighted that transport is a major potential
barrier to access and more specifically to prevention initiatives being successful.

Concerns about the physical infrastructure of the road network in rural areas came through, as
did safety whilst on the roads. This was highlighted by care workers and community transport
volunteers who stated that with poor road surfaces, no pathways, lack of streetlighting and
narrow roads that they often feared for their vehicles and at times themselves. Thus, making
reaching some rural residents very challenging.

Page 43 11



Digital Connectivity

Improving digital connectivity was highlighted as a national as well as local issue. In the
government report Delivering for rural England — the second report on rural proofing °
connectivity is described as “arguably the single most important way to support levelling up in
rural areas. Digital connectivity is an important driver of productivity, enabling businesses and
individuals to take full advantage of the growing opportunities available online, but it is more
than just an economic necessity. It is also a matter of social justice. As more and more
services, both public and private, are delivered electronically, the government does not want
those who live in rural areas to be denied access to them simply because their broadband is
not good enough or there is no mobile signal.” P15 The government has therefore introduced
two initiatives to improve rural connectivity - Project Gigabit and the Shared Rural Network.

Project Gigabit is a national initiative to provide funding to support gigabit-capable
infrastructure in hard-to-reach, rural areas. The government received over 3,300 responses to
its call for evidence on ‘Improving Broadband for Very Hard to Reach Premises’. These
responses highlighted the challenges faced by, and potential opportunities available to, rural
and remote communities. The government will use this evidence to assess policy options to
support those unable to access a gigabit-capable connection through either a commercial or
government-funded roll-out. The government will publish further information later in 2023.

The Shared Rural Network is the second government initiative which aims to provide people
with high-quality and reliable mobile coverage wherever they live in the UK. Typically, rural
areas have tended to be less commercially attractive to mobile network operators and as a
result some rural areas are underserved, lacking good quality reliable mobile coverage. The
table below shows the 2022 levels of 4G coverage and areas with unreliable or no coverage.

In 2025 analogue copper phone services are planned to be withdrawn nationally. The Local
Government Association (LGA) and National Farmers Union (NFU) have both identified
potential risks with this approach. The LGA are concerned that there is a huge lack of
awareness among residents about the coming changes and that there is a need for
government to spread the message through communications campaigns, including adequate
funding to support the above. The NFU highlights the risks to rural communities if they have to
rely on a broadband connection for calling as it creates a vulnerability to power outages.

In most cases, mobile signal provides a backup in case of emergency, however, in areas of
poor mobile signal, a battery back-up is expected be offered to customers so that during a
power outage, emergency calls can still be made on the household phone.

The NFU and RSN are also working with BT and other providers to ensure that rural
communities are not left without sufficient support and access to working home phones in any
emergency situations and continue to press the importance of rural mobile access to industry
and government. Members of the Group were able to provide their own experiences of
vulnerable members of their communities who have been left without landline access due to
analogue lines being downed in adverse weather and how it has taken up to six weeks to have
these repaired, leaving residents without their emergency call buttons if they fall.

Page 44 12



Key

Total not-spots, areas with
no 4G coverage from any operator

Partial not-spots, areas with 4G coverage
from at least one, but not all four operators

. 4G coverage from all four operators

18

In Shropshire health and care system too, the local digital strategies all acknowledge the vital
role played by online and digital services. They also highlight that Shropshire’s geography
poses challenges to providing equitable access to online and digital services, but not all are
explicit about how to address these. 8 1920,

The Shropshire Council ICT and Digital Strategy '® sets out how it plans to deliver equitable
service access to all citizens and acknowledges that “users need more than just
encouragement and education, they need affordable connectivity, they need devices, and in
some instances, they will also need specialist software that supports those with disabilities.”
P15-16 The Strategy proposes to support citizens who don’t have a computer at home, by
enabling them to use public access computers at a council face to face service point. The
Strategy also suggests that if someone does not have their own device that councils
elsewhere have participated in schemes to redistribute unwanted but serviceable laptops,
tablets and smartphones from organisations which regularly replace their devices. The Group
welcomed the ideas laid out in the plan. However, from the evidence they had heard from
people living very remotely with little access to transport; the Group felt that there needed to
be a more proactive element to the support on offer and recommended the investigation of the
feasibility of utilising mobile vehicles such as library vans where the staff are already well
known to the local population and have a transferable skill set.

Whilst the Group welcomed the national and local strategies; the evidence heard
demonstrated that online and digital services and products whilst offering innovative and
efficient methods of delivery can also act as a significant barrier to access for some. The
service user case studies highlighted the risks of creating significant inequalities for rural
service users, especially the elderly and other vulnerable groups who find the move towards
digital becoming an increasing barrier to accessing services. The findings of the group were
summarised in the report by the Greater Manchester Digital Inclusion Network, ‘Issues of
wider digital and technological exclusion for older people?" which identified the following as
barriers to access to online and digital services:

Finance
Impairments
Knowledge
Connection

Page 45 13



These experiences were echoed by the Group themselves who were able to provide several
examples where the use of online/digital access as the only method to interact with a service
had caused vulnerable people to be negatively affected.

The impact of wider digital and technology exclusion was also highlighted through the
evidence, identified as including:
» Reduced independence and autonomy
Limited mobility
Negative impact on health and wellbeing
Anxiety inducing
Leading to people paying more than necessary

The evidence heard by the Group bore out the findings of the LGA report Health and
Wellbeing in rural areas?' that to provide services in rural geographies an innovative mixed
delivery approach is required. Including multiple points of entry to access into health and care
services, multi-channel options for the use of these services including the use of mobile or
outreach vehicles. This approach has been shown to provide meaningful alternatives to digital,
with some face-to-face support available within accessible locations or being taken to the most
vulnerable.

The direction of travel for many organisations is to online, with digital application processes as
default. Whilst the Group acknowledges there are many benefits to this way of working, they
were presented with robust evidence that many rural areas in Shropshire still lack the
infrastructure to deliver a consistent phone signal or allow people to get online. The Group
also identified the fact that there will always be individuals who need alternative ways to
access services. With these individuals often being some of the most vulnerable.

Recruitment and Retention

The Group heard that there are nationally recognised challenges to recruit into both the health
and care sector. The national NHS Long Term Workforce Plan 202323 seeks to put staffing on
a sustainable footing and improve patient care. It is focussed on retaining existing talent and
making the best use of technology alongside a large recruitment drive. This includes creating
skills to work in multidisciplinary teams and to enable more digital adoption especially in
helping to address geographical inequity. The approach is described in the plan as addressing
“[liImbalances in geographical distribution of training posts and is not confined to medical
training. Other professional groups also require a more equitable spread of training
opportunities, based on current and future patient need. ICS’s will be able to consider local
needs and respond to geographical inequity, via reform of education funding policy, and
increased use of apprenticeships and blended learning opportunities. Work is already
underway within pilot ICS’s as part of the rural and coastal workforce transformation
programme to implement education, training and workforce transformation solutions, aimed at
improving attractiveness of jobs and retention of the healthcare workforce in these locations.”
P85

Locally the Group heard lots of anecdotal evidence from service users, voluntary sector
organisations and Members that the Shropshire health system is finding it hard to recruit in
rural areas. This was confirmed by the Integrated Care Board and the Shropshire Community
Health Trust and that both were investigating new ways of attracting and retaining staff in rural
areas.

The Rural Services Network has drawn together some options for addressing these issues in
their article ‘Working with Rural Communities; Promoting Rural Best Practice®*.” Which outlines
the headline findings from a lecture by Professor Roger Strasser on his widely appraised rural
workforce research. Professor Strasser is a leader in the global reform of health professional

Page 46 14



education and has become one of the world’s foremost authorities in rural, socially
accountable medical education. His lecture included examples of available strategies which
health organisations can employ to attract their workforce to rural areas:
e The NHS England’s programme to help tackle health inequalities in rural and
coastal areas;

e The importance of, “access to digital online resources [as being] key to reaching out to
rural communities.”

o The knowledge and library services gives all NHS staff the right knowledge and
evidence to achieve high-quality, safe healthcare and health improvement;

o Highlighted the retaining of staff is as important as recruitment, stating, “It's important
to recruit but also to ensure we keep the people we've got.” The RePAIR(Reducing
Pre-registration Attrition and Improving Retention) project has enabled us to gain an in-
depth understanding of the factors impacting on healthcare student attrition and the
retention of the newly qualified workforce in the early stages of their careers; and
also said, “The first step to a facilitated rural career pathway is the promotion of health
careers,” whereas our Health Careers website offers information of over 350 career
choices in the NHS.

¢ In addition to these programmes, through the Enhance Generalism Leadership and
Social Medicine Programme, we are training healthcare professionals to fully
understand the needs of rural and coastal communities by working with and for the
communities to better healthcare provision.

Within the social care sector, high vacancy and turnover rates are also a notable feature, most
obviously in domiciliary care services which has been accelerated through societal factors
following the Covid Pandemic and the Cost-of-Living Crisis. However, rural health and care
workforce issues are much broader. It was heard that care agencies were not able to accept
some rural clients as they could not guarantee being able to provide regular care workers due
to:

Damage to cars from narrow or potted roads
Distance

Lack of affordable housing

Cost of fuel

No public transport

Narrow roads with no footways

Travel time

Shropshire Council Officers agreed that workforce is a significant issue both internally and
externally’ with 66% of external care providers surveyed by Shropshire Council finding
recruitment and retention difficult.

Several local solutions were outlined by Shropshire Council Officers ranging from recruiting
bank care staff on casual contracts to reduce the need for agency staff enabling Shropshire
Council to maintain a consistent service with their own well-trained staff. To working with the
sector to ensure a fair wage, opportunity to training and career progression; supporting
managers to create a supportive work environment. The Members were pleased to hear about
these developments along with regional work which is taking place to develop an operating
model for a social care apprenticeship academy.

Page 47 15


https://www.hee.nhs.uk/news-blogs-events/news/hee-unveils-programme-help-tackle-health-inequalities-rural-coastal-areas
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/news-blogs-events/news/hee-unveils-programme-help-tackle-health-inequalities-rural-coastal-areas
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/our-work/knowledge-library-services?utm_source=Twitter&utm_medium=social&utm_campaign=Orlo
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/our-work/reducing-pre-registration-attrition-improving-retention
https://www.healthcareers.nhs.uk/
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/our-work/enhancing-generalist-skills
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/our-work/enhancing-generalist-skills

System Working

From the evidence heard at the sessions Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE)
involvement and leadership has been key to supporting people within the Shropshire health
and care system. It is through a system wide approach supported by the VCSE sector that has
delivered some progress towards addressing rural health inequalities and supporting people
with complex and multiple needs.

However, the Group heard that demand for these services is increasing, and that funding is
not keeping pace with this demand. VCSE organisations reported that they were not always
included at an early enough stage of planning for the local authority and NHS Trusts to
understand the operating realities of their organisations and for meaningful co-production to
take place, producing the best outcomes.

The voluntary organisations explained that there are several factors which are making
operating more challenging, they are:

The impact from the cost-of-living crisis

Increased levels of support required

Charitable giving is lower

The emotional and financial costs of the pandemic are still being felt
Reduction in funding

Fragility of sector

O O O O O O

It was recognised by both the Group and the voluntary sector representatives that the Rural
Proofing for Health Toolkit included prompts which addressed considerations regarding the
VCSE especially what is already being provided in the community thus, avoiding duplication
and an over reliance on the voluntary sector.

Shropshire Council Officers explained that the local Joint Strategic Needs Assessments
(JSNA) being carried out by Public Health is a key element of being able to unpick what is
happening in local areas with the eventual aim of being able to break that down further to
household levels. Working in this way was identified as a national challenge, and that
Shropshire Council are working with other rural partners and local authorities who have the
same issues to share learning.

The Group identified from the evidence heard that Shropshire Council has a leadership role to
play in co-ordinating and commissioning services, providing investment and building trusted
relationships across sectors. Clear communication and recognition of the expertise,
professionalism and reach of the voluntary sector will help to make sure that all players in the
local support system feel like equal partners. The voluntary sector is grounded in communities
and understands the nuances of the local context. It acts as an indispensable ally and
advocate for local residents. Voluntary organisations and community groups help people to
navigate support systems. They piece together information and entitlement from different
sources. The voluntary sector does complex work. This needs to be communicated and
understood across the local system. Voluntary sector partners will be crucial to meet the
challenges we are all currently facing. Funding for the voluntary sector needs to be future-
proofed, to ensure the sector is able to recruit and retain the skilled staff it needs as local
support services are under a lot of strain. Voluntary and Community Sector Assembly (VCSA)
study showed 80% of local voluntary organisations have struggled to recruit in recent months.
68% have concerns about staff leaving their organisations because of low pay. Their demand
is growing, and they cannot do what they do without investment.

There were examples provided by the voluntary sector of strategic joined up working between
Borderlands Rural Chaplaincy, The Mental Health Trust and Local Authority in Herefordshire

Page 48 16



and outlined how this had improved the service being provided to people living rurally. The
Group proposed that this could be a case study to learn from.

Mental Health

One of the challenges that were identified for health care providers is how to plan and design
child and adult mental health services which are sustainable across larger rural geographies
and are accessible to their dispersed communities.

VCSE representatives explained how there could be a real improvement in the strategic
leadership and so provision of mental health services in Shropshire including addressing rural
health inequalities if there was a dedicated mental health commissioner. They explained that
Telford and Wrekin Council have a mental health commissioner and that it helps to provide
strategy and direction which assists the system to provide appropriate services.

Officers at Shropshire Council agreed that it would be valuable to have a mental health
commissioner for Shropshire in the same way that other local authorities do and explained that
to support this a 12-month temporary role had been created but that it was hoped that this
could be made permeant due to the expected positive impact it would have.

Role of Members

A frequent theme of the groups discussions was the role Members play in decision making
and information sharing. It was agreed that councillors and officers are indispensable to one
another and effective communication between both is essential for effective system working.
There were numerous instances during the Groups sessions where the Members discovered
they were unaware of the services which were on offer to the public and that they felt as
elected Members that a real opportunity for them to communicate these to their constituents
was being missed.

Another missed opportunity which the Group identified was for councillors to be made aware
of planned alterations of or introductions of services across the health and care system so they
could represent their communities and inform planning at an early stage.

Equality, social inclusion and health impact assessments (ESHIAs)

In Shropshire Council, the screening tool that is used to give due regard to the impacts
of decisions on its citizens is referred to as an Equality, Social Inclusion and Health
Impact Assessment (ESHIA). This is a single screening template, usually presented as
an appendix to a committee report usually to Cabinet or to Strategic Licensing
Committee, which sets out to ensure that “due regard” is being given to equality,
equity, social inclusion and health and wellbeing, alongside economic impacts
assessment and environmental/climate change impact assessment.

The group heard that social inclusion, health and wellbeing, and economic and climate
change impact assessments are not legal requirements under the Equality Act 2010,
but that together with the legal requirements in regard to equality, they add value or at
least ensure that the council is visibly seeking to take a holistic view of impacts and
identify where and how any anticipated positive impacts may be enhanced and where
and how any anticipated negative impacts may be minimised.

Page 49 17



The ESHIA screening thus sets out to ensure that “due regard” is being given to
equality, equity, social inclusion and health and wellbeing, alongside economic and
environmental impacts, in line with the local aspirations as set out in the Shropshire
Plan as well as national legal obligations. Since 2014, the Shropshire Council equality
impact screening assessment has encompassed consideration of social inclusion,
including consideration of rurality impacts. These may also be considered within
economic impacts.

The Integrated Care System uses an Integrated Impact Assessment Tool which is
applied to understand which groups may be impacted by any proposed changes to the
way health and care are delivered. This aims to identify whether to engage specific
groups or individuals to help reduce inequalities and ensure they are not added to.
This is also informed by the Shropshire and Telford & Wrekin Joint Strategic Needs
Assessments and evidence on health inequalities. The ICB has an Equalities and
Involvement Committee that reviews and scrutinises Integrated Impact Assessments.
This is chaired by a Non-Executive Director lead for health inequalities and
membership is from within communities.

The Group found there was robust evidence of Impact Assessments taking place but
were concerned that despite harmful factors being identified in Equality Impact
Assessments decisions are still able to proceed, and a course of action may potentially
be agreed upon at committee despite negative impacts being identified.

Against this should be set that there are obligations not only to identify likely impacts
and risks of proceeding but also to seek to adjust a proposal or service change or
clarify why this is not going to be undertaken, and to review and monitor the
effectiveness of mitigating actions taken to minimise negative impacts. This equally
includes actions to enhance positive impacts.

Public sector equality duty — s49 Equality Act 2010

In summary,

“A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to:

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.”

Any decision made in the exercise of any function is potentially open to challenge if the
duty under s149 has been disregarded. Not all decisions of a local authority will
engage the duty; a decision-taker is obliged to consider an equality issue only where
there is some reason to believe that the proposal may raise such an issue and it won'’t
arise where, on analysis, there has been no change to an existing policy.

Page 50 18



There is a substantial body of case law in which the principles have been discussed
and applied. The question whether there has been “due regard” has been paid to
equality needs is for the court to determine and it will generally be dependent on the
facts and circumstances. Some general principles have emerged, however, from the
caselaw and they include:

e equality duties are an integral and important part of the mechanisms for
ensuring the fulfilment of the aims of anti-discrimination legislation.

e The decision-maker must assess the risk and extent of any adverse impact and
the ways in which such risk may be eliminated before the adoption of a
proposed policy and not merely as a “rear-guard action”, following a concluded
decision.

e “The concept of ‘due regard’ requires the court to ensure that there has been a
proper and conscientious focus on the statutory criteria, but if that is done, the
court cannot interfere with the decision simply because it would have given
greater weight to the equality implications of the decision than the decision
maker did. In short, the decision maker must be clear precisely what the
equality implications are when he puts them in the balance, and he must
recognise the desirability of achieving them, but ultimately it is for him to decide
what weight they should be given in the light of all relevant factors.”

The undertaking of a formal Equality Impact Assessment is not mandated by the 2010
Act, but the production of an EIA in appropriate form in advance of the decision is
usually convincing evidence that due regard has been had to the PSED.

Decisions in a wide range of contexts have been quashed (i.e. ruled as of no effect
because they are unlawful) where there has been a failure to pay any or any sufficient
attention to the PSED obligation. Conversely, in many cases authorities have been
found on the facts to have paid “due regard” to the matters set out in s149.

Where a breach of the PSED is established, the court as a matter of discretion may
decide not to quash the decision, but merely to grant a declaration that there has been
non-compliance. This will depend on the facts of the case and whether the outcome
would have been substantially different if a breach of the PSED had not occurred.”

Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit (Appendix 2)

The Group heard from Graham Biggs in his role as Rural Policy Advisor at the Rural Services
Network and a Director of the National Centre for Rural Health and Care and Brian Wilson
from Rural England C.1.C who is one of the authors of the toolkit. The Group learned that the
Toolkit seeks to help those in the health and care sectors to address the needs of their rural
populations when they develop strategies, initiatives and service delivery plans.

The Toolkit is based around six main themes:
Main hospital services

Primary and community health services
Mental health services

Public health and preventative services

O O O O

Page 51 19



o Social care services
o Workforce

The Toolkit defined ‘rural proofing’ as a “systematic approach which identifies any notable rural
differentials likely to impact on service effectiveness and outcomes. It assists service providers
by enabling thinking about appropriate solutions, mitigations and opportunities. The objective
is to ensure equitable outcomes for service users who live in rural areas.”

Rural Proofing can help to:

o Optimise the outcomes achieved by strategies and plans
Demonstrate a commitment to act equitably and benefit all communities
Support locality-based approaches to working and services
Design out any unintended gaps in service provision
Identify opportunities to innovate or make better use of available resources
Embed good practice within strategy and plan making” p4

O O O O O

The Toolkit recognises that rural areas have distinct geographies, often characterised by a
dispersed population and small settlements and that this presents challenges both for
providers who deliver services and residents who use them and is therefore designed to be
used across different types of rural geographies, from remoter or sparsely populated areas
through to mixed areas, where a rural hinterland adjoins larger urban settlements.

The Group felt from their own review of the Toolkit that through its structure it meant that all of
the themes they had identified which needed to be considered when ‘rural proofing’ a health
and care service were covered. This coupled with the evidence presented to them by the
speakers and the endorsements for the Toolkit from bodies such as Health Education England
and the World Health Organisation led them to feel confident that this Toolkit provides an
effective framework for the Shropshire health and care system to work from when amending or
developing strategies, initiatives and service delivery plans.

Conclusions
Objective 1: Set out/define what ‘rural’ and ‘rurality’ means for the Shropshire
Council area, including inequalities and access to services

The official government definition is that urban areas are defined as settlements with
populations of 10,000 or more people. Rural areas are those areas outside of these
settlements. They make up over 80% of England’s land and are home to around a fifth
of the English population. In Shropshire around 57% of the population of 323,600
(2021 Census) live in villages, hamlets and dwellings dispersed throughout the
countryside?®. There are 18 market towns and key centres of varying size, including
Ludlow and Bridgnorth in the south, Oswestry in the north, and Shrewsbury, the central
county town. An additional dynamic is that unlike for example Cumbria, the population
is dispersed across the entire county, rather than there being any areas where no one
lives at all.

Page 52 20



As of 2021, Shropshire is the second least densely populated of the
West Midlands' 30 local authority areas, with an area equivalent to
around one football pitch per resident.

As of 2021, Telford and Wrekin is the 14th most densely populated of
the West Midlands' 30 local authority areas, with around five people
living on each football pitch-sized area of land.

Therefore, the Task and Finish Group concluded that due to Shropshire’s geographical
make up; the national definition will in Shropshire include towns (below 10,000
population) as well as villages, hamlets and isolated dwellings. As the rural area types
in Shropshire vary from sparsely populated areas through to areas adjacent to larger
urban areas it is important that the individual characteristics of these differing areas are
considered. The Task and Finish Group saw through their work that the national rural
urban classification is often used as the basis for the analysis undertaken when ‘rural
proofing’, but that this is often not sufficient as it lacks granular detail.

The Task and Finish Group have therefore concluded that in Shropshire the official
government definition which is used by most organisations should be enhanced
through the evidenced consideration of these four characteristics which are taken from
the Rural Proofing Practical Guidance to Consider the Outcomes of Policies in Rural
Areas 202277

* Demographics: There are proportionately more elderly people and fewer younger
people in rural populations compared with urban ones.

* Access to services: The combination of distance, transport links and low population
density in rural areas can lead to challenges in accessing and providing services.

* Service infrastructure: Lower levels of infrastructure such as low broadband speeds
and variable mobile coverage can be a barrier for rural businesses and limit the growth
in rural productivity.

* Employment: The variety of employment opportunities, the availability of people with
the right skills, and access to training can be lower in rural areas.

The Group found that these four areas were comprehensively addressed within the
Rural proofing for Health Toolkit (Appendix 2)

Page 53 21



Objective 2: Understand what rural proofing means for Shropshire

The task and finish group have agreed to adopt the definition of rural proofing from the
Rural proofing for Health Toolkit (Appendix 2)

“The term ‘rural proofing’ is used to define a systematic approach which identifies any
notable rural differentials likely to impact on service effectiveness and outcomes. It
assists service providers by enabling thinking about appropriate solutions, mitigations
and opportunities. The objective is to ensure equitable outcomes for service users who
live in rural areas.” P4

Objective 3: Identify a view/position on rural proofing affecting Shropshire
communities and services (based on work during the year), and through
additional research

The group agreed that rural proofing should start at the earliest possible stages of
policy development and strategic planning and continue beyond policy evaluation to be
included in every development or significant change to policy, planning or service
delivery. This does not need to be complicated and can be built into any consultation
and policy development process.

Objective 4: Use the evidence collected to propose a consistent set of criteria to
be recommended for use to evaluate rural proofing in strategies, plans, policies
and service design and provision in health and care in Shropshire.

The group agreed that the use of the Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit be
recommended to all partners of Shropshire’s Health and Care system. That the Toolkit
also be adopted for use by the HOSC and JHOSC to review any changes or new
services that are being implemented to ensure they have been ‘rural proofed’.

Recommendations

The members of the Task and Finish group are aware that there is ongoing work underway in
the Shropshire health and care system, and at a national level, to address how health and
care services are delivered equitably in rural areas. If work that would deliver all or part of a
recommendation is already planned or underway, please can this be set out in the responses
to any accepted recommendations including what is being done, the timelines for action, and
how the impact and progress will be evaluated. Please note that the recommendations are
ordered chronologically and carry an equal weighting.

1.

Recommendation: That an end-to-end evaluation of the travel and transport

infrastructure which supports the Shropshire health and care system should be

completed by the Integrated Care System to understand how effective the current

provision is and to identify current and future demand. The evaluation should include:
o Patient Travel Support

Public Transport

Concessionary Travel

Community Transport

A review of how health and care transport is co-ordinated at a system level

A mapping exercise to identify community capacity available to deliver voluntary

community transport schemes, and whether there are sufficient services

available and how best to provide an equitable service closing the gaps overall

and in specific locations.

O O O O O

Page 54 22



Recommendation: The group recommends that rurality and the accessibility factors
that are associated with it becomes a key consideration for Shropshire’s health and
care system (including Shropshire Council) when adapting or introducing a new service
or policy and recommend the use of the Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit to achieve
this.

Recommendation: That an evaluation be undertaken by Shropshire Council to
understand the impact of digitalisation on protected and vulnerable demographics
(including those living rurally.) Understanding more about the current and future needs
in different communities and investigating alternative delivery models to provide the
infrastructure, access to equipment and support to enable all communities to benefit
from the advantages which digital services can provide. The evaluation should include:

o Mapping mobile coverage and broadband access and use across Shropshire.

o Developing/strengthening partnerships with broadband providers to help
identify and support people experiencing digital exclusion?

o Working with telecoms providers to ensure that vulnerable people are not left
without the means to seek help in an emergency through line outages

o ldentifying the impact to vulnerable users of the plans to remove all analogue
copper phone services nationally by 2025

o Working with other council departments, NHS partners, voluntary and/or faith
organisations and district councils, to build on the model of an integrated
services hub to enable people to access a number of services in one locality

Recommendation: That an evaluation be undertaken by Shropshire Council in their
role as commissioner and Place co-ordinator to understand how the Council’s
intelligence and data gathering function can contribute to discussions and research on
how to identify small pockets of deprivation in rural communities. Testing how
ambitious the strategic plans are about strengthening the power of community, leading
the way by using robust data to identify the challenges facing different areas, building
local capacity, embracing coproduction and community delivery, and devolving power
and resources to neighbourhoods.

Recommendation: The Groups research has shown that local support from the
voluntary sector does, and will continue to play, a vital role in supporting residents by
providing access to health and care services in rural locations. However, as resources
are required to do this; sufficient understanding of the needs of the voluntary
organisations and planning time needs to be built into the system. The Group
recommends that the Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit be completed alongside the
impact assessment process, as in each section it includes prompts to consider the ask
being made of the voluntary sector.

Recommendation: The Group were very pleased to learn that the Rural Proofing for
Health Toolkit had been recommended for use within the Integrated Care System (ICS)
by Simon Whitehouse (Chief Executive Officer for Shrewsbury Telford and Wrekin
Integrated Care Board) and ClIr Cecelia Motley (in her role as Co-Chair of the Health
and Wellbeing Board.) The Group recommends that the Toolkit be fully adopted into
the Integrated Impact Assessment process of the ICS and all organisations whom it
commissions and be accepted as a mandatory document to be completed when
making changes to or introducing a new strategy or plan making process, so it can
inform thinking from the outset.

Page 55 23



7. Recommendation: That the Shropshire Health and People Overview and Scrutiny
Committees adopt the Rural proofing for Health Toolkit as a part of their own overview
and scrutiny processes to support them in maintaining a robust view on the needs of
their local rural populations when they review strategies, initiatives and service delivery
plans.

8. Recommendation: Whilst this Group have focussed on rural proofing specifically in
the health and care system their findings have shown that its impact is much wider
ranging and relevant to all areas of the Council and the support provided to rural
communities. The Group therefore recommends that the Shropshire Council 2020
Community and Rural Strategy be updated and implemented.

9. Recommendation: That the Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit be recommended for use
to its partner local authorities of Telford and Wrekin to support the work of the Joint
Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee. To the Shropshire Association of Local
Councils for use in their work as Parish Council’s, creating a consistency of approach
to rural proofing. Then this be expanded to Herefordshire, Monmouthshire and Powys
as with evidenced cross border working through shared interests and the new Marches
Forward Partnership, the Group recommends that the adoption of this Toolkit forms
part of the Memorandum of Understanding by all the authorities which will contribute
towards a shared understanding of the opportunities and challenges of delivering
health and care services to rural communities.

10. Recommendation: That communication between Council officers, system partners
and councillors be reviewed to ensure that the best use of councillor's knowledge of
their communities and where there may be previously unidentified health needs. It is
recommended that regular briefing updates are provided to councillors from Council
officers and system partners so that Members are aware of developments in service
delivery and can feed in their local knowledge to the work being developed, sharing
new developments and service offers with their communities especially supporting with
facilitating communication with historically hard to reach groups.

11. Recommendation: That an agreed system approach to ‘local’ be defined to assist with
having comparable data at a local rather than regional level. With Shropshire Council
using its role as a public health authority and leader of the Health and Wellbeing Board
to ensure that rural communities’ travel time to services is an integral factor in the
planning of services in the health and care sector.

12. Recommendation: That the process and legal obligations for Equality, Social
Inclusion and Health Impact Assessment (ESHIA) in terms of responding to impacts
identified through the ESHIA be clarified for Officers and Members and until then that
this matter be logged on the Shropshire Council strategic risk register.

13. Recommendation: That a deep dive be carried out into recruitment and retention
policies and practices in the Shropshire health system by the Joint Health Overview
and Scrutiny Committee including a review of best practice nationally encompassing
the approaches recommended by the Rural Services Network to see if they would work
in Shropshire.

Page 56 24



14. Recommendation: That a permanent Mental health Commissioner role be appointed
for Shropshire Council to provide system oversight and strategic leadership.

Appendices

Appendix 1
Below is a list of the witnesses that the Group heard from over the course of their work:

Lois Dale- Performance and Research Specialist: Rurality and Equalities Shropshire Council
(in person)

Heather Osborne- Chief Executive Age UK Shropshire Telford and Wrekin (in writing)
Marie Monk-Hawksworth- Chief Executive Officer The Friendly Transport Service (in person)
Nicola Daniels- Chief Officer Mayfair Centre (in person)

Graham Biggs-Rural Policy Advisor Rural Services Network and a Director of the National
Centre for Rural Health and Care (in person)

Sue Chalk- Head of Service Community Resource (in person)

Brian Wilson-Rural England CIC Author of Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit (in person)
Clive Ireland- Chief Executive of Shropshire Mental Health Support Group (in person)
Nick Henry- WMAS Paramedic Practice and Patient Safety Director (in person)

Jason Evans- WMAS Associate Director, West Midlands 999 and NHS 111 Commissioning
Team (in person)

Vivek Khashu — WMAS Strategy and Engagement Director (in person)

Gemma Smith- Director of Strategic Commissioning NHS STW ICB (in person)

Tracey Jones- Director of Mental Health, Learning Disabilities & Autism, and Children &
Young People. ICB Lead Health Inequalities and LTP prevention (in person)

Heather Bowness - Chief Executive New Dawn Care Agency, Onibury (in person)

Sarah Price - Director, Clinical Lead and Nominated Individual CM Bespoke Care Ltd (in
person)

Aston Price (AP)- Care Worker CM Bespoke Care Ltd (in person)

Rachel Wintle- Registered Manager New Dawn Care Agency, Onibury (in person)

Rachel Robinson -Executive Director of Health Shropshire Council (in person)

Bernie Lee- Public-Health Lead Shropshire Council (in person)

Clir Cecilia Motley -Portfolio Holder Adult Social Care, Public Health and Communities (in
person)

Laura Tyler- Assistant Director Joint Commissioning Shropshire Council (in person)
Natalie McFall- Assistant Director Adult Social Care Shropshire Council (in person)

David Shaw - Assistant Director Educations and Achievement Shropshire Council (in person)
Sonya Miller - Assistant Director Children’s Social Care Shropshire Council (in person)
Rev’d Nick Read-Borderlands Rural Chaplaincy (in writing)

Jane Latter- Co-ordinator Shropshire Rural Support (in writing)

Andrew Bebb- Chair of Shropshire Rural Support (in writing)

Paul Bowers- Head of Operations MPFT (in person)

Inspector Gordon Kaye- West Mercia Police (in person)

Rabinder Dhami- Prevention Manager Shropshire Fire and Rescue Service (in person)
Dr Tim Little- Clinical Director North Shropshire Primary Care Network (in person)

Dr Jess Harvey- Clinical Director Southeast Shropshire Primary Care Network (in person)
Dr Deborah Shepherd - Clinical Director Southwest Shropshire Primary Care Network (in
writing)

Sam Townsend- Divisional Clinical Manager, Adults and Community Services

Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust (in person)

Page 57 25



Appendix 2

Rural Proofing for Health Toolkit (1).pdf

References
1. Time for a strateqy for the rural economy (parliament.uk)
2. Health care in rural areas - House of Lords Library (parliament.uk)
3. Rural Proofing Report 2020 (publishing.service.gov.uk)
4. Time for a Strateqy for the Rural Economy | Baroness Young — Labour:Coast&Country

@

11

14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

21.
22,
23.
24.

25.
26.
27.

(labourcoastandcountry.org)

Delivering for Rural England — the second report on rural proofing
(publishing.service.gov.uk)

Written questions and answers - Written questions, answers and statements - UK
Parliament
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.ics.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Joint-
Forward-plan-version-5.2.pd

The Shropshire Plan 2022 to 2025

hwbb-strateqy-2022-2027 .pdf

. Final local government finance settlement: England, 2022 to 2023 - GOV.UK

(www.gov.uk)

. shropshire fact sheet.pdf (rsnonline.org.uk)
12.
13.

Annual population survey (APS) QMI - Office for National Statistics
Understanding Society: Findings 2012 A complex and fascinating portrait of society |
Understanding Society

When the safety net fails (Report) (cabshropshire.org.uk)

Date (shropshire.gov.uk)

Shropshire population change, Census 2021 — ONS

Ageing-in-rural-place.pdf

Appendix A ICT and Digital strategy final.pdf (shropshire.gov.uk)
Trust-Digital-Strateqy-2022-25.pdf (sath.nhs.uk)
STW-Integrated-Care-Board-Appendices-FINAL.pdf
(shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk)

211217 GM DIAN wider issues of digital + tech exclusion for older people.pdf
Health and wellbeing in rural areas (local.gov.uk)

NHS Long Term Workforce Plan (england.nhs.uk)

NHS England: Rural and Coastal Workforce Transformation Programme - Rural
Services Network (rsnonline.org.uk)
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censuspopulationchange/E06000051/
www.gov.uk/government/collections/rural-urban-definition
rural-proofing-guidance.pdf

Page 58 26


file:///C:/Users/SC226176/OneDrive%20-%20Shropshire%20Council/Documents/Sophie/Health/Rurality/Report/Rural%20Proofing%20for%20Health%20Toolkit%20(1).pdf
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201719/ldselect/ldrurecon/330/330.pdf
https://lordslibrary.parliament.uk/health-care-in-rural-areas/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/608aac40e90e076aaaa26edf/Rural_Proofing_Report_2020.pdf
https://labourcoastandcountry.org/2019/05/15/time-for-a-strategy-for-the-rural-economy/#:~:text=The%20Lords%20Select%20Committee%20on%20the%20Rural%20Economy,councils%20and%20businesses%2C%20taking%20a%20place%20based%20approach.
https://labourcoastandcountry.org/2019/05/15/time-for-a-strategy-for-the-rural-economy/#:~:text=The%20Lords%20Select%20Committee%20on%20the%20Rural%20Economy,councils%20and%20businesses%2C%20taking%20a%20place%20based%20approach.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1102250/Delivering_for_rural_England_-_the_second_rural_proofing_report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1102250/Delivering_for_rural_England_-_the_second_rural_proofing_report.pdf
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-questions/detail/2022-11-15/87992
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-questions/detail/2022-11-15/87992
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.ics.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Joint-Forward-plan-version-5.2.pd
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.ics.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Joint-Forward-plan-version-5.2.pd
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/23162/shropshire-plan-strategic-plan.pdf
file:///C:/Users/SC226176/OneDrive%20-%20Shropshire%20Council/Documents/Sophie/SC%20Strategic%20Plans/hwbb-strategy-2022-2027.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/final-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2022-to-2023
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/final-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2022-to-2023
https://www.rsnonline.org.uk/images/stories/spendingpower/facts-sheet/shropshire%20fact%20sheet.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/methodologies/annualpopulationsurveyapsqmi
https://www.understandingsociety.ac.uk/research/findings/2012#:~:text=Home%20%3E%20Research%20%3E%20Insights-,Understanding%20Society%3A%20Findings%202012%20A%20complex%20and%20fascinating%20portrait%20of,people%20have%20been%20hard%20hit.
https://www.understandingsociety.ac.uk/research/findings/2012#:~:text=Home%20%3E%20Research%20%3E%20Insights-,Understanding%20Society%3A%20Findings%202012%20A%20complex%20and%20fascinating%20portrait%20of,people%20have%20been%20hard%20hit.
https://www.cabshropshire.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/When-the-safety-net-fails-Full.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s33284/Scrutiny%20PPUED%20TF%20group%20cover%20report.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censuspopulationchange/E06000051/
file:///C:/Users/SC226176/OneDrive%20-%20Shropshire%20Council/Documents/Sophie/Health/Rurality/Ageing-in-rural-place.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s34414/Appendix%20A%20ICT%20and%20Digital%20strategy%20final.pdf
https://www.sath.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Trust-Digital-Strategy-2022-25.pdf
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/STW-Integrated-Care-Board-Appendices-FINAL.pdf
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/STW-Integrated-Care-Board-Appendices-FINAL.pdf
file:///C:/Users/SC226176/OneDrive%20-%20Shropshire%20Council/Documents/Sophie/Health/Rurality/Service%20User%20Experiences/211217%20GM%20DIAN%20wider%20issues%20of%20digital%20+%20tech%20exclusion%20for%20older%20people.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/1.39_Health%20in%20rural%20areas_WEB.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/nhs-long-term-workforce-plan-v1.2.pdf
https://www.rsnonline.org.uk/nhs-england-rural-and-coastal-workforce-transformation-programme
https://www.rsnonline.org.uk/nhs-england-rural-and-coastal-workforce-transformation-programme
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censuspopulationchange/E06000051/
http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/rural-urban-definition
file:///C:/Users/SC226176/OneDrive%20-%20Shropshire%20Council/Documents/Sophie/Health/Rurality/rural-proofing-guidance.pdf

Agenda Iltem 8

Shropshire
together
IV LAYy > G BN 1
SHROPSHIRE HEALTHAND WELLBEING BOARD
Report

Meeting Date 19 September 2024
Title of report Children and Young People JSNA update
This report is for Discussion and Approval of X | Information only
(You will have been advised | agreement of recommendation (No
which applies) recommendations s (With recommendations)

discussion by

exception)

Reporting Officer & email | Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk and
Jessica.edwards@shropshire.gov.uk

Which Joint Health & Children & Young | x Joined up working X
Wellbeing Strategy People
priorities does this Mental Health X Improving Population Health X
report address? Please Healthy Weight & X Working with and building strong X
tick all that apply Physical Activity and vibrant communities

Workforce Reduce inequalities (see below) X

What inequalities does
this report address?

Report content - Please expand content under these headings or attach your report
ensuring the three headings are included.

1. Executive Summary

This report presents to the Health and Wellbeing Board the final drafts of two out of five chapters of
the Children and Young People JSNA:

e Population and Context for children and young people
o Early Years (0-4 years)

These chapters were presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board in April 2024 for feedback and
comment. Following this, the chapters have been thoroughly reviewed by the Early Help & Prevention
Partnership Board and Shropshire Integrated Place Partnership Board and were well received.
Recommendations were jointly developed and are presented to the Board. We are seeking approval
of the two JSNA chapters and endorsement of the recommendations.

2. Recommendations

Recommendations are based on the Areas of Need highlighted in the 0-4 year olds chapter (Appendix
2, pages 119 onwards):

1. To support partners / family members of pregnant women to stop smoking and to reduce
the rates of pregnant women smoking at time of delivery.

2. To continue to monitor child and infant mortality, adjusting action plans as required to
ensure appropriate mitigations are in place.

3. Toimprove data recording to show the accurate position of emergency admissions of 0-4s,
distinct from 0-4s who required same day emergency care. To monitor the level of emergency
admissions of 0-4s and take appropriate action.

4. Toincrease uptake of pregnancy and childhood immunisations to provide protection
and reduce the risks associated with these illnesses.

5. To continue to increase breastfeeding rates at 6-8 weeks to achieve at least the national
average.

Page 59


mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:Jessica.edwards@shropshire.gov.uk

6. To continue to increase and monitor the number of families accessing the mandated
contacts offered by the health visiting service.

7. To ensure the cost of living support and support for health and wellbeing is well promoted
through all services, including promoting the take up of healthy start vouchers

8. To reduce the number of 0-4 year olds whose parents use drugs and alcohol who become
looked after and to increase the number of parents receiving appropriate support at the
earliest opportunity.

9. To reduce the number of 0-4s living in households where domestic abuse occurs
by supporting the workforce to identify perpetrators and support them to behaviour change
programmes

10. For all health and social care agencies to ensure they appropriately assess the mental health
needs of the child, mother and family and signpost to relevant services and intervention.

11. To develop Women’s Health Hubs across Shropshire aligning with development of
Community & Family Hubs to improve outcomes for women & children aged 0-4.

12. To publish the Best Start for Life offer to enable families to access information about
services and support to increase visibility and accessibility of services and improve child
outcomes.

13. To continue to increase awareness of early help and prevention offers to support families
and prevent escalation.

14. To continue to monitor the level of children who are overweight or obese at reception and to
deliver on the Early Years actions of the Healthier Weight Strategy

15. To engage with stakeholders to inform delivery of recommendations.

3. Report

The Children and Young People JSNA will provide a detailed understanding of the needs of children,
young people and families in Shropshire to inform the direction and development of local services,
with a view to reducing health inequalities through identification, prevention and early intervention.
Due to the vast scope of this report, Shropshire’s Children and Young people JSNA is structured as a
‘JSNA pack’, comprising of individual chapters for each stage of the life course:

1. Population and context for children and young people

2. Maternity (pregnancy & birth)

3. Early Years (0-4 years)

4. School aged children (5-11 and 11-16 years)

5. Young people (16-19 years)

Population and context for children and young people chapter and Early Years (0-4 years) now in final
draft:

Population and context for children and young people chapter — Appendix 1

This chapter presents data and intelligence about Shropshire’s overall population, children population
and the factors that can affect health or impact on health inequalities, such as deprivation, poverty,
drugs and alcohol and rural inequalities.

Early Years (0-4 years) chapter — Appendix 2

This chapter presents an overview of the health and wellbeing of babies, infants and children aged O-
4 across Shropshire. Other chapters are referenced throughout to refer to for certain insights and
further information. The period between conception and the age of 5 is recognized as having a
significant influence on a person’s life. The environment a baby experiences whilst in the womb and
the first 2 years of life are particularly critical for cognitive, emotional and physical development,
likewise, the health and mental health of parents at this time is also critical to family health and
wellbeing.

Given the broad range of needs and services for children under 5 years, this report is not an in-depth
review of any one specific service, but instead aims to:

Page 60




o describe the population profile of children under 5 and their families in Shropshire- please also
see the Population and Context chapter

o identify risk factors that impact on maternal, infant and child health outcomes - please also see
the Population and Context chapter

o provide an overview of the wider determinants of health and their impact on the under 5s and
their families- please also see the Population and Context chapter

o identify relevant national guidance and local policy in relation to early years

¢ provide an overview of the health and wellbeing of under 5s

e provide an overview of current service provision and assessment of outcomes including gaps
in relation to domains impacting on early childhood outcomes; physical, psychosocial and
emotional, cognitive and language development

o identify vulnerable children, and/or at-risk groups

o identify gaps, barriers, and unmet needs in current service provision

The timeline for completion of the Children and Young People’s JSNA chapters is shown below:

e September 2024 — Presentation of Population and Context and Early Years (0-4s) chapters to
the Health and Wellbeing Board for approval

o Late September 2024- Publication of the Population and Context and Early Years (0-4s)
chapters

e October 2024- Presentation of remaining chapters: Maternal health, School aged children and
Young people to ShiIPP

¢ November 2024- Presentation of the remaining chapters: Maternal health, School aged
children and Young people to the Health and Wellbeing Board

e Early December- publication of remaining three chapters of the CYP JSNA

e January 2025- commencement of webinars to showcase and promote the JSNA

Delivery of the JSNA recommendations will be undertaken and monitored. Further updates on
delivery and impact will be brought to the Board.

Risk assessment and None
opportunities appraisal
(NB This will include the
following: Risk Management,
Human Rights, Equalities,
Community, Environmental
consequences and other
Consultation)

Financial implications None

(Any financial implications of

note)

Climate Change None

Appraisal as applicable

Where else has the paper | System Partnership ShIPP, Early Help Partnership Board

been presented? Boards
Voluntary Sector ShIPP, Children’s Practice Oversight Group
Other

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not include
items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your organisational
lead e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead
ClIr Cecilia Motley

Appendices

Appendix A. Population and Context Chapter — Children and Young People
Appendix B. Population & Context JSNA Summary — presentation
Appendix C. Early Years (0-4 year olds) Chapter

Appendix D. Early Years JSNA summary — presentation

Page 61



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

This page is intentionally left blank



a¥ Shropshire

& Council

Children and
Young People
Needs Assessment

Chapter 1: Population and context

2024

Page 63



Authors:
Rageebah Agberemi, Senior Public Health Intelligence Analyst
Jessica Edwards, Public Health Intelligence Manager

Page 64



Introduction

The Children and Young People JSNA will provide a detailed understanding of the needs of
children, young people and families in Shropshire to inform the direction and development of
local services, with a view to reducing health inequalities through identification, prevention
and early intervention.

Due to the vast scope of this product, Shropshire’s Children and Young people JSNA will be
structured as a ‘JSNA pack’, comprising of individual chapters for each stage of the life
course:

Core JSNA chapters

1. Population and context for children and young people
2. Maternity (pregnancy & birth)

3. Early Years (0-4 years)

4. School aged children (5-11 and 11-16 years)

5. Young people (16-19 years)

This chapter presents data and intelligence about Shropshire’s overall population, children
population and the factors that can affect health or impact on health inequalities, such as
deprivation, poverty, drugs and alcohol and rurality.

Page 65



Contents

Table of Contents

1] 1o o 11 o 1o o 1P P 2
CONTENES ... 3
SHhropShire ON @ PAJE ....cceiiieieieee e 5
Shropshire’s POPUIALION .........oeiiii e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e eaaans 7
0T L ] = /2 7
POPUIALION SIIUCIUIE ...eeeiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e r e e e eeeeeseeabbbeaeeaeaeeessnannerees 7
(o Lo Y2 P RSURR 10
HOUSENOIA COMPOSITION ......ciiiiiiiiie ittt e e e e e e 11
POPUIALION CRANGE ...t e e 13
Fewer couples with dependent Children.........c.ocoeii i 15

AN OldEr SNIOPSNITE ... e a b n e s e e 16
SNIOPSHITE 2050 ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e e e e 17
Shropshire’s child POPUIAtION ... 18
Where do children and young people aged 15 and under live in Shropshire? ............... 19
Where do children and young people aged 0-19 live in Shropshire?..........ccccccceeeeinnnns 19
Shropshire’s school POPUIALIoN.............eeiiiiii e 29
Yol g To] I =0 01U ] =1 1 o o I PR 29
LanQUAgES SPOKEN ......coiiiiieiiiii ettt e 31
Wider determinants of health and risk faCtors...........cccvvvevive e, 36
D=7 o] )V Z= 1[0 [ PP PPPPRP 37
(O3 0110 [ o101 =T | ST PP PUPPPP PP 38
Children in absolute low income families (UNder 16S) ........cccoocvrveeiiiieeeiiiiieee e 38
Children in relative low income families (Under 16S) .........cccccvvviiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee, 39
Deprivation Affecting Children IndeX (IDACI) ..., 41
Eligibility and claiming free scChool MEalS............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii e 43
ChRild BENETIS 1.ttt ettt e e st e e e et e e e snee e e e e annaeeeas 46
Rurality and iINEQUANILIES ............uviiiiiie e a e e e e anneaees 54
Drugs and @ICONOL .......ooiiiiiiie e 59
Parents/carers and families in substance mMiSUSEe SErIVICES ........ccccvcvvveeeiiicciiiiiieeee e 59

[0 g1 (o= | o T 1= R SSER 60
NAIONAI PrEVAIBNCE ...ttt e e e e ne e e 61
West Midlands, West Mercia Police Force and Shrophire prevalence .............ccccceee... 63

S 1 0] 01 11 = PR 65
Child Health Profile (all ag€S) ......ccvvvviiiiiiiii 70
General Health of the population...........cccooeieii 75
Life eXpectancy at DIrth ... 75



Infant Mortality
Child mortality

L2 PP

Page 67



89 abed

Shropshire on a page

Shropshire Population
2021/22

) |

Population change (%) of local authority areas in England between 2011 and 2021

eriartage hage

—
t;L P g(vﬂ/]

jﬁ = \‘,;3
3¢ ! Jﬁ_ 3

/—f

I

Shropshire's total population

323,600

a 5.7% rise from
306,100 people in 2011
(England 6.6% rise)

181 schools of which
15 are independent
and 19 are special

44,581 pupils aged
0-19

16.9% of pupils
eligible for free
school meals

Overall deprivation is low. Ludlow East and Harlescott fall within the 10%

most deprived areas in England.

Population by Age

opshire
000 (14.5%)
nd
100 (17.4%)

I
¥

R
a
[
g s
gz
al|ls
2312
(L, Y]

=2
c R
w e

S

Population Density

P | e

4.3 people

per hectare per hectare

° | Smallest state primary
school - 25 pupils

K Smallest state
r secondary school -
aaa 512 pupils

s 93.2% From white

%& background, 95.7%
with English as first
language

3

N

2
=
=
o«
=
S
N
©
=

opshire
000 (253%)

r
'

Sh
L

65 an

=

-'
U
-

D
S

-
-
-

&

s ]

@

z
= -
= 3
o N 9 N
s‘- @ ™ <
s® £° 8
Cem ve 'gg
W oy g-= =
o e o~
TS cm
VI = Ty
o e——

dover 85 andover

25.3% aged 65+
compared to 18.4% in
England

64,834 aged 0-19 0r 20.1%
England 23.0%

Employment rate of
76.2%, West Midlands
73.6%

504 looked after children
in Shropshire

Evidence of rural food
insecurity and 16.5% fuel
poverty across the county



— 87 pade a10j2q Jueudaig
o oo e Y e Pz P s o =
f dmdmdmdmdmdmdedmdedmde  SHISM §-G 1€ PEJISERIq Iy
P P e i e D PP P P
w : —gun (L1-0 paBe uaipjiy2 jo) -0 pady
= -
skep p1 Japun
00 dedede
mamam S91QEQ jOSUOISSIWIPE fouadiewy
— (8T sapun) 21e3 uj UAIPIYD
o=
81 19pun)
n "" m:o_m%_:_wm |eydsoy Aouafiaws
n a . S-p pade Jydam Ayyeay ey
o S e o o
H dedededmdedede G390 AQ ARD3P Y100} 3NEH
e o
W <G i ) S Gy S S Sl | PR pade pajeusdoea ni4

S e Sy e S S {ww Jrwdm (wm Smn e v S Sww s Sww e Svz S Y e S v

¢ e o o o o o s o o o o o o o o S o o e e o o
» S e e e o s e o s e e e e e o e e s P e e e P o e
e o o S o o S o o S o o o o o o o 2 o e o o e o

(Asewud) Apen8dal jooyds puany

Page 69

1
omm |
h | % (A1epuodas) Appe|ndas jooyas puany
p | — ssa4ed dunok aay
| =
| -
M o= JOMIOM|BIDOS P3IRIO|Y
 S—_— -
i -
h | W o=d=  PlOYISNOY JuJed 3)5UIS Ul AN
— o=
S | o I o003
— HHHH” SS3DIB OU Y1IM ployasnoy u) Suia
n | o~ mpmdmd= oow
° m— - .Y"”ﬂ.n Jjooyas aaxy Buiwie)d pue 21q181)3
| S e o e
“ | .,.m_ du pue pu g |OOY2S 0] POASURL) 92U BAIDIDY
| o e e e
e e e Y=
u | N mpmsmsm (07 J3PUN) S3)|jUIEY BWOIU) MO
— s i e =
d o mdmdmdmbmdmi= g awa)e pliyd
— I ~ HHH"HHH 9N Sujwie)a pjoyasnoy uj Suian
© = — o e o D e S s o s o e s e s S syjep pue
ot | 5 B EEEIEEEEEEEEEIEET usiiu3 uis6Bumne suapns vsy
o :
‘ ‘ | o ~ i.v?iiiiiﬂiiiiti”i (9T-5 23e)
| = ) Y“H“”Nﬁ””””””".ﬂin ep e Jnoy auo Joj anoe Ajjeaisiyd
r I M = Do o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o B D I (£ 0 )
o e e e e e o e e e s e e o e e e P e S AEER S o oa g
u | w P D s o s o s e o o o o s o o o D s P s T Jadec < b pobesi ] ulesy
§ o o o o e o S o o o G 461
o | m. ”nﬂﬂnnnﬁnnnw”ﬁnﬂ““n”ﬁ“nﬂnﬂﬂnhﬂ 10 Buluien ‘voneanpa ul 2 1-9T pady



Shropshire’s population

Shropshire is a diverse, large, predominantly rural, inland County, situated in the West
Midlands. It is the second largest inland rural county in England and is approximately ten
times the size of all the Inner London Boroughs put together. It covers 1,235 square miles
and there are no areas in Shropshire that are considered major or minor conurbations
average. Itis one of the most sparsely populated counties; with just one person per hectare.

Overall, Shropshire is a rural county with around 66% of the population living in areas
classified as rural. Around 34% of the population resides in areas classed as being urban.
Much of the South-West of Shropshire is classified as being sparsely populated.

Shrewsbury is home to around a third of the population and is a key employment, shopping
and cultural centre for Shropshire, as well as being a popular destination for tourists and
visitors. The county's economy is based mainly on agriculture, tourism, food industries,
healthcare and other public services. The profile of Shropshire County, its history, geography
and population distribution make delivering services effectively and efficiently more difficult.

Summary

e On Census Day, 21 March 2021, the size of the usual resident population in
Shropshire was 323,606 people: this is an increase of 6% (17,477) since 2011, when
it was 306,129 people.

e Shropshire's population increased, at 6%, compares to a 6% increase for the West
Midlands and a 7% increase for England.

e As of 2021, Shropshire is ranked 32 out of the 33 local authority areas in the West
Midlands for population density, with around 1.01 persons per hectare of land. The
population density for the West Midlands is 4.58 persons per hectare and for England
it is 4.34 persons per hectare

e Of the 323,606 people in Shropshire, 163,923 were women (50.7% of the population)
and 159,683 men (49.3%). The female population of Shropshire has increased by
6% and the male population has increased by 5% since 2011.

e In Shropshire, 14.8 % (47,918) of the population are children aged under 15, 59.8%
(193,602) are adults aged 15 to 64 and 25.4% (82,090) are aged 65 and over; 3.3%
(10,825) of the resident population are 85 and over.

e This compares to 18.1% aged 0O to 14, 63.1% aged 15 to 64 and 18.8% aged 65 and
over for the West Midlands region as a whole, and 17.4% aged 0O to 14, 64.2% aged
15 to 64 and 18.4% aged 65 and over for England.

e Since 2011, Shropshire has seen a 3% decrease in children aged under 15, no
change in adults aged 15 to 64 and a 30% increase in those aged 65 and over.

Population structure

The highest proportion of residents fall into the 55-59 age group in Shropshire (25,538
people or 7.6%). In the West Midlands the largest group are those aged 50 54 (6.7%) and in
the England it is those aged 30 - 34 (6.8%).

In 2021, 20.0% (64,838) of Shropshire’s population were aged under 19.

Chart showing the proportion of residents by five-year age bands in Shropshire (%), 2021
compared to the West Midlands and England. Source: LG Inform.

Page 70


https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-usual-resident-population-by-sex-and-age?mod-area=E06000051

Proportion of the number of usual resident population IJJ sex and ﬁve‘?ear age bands for Shropshire compared to West
Midlands and Englan

S0 and over F

B85 -89

75-79

S0 and aver
B5 -89
80 - 84
75-79
70-74 70-74
65 -69 65 - 69
60 - 64

60 - 64

55-5%9

50-54 _

55-59

S50- 54

!
/ \
\
\\ f

@ Shropshire - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
- Total for England - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
=+ Total for Shropshire region - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
@ Shropshire - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
Total for England - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)

~ Total for Shropshire region - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)

Chart showing the number of residents by five-year age bands and sex in Shropshire, 2021.
Source: LG Inform

Page 71


https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-usual-resident-population-by-sex-and-age?mod-area=E06000051

Number of usual resident population by sex and five-year age bands for Shropshire

90 and over - 90 and over
85-89 _- 85-89
= [ 0.0

15k 125k 10k 7.5k 5k 2.5k 0 2.5k 5k 7.5k 10k 125k 15k

Count

@ Shropshire - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (count)
® Shropshire - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (count)

Powered by LG Inform

Table showing the number and proportion of residents by gender and age groups in Shropshire
(%), 2021. Source: Census 2021, ONS.

Page 72


https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/

Shropshire
Age band

2021
Female Male Total %
0-4 7,020 7,403 14,423 4.5%
5-9 7,883 8,366 16,249 5.0%
10-14 8,406 8,841 17,247 5.3%
15-19 8,063 8,856 16,919 5.2%
20 -24 7,007 8,119 15,126 4.7%
25-29 8,120 8,752 16,872 5.2%
30-34 8,976 8,977 17,953 5.5%
35-39 8,677 8,588 17,265 5.3%
40 - 44 8,450 8,234 16,684 5.2%
45 - 49 10,226 9,752 19,978 6.2%
50-54 12,516 11,794 24,310 7.5%
55-59 12,958 12,580 25,538 7.9%
60 - 64 11,678 11,286 22,964 7.1%
65 - 69 10,631 10,186 20,817 6.4%
70 - 74 11,361 10,587 21,948 6.8%
75-79 8,973 8,039 17,012 5.3%
80 -84 6,327 5,161 11,488 3.5%
85 - 89 3,917 2,886 6,803 2.1%
90 and over 2,738 1,285 4,023 1.2%
Total 163,927 159,692 323,619 100%
Ethnicity

In 2021 in Shropshire, 96.7% of the population reported themselves as White and the
remaining 3.3% reported themselves belonging to ethnic groups other than white (10,733
people), a rise from 2.0% from the 2011 Census and lower compared to England as a whole

(19.0%).

The most common ethnic group across all age groups was White. The younger populations
in Shropshire are more ethnically diverse than the older population, with 5.6% of residents
aged 24 and under belonging to ethnic groups other than White. Mixed and multiple ethnic

groups make up 2.8% of this and Asian, Asian British and Asian Welsh make up 1.8%.

Table showing the proportion of residents by ethnic groups and age groups in Shropshire (%),
2021. Source: Census 2021, ONS.

Page 73

10


https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/

Black,
Asian, Black Mixed or
Asian British, Multiole Other
Age British or Black ethnFi)c ethnic White
Asian Welsh, group
: groups
Welsh Caribbean
or African
Total 1.3% 0.3% 1.2% 0.4% 96.7%
Aged 24 years and under 1.8% 0.4% 2.8% 0.6% 94.4%
Aged 25 to 34 years 2.2% 0.5% 1.7% 0.9% 94.7%
Aged 35 to 49 years 2.1% 0.5% 0.8% 0.6% 95.9%
Aged 50 to 64 years 1.0% 0.3% 0.6% 0.2% 97.8%
Aged 65 years and over 0.3% 0.1% 0.2% 0.1% 99.3%

Chart showing the proportion of residents by ethnic groups other than White and age groups in
Shropshire (%), 2021. Source: Census 2021, ONS.

Ethnic groups other than White by age

Aged 65 years and over
Aged 50 to 64 years
Aged 35 to 49 years
Aged 25 to 34 years

Aged 24 years and under

Total [

0.0%

m Asian, Asian British or Asian Welsh

1.0% 2.0% 3.0% 4.0% 5.0% 6.0%

m Black, Black British, Black Welsh, Caribbean or
African
Mixed or Multiple ethnic groups

To see the ethnic profile of school aged children in Shropshire, click here.

Household composition

The 2021 Census indicates that there 18,585 households with 2 or more children living in the
property, equating to 14% of all households on Shropshire. Majority of households in
Shropshire, 76%, had no dependents.

Chart showing the number of children living in the household. Source ONS Census 2021

Page 74 1


https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/

Three or more dependent children I 5,015

Two dependent children - 13,570

One dependent child - 14,710

No dependent children 106,280

= No dependent children
= One dependent child
= Two dependent children

Three or more dependent
children

Based on Census 2021, a high proportion (61%) of single family households (non-step
couple) in Shropshire had more than one dependent children. Other household types
(households containing only those aged 66-and-over have been categorised as "other
household types) had the highest proportion of no dependent children as shown in the chart
below.

Chart showing the proportion of dependent children by household type in Shropshire.
Source: 2021 Census, ONS.

Page 75 e


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/families/datasets/householdscontainingdependentchildrencensus2021

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

Proportion (%)

0% ™ - -
Single Single Single Single Single Other
family family family family family household

household: household: household: household: household: types
Lone parent Lone parent Non-step Step couple Lone step-

(female) (male) couple parent
= No dependent children One dependent child
Two dependent children Three or more dependent children

Population change

Between the last two censuses (held in 2011 and 2021), the population of Shropshire
increased by 5.7%, from around 306,129 in 2011 to around 323,606 in 2021.

The population here increased at a similar rate to the overall population of the West
Midlands (6.2%), but by a smaller percentage than the overall population of England (up
6.6% since the 2011 Census).

When split by 5-year age bands, the largest increase in population between 2011 and 2021
was observed among the 70 to 74 and the 75 to 79 age bands at 45%. An increase in the
90+ population was also observed between 2011 and 2021 at 42%. The largest decrease in
population was observed among those aged 40 to 44.

Among children and young people aged under 19 overall there has been a fall of 18%, with
the largest reduction among those aged 15-19 years old.

Page 76 e



Population growth was lower in Shropshire than across the West
Midlands

Percentage population change, Shropshire and surrounding areas, 2011 Census
to Census 2021

England A 6.6% West Midlands &6.2% Shropshire &5.7%

-2 -5 0.5 +2 +2 +16%
] . IT——

source: Office for Mational Statistics - 2011 Census and Census 2021

Page 77

14



Chart showing the number of residents by 5-year age bands and percentage change in Shropshire
(%), 2021. Source: Census 2021, ONS; LG Inform.

Number of residents by 5-year age bands for Percentage change in the number of residents by 5-
Shropshire (2011 and 2021 Census). Source: ONS year age bands for Shropshire (2011 to 2021 Census)
0-4 S 0-4 -8% -
RN 5.9 - 4%

10-14 10-14 4% m

1510 | — 15-19 11%  e—
20-24 — 20-24 Pv—
25-20
30-34 EEEE————...... 25-29 f— 8%
35-30 30-34 m— 17%
40-44 EE— 35-39 3% =
45-40 | 40-44  -25% —
50-5/ s 45-49 -159%0 —
55 - 5 e 50-54 —— 16%
60- 6/ . 55-59 ——— 27%
65~ 60 e 60-64 = 3%
T0-74 e 65-69 — 9%
ggzgi . 70-74 ——— 150
85-80 mEEE——_ 75-79 ——— 450/

e — 80-84 —— 280

85-89 — 22%
0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000 90+ —— 100/,
m2011 Census ®2021 Census -40% -20% 0% 20% 40% 60%

Fewer couples with dependent children

Shropshire saw the West Midlands' second-largest percentage-point fall in the share of
households including a couple with dependent children (from 19.5% in 2011 to 16.9% in
2021).

Across the West Midlands, the percentage of households including a couple with dependent
children fell from 19.7% to 19.0%, while the percentage in Powys (the local authority area
that shares the largest boundary with Shropshire) fell from 17.6% to 15.6%.

Chart showing the percentage of households by household composition in Shropshire. Source:
2011 and 2021 Census, ONS.

Page 78 o


https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-usual-resident-population-by-sex-and-age?mod-area=E06000051
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/

16.2%
Other household types | 15 79

Single family household: Lone-parent 8.5%
household 8.4%
Single family household: Cohabiting- 6.6%
couple family: All children non-dependent 6.9%

Single family household: Cohabiting- _ 19.5%
couple family: With dependent children 16.9%
Single family household: Cohabiting- _ 20.3%
couple family: No children 19.4%
0,
One-person household: Other _ 1}153(3/?
One-person household: Aged 66 years _13.9%
and over 15.4%
0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0%

m 2011 Census m2021 Census

For more information around household composition in Shropshire, see here.

An older Shropshire

Between the last two censuses, the average (median) age of Shropshire increased by four
years, from 44 to 48 years of age.

This area had a higher average (median) age than the West Midlands as a whole in 2021
(40 years) and a higher average (median) age than England (40 years).

The median age is the age of the person in the middle of the group, meaning that one half of
the group is younger than that person and the other half is older.

Between 2011 and 2021, the number of people aged 50-64 years rose by around 9,300 (an
increase of 14.7%), while the number of residents between 35-49 years fell by around 9,600
(15.1% decrease).

Chart showing the proportion of residents by five-year age bands in Shropshire, 2011 and
2021 Census. Source: LG Inform.

Page 79 o


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/information-intelligence-and-insight/facts-and-figures/census-2021/housing-and-households/
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-usual-resident-population-by-sex-and-age?mod-area=E06000051

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0%
. 3.3%
o5+ I 33
7500 I %
6.8%
- 13.2%
057 ™
o . 22
50-64 20.7%
16.7%
3510 e e 7
253 — 10.5%
10.1%
4.7%
2024 R 3,
5.2%
1519 7%
5.3%
1014 5
§ 5.0%
50— 0
0

m2021 Census m2011 Census

Compared to 2011, there has been an increase of 29.5% in people aged 65 years and over,
an increase of 0.1% in people aged 15 to 64 years, and a decrease of 2.5% in children aged
under 15 years.

Largest rises over the last 10 years have been among those aged 70-74 and 75-79, both
with an increase of 45.0%. The largest fall was among those aged 40-44, with a 24.0%
reduction.

Shropshire 2050

Shropshire’s population is forecast to grow by 20.2% between 2018 and 2050, which is the
equivalent of an additional 65,000 people. The rapidly ageing population means that growth
will be concentrated in the 65+ age bracket, which is projected to increase by 62.8% or by
48,800 people by 2050. By 2050, the proportion of the population that is 65 or over is
expected to increase to 32.9% compared with 24.3% in 2018.

In contrast, the 0-19 population is projected to record much more modest growth of 6.7%
between 2018 and 2050, equating with approximately 4,500 additional children and young
people. The proportion of the population falling in the 0-19 age bracket looks set to decline
from 20.7% in 2018 to 18.4% in 2050.

Chart showing growth in total population and for the 0-19 and 65+ age brackets to 2050.
Source: SNPP 2018 based projected on to 2050 by Shropshire Council.

Page 80 o



170
160
150
140
130
120
110
100

90

80

=100

Index, 2018

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
2046
2047
2048
2049
2050

e=@== /|| Ages e=@==(-19 65+

Population projections 2050

¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Population 2021: 323,600 Population 2050: 385,000

19% growth 2021-2050
© 0 0 O Morethan
P 26% growth 1991-2021
* The population in 61,000 extra M
Shropshire will grow by people —
61,000 people by 2050, a
rise of 19% compared to
2021. seadiSiuarzandor Population projected change by age group by 2050
Aged 80 to B4 years Aged 85+ . 1,152
) . Aged 75 to 79 years d 80-84 ___________Iif
+ Largest rises will be among S e N 1570 —
those aged 65+. sttt o eso —
Aged 55 1o 59 years. Aged 60-64 %+
. Aged 5010 54 years pqzq 55-59 | 444
+ 0-19 year old group will Mg 451049 yoars. I Aged 50-54 SRy |
Aged 40 to 44 years | Aged 45-49 I 528
grow by 3,933 people, Ages 5t0.30 years [ Aged 40-44 - 2om2
- Aged 30 to 34 years ]
rise of 6% compared to st oot P
2021. Largest rise in GYPs bt s o a0
among 15-19 year olds faed 101014 years Aged 15-19 o 1381
Aged 510 9 years. Aged 10-14 | 328
(+1 '381 peop|e)_ Aged 4 years and under Aged 59 ™
20000 15000 10000 5000 ©  S000 10000 15000 20000 Age0-4 W 1293
02050 Male  EN2050 Female 2021 Male 2021 Female -16000 -6000 4000 14

Shropshire’s child population

Overall, comparing local indicators with England averages, the health and wellbeing of
children in Shropshire is better than England. The infant mortality rate is similar to England
with an average of 12 infants dying before age 1 each year. Recently, there have been 4
child deaths (1 to 17 year olds) each year on average.

Table showing child population indicators in Shropshire, West Midlands and England

Period Local Region England
Live births 2021 2,639 63,846 595,948
Children aged 0 | 2021 14,400 333,300 3,058,200
to 4 years (4.4%) (5.6%) (5.4%)
Children aged 0 | 2021 65,000 1,433,200 13,040,500
to 19 years (20.0%) (24.1%) (23.1%)
Children aged 0 67,600 1,493,000 13,357,000
to 19 years — (18.9%) (23.5%) (22.5%)

Page 81

18



projected

population

School children | 2022 3,550 360,835 2,835,124
from minority (9.2%) (39.9%) (35.0%)
ethnic groups

School pupils 2022 914 25,831 250,272
with social, (2.3%) (2.8%) (3.0%)
emotional and

mental health

needs

Children living in | Financial year | 16.8% 24.6% 18.5%
poverty ending 2021

Life expectancy | 2020-22 Females — 83.9 | Females —82.2 | Females — 82.8
at birth Males — 79.8 Males — 78.1 Males — 78.9

Where do children and young people aged 15 and under live in Shropshire?

Map showing where population aged under 15 live in Shropshire by ward. Source: Shropshire’s

OSCI tool.

B langollen ==
gollen
45

Guilsfield

Buttington
Welshpool

Leintwardine

Wigmore

X 4+ Population aged

0.58% - 15.11%
15.12% - 16.94%
16.94% - 18.58%
B 1858%-2058%
W 20.58%-33.26%

under 16 (Census 2021)

L)
S ﬁ M}: % aged 0-15 (as % of all people)

%J @ Current Level: Electoral Wards/Divisions

Where do children and young people aged 0-19 live in Shropshire?

Areas with the largest number of children aged 0-19 are: Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton,
Oswestry East, Market Drayton West and Wem, with more than 1,800 children and young
people living in each these wards.

Page 82

19




Ward Name

Abbey

Albrighton

Alveley and Claverley
Bagley

Battlefield

Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton
Belle Vue

Bishop's Castle
Bowbrook

Bridgnorth East and Astley Abbotts
Bridgnorth West and Tasley
Broseley

Brown Clee

Burnell

Castlefields and Ditherington
Cheswardine

Chirbury and Worthen
Church Stretton and Craven Arms
Clee

Cleobury Mortimer

Clun

Copthorne

Corvedale

Ellesmere Urban
Gobowen, Selattyn and Weston Rhyn
Harlescott

Highley

Hodnet

Llanymynech

Longden

Loton

Ludlow East

Ludlow North

Ludlow South

Market Drayton East
Market Drayton West
Meole

Monkmoor

Much Wenlock

Oswestry East

Oswestry South
Oswestry West

Porthill

Prees

Quarry and Coton Hill
Radbrook

Rea Valley

Ruyton and Baschurch
Severn Valley

Shawbury

Shifnal North

Shifnal South and Cosford
St Martin's

St Oswald

Sundorne

Tern

The Meres

Underdale

Wem

Whitchurch North
Whitchurch South
Whittington

Worfield

Total (Shropshire)

0-4s 5-9s 10-14s
159 166 155
255 197 237
138 228 192
229 224 212
315 311 286
558 665 609
151 233 256
142 170 184
258 286 220
255 250 330
329 412 373
261 262 288
143 160 226
177 203 307
269 270 242
246 284 280
97 118 154
349 374 447
153 216 275
309 315 383
137 162 209
227 228 324
105 159 202
190 260 275
362 341 418
347 344 293
235 207 189
179 184 207
158 213 215
184 244 244
185 191 269
193 217 217
114 114 119
175 188 207
325 308 270
445 549 544
248 273 312
274 273 307
136 174 264
554 582 517
126 186 223
175 237 233
175 249 347
173 222 236
186 199 178
281 293 317
187 261 294
168 230 349
222 249 283
272 312 316
338 312 295
361 362 357
197 221 264
216 261 255
271 320 319
182 245 284
163 184 299
267 328 295
342 400 574
372 410 444
191 211 258
221 256 264
136 154 171
14,788 16,657 18,113

Page 83

15-19s
145
212
152
203
204
546
225
191
154
281
332
196
206
661
185
223
147
387
187
362
278
272
116
198
471
282
140
322
174
191
305
170
108
241
223
444
255
234
193
477
275
150
639
212
170
223
217
279
196
235
283
357
199
257
265
222
528
277
490
357
192
222
170

16,708

Total 0-19s

625
901
710
868
1,116

865
687
918
1,116
1,446
1,007
735
1,348
966
1,033
516
1,557
831
1,369
786
1,051
582
923
1,592
1,266
771
892
760
863
950
797
455
811
1,126

1,088
1,088
767

810
795
1,410
843
733
1,114
959
1,026
950
1,135
1,228
1,437
881
989
1,175
933
1,174
1,167

1,583
852
963
631

66,266

All Ages
4,231
4,455
4,136
4,697
4,968

12,460
4,610
3,818
4,834
6,899
7,253
4,995
4,070
5,056
4,610
4,522
3,021
9,272
4,592
7,653
4,017
4,364
3,692
4,304
7,016
4,964
3,798
4,781
4,363
4,198
4,227
4,026
3,813
4,166
5,636
8,920
4,556
4,529
4,078
9,605
4,507
4,078
4,949
4,595
4,937
4,947
4,615
4,438
4,666
5,200
5,821
6,650
4,491
4,729
4,226
4,853
5,164
4,505
8,835
7,707
4,468
4,259
3,570

325,415

20



Population aged 0 - 4 years old

Map showing population aged 0-4 years old (%) by Ward, Shropshire (ONS mid 2020). Source:

OHID SHAPE tool.

-~ ; © | STOKE-ON-TRENT
) t ‘ 7= ) y /f\ EWCASTLE-

© Population estimate: Persons: ages 0-4

® 4"} ; ;
STAFRORD~ZW The analyﬂ; focuses on the estimated percentage of
AN 7~ the population ages 0-4.
o
LUANFYLLIN' Shropshire's estimated population in mid-year 2020
7 . for ages 0-4 is 4.54% within a range of 1.42% to

9.23% across 193 LSOAs.

The England-wide LSOA distribution is 0.1% to
27.53% with a mean value of 5.6%.

e W

“d - WELSHPOOL
LLANFAIR g

CAEREINION

Key

The colours represent the quintiles:
‘::.) 7% to 28%: 10 areas

@ 6% to 7%: 22 areas

‘::.) 5% to 6%: 39 areas

O 49% to 5%: 40 areas

‘:::' 0% to 4%: 82 areas

Data

Numerator:

o AL~ w5 ly y, = Persons: ages 0-4 estimate: 14,788
KNIGHTON, ? STOURPORT-

Denominator:

- BGVERN Total estimated population: 325,415
p;EstE,GNE‘» 4 Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020
Q. \ : R, 5 ] ONS: ons.gov.uk/../populationestimates
IRINDON Y RAAT (A ol Ch / !

The highest number of 0-4 year olds live in Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton ward, Oswestry

East and Market Drayton West.

Page 84

21



Ward Name

Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton
Oswestry East

Market Drayton West
Whitchurch North
Gobowen, Selattyn and Weston Rhyn
Shifnal South and Cosford
Church Stretton and Craven Arms
Harlescott

Wem

Shifnal North

Bridgnorth West and Tasley
Market Drayton East
Battlefield

Cleobury Mortimer
Radbrook

Monkmoor

Shawbury

Sundorne

Castlefields and Ditherington
Underdale

Broseley

Bowbrook

Albrighton

Bridgnorth East and Astley Abbotts
Meole

Cheswardine

Highley

Bagley

Copthorne

Severn Valley

Whittington

St Oswald

St Martin's

Ludiow East

Whitchurch South
Ellesmere Urban

Rea Valley

Quarry and Coton Hill
Loton

Longden

Tern

Hodnet

Burnell

Ludlow South

Porthill

Oswestry West

Prees

Ruyton and Baschurch
The Meres

Abbey

Llanymynech

Clee

Belle Vue

Brown Clee

Bishop's Castle

Alveley and Claverley
Clun

Much Wenlock

Worfield

Oswestry South

Ludlow North

Corvedale

Chirbury and Worthen

0-4s

372

361
349
347

338
329
325
315
309
281
274
272
27
269
267
261
258
255
255
248
246
235
229
227
222
221
216
197
193
191
190
187
186
185
184
182
179
177
175
175
175
173

163
159
158
153
151
143
142
138
137
136
136
126
114
105
97

Page 85

22



Population aged 5 - 9 years old

Map showing population aged 5-9 years old (%) by Ward, Shropshire (ONS mid 2020) Source:
OHID SHAPE tool.

© Population estimate: Persons: ages 5-0

~.~ The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
3 the population ages 5-9.

1 ‘A 4
~—\/STA.£<‘F,0RDK.}\1\"\ Shropshire's estimated population in mid-year 2020
: for ages 5-9is 5.12% within a range of 1.41% to

9.469% across 193 LSOAs.

The England-wide LSOA distribution is 0.04% to
TSeatRoc 16.39% with a mean value of 6.18%.
N

, Key

PENKRIDGE
i

oo

. ozt
S WELSHPOOL
NFAIR /"

EINION Lo The colours represent the quintiles:

i (:.:' 8% to 16%: 9 areas
@ 7% to 8%: 21 areas
4 (:.:' 6% to 7%: 34 areas

o STRETTON
VTOWN e - O D 5% to 6%: 51 areas
p) BISHOPISCASTLE () 0% to 5%: 78 areas
CRAVENARMS g, Data
\ “KIDDERMINSTER . Numerator:
J \o (AN Persons: ages 5-9 estimate: 16,657
N ~—BEWDLEY .

Denominator:

-0, b
STOURPORT- ano;soénow Total estimated population: 325,415

L 2 CLEOBURY
LUDLOW, MORTIMER/

- . e =
) TENBURY WELLS Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020

) . ON-SEVERN /
L"\,ﬂ p";EsTE|GNE‘ : ( ‘? ‘9 i) k}\mf{.‘,’.;}}:\{ ONS: ons.gov.uk/.../populationestimates

KNIGHTON

The highest number of 5-9 year olds live in Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton ward, Oswestry

East and Market Drayton West.

Page 86

23



Ward Name

Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton
Oswestry East

Market Drayton West
Bridgnorth West and Tasley
Whitchurch North

Wem

Church Stretton and Craven Arms
Shifnal South and Cosford
Harlescott

Gobowen, Selattyn and Weston Rhyn
Underdale

Sundorne

Cleobury Mortimer
Shawbury

Shifnal North

Battlefield

Market Drayton East
Radbrook

Bowbrook

Cheswardine

Meole

Monkmoor

Castlefields and Ditherington
Broseley

Rea Valley

St Oswald

Ellesmere Urban
Whittington

Bridgnorth East and Astley Abbotts
Porthill

Severn Valley

Tern

Longden

Oswestry West

Belle Vue

Ruyton and Baschurch
Alveley and Claverley
Copthorne

Bagley

Prees

St Martin's

Ludlow East

Clee

Llanymynech

Whitchurch South

Highley

Burnell

Quarry and Coton Hill
Albrighton

Loton

Ludlow South

Oswestry South

Hodnet

The Meres

Much Wenlock

Bishop's Castle

Abbey

Clun

Brown Clee

Corvedale

Worfield

Chirbury and Worthen
Ludlow North

Total (Shropshire)

5-9s
665
582
549
412
410
400
374
362
344
341
328
320
315
312
312
311
308
293
286
284
273
273
270
262
261
261
260
256
250
249
249
245
244
237
233
230
228
228
224
222
221
217
216
213
211
207
203
199
197
191
188
186
184
184
174
170
166
162
160
159
154
118
114

16,657

Page 87

24



Population aged 10 - 14 years old

Map showing population aged 10-14 years old (%) by Ward, Shropshire (ONS mid 2020) Source:
OHID SHAPE tool.

It
© Population estimate: Persons: ages 10-14

eN' S AT wnrgén ‘
/”—'{v s 4 w ‘ N [ - /% . The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
CHIRK - ) (NG .
- ’A &‘ \ the population ages 10-14.
\er/\ y ,'!k DRAYTONIRN a S Shropshire's estimated population in mid-year 2020

a : ]
WEM) - B/ ECCLESHALL {1 ages 10-14 is 5.57% within a range of 2.19% to

: 11.22% across 193 LSOAs.
Y4 Xa The England-wide LSOA distribution is 09 to 19.32%

NEW"O’“ with a mean value of 6.06%.

o/h\ -rzuoao {rr The colours represent the quintiles:
b —~wnsm’ooc. 4 i
MNEAIR : (@) 7% to 19%: 14 areas

REINION
: . Y WOLVI @ 6% to 7%: 35 areas

i) ~ R E’ ‘ A~ @ 6% to 6%: 50 areas
& MONTG%Y‘ CHURC o~ L e " (0) 5% to 6%: 45 areas
\p2TREIICN > 4 2 > ¢ O 0% to 5%: 49 areas

BISHOP'S | KINGSY
e Data

. CRAVENARMS 3 \‘ﬁ\,. Numerator:
K\IDDERMINSTE Persons: ages 10-14 estimate: 18,113
[ iy, S Denominator:
: ! % e LUDLOW, {MORTIMER s
uchron 5 _ ’_/L,(’S%'OURP)O-RT\" Total estimated population: 325,415

YOO Was * oS N-SEVERN | Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020
/ < 5 ONS: ons.gov.uk/.../populationestimates

| boEeTEIAME" oo

The highest number of 10-14 year olds live in Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton ward, Wem
and Market Drayton West.

Page 88 2



Ward Name

Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton

Wem
Market Drayton West
Oswestry East

Church Stretton and Craven Arms

Whitchurch North

Gobowen, Selattyn and Weston Rhyn

Cleobury Mortimer
Bridgnorth West and Tasley
Shifnal South and Cosford
Ruyton and Baschurch
Porthill

Bridgnorth East and Astley Abbotts

Copthorne
Sundorne

Radbrook
Shawbury

Meole

Monkmoor

Burnell

The Meres
Underdale

Shifnal North

Rea Valley
Harlescott

Broseley

Battlefield

Tern

Severn Valley
Cheswardine
Ellesmere Urban
Clee

Market Drayton East
Loton

Whittington

St Martin's

Much Wenlock
Whitchurch South
Belle Vue

St Oswald

Longden
Castlefields and Ditherington
Albrighton

Prees

Oswestry West
Brown Clee
Oswestry South
Bowbrook

Ludlow East
Llanymynech
Bagley

Clun

Ludlow South
Hodnet

Corvedale

Alveley and Claverley
Highley

Bishop's Castle
Quarry and Coton Hill
Worfield

Abbey

Chirbury and Worthen
Ludlow North

Total (Shropshire)

10-14s
609
574
544
517
447
444
418
383
373
357
349
347
330
324
319
317
316
312
307
307
299
295
295
294
293
288
286
284
283
280
275
275
270
269
264
264
264
258
256
255
244
242
237
236
233
226
223
220
217
215
212
209
207
207
202
192
189
184
178
171
155
154
119

18,113

Page 89

26



Population aged 15 - 19 years old

Map showing population aged 15-19 years old (%) by Ward, Shropshire (ONS mid 2020) Source:
OHID SHAPE tool.

# Population estimate: Persons: ages 15-12
. The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
the population ages 15-19.

Shropshire's estimated population in mid-year 2020
for ages 15-19is 5.13% within a range of 1.88% to
25.84% across 193 LSOAs.

The England-wide LSOA distribution is 0.19% to
63.1% with a mean value of 5.39%.

\ Key

The colours represent the quintiles:

‘ @ 6% to 63%: 20 areas
n @ 6% to 6%: 25 areas
@ 5% to 6%: 39 areas

/’Momé’ou_:nv ,_ o () 4% to 5%: 40 areas
' = CHURCH ' .
A ; s*rasr'ron 4 % D 0% to 4%: 60 areas
LWe o
BISHOPISCASTLE § | ‘ ! Data
“ /o ; Numerator:
SEAVEN ARMS N 2\ Persons: ages 15-19 estimate: 16,708

"KIDDERMINS‘I ]
Denominataor:

- A" Lumow ::‘IbEOBURY Ewm_ev Total estimated population: 325,415
4 STOURPORT Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020

KNIGHTON

: ¥ } )TENaunvwsgLs ﬂ ON'SMRN ONS: ons.gov.uk/.../populationestimates

The highest number of 15-19 year olds live in Burnell, Porthill, Bayston Hill, Column and
Sutton ward.

Page 90 2



Ward Name

Burnell

Porthill

Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton
The Meres

Wem

Oswestry East

Gobowen, Selattyn and Weston Rhyn
Market Drayton West
Church Stretton and Craven Arms
Cleobury Mortimer
Whitchurch North

Shifnal South and Cosford
Bridgnorth West and Tasley
Hodnet

Loton

Shifnal North

Harlescott

Bridgnorth East and Astley Abbotts
Ruyton and Baschurch
Clun

Underdale

Oswestry South
Copthorne

Sundorne

St Oswald

Meole

Ludlow South

Shawbury

Monkmoor

Belle Vue

Radbrook

Cheswardine

Market Drayton East

Tern

Whittington

Rea Valley

Albrighton

Prees

Brown Clee

Battlefield

Bagley

St Martin's

Ellesmere Urban
Broseley

Severn Valley

Much Wenlock
Whitchurch South
Longden

Bishop's Castle

Clee

Castlefields and Ditherington
Llanymynech

Ludlow East

Quarry and Coton Hill
Worfield

Bowbrook

Alveley and Claverley
Oswestry West

Chirbury and Worthen
Abbey

Highley

Corvedale

Ludlow North

Total (Shropshire)

15-19s
661
639
546
528
490
477
471
444
387
362
357
357
332
322
305
283
282
281
279
278
277
275
272
265
257
255
241
235
234
225
223
223
223
222
222
217
212
212
206
204
203
199
198
196
196
193
192
191
191
187
185
174
170
170
170
154
152
150
147
145
140
116
108

16,708

Page 91

28



Shropshire’s school population

The School Census is a statutory requirement for all schools and provides information on the
school, students and their characteristics. Data is collected and reported for each of the
three terms (autumn, spring, summer) and can be used to inform local needs and

requirements.

School Population

On the Autumn 2023 Shropshire school census, there are just under 40,000 children who
attend Shropshire local authority schools. 94% of children who attend Shropshire schools

live in Shropshire, however, there are children who live in Telford and Wrekin, Cheshire
East, Cheshire West and Central, Herefordshire, Malvern Hills, Newcastle under Lyme,
Powys, South Staffordshire, Stafford, Wolverhampton, Wrexham and Wyre Forest.

Table showing the number of pupils attending Shropshire schools living in Shropshire and

surrounding local authorities.

Local Authority Name Number of pupils % of pupils
Shropshire 37,074 94.0%
Telford and Wrekin 1015 2.6%
Powys 504 1.3%
Wrexham 228 0.6%
South Staffordshire 127 0.3%
Malvern Hills 117 0.3%
Wolverhampton 99 0.3%
Wyre Forest 67 0.2%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 65 0.2%
Herefordshire, County of 53 0.1%
Cheshire East 32 0.1%
Cheshire West and Chester 8 0.0%
Stafford 7 0.0%
Not known 39 0.1%
Grand Total 39,435 100.0%

There are 1,624 children who are aged 0-4 who attend Shropshire schools. 75% of these are
children in the N2 school year (aged 3 at 31t August, but turning 4 during the year).

Table showing the total number of pupils attending Shropshire by school year

School Year Pupils who live in Total Pupils at
Shropshire Shropshire schools

Elor E2 (0, or 1 at 315t August, turning 27 29

1 or 2 during year)

N1 (2 at 315t August, turning 3 during the 355 371

year)

N2 (3 at 315t August, turning 4 during the 1,180 1,224

year)

Total aged 0-4 at 31 August 1,562 1,624

Reception 2,701 2,777

Page 92

29



Year 1

2,775 2,878
Year 2 2,976 3,072
Year 3 2,976 3,089
Year 4 2,936 3,057
Year S 2,886 3,015
Year 6 2,990 3,111
Total between Reception and Year 6 20,240 20,999
Year 7 3,027 3,278
Year 8 2,901 3,187
Year 9 2,880 3,148
Year 10 2,857 3,144
Year1l 2,869 3,165
Total between Year 7 and Year 11 14,534 15,922
Year 12 346 413

Year 13 374 459

Year 14 18 18

Total between Year 12 and Year 14 738 890

Any age 37,074 39,435

Map showing the proportion of all pupils at Shropshire schools by MSOA

Page 93

30



Percentage of all pupils at Shropshire schools by MSOA

—— - , : [ EXERIE
Contsains Nationsl Statistics data ® Crown copyright and dstabas erights 2024

% of all pupils in MSOA
0.011284 -

B o.014s31-
I o.020237-
I o.o2s7%0-

-0.044301

0.014530
0.020236
0.025789

0.033194

Languages spoken

English (93%) was the most common language recorded on the census for children

attending Shropshire schools. There were 66 different language codes used, although 5 of
these were not specified (2,018 pupils) i.e., information not obtained / refused / other than
English / believed to be other than English / believed to be English. In total 663 pupils (1.7%)

had a language that was known and was not English.

Table showing the languages spoken by children attending Shropshire schools.

Page 94




Language Code List Pupils % of pupils

English* 36754 93.2%
Other than English* 1129 2.9%
Information not obtained* 501 1.3%
Believed to be Other than English* 200 0.5%
Believed to be English* 158 0.4%
Polish 125 0.3%
Bulgarian 94 0.2%
Malayalam 59 0.1%
Romanian 50 0.1%
Ukrainian 46 0.1%
Refused* 30 0.1%
Chinese 24 0.1%
Arabic 21 0.1%
Other language than listed 244 0.6%
When known, any language other than English total 663 1.7%

The map below shows that there seems to be a higher percentage of pupils whose language

is known but is not English in the North of the County, with one MSOA having 85 (12.8%)

and another having 73 (11%), of the 663 pupils — 15 lived outside of Shropshire.

Map showing the proportion of pupils whose language is known and is other than English by

MSOA.

Page 95

32



Percentage of the pupils whose language was known and is other than English by MSOA

% of pupils whose language is known but isn't English by MSOA
[[__] 0001508 - 0.008050

[[] 0005051 - 0.015808
|:| 0.015608 - 0.045249

[ 0045250 - 0.082556
Contains National Statistics data ® Crown copyright and dstabas erights 2024 - 0082957 - 0.128205

Children with Special Educational Needs

Page 96



Just over 83% of pupil’s at Shropshire schools have no special educational needs (SEN),

however, 5,103 pupils require SEN support, and 1,493 pupils have an education, health and

care plan.
SEN Provision Number of pupils % of Pupils
No Special Educational Need 32,839 83.3%
SEN Support 5,103 12.9%
Education, Health and Care Plan 1,493 3.8%
Grand Total 39,435 100.0%

. Education, Health and SEN No Special

SEN Provision by | care plan Support | Educational Need | &rand
Year Group Total
Elor E2 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%
N1 0.0% 3.2% 96.8% 100.0%
N2 0.7% 3.3% 96.0% 100.0%
R 3.1% 6.6% 90.3% 100.0%
1 3.3% 9.5% 87.3% 100.0%
2 3.5% 11.2% 85.3% 100.0%
3 3.1% 14.8% 82.0% 100.0%
4 4.3% 16.1% 79.7% 100.0%
5 3.8% 18.1% 78.1% 100.0%
6 4.2% 17.6% 78.3% 100.0%
7 4.3% 15.8% 79.9% 100.0%
8 4.3% 14.6% 81.1% 100.0%
9 3.6% 14.8% 81.6% 100.0%
10 4.6% 12.6% 82.9% 100.0%
11 3.8% 10.4% 85.8% 100.0%
12 5.3% 6.3% 88.4% 100.0%
13 6.1% 2.4% 91.5% 100.0%
14 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%
All Pupils 1493 5103 32839 39435

Page 97

34



Percentage of pupils in each MSOA who require Special Educational Needs support

% of pupils in each MSOA who require SEN support
0.066381 - 0.098291

| 0.098292 - 0.113208

I 0.113209 - 0.134063

I o.134064 - 0.153076
—

data ® C ight and dstabsserights 2024
T o I 0152077 - 0475388

Page 98

35



Wider determinants of health and risk factors

Child SaFEty and Weu-being Shropshire

.

-

66 abed

5% of Shropshire’s population (15,082)
areasin England (Decile 1 and 2), 2019

-
5

r

liveinthe 20% most deprived

children aged @ live AFFectin(g hildren

I 10 = leastdeprived

14.4%

of children
under 16 living in
Index(1DACI) absolutdow incom e

score2019 fFamilies
(England, 0.178)

0.120

Incom e Deprivation

Babies, infants and

in thetop 5 most
deprived ar eds

Shropshire (2019) (Engzloa%11{2125_3%)

per 1,000-17

18.0%
7 year oldchildren

households in arein
Shropshire iffu el householdswith
povertyp21 toxictrio*,
2021/21
(England, 9 per
000)

161

Children aged 0 -4
looked after as of 31
March 2023 in
Shropshire (24% of all
CLA vs 18%
nationally)

129

adm issionsaused by
unintentional and
deliberateinjumies
children &4s,
2021(22, 87.1 per
0,000

(England, 103.6)

8,769

A&E attendances
0-4s) during

2022/23, rate of
617.3 per 1,000
(England, 797.3)

2,999

Em ergency
adm issiofsls
180.8 per D00
2021/22
(England, 161.5)

*cooccurring parental substance misuse, m ental ill health and dom esti

36



00T abed

Deprivation

The Indices of Deprivation (IMD, 2019) combine a range of economic, social and housing indicators to provide a measure of relative
deprivation, i.e., they measure the position of areas against each other within different domains. A rank of 1 indicates highest deprivation.

Shropshire has become slightly more deprived since 2015 with an increase in the average score from 16.7 in 2015 to 17.2 in 2019, an increase
of 0.5. Shropshire is the 174th most deprived local authority in England out of a total of 317 lower tier authorities (rank of average score). This
measure shows Shropshire has become relatively more deprived compared to other areas since 2015.

Map 1 : National Decile

1 =10% most deprived LSOAs in
England

Office for National Statistics,© Crown copyright 2019 - 10 = Least deprived

37



TOT obed

See here for more deprivation (IMD 2019) facts and figures for Shropshire.
In 2019, two LSOAs out of 193 LSOAs in Shropshire were in the 10% most deprived nationally, equating to 1% of all of Shropshire’s LSOAs.
These two LSOAs are located in Harlescott, North Shrewsbury and Ludlow East.

Child poverty

Childhood poverty is a strong predictor of poor health outcomes in adulthood and premature mortality. There are multiple indicators which
measure child poverty. These measures each have unique methodologies and report different proportions of children experiencing poverty.
However, they all show that children in Shropshire are less likely to experience poverty compared to the national average for these measures.

Children in absolute low income families (under 16s)

Absolute or relative low income is defined as a family in low income Before Housing Costs (BHC) in the reference year or in the reference year
in comparison with incomes in 2010/11, respectively. A family must have claimed one or more of Universal Credit, Tax Credits or Housing
Benefit at any point in the year to be classed as low income in these statistics.

In Shropshire in 2021-22, 14.4% of children and young people aged under 16 were estimated to be living in absolute low income families,
equating to 7,397 children.

This ranks Shropshire 5" lowest in the West Midlands region and below the regional and national average.

Percentage of children aged 0-15 in absolute low income families in Shropshire, and its regional neighbours, 2021-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health
Profile, Fingertips, OHID

38


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/information-intelligence-and-insight/facts-and-figures/index-of-multiple-deprivation-imd/index-of-multiple-deprivation-imd-2019/

20T abed

Englain ¢l 1
West i ain ClS 11—
Solihull 3
Warwickshire H
Worcestershire H
Herefordshire —
Shropshire
Staffordshire H
Telford and Wrekin H
Dudley E
Coventry a2
Wolverhampton -
Walsall -
Sandwell E
Stoke-on-Trent -
Birmingham H

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0
Proportion (%)

Children in relative low income families (under 16s)

In Shropshire in 2021-22, 18.4% of children and young people aged under 16 were estimated to be living in relative low income families,
equating to 9,449 children.

This ranks Shropshire 4™ lowest in the West Midlands region and below the regional and national average.

39



€0T abed

Percentage of children aged 0-15 in relative low income families in Shropshire, and its regional neighbours, 2021-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health
Profile, Fingertips, OHID

England

West Midlands
Warwickshire
Solihull
Worcestershire
Shropshire
Herefordshire
Staffordshire
Telford and Wrekin
Coventry
Dudley
Wolverhampton
Walsall
Sandwell
Stoke-on-Trent
Birmingham

o
o

50 100 150 20.0 25.0 30.0 350 400 450
Proportion (%)

Below shows a map of the West Midlands region with Shropshire outlined, showing the relative levels of children living in poverty in the
financial year ending 2021, divided into national quartiles. Source: OHID Child Health Profile 2023



0T abed

Percentin
relative poverty

W 243-224
W 73242
W 136172

6.2-135

Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI)

The Marmot Review (2010) suggests that childhood poverty leads to premature mortality and poor health outcomes in adult life!. The Income
Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) measure is part of IMD 2019 which looks at the percentage of children aged under-16 years old
living in income deprived households. This is based on families receiving one of the following means tested benefits - Income Support, Income
Based Job Seekers Allowance, Income based Employment and Support Allowance, Pension Credit (Guarantee), Working Tax Credit or Child
Tax Credit.

Shropshire has an Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) score of 0.120 (2019). This measures the proportion of all children
aged 0 to 15 living in income deprived families. The national score is 0.172, higher than Shropshire’s score.

1 LG inform: Health and Wellbeing in Shropshire: A Focus on Children

41


https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-childrens-health-and-wellbeing-in-your-area-1?mod-area=E06000051&mod-group=AllSingleTierInCountry_England&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup

GOT obed

IMD - Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) - score (2019) for Shropshire (Quantiles of All English single tier and =58 =
county councils)

Shropshire --E--i.-----l ® Shropshire
W Mean for All English
0.025 0.05 0.075 01 0125 0.15 0175 02 0225 025 0.275 03 0.325 0.35

single tier and

county councils
Score . J

Source:
Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities, Indices of deprivation, IMD - Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) - score , Data updated: 04 Jul 2022

Map showing IDACI score for child poverty by ward in Shropshire, compared to the England average, 2019. Source: OHID Local Health

42



90T abed

Child Poverty, Income Deprivation Affecting Children (%) - Source: Ministry of Housing 2nd Local Government 2019

Eligibility and claiming free school meals

In Shropshire, 18.0% of pupils attending nursery and primary schools and 17.2% of pupils attending secondary school are eligible for and
claiming free school meals, rates lower than the national average. In England, 23.9% of pupils attending nursery and primary schools and
22.7% of pupils attending secondary school for England.

Free School Meals

In total, 19% of pupils (7,300) at Shropshire schools are eligible for free school meals — eligibility seems to increase as children get older, with
just over 10% of the children aged 0-4 (168) being eligible for a free school meal.

43



/0T abed

% of pupils

Free School eligible for Free
Meal eligibility Total pupils School Meal

E1lor E2 (0, or 1 at 315t August, turning 1 or 2

during year) 1 29 3%
N1 (2 at 31t August, turning 3 during the year) 30 371 8%
N2 (3 at 31t August, turning 4 during the year) 137 1224 11%
Total aged 0-4 at 31t August 168 1624 10%
Reception 315 2777 11%
Year 1 446 2878 15%
Year 2 486 3072 16%
Year 3 645 3089 21%
Year 4 616 3057 20%
Year 5 653 3015 22%
Year 6 738 3111 24%
Total between Reception and Year 6 3899 20999 19%
Year 7 687 3278 21%
Year 8 672 3187 21%
Year 9 614 3148 20%
Year 10 584 3144 19%
Year 11 574 3165 18%
Total between Year 7 and Year 11 3131 15922 20%
Year 12 54 413 13%
Year 13 40 459 9%
Year 14 8 18 44%
Total between Year 12 and Year 14 102 890 11%
Any age 7300 39435 19%

44



80T abed

Percentage of pupils in each MSOA who are eligible for free school meals

% of pupils in each MSOA Eligible for F ree school meals
[ 0.100143-0.120253

I 0.120254 - 0.153631
I o.153632- 0.183580
I o.183581- 0241408

ics data ® Crown copyright and dstabss erights 2024 - 0.241467 - 0.375285

45



60T abed

Child Benefits

Families claiming Child Benefit
On 31 August 2023, across the United Kingdom there were:

e 7.65 million families claiming Child Benefit, with 6.91 million families in receipt of Child Benefit payments. This is a decrease of 47,000
claiming families and 106,000 families in payment when compared to August 2022
e 741,000 families who chose to opt-out of receiving payments

13.04 million children in families claiming Child Benefit, and 11.92 million children in payment recipient families. This is a fall of

approximately 159,000 children in claiming families, and 236,000 children for whom payment is received since August 2022
e 1.12 million children in families who had opted out of payments

For the same period, across England, there were 6.48 million families claiming Child Benefit, a decrease of 38,000 families compared to August

2022. Regionally, numbers are highest among families living in the South East and London regions. In August 2023, 714,000 families were
claiming child benefits in the West Midlands.

Families claiming Child Benefit in England,
2003 to 2023

8,000,000
7,000,000 6,487,310
6,000,000 .—-W—‘—.-.—‘—O—.-.H
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
0

N S N O™ 0 H O A N MO F 1N O N 0 ) O d N M
O ©O O O 0 00 d d d d 93 d 93 3 d d o N
©O O O OO 0O 0O 0O 0O 0 0 0 0 0 0O 0O O O o o o
N N NN~
L i v s v s v v v O v s v v v O v v v s s s 4
" wn wn (%] (%] (%] " " " wn wn (%] (%] (%] " " " wn (%] (%] (%]
o} o} =} > 35 35 > o} o} o} =} 35 35 ] ] > o} =} > 35 35
6 bb bh bo B0 B0 B0 B0 B0 B0 b0 bo o bo o bo bo bo bo bo o
> 3 3 3 333 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
<A< < <9< AIC AL« AICAICACACACACCCECCECECEICEICL

46



Families claiming Child Benefit in each English region, 2003 to 2023

1,200,000

=8=North East E12000001
1,000,000
==0==North West E12000002

Yorkshire and the Humber

800,000 E12000003
East Midlands E12000004

St b" 714,830 g \West Midlands E12000005
600,000 o o o o —s—e—o ST T T —0—0—0—0— —e—East of England E12000006

=@=—| ondon E12000007

;? 400,000 —e—South East E12000008
= 200,000
|_\
o
0
5 X O 0 A DO QN B X O 0 A DO O N G
S F P F S F P IOV R P P K R @ oS g
\.q/ \(l/ \,q’ \q/ \(1/ ‘\q’ \.q/ \(1/ ‘\,q’ \q/ \(1/ \,q’ \q/ \(1/ \q’ \q/ \(1/ \,(1’ \q’ \Q/ \.(1'
NI I I I I I I I R R R R i i i i i i
WP P PO P P

Children for whom child benefit was claimed:

Nationally, in August 2023, there were 11,081,595 children for whom child benefit was claimed. A slight fall compared to the previous year:

47



TTT obed

Children for whom Child Benefit is claimed in English , 2003 to
2023

14,000,000
11,081,595

._.__.___._.__._._..._..—-0-—o—o—o—o—o—._....___._°

12,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
4,000,000

2,000,000

Regionally and local picture

Regionally, the highest number of children for whom child benefit is claimed is in the South East and London. In the West Midlands, there was

1.2 million children for whom child benefit was claimed in August 2023, a fall of ~9,000 children compared to August 2022.

48



21T abed

Children for whom Child Benefit is claimed in each English region, 2003 to 2023

2,000,000
1,800,000
1,600,000 OO
1,262,900
1,400,000 =@— North East E12000001
1,200,000 === $ ==0==North West E12000002
._._._._._._.._.—o—o—o—o—o—.—._._._._._._‘ Yorkshire and the Humber E12000003
1,000,000 East Midlands E12000004
=@ East of England E12000006
600,000 0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—o =&—London E12000007
400,000 —e— South East E12000008
=@ South West E12000009
200,000
0
S FE QQ/\ SO P IO 0 J & $ 10 3© Q’<\ SEI® P o
\,q’ ‘\,q’ \(1/ ‘\."L \(b \rb \q/ \.q/ \(1/ \q’ ‘\,q’ \(1’ ‘\."L ‘\."'L \(b ‘\.rL \q/ \.q/ \q’ ‘\q’ \,(1’
IR M i - i S i S S S S i -
TSI LIS ST
Rl ol ol o Sl il Sl S Sl Sl Sl S Sl o S S Sl S o o

In August 2023, in the West Midlands region, Birmingham has the highest number of children for whom benefit is received and also the highest
number of families claiming child benefit. In Shropshire, benefit is received for 50,760 children. 29,835 families claim this child benefit.

49



Total number of families claiming child
benefit, West Midlands Local authorities,
August 2023

Total number of children for whom benefit
is received, West Midlands Local
authorities, August 2023

cTT obed

Staffordshire [ 153,560 staffordshire [ 90,975
Worcestershire [ 101,610 Worcestershire [ 60,480
Warwickshire [ 99,720 Warwickshire [N 59.835
sandwell [ s82.060 sandwell [ 44,800
coventry [ 71995 coventry [ 40,215
walsall [ 66,445 waisall [N 36,025
Dudiey [N 65,215 Dudiey [N 37,295
Wolverhampton [ 61,305 Wolverhampton [N 34,125
Stoke-on-Trent [ 57,860 Stoke-on-Trent - 32,050
Shropshire 50,760 Shropshire 29,835
Telford and Wrekin [l 39,415 Telford and Wrekin [ 22,150
solihull [l 37,240 solihull [l 21,415
Herefordshire, County of [l 30,655 Herefordshire, County of - 18,115

Compared to the previous year, all local authorities in the West Midlands have seen a minor decrease in the number of children for whom child
benefit is claimed. In Shropshire, this was a reduction of 1,010 children, equating to a 2% decrease, The third largest fall in the regio:



yTT abed

Total number of children for whom benefit is received, West Midlands Local authorities, August 2022-23

Year on
Area Name Aug-22 | Aug-23 year % change

change
Herefordshire, County of 31,160 | 30,655 -505 -1.6%
Shropshire 51,770 | 50,760 -1,010 -2.0%
Stoke-on-Trent 58,325 | 57,860 -465 -0.8%
Telford and Wrekin 39,590 | 39,415 -175 -0.4%
Staffordshire 155,220 | 153,560 -1,660 -1.1%
Warwickshire 100,790 | 99,720 -1,070 -1.1%
Birmingham 276,195 | 271,660 -4,535 -1.6%
Coventry 73,000 | 71,995 -1,005 -1.4%
Dudley 65,645 | 65,215 -430 -0.7%
Sandwell 82,960 | 82,060 -900 -1.1%
Solihull 38,270 | 37,240 -1,030 -2.7%
Walsall 67,260 66,445 -815 -1.2%
Wolverhampton 61,745| 61,305 -440 -0.7%
Worcestershire 103,960 | 101,610 -2,350 -2.3%

Across all local authorities in the West Midlands region, the highest number of children for who benefit is received is among those aged 5-10,
making up a third of all children whom child benefit is received. In Shropshire, this is also true with 16,780 children aged 5-10 receiving child

benefits, equating to 33% of all children for whom child benefit received.

51



GTT obed

Total number of children for whom benefit is received by age group, West Midlands Local authorities, August 2023

. Total

Area Name Children: Children: Children: Chlllgfnnd number
Under 5 5t010 11to 15 of

over children

Herefordshire, County of 6,635 10,190 9,220 4,610 30,655
Shropshire 11,260 16,780 15,190 7,530 | 50,760
Stoke-on-Trent 13,515 19,320 17,120 7,910 | 57,860
Telford and Wrekin 8,860 13,055 11,750 5,745 | 39,415
Staffordshire 35,530 50,880 44,850 22,300 | 153,560
Warwickshire 22,720 33,185 29,530 14,285 99,720
Birmingham 58,830 90,140 80,550 42,140 | 271,660
Coventry 15,970 23,990 21,645 10,390 | 71,995
Dudley 15,170 21,740 18,815 9,490 | 65,215
Sandwell 18,060 27,170 24,410 12,420 | 82,060
Solihull 7,800 12,390 11,295 5,755 | 37,240
Walsall 15,150 22,185 19,385 9,730 | 66,445
Wolverhampton 13,555 20,465 18,195 9,090 | 61,305
Worcestershire 22,640 33,605 30,120 15,250 | 101,610
. Total

Children: Children: Children: Children: number

Area Name Under5  5t010 11to1s  t6and of
over children

52



9TT abed

Herefordshire, County of
Shropshire
Stoke-on-Trent
Telford and Wrekin
Staffordshire
Warwickshire
Birmingham
Coventry

Dudley

Sandwell

Solihull

Walsall
Wolverhampton
Worcestershire

22%
22%
23%
22%
23%
23%
22%
22%
23%
22%
21%
23%
22%
22%

15%
15%
14%
15%
15%
14%
16%
14%
15%
15%
15%
15%
15%
15%

30,655
50,760
57,860
39,415
153,560
99,720
271,660
71,995
65,215
82,060
37,240
66,445
61,305
101,610

53



Rurality and inequalities

Given the rural nature of Shropshire, the ease with which people can access services such
as work, healthcare, education and shopping is an important and challenging issue.

Rural and Urban classification

57% of Shropshire's total population live in a “rural” setting (green and yellow in the map
below).

58% of LSOAs in Shropshire are classified as “rural”’, equating to 186,658 people (57% of
Shropshire's total population). 33% are classified as “rural village and dispersed” or “rural
village and dispersed in sparse setting”

e 186,658 people classified as living in a “rural” setting (green/yellow), 57% of
Shropshire's total population.

e 103,310 people classified as living in “rural village and dispersed” or “rural village and
dispersed in sparse setting” category. 32% of Shropshire’s total population.

e 127,800 people classified as living in “rural town and fringe”, 24% of Shropshire’s
population.

e 0 people living in urban major or minor conurbation

Map showing rural and urban classification in Shropshire (ONS). Source: OHID SHAPE tool

= =9 T s INANTWICHET

© Rural/Urban Classification

Classification of Lower Super Output Areas.

s Vs A o g . c . Key
7 GaaTh S e G :
} o ale & - B Urban major conurbation
=) _CHURCH 2 'H i & 2
STRETTON| 2 \ . Urban minor conurbation

B Urban city and town

[ Urban city and town in a sparse setting

| Rural town and fringe

[ Rural town and fringe in a sparse setting

. Rural village and dispersed

. Rural village and dispersed in a sparse setting

BISHOP'S CASTLE

Data
ONS 2011 rural/urban classification

IUANDRINDOD. ons.gov.uk/.../201 Truralurbanclassification

Page 117 >



Proportion of Shropshire’s population living in
urban/rural area

m Urban major conurbation

® Urban minor conurbation

= Urban city and town

3% Urban city and town in a sparse
setting
24% Rural town and fringe

Rural town and fringe in a
sparse setting

= Rural village and dispersed

= Rural village and dispersed in a
sparse setting

Rural deprivation index (RDI) for health

Geographical deprivation indices such as the English Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD)
have been widely used in healthcare research and planning since the mid-1980s. However,
such indices normally provide a measure of disadvantage for the whole population and can
be inflexible to adaptation for specific geographies or purposes. This can be an issue, as the
measurement of deprivation is subjective and situationally relative, and the type of
deprivation experienced within rural areas may differ from that experienced by urban
residents.

An adjustable model to enable deprivation indices to be adapted to local conditions and
populations has been developed by Norfolk County Council. The model has the potential to
provide a starting point for those who wish to create a summary deprivation measure,
considering rurality or other local geographic factors, particularly as part of a range of
approaches that can be used to allocate or apply for resources.

In Shropshire, 46 of the 193 LSOAs in Shropshire are in quintile 1 (i.e., most deprived), with

43,927 residents living across these 46 LSOAs. This means 1 in 4 (24%) of Shropshire’s
LSOAs are within the most deprived quintile nationally.

Map showing Rural Deprivation Index (RDI) in Shropshire. Source: Shape Atlas

Page 118 >



© Rural Deprivation Index for Health

. UEI\I:ER | Geographical deprivation indices such as the English
Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) are widely used
in healthcare research and planning. However, such
indices can be inflexible to adaptation for specific
WA geographies. Moreover, deprivation indices often

STON include age adjusted data meaning the differential
effect of older, or younger populations, in specific
geographies are not accounted for.

The UEA has worked with other partners including
STAF pyblic Health England and Norfolk County Council to
propose an adjustable model to enable deprivation
indices to be adapted to local conditions and
populations. This is achieved through bundling
indicators into three domains. The principal domain is
general household deprivation which consists of
indicators widely acknowledge to be universally
associated with deprivation such as income and
education.

~ WOLVERH

B Two further domains enable deprivation scores to be
adjusted for the effect of specific environments or

populations; these are the geographic domain (e.g.
ED! rurality) and population domain (to account for differing
% W population structures in different geographies).
KINGSWINE!

v Rural Deprivation Index for Health score:

STOURBI
Darkest areas are most disadvantaged. Values on the

KIDDERMINSTER
map in red indicate lowest 10% of all LSOA areas.

O ; N
; KNIGHTON : Sgsl;:vpg:;:' B Source, December 2020:
2T 2 UEA: sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/...

LA
Lowest 10%

Barriers to housing and services: IMD 2019

This IMD 2019 domain measures the physical and financial accessibility of housing and key
local services. Shropshire has an average score of 25.4 and is ranked 68th most deprived
local authority in England out of a total of 317 lower tier authorities.

47 Shropshire LSOA’s are within the 10% most deprived nationally, 35 LSOAs in Shropshire

are ranked within the 5% most deprived for the Barriers to Housing and Services Domain
nationally.

Map showing Rural Deprivation Index (RDI) in Shropshire. Source: Shape Atlas

Page 119 >



X
‘BRO! EU ==

TENBURY,WELLS

Page 120

© Barriers to Housing and Services Deprivation
The indicator focuses the Barriers to Housing and
Services Deprivation domain from the Indices of
Deprivation 2019.

Shropshire's Barriers to Housing and Services
Deprivation average score is 25.5.

The England-wide Barriers to Housing and Services
Deprivation distribution is 0.48 to 70.46 with a mean
value of 21.69.

Key

Values for LSOAs within the selected boundary are
shown. The larger the value and the deeper the
purple, the greater the deprivation.

The colours represent the quintiles:

(@) 30.56 to 70.46: 65 areas

(@) 23.07 t0 30.55: 22 areas

(@) 17.57 t0 23.06: 35 areas

(012,27 t0 17.56: 41 areas

) 0.48 to 12.26: 30 areas

L

Data

Population mid-2015:311,567

English Indices of Deprivation 2019:
www.gov.uk/.../indices-of-deprivation-2019

57



T2T obed

Access to GPs

Access to GPs

E.g. access to GP practices among for our
most deprived communities

Purple areas are
the most deprived
areas across the

wwwwww

@ 2156103325
142510 21.55:66

85310 1424:36 ar0as
05410 862: 26 arsas

Population mid-2015: 311,567
English Indices of Deprivation 2019:
wnw ok Sevdkces-of-deperation-2019

37% (88,993) of LY
residents in Green sl}a,dgd areas show the «

. population wheanget to a GP
Shropshlre cannot practice within 15 minutes on

access a GP practice  public transport (included pop)

within 15 mins using ® pubic tanspart \
. | To sitas W || Weakday moening v/ ? A
public transport ? (D) @D mivtes D,
) Total popdation: 240,726 49 .
Induded population: 236422 \
Excluded population: 88,903 | T
Outside population: 4304 \& 2 | ‘
| CTonnlev wils © Crown coonmicin and database riahts 2022 Orde

58



Drugs and alcohol

This section has been taken from the Drug and Alcohol Needs Assessment.

For more detail and data, please follow the link.

Parents/carers and families in substance misuse services

The next section presents profile and outcomes data for parents with problem alcohol and
drug use in Shropshire. The data comes from the Parents with problem alcohol and drug
use: Data for England and Shropshire, 2019 to 2020. Supporting children and families
affected by parental alcohol and drug use pack, NTDMS?. Except for numbers in treatment,
the numbers presented here are for new presentations to treatment only. This includes
clients who started treatment between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020.

To prevent potential patient identification, all local figures for Shropshire in this report have
been rounded to 1 or the nearest 5. Proportions have been calculated from the rounded
figures. This is true of all local data except for the overall numbers in treatment.

This report includes benchmark comparisons to local data. These are the areas identified as
the nearest neighbours for Shropshire using the Chartered Institute of Public Finance &
Accountancy (CIPEA) 2018 Model: Cheshire East, Cheshire West and Chester, Central
Bedfordshire, Northumberland, Warrington, Stockport, East Riding of Yorkshire,
Herefordshire, Solihull, Isle of Wight, Bath and North East Somerset, South Gloucestershire,
North Somerset, Wiltshire, Cornwall & Isles of Scilly. Please see the appendix for a table of
these benchmark areas including upper tier local authority codes.

Green coloured text = better than the national average
Orange text = similar to the national average
Red test = worse than the national average

e Prevalence and unmet need gap: 54% opiate dependent parents and 68% for alcohol
dependent parents (both lower than national rates)

e In 2019 to 2020, 34% (706) of children in needs assessments identified alcohol
misuse by a parent or other adult living with the child as an issue. Drug misuse was a
factor in 35% (723) of assessments.

e 546 new presentations to treatment (FY 2019/20) aged between 18 and 99. Of those:

o 133 (24%) were parents or adults living with children
o 151 (28%) were parents not living with children
o 261 (48%) were not a parent and had no contact with children
e Majority of new presentations by parents to service were for alcohol misuse (62%).
o 19% presented with non-opiate & alcohol problems
o 12% for non-opiate
o 8% for opiate misuse

e For parents presenting with alcohol misuse, the rate was higher than the benchmark
areas.

e 63% of parents or adults living with children presented with a mental health treatment
need, higher than the benchmark of 54%.

e In Shropshire during 2019-20, there were 1,384 adults in treatment. Of these:

2 Parents with problem alcohol and drug use: Data for England and Shropshire, 2019 to 2020
Supporting children and families affected by parental alcohol and drug use

Page 122 >0


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna/drugs-and-alcohol/
https://www.ndtms.net/resources/public/Parental%20substance%20misuse/West%20Midlands/WM_Shropshire_2019-20_Parental_substance_misuse_data_pack.html#1_Introduction
https://www.ndtms.net/resources/public/Parental%20substance%20misuse/West%20Midlands/WM_Shropshire_2019-20_Parental_substance_misuse_data_pack.html#1_Introduction
https://www.ndtms.net/resources/public/Parental%20substance%20misuse/West%20Midlands/WM_Shropshire_2019-20_Parental_substance_misuse_data_pack.html#1_Introduction
https://www.ndtms.net/
https://www.cipfa.org/services/cipfastats/nearest-neighbour-model
https://www.cipfa.org/services/cipfastats/nearest-neighbour-model
https://www.ndtms.net/resources/public/Parental%20substance%20misuse/West%20Midlands/WM_Shropshire_2019-20_Parental_substance_misuse_data_pack.html#appendix

o 380 (27%) were parents or adults living with children
o 358 (26%) were parents not living with children
o 646 (47%) were not parents

e 43% of all adults in treatment during 2019-20 were parents or carers (either living
with or not living with children), equating 738 people

e Rates of referral into drug and alcohol treatment were low from children and family
social services across all parental groups

e Among parents living with children in treatment, it was non opiate users who spent
the longest average number of days in treatment (167 days), compared with 110
days on average in benchmark areas.

e Majority (71%) of parents living with children and not living with children who
presented to treatment in 2019-20 were not receiving children or families’ support,
lower than the benchmark figure of 78%.

o 149% of parents living with children and 10% of parents not living with children had a
child protection plan in place, both higher than the benchmark values.

e Support received during treatment:

o 4% of newly presenting parents living with children received family or
parenting recovery support, lower than the benchmark of 7%

o 7% of parents not living with children received family or parenting recovery
support, higher than the benchmark figure of 5%

o 3% of newly presenting parents living with.children received housing or
employment recovery support, similarto the benchmark.

o 3% of newly presenting parents not living with children received housing or
employment recovery support compared to the benchmark figure of 8%

e Completion rates were lower across all parental groups in Shropshire compared to
benchmark areas:

o 22% of parents living with children successfully completing compared to the
benchmark of 29%

o 17% of parents not living with children completed compared to 21% in
benchmark areas on average.

Domestic abuse

Domestic abuse affects all communities regardless of gender, age, race, religion, sexuality,
disability, mental health, social and financial status.

Some 30,475 women in Shropshire will experience domestic abuse during their lifetime. This
equates to one in four women being likely to experience domestic violence, from a
population figure of 121,900 for women over 163.

The Domestic Act 2021 recognises all children as victims of Domestic abuse if they see hear
or experience the effects of the abuse, are aged under 18 years old and related to either the
victim or the perpetrator.

Children are affected in many ways by Domestic abuse, even after a short time. These
effects include*:

feeling frightened, anxious or depressed

becoming withdrawn, low self-esteem, difficulty forming healthy relationships
bed-wetting

Hypervigilance around changes in mood and atmosphere

3 Shropshire Council
4 SSCP

Page 123 *0


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/crime-and-community-safety/domestic-abuse/#:~:text=Some%2030%2C475%20women%20in%20Shropshire,121%2C900%20for%20women%20over%2016.
https://www.shropshiresafeguardingcommunitypartnership.co.uk/partnership-priority-areas/local-domestic-abuse-partnership-board/domestic-abuse-and-children/

poor concentration

inconsistent regulation of emotions includes becoming distressed, upset or angry
problems with school, risk of exclusion

using alcohol, drugs or self-harming

National prevalence

The Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW) year ending March 2023 estimated that
4.4% of people aged 16 years and over (2.1 million) experienced domestic abuse in the last
year®.

There was no significant change in the prevalence of domestic abuse experienced in the last
year by people aged 16 to 59 years compared with the previous year, but a significant
decrease compared with the year ending March 2020, a year largely unaffected by the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

An estimated 1.4 million women and 751,000 men aged 16 years and over experienced
domestic abuse in the last year; a prevalence rate of approximately 5.7% of women and
3.2% of men. This is a prevalence rate of approximately 6 in 200 women and 3 in 100 men
(Figure below).

The percentage of people aged 75 years and over who experienced domestic abuse in the
last year was lower than all other age groups.

A higher proportion of people aged 16 years and over in the Mixed and White ethnic groups
experienced domestic abuse in the last year compared with those in the Asian or Asian
British group.

Page 124 ot


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/domesticabusevictimcharacteristicsenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2023

Figure 1: A higher proportion of women than men were victims of

domestic abuse in the last year

Prevalence of domestic abuse in the last year for people aged 16 years
and over, by sex and type of abuse, England and Wales, year ending March

2023

® women @ Men @ 2

I

Any domestic abuse

Any partner abuse

Any family abuse

Domestic abuse (non-sexual)
Partner abuse (non-sexual)

Family abuse (non sexual)

Sexual assault by a partner

Sexual assault by a family member
Domestic stalking

Stalking by a partner or ex-partner

Stalking by a farmily member

“Hﬂ'"ﬂllllnl

(=
—
Fa

3 B 5

Percentage of people who were victims once or more

It has been estimated that for the year ending March 2023 across England and Wales, that
the proportion of domestic abuse experienced in the last year was higher in households
composed of a single person with one or more children (18.6%), compared with households
with no children (4.2%), and households with multiple people and one or more children
(3.7%) (Figure 9).

Page 125 °2



Figure 9: A larger percentage of people living in a single-parent

household experienced domestic abuse in the last year

Prevalence of domestic abuse in the last year for people aged 16 years
and over by household structure, and sex, England and Wales, year ending

March 2023

women @ Men @ &l

Single person with child{ren) households

Households with multiple people and
child{ren)

Mo child{ren) households

0 3 10 15 20 25 30

Percentage of people aged 16 years and over who were victims once or more

Source: Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW) from the Office for

National Statistics

West Midlands, West Mercia Police Force and Shrophire prevalence

Regional

In the year ending March 2023, the highest rate of domestic abuse-related crimes recorded
by the police was in Yorkshire and The Humber (20.6 per 1,000 population). The lowest rate
was in London (10.8 per 1,000 population). Although this could reflect differences in the
rates of domestic abuse across regions, it could also reflect regional differences in the
reporting of domestic abuse to the police and how the police subsequently record these
offences. The rate for the West Midlands was 18.9 per 1,000 for all domestic abuse crimes
and 15.2 per 1,000 for violence against the person domestic abuse crimes, higher than the
national rates for England and Wales of 15.4 and 12.2 respectively.

Page 126 *



Figure 11: Yorkshire and The Humber had the highest recorded

rates of domestic abuse-related crimes

Rate of domestic abuse-related crimes recorded by the police, English
regions and Wales, year ending March 2023

@ violence against the person domestic abuse-related crimes @ All domestic abuse-related crimes

England and Wales

Marth East

Narth West

Yorkshire and The Humber
East Midlands

West Midlands

East of England

London

South East

South West

Wales

0 25 5 75 10 125 15 175 20 225
Rate per 1,000 population

Regionally, there were significantly higher rates of domestic abuse experienced by women
compared with men, particularly in the North West, Yorkshire and the Humber, West
Midlands, East of England and South East. This gap was largest for the West Midlands,
where 6.6% of women were victims of domestic abuse in the last year, compared with 2.7%

of men (Figure below)®.

Figure 10: A lower proportion of women in London experienced
any domestic abuse in the last year compared with all other
regions

Prevalence of domestic abuse in the last year for people aged 16 years

and over, English regions and Wales, by sex, year ending March 2023

@ viomen @ Men

North East

North West

Yorkshire and The Humber
East Midlands

West Midlands

East

London

South East

South West

Wales

Percentage of people aged 16 years and over who were victims once or more

64

Page 127


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/domesticabusevictimcharacteristicsenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2023

Sub-regional (West Mercia area)

Across the West Mercia Police (WMP) Force, 18.1% of all crimes were domestic abuse
related, higher than the England and Wales rate of 12.1%. This equates to 64,571 domestic
abuse related crimes across the West Mercia area. The rate for WMP has been higher than
the national rate since March 2016 and saw a steep rise until March 2021, almost doubling
between 2016 and 2021. More recently, the rate has dropped in WMP and nationally”. This
is partly due to the change in methodology the Police now use to record DA crimes. See
here for more information: Briefings - Domestic Abuse Commissioner

Percentage of all crimes that were domestic abuse-
related, West Mercia Police Force. Source: ONS

=@ \\/est Mercia === England and Wales excluding Devon and Cornwall

25.0
20.0

18.1

0 16.2
15.0
10.0
5.0
0.0

Apr 2015 to Apr 2016 to Apr 2017 to Apr 2018 to Apr 2019 to Apr 2020 to Apr 2021 to Apr 2022 to

Mar 2016 Mar 2017 Mar 2018 Mar 2019 Mar2020 Mar2021 Mar 2022 Mar 2023
Shropshire

In Shropshire, the rate of domestic abuse related incidents and crimes increased between
2015/16 and 2019/20, however we are now seeing a fall in rate to lower than the national
rate at 27.2 per 1,000 population for 2022/23 8.

7 ONS
8 QHID fingertips

Page 128 *


https://domesticabusecommissioner.uk/publications-briefings/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/domesticabusevictimcharacteristicsenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2023
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/domestic%20abuse#page/3/gid/1/pat/15/par/E92000001/ati/502/are/E06000051/iid/92863/age/164/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1

B11 - Domestic abuse related incidents and crimes for Shropshire

35

25 '_________1/

20

per 1,000

15

10

2015/16 2017/18 2019/20 2021/22

@ England
© Shropshire

In 2022, Shropshire’s Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment was published, including a
section on children and young people. For more information, the main report here.

Services available for children and young people provided by SDAS and Victim Support are
provided in section 10 of the report, and the response of Shropshire Council Children’s
Services is outlined in section 12, along with a more detailed data breakdown

Due to the limited specialist service provision, there is limited data on children and young
people’s needs relating to domestic abuse. It should also be noted that most of the data
available refers to children and young people who have had concerns raised about them,
not, as with adult victims, reporting issues for themselves.

The refresh of Shropshire’s Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment is in development, due to
be published in 2024.

2022 Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment findings:

In 2021/22:
e Rise in SDAS accommodation based services
e 278 open early help episodes were for under 18s with domestic abuse identified as
an issue in their most recent assessment, a rise compared to the previous year.
e 6,041 Children’s Services domestic abuse contacts were made, a small decrease
compared to the previous year.
¢ Rise in Victim Support, doubling since the previous year

The numbers of children involved with Children’s Social Care, or who have experienced a
police incident or other concern that has led to a notification to Children’s Services,
compared with the low numbers able to be supported by SDAS (due to funding-related
limited capacity), highlights the significant gap in specialist support for children and young
people and the volume of service provision that may be required.

Page 129 °°


https://www.shropshiresafeguardingcommunitypartnership.co.uk/media/tygemsvp/07-shropshire-domestic-abuse-needs-assessment.pdf

Disclosures, re |:|-::|r"ti|'|;_:'_ or referrals for child victims/survivors

[including unborn)

SDAS Accommodation-based services

Number of children accommodated with o parent

2020/21

49

50AS Community-based CYP service
NB: provisien af twe part time workers lmits capacity

27

SDAS Community-based service [outreach and IDVA)

Miumber of adult victims/sunvivers with inolvement in Chifdren’s Social
Care, including those with Care Orders

264

245

Shropshire Council Children’s Early Help Services

Under 195 with open early help episode ot the end of each year (31/03)
with domestic abuse identified as issue in most recent assessment

226

278

Shropshire Coundil Children's Social Care Services

Children’s Services domestic abuse contocts

7,288

6,041

Shropshire Council Children’s Social Care Services

Open Child Protection and Child in Need cases where domestic obuse wos
identified on the referral/assessment (snapshot]

1,020

Shropshire Council Children's Social Care Services

Open Looked After Children coses where domestic obuse was identified
on the referral/assessment {snapshot)

Victim Support [young people aged 16 & 17)

West Mercia Police Youth Justice Service (062020 to 06/2022)

13

485

27
9

T

Source: Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment (2022) for Shropshire, including a section on

children and young people, see here.

Data was provided by Shropshire Council’s Operation Encompass lead. Operation
Encompass is a nationally recognised scheme that provides notifications to schools of
domestic abuse incidents reported to police in which children are in the household
(explained in more detail below, see also 12.29). The needs assessment gathered data on
the notifications made to schools in the previous eleven months (covering the school year,
September 2021 to July 2022). There was an average of 144 notifications made each month
across all forms of provision. (NB: notifications are not made when the lead is away.)

Page 130

67


https://www.shropshiresafeguardingcommunitypartnership.co.uk/media/tygemsvp/07-shropshire-domestic-abuse-needs-assessment.pdf

Operation Encompass Notifications 09/2021 - 07/2022 (N=1,588)

Special 5chools Wl 2.9%
Out of County school for Shropshire pupils Il 1.9%
Independent Schools W 1.3%
Permanent Exclusion = 0.1%
Tultion Medical Behaviour Support Service 1 0.8%
Children not on school rollfalternative Il 3.8%
Elective Home Education W 1.2%
Secondary Schools N 2159
Primary Schools I <G5
0% 10% 20% 0% A0% 0% BO%

Source: Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment (2022) for Shropshire, including a section on
children and young people, see here.

Children’s social care domestic abuse contacts in Shropshire

In Shropshire in 2023-24, there were 6,619 Children’s social care contacts involving
domestic abuse, a 3% rise compared to the previous year and a 10% rise compared to
2021/22.

Note: a contact may not necessarily be referred into Children’s social care

Chart showing Children’s Social Care Contacts aged 0-4 with a domestic abuse flag over time.
Source: Shropshire Council Social Care Team

Number of Children’s social care services
domestic abuse contacts, Shropshire
8000
7000 7288
6000 6,436 6,619
6,041
5000
4000
3000
2000
1000
0
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Table and chart showing Children’s Social Care Contacts aged 0-4 with a domestic abuse flag for
2022-23 and 2023-24. Source: Shropshire Council Social Care Team

Page 131 °


https://www.shropshiresafeguardingcommunitypartnership.co.uk/media/tygemsvp/07-shropshire-domestic-abuse-needs-assessment.pdf

LVL= Levels 1,2,3
SW = where a child was allocated social worker and S47/strategy meeting or social work
assessment took place.

Total DA Contacts  Total DA Contacts
current year prev year Level

Financial Year ®2022-2023 @2023-2024

6619

Level 2022-2023 2023-2024

= w2 665

LVLT 3682 3655

iz | 516 665 w3 58

VL3 337 382

L4 | 276 244 s

Sw 1675 1673

Total 6436 6619 o 2 a 6k B

View by Quarter
QIR1
QTR2
QTR3
QTR4

600

Total Contacts

Financial Year
2022-2023
2023-2024

200
APRIL MAY JUNE Juy AUG SEP ocT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

Financial Year ©2022-2023 @2023-2024

In 2023/24, Level 1 contacts made up 55% of all contacts however a rise was seen among
level 2 and level 3 contacts and SW contacts. These figures refer to Children’s social care
contacts and referrals, however domestic abuse can be identified beyond referral and at any
time during the social care process therefore figures are likely to be higher.

Page 132 *



Child Health Profile (all ages)

This profile provides a high-level overview of the health and wellbeing of children and

young people in Shropshire. As this profile and metrics span all children aged 0-19,

this is included in the Population and Context chapter. Metrics for specific age groups

are included in age-specific chapters of the JSNA in more detail.

Shropshire Child Health Profile March 2023

The chart below shows how children’s health and wellbeing in this area compares with the rest of England. The local result for
each indicator is shown as a circle, against the range of results for England shown as a grey bar. The line at the centre of the
chart shows the England average.

o Mo significanl change (D Not significantly different from the England averags T p—
# § Increasing/decreasing and getling betler @ Significantly belier than the England average
+ # Increasing/decreasing and getling worse i Significantly worse than the England average ’
= Trend cannol be calculabed (O Signiicance cannol be besbed Tthpmcantila Tith paecila
imtcen ol gy e oy wnt b
5%‘ 1 Infant mortality rate - 12 47 am 718 + Camjam 12
EE 2 Child mortality raie {1 o 17 years) - 4 7A 103 i1T s O &1
. 5 3 MMR vaconation for one dose (2 years) . 2055, .{gn% = 2E2T 553 B2 &84 *- ar.r
3L 4 DiapIPYiHi vaccination (2 years) 2 90% to 95% - 2861 DES 30 TOB o a1
IE & Children in care immunisations * 296 S0 BSO0 300 — 100.0
 Children achiewing a good level of development at the end of Recepfion = 1861 &S0 852 &3 L o 744
¥ GCSE attainment: averags Aftainment 8 soore = - AT2 4AT M2 [__ 13
E B GCSE atlainment: average Afainment 8 score of chuldren in case = - e X3 4% ‘ O 383
E£ 5 16 o 17 year clds not in education, smployment or training (MEET) - a3 B8 4T 147 o 14
;E 10 First time entrants io the youth justice system L ] 19 42 1469 4489 * (] 853
£® 11 Children in relafee low income familiss [under 18s) * BAaxtT 168 188 424 * B2
12 Houssholds with children homeless or 31 nsk of homelessness - 7 ar 144 303 _ 45
13 Children in care = B0g W oTo e [T %
14 Children kiled and serouwsly injured (¥31) on England's roads: - & 1ne 1549 &80 m 26
15 Low birth weight of term babies - 43 18 z8 &0 . @ 15
16 Obese children (4 o § years) -, HED ar 101 148 -:- B4
17 Obese children (10 % 11 years) - B10 190 X34 340 — @ 12.4
E 14 Children with experience of visually cbious dental decay (& years) = - B X4 509 -_ BT
E E 14 Hiospital admissions for dental caries (0 o S years) = a2 4521 X208 9113 O — TS
£ 30 Urder 18s conceptin rate / 1,000 - ® 15 130 304 £ la] 27
21 Teenage mathers - - - D& 24 E N 08
Z2 dmission episodes for alcohal-specific conditions - Under 18s = 13 @22 F3 3@ m T.T
I3 Hospital admissions due to substancs misuse (18 to 24 years) = 17 BEY B12 2204 _ 155
24 Smoking status at Sme of delfveny - 308 120 &1 214 _ i
25 Baby's first feed breastmilk = 1678 T4B T 13 _ GRE
25 Breastieeding prevalence ot & to 8 weeks after birth - BER - 493 - | -
cg 27 MSE attendances {0 to 4 years) - TABE  EBG4  TE2E 20806 _ 7.2
EE 24 Hospital admissions caused by injuries in chidren (0 to 14 years) = 295 B28 B43 1G22 - ma
s 2 Hospital admissions caused by injuries in young peoples (15 1o 24 years) = 30 852 1BE 2822 “ £33
M) Hospital admissions for asthma (under 19 years) = 118 1853 1318 4380 _ 470
31 Hiospital admissons for mental health conditions - BS 841 a8 3881 -: 3.3
12 Hospital admissions as a result of seif-harm (10:24 years) = 168 T2 4273 10817 * 1278
*Humbers in italics are cakoulated by dividing She tofal number for the Sres year period by twes 1o give an average figure
Motes and definitions Wihens data is not available or figures have been suppressed, is is indicated by a dash in the appropriate box

Source: OHID Child Health Profile 2023

To view the full Child Health Profile, which provides a snapshot of child health in Shropshire
see here. It is designed to help local government and health services improve the health and

wellbeing of children and tackle health inequalities.

Page 133

70


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/13/gid/1938133228/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92196/age/2/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1

yeT abed

Metrics worse than the England average (reds):

® 16-17 year olds not in education, employment or training - in 2023, 7.9% of 16 to 17 year olds in Shropshire were not in
education, employment or training. This is higher than the national average of 5.2% and ranks Shropshire 2" worst in the
region and 13™ highest out of all local authorities in England.

® Children looked after - In 2022/23, there were 656 children in care in Shropshire, equating of a rate of 111 in 10,000
children aged under 18 in Shropshire who are looked after. This includes all children being looked after by a local authority;
those subject to a care order under section 31 of the Children Act 1989; and those looked after on a voluntary basis through
an agreement with their parents under section 20 of that Act. This is higher than the overall rate in England of 71 in 10,000
children aged under 18. Shropshire’s rate is increasing and getting worse compared to the national rate, rising from 68 per
10,000 in 2019/20 to 111 per 10,000 in 2022/23. Compared to its similar neighbours, Shropshire is an outlier for a rate above
England and the rising trend.

Charts showing the number and rate of children looked after in Shropshire and England. Source: OHID Fingertips

Better 95% Similar Worse 95% Not applicable
Number of children looked after (all ages) in Children in care for Shropshire
Shropshire
120
7 *
%0 656 .
650 610
L
550 504 o
g o . ¢ —*
a0 395 399 I
350
40
250
20
150
50 ¢ 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021722 2022/23
-50 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 S Shvonehire

71



GeT abed

Chart showing the rate of children looked after in Shropshire and its nearest statistical neighbours. Source: OHID Fingertips

Children in care

Shropshire

18/13 20/21 22/23
4 - Somerset
18/13 20/21 22/23
§ - Suffolk

18/13 20/21 22/23
12 - Dorseat
——O0—10
18/13 20/21 22/23

1 - North Yorkshire

1819 20/21 2z2/23

5 - Westmorland and Furness

18/13 20/21 22/23
9 - Glouc'shire
18/13 20/21 22/23
13 - W Berks
-— -
o
o o o o
18/13 20/21 22/23

ra
b=}
=)

ra
b=}
=)

2 - Wiltshire

1819 20/ 22/23

6 - East Riding

1819 20/ 22/23

10 - Nerthum'land

& ———i—0o—F
18/13 20/21 22/23
14 - Devon
° ° o © o
18/13 20/21 22/23

Crude rate - per 10,000

22/23

.

22/23

22/23

o——70—0— (o]

22/23

72



o¢T abed

The rise in children looked after in Shropshire is being driven by 10-15 year olds and 5-9 year olds, particularly between 2021 and
2023:

Number of CLA by age group over time

250
200
el | Inder 1 year
150 o
s === to 4 years
— el 5 10 S years
100 el 10 to 15 years
enle= |G years and over
.__—
50
- ‘/ \
0
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

As of 31 March 2023, more than one third of children looked after were aged 10-15 years old and a further quarter were aged 5-9
years old. Shropshire has a higher proportion of children looked after in the 1-4 year old age group and 5- 9 year old age group:

73



/€T obed

40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

5%

0%

% of children looked after in each age group, as at 31 March 2023. Shropshire vs England

® Shropshire = England

%8¢

%t
%S
%0¢
%ET
%8T
%9¢

Under 1 year 1to 4 years 5to 9 years 10 to 15 years 16 years and over

Age group

® Smoking at time of delivery - During 2022/23 in Shropshire, 11.4% of mothers were known to be smokers at the time of

delivery, equating to 283 women. This is significantly higher than the regional rate of 9.1% and national rate of 8.8%, ranking
Shropshire third highest in the region. There has been no significant change compared to the previous time period. More
detail can be found in the Maternity chapter of this JSNA.

Hospital admissions caused by asthma - In Shropshire in 2022/23, there were 110 hospital admissions caused by asthma
in under 19 year olds, equating to a rate of 176.5 per 100,000, higher than the regional and national rates of 157.4 and 122.2
respectively. Overall, there was a fall in admissions between 2015/16 and 2020/23 however then the rate doubled between
2020/21 to 2021/22 and has stayed at this higher level in the year 2022/23.

74



8¢T abed

General Health of the population

Life expectancy at birth

Life expectancy at birth in Shropshire is higher among females compared to males. Both are rising over time and are above the regional and
national average.

Life expectancy at birth in females and males in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2001-03 to 2020-22. Source: Public
Health Profiles, Fingertips, OHID

Life expectancy at birth (females) Life expectancy at birth (males)
85.0 81.0
. 840 £ 800
2 g
®© < 79.0
2 830 >
c 78.0
3 820 g
8 § 77.0
o 81
g 810 3 760
) QL
o 80.0 =S 75.0
= 790 74.0
78.0 73.0
SdOLP L DPO O NI DO XL O DO DN A
SIS ,Q‘Z,Q/\ ,QC?\ DO RO N0 ,"Z,'é ,"c?\ NP R R TR SRS RS
N D > © S O O N DM o D O QLN N A NN N NN NN
S NN SR R NI SN SN N I N SN NS I PR D D S S D DD S QO D D O O
PEFTTLFETELT TS TS S S S S PEFTFFFFE R E PSP
=@=Shropshire ==®==\\est Midlands ==®==England =@=Shropshire ==®=\\est Midlands ==®==England

75



6ST obed

Life expectancy at birth (Females)- 2016 to 2020- Shropshire

P i:%"“

Ch
Coprhome
Sure

Choe

Lot

Bridprocth Yiest and Tashey
Areziey ond Coveriey
Church Rretor ans Craven
Corbiury wnd Worthen
Ludow Soun

aretels
Freen
The News
Bagley
Gobowen, Selstry™ ans
Pori
Cinotury Morsees

b5

Females living in Copthorne live
9.7 years longer than males living Rt
in Sundorne, which is ~4 miles K
apart within the Shrewsbury area. L it St A,
Severn Valey
‘w o
Market Drayion Wes!
Ceanthetel is and Dehanirgion
51 Cwanls

England

&5

Osmastry Esst

Surdome

birth

L

0

Darker colours =
higher life
expectancy at

8

'.l....'l.l..lo...!
-

ot "oo.”'."r

0
-
.
-

~
»
~

76

Life expectancy- Females (years)

95

82



ot T abed

Life expectancy at birth (Males)- 2016 to 2020- Shropshire

Shrewsbury

Males living in Copthorne live 9.8 years
longer than males living in Sundorne,
which is ~4 miles apart within the

Shrewsbury area.

80.9 82.4 241

67.2 77.8 79.5 !
| N

England

'SOHID - ® Crown copyright and database rights 20,

Darker colours =
higher life
expectancy at
birth

Life expectancy- Males (years)

9

3
-

LR

-

O.l.t...ol-!co...'.
LT b e TR

.
| "eny
=
)

77



Infant Mortality

Infant mortality is an indicator of the general health of an entire population. It reflects the
relationship between causes of infant mortality and upstream determinants of population
health such as economic, social and environmental conditions. Deaths occurring during the
first 28 days of life in particular, are considered to reflect the health and care of both mother
and new-born °.

In the period 2020-22, there were 37 deaths under one year of age in Shropshire. This
equates to an infant mortality rate of 4.8 per 1,000 live births. This is the sixth lowest
regionally, similar to the regional rate of 5.6 per 1,000 and the national rate of 3.9 per 1,000
live births. Shropshire’s rate was the highest compared to its statistical neighbours.

Shropshire’s rate increased between 2014-16 and 2018-20 but recently has started to level
off. Overall, the national rate has been declining over time however now remains steady
compared to the previous period.

Infant mortality rate in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons,
2009-11 to 2020-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

7.0

6.0

5.0

4.0

3.0

Rate per 1,000

2.0
1.0
0.0
I S
R N N SO

=@=Shropshire =@=\\est Midlands ==@==England

Page 141 ®



Infant mortality rate in Shropshire, including statistical neighbours, West Midlands and
England comparisons, 2020-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,

OHID

Rate per 1,000

7.0

6.0 1

5.0

4.0

3.0
AR
1.0

0.0

@ (.\\@ @Q, {\\@ \\o“ C}c\ 06% ,z,ﬂ‘b

P ¥ L ¥ F &S
K & O 0 &£ Q\b <&
) @ PN

¥ P &

England m—
West Midlands me—————

Herefordshire —
Dudley f——
Worcestershire =
Warwickshire —
Solihull ——

Shropshire ————

Staffordshire =
Telford and Wrekin s —
Walsall —

Wolverhampton —_—
Coventry —

Sandwell —

Birmingham =
Stoke-on-Trent —

00 20 40 6.0 80
Rate per 1,000

Child mortality rate

Death in childhood represents not only a tragedy for that child’s family but also a loss to
wider society in terms of lost years of productive life. After the age of one year, the
commonest cause of death in young people is injuries. Many of these injury related deaths
are potentially avoidable. The need to provide adequate support to those children and
families with life-limiting or life-threatening conditions is also recognised.

Between 2020-22 in Shropshire, there were 15 deaths among children aged 1-17 year old
equating to a rate of 8.6 deaths per 100,000 1-17 year olds, an increase from 10 deaths
during the previous period (5.8 deaths per 100,000). Shropshire’s child mortality rate was the
second lowest in the region and was similar to the regional and national rate of 11.7 deaths
per 100,000 and 10.4 deaths per 100,000 respectively®. Shropshire’s rate was the third

lowest amongst its statistical neighbours.

Child mortality rate per 100,000 (1-17 years) in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England
comparisons, 2010-12 to 2020-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

10 OHID Fingertips: Child Health Profiles

79

Page 142



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/4/gid/1938133228/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90801/age/177/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0

8.0

6.0

Rate per 100,000

4.0

2.0

0.0

2010 - 2011 - 2012 - 2013 - 2014 - 2015 - 2016 - 2017 - 2018 - 2019 - 2020 -
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
=@==Shropshire

=@==\Nest Midlands ==®==England

Child mortality rate in Shropshire, including statistical neighbours, West Midlands and England
comparisons, 2020-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

30.0

Rate per 100,000
= = N N
o w o
o o o o

o
o

END OF REPORT

Page 143 %0



This page is intentionally left blank



ooooo |

Children and Young
People JSNA

Population and Context (0-19s) Chapter Summary
August 2024



WY Shropshire What is a JSNA?

Council

“a systematic method for reviewing the health and wellbeing needs of a population, leading to agreed
commissioning priorities that will improve the health and wellbeing outcomes and reduce inequalities”

J oint jointly produced by health, local authorities and community and voluntary

organisations to provide a picture of people’s needs and to help them work together
to find answers to those needs.

o T abed

Strategic they identify the ‘big picture’ of the health and wellbeing needs and differences
across Shropshire.

N eeds they set out to find what people require to help their health and wellbeing and identify

where these requirements are not being met. Considers wider determinants of
health; the communities in which we live and the health and care we receive

Assessment facts and figures, together with people’s knowledge, experience and opinions are

used to find out what people’s current and future needs are. The JSNAs use a
wide range of data collected from different sources including the Census,

GPs, hospital admissions, social services, housing, police, leisure, education
voluntary and community organisations. _



¥ Shropshire JSNA design

Council

Due to the vast scope of this product, Shropshire’s Children and Young people JSNA is structured as a
‘JSNA pack’, comprising of individual chapters for each stage of the life course:

Core JSNA chapters

1. Population and context

2. Maternity (pregnancy & birth)

3. Early Years (0-4 years)

4. School aged children (5-11 and 12-16 years)
5. Young people (17-19 years)

/T obed

Additionally, the development of ‘Spotlight JSNA's’ will be developed following the publication of the core 5
chapters to explore key areas of need further. The topics of the Spotlight JSNAs are being determined
through engagement with stakeholders using a stakeholder survey and other forums.

Multiagency engagement and stakeholder activities were used to scope assets, opportunities and identify

relevant data in 2023/2024.



WY Shropshire Contents

Council

Contents|

Table of Contents
INErOdUCHON .t 2
L0 =Ty <3O OSSOSO OSSOSO 3

« Population structure, change and future trends Sopshie e papon ;

BUIMIMIIY ..ot ee e et e e e e et e s e T

- PopUlation SIUCEUTE ... ]

* Ethnicity S b
Household composition...... o 12

141 Populaion CRAaNGE ... .o 13

® HO useh Old CO m pOSItI On Fewer couples with dependent children ... 15
An older ShroPshire. ..o e 16

° S h ro pS hi re!S Ch i I d pop u |ati On Sh?:;(;ﬂil;ll:;;[?:jﬂpopu'ahon .............................................................................................. :;

Where do children and young people aged 15 and under live in Shropshire?. ... 18
H J H Where do children and young people aged 0-19 live in Shropshire? ... 12
* Sh h hool lat

;JU ro pS I re S SC OO O u a I O n Shropshire’s school population. ... 28
(Q SCho0l POPUIBTION ..ot e e 28
1 1 VI oo 30
@ + Wider determinants of health . QI AR S 0
= ) ) Wider determinants of health and risk Tactors ... 35
H « Deprivation DEPIVAION ..ot 36
oo R POVEIY oo oo 36
° R urality Children in absolute low income families (under 165) ... 37
Children in relative low income families (under 165) ... a7
H Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) ..., 38

L]
C hl ld pove rty Eligibility and claiming free school meals ..., 39

Rurality and inequaliies ... ... et e 42
Drugs and alcohol ... e e e 47
. . . Parents/carers and families in substance misuse SeVICES ... 47
* Parents/carers in substance misuse services Domestic abuse ... .. S 48
NEtONal PrEVAIEICE . . oo 49

. Dom esti C ab use West Midiands, West Mercia Police Force and Shrophire prevalence............. 51
BRFOPSIINE .o e e e e 53
Finance and Families ... e 57

 Indicators of the general health of the entire population: Life i vt praieGaages) s
expectancy’ |nfant and Ch||d Mortality General Health Of e POPUIBHON ... .o 61

Life expectancy at birth ..o 61

» Families on benefits

Ifamt MO Al . e e 64

° Ch'ld Health Prof”e (0_198 —_ OHID)_ Metr|CS Whlch Span a” ages Il MOMAIY FE .o 65
are included in this chapter. Metrics specific to an age group can
be found in the age-specific chapter.




Shropshire's Population

61T obed

Populabion change (%) of lotsl authority are

ST R

s in Ingland Betwesn 2001 and XY

~ i ‘\«r‘\—":;‘i
) { '. /

7

o /

A -
$7 c‘\
st o
\\ ' J
\ o \-» = P
o s LA
—
: -
Taz

Shropshire’s total population

323,600

a 5.7% rise from
306,100 people in 2011
(England 6.6% rise)

2021 Census

181 schools of which
15 are independent
and 19 are special

44,581 pupils aged
0-19

18.1% of pupils
eligible for free

school
meals (2022/23)

Overall deprivation is low. Ludlow East and Harlescott fall within the 10%
most deprived areas in England.

Population by Age 2021 Census

—_ . $
b
R g . b @
e | EEEE :
T o 0
iS =R P 2 28 .8 3
2 ts MEIRE] S 53 ¢ &% &
N — - 2 P — = =
- -1 £ = 2
o2 o g g3 wnEOD O = O - &
- = =8 nesflc & (= —] [ —)
£ 0 a = ww o S=
5 S oy B B °c®m S
[ L3 y (=)
= c 2 = —
| JEEE=l | e
I s—
0-14 15 65 and over 85 and over
Population Density ° o
25.3% aged 65+
Shrepshirs oillg!al.lll. compared to 18.4% in
i ""_ England

1person 4.3 people

per hectare per hectare

64,838 aged 0-19 or
20.0%, England
23.1% (2021)

Employment rate of
77.3%, West Midlands
73.6% (2022/23)

° | Smallest state primary
school - 25 pupils

Jd0 B9
31] S 3

Smallest state

s @ 609 looked after children
secondary school - ﬁ 4 . .

’L/“ 512 pupils &R &D i, Shropshire (2022/2023)
93.2% From white s3¢ Evidence of rural food

insecurity and 18.0% Fuel
poverty across the
county (2021)

PO
SO

background, 95.7%
with English as Ffirst
language (2021)



%Y Shropshire Population Structure 2021

Council

Population pyramid showing the number and proportion of residents by gender and

age in Shropshire, West Midlands and England, 2021. Source: Census 2021, ONS. o Largest pl’OpOI’tiOﬂ Of residents aged 55_59 in
: Shropshire (25,538 people, 7.6%). In the
West Midlands, the largest group were those

"
1l

Proportion of the number of usual resident population I:éi; sex and I'n-eafear age bands for Shropshire compared 1o West
Midlands and Englan

|_al
N aged 50 54 (6.7%) and in the England, those
E— aged 30 - 34 (6.8%).
o s
Q v ] .
% T e |In 2021, 20.1% (64,838) Of ShrOpShlre,s
T E—— population were aged 0-19 years old,
© — I :
- similar to the England proportion of
I N
23.1%.
I |
I
. @ Shropshire - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
Total for England - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
|
Total for Shropshire region - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
NS Shropshire - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
— Total for England - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
I Total for Shropshire region - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (%)
|
] .
S S N For more detail on

Shropshire’s
population, click here.



https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-usual-resident-population-by-sex-and-age?mod-area=E06000051

WY Shropshire

TGT obed

Council

Population change (2011 vs 2021)

Population increased by 5.7% overall (306,000 in 2011 to 323,000 in 2021), lower than the overall increase for the

West Midlands Region (6.2%) and England (6.6%).

Largest increase among the 70 to 74 and the 75 to 79 age bands at 45%.
0-19 children and young people population fell by 18%, with the largest reduction seen among 15-19 year olds.

Population growth was lower in Shropshire than across the West
Midlands

Percentage population change, Shropshire and surrounding areas, 2011 Census
to Census 2021

England A6.6% West Midlands &6.2% Shropshire 45.7%

-2 -0.5 0.5 +2 +8 +16%
| I

Source: Office for National Statistics - 2011 Census and Census 2021

)
2
=

Population % change in Shropshire by age group

fall rise

90 +

bt
ES

8510 89

N
]
=

80to 84 28%
75079

70to 74

IS
il
xR

s
=
=

65t0 69

)
ES

60 to 64

L
3

5510 59

o I
)
2
=

@
=

50to 54

45t0 49

o
&

40to 44

35t0 39

)
ES
|

30to 34

o I

B3 I
~
®

25t0 29

]
R

20to 24

[k}
Ed

15t0 19

.

For more detail on
population changes in
Shropshire, click here.

10to 14

5to9

4%

Oto4

S

Ed
du
ES


https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censuspopulationchange/E06000051/

WY Shropshire

ZST abed

Council

The population in
Shropshire will grow by
61,000 people by 2050, a
rise of 19% compared to
2021.

Largest rises will be among
those aged 65+.

0-19 year old group will
grow by 3,933 people,
rise of 6% compared to
2021. Largest rise in CYPs
among 15-19 year olds
(+1,381 people).

Population 2021: 323,600

O 00O

P

More than
61,000 extra
people

Aged 85 years and over

Aged 80 to 84 years
Aged 75 to 79 years
Mged 70 to 74 years
Aged 65 to 69 years
Aged 60 to 64 years
Aged 55 to 59 years
Aged 50 to 54 years
Aged 45 to 49 years
Aged 40 to 44 years
Aged 35 to 39 years
Aged 30 to 34 years
Aged 25 to 29 years
Aged 20 to 24 years
Aged 15 to 19 years
Aged 10 to 14 years

Aged 5 to 9 years

Aged 4 years and under

20000 15000 10000 5000 0 5000 10000 15000 20000

Q2050 Male 32050 Female

2021 Male 2021 Female

Population projections 2050

Population 2050: 385,000

Vsl

19% growth 2021-2050
26% growth 1991-2021

Population projected change by age group by 2050

Aged 85+ I 14,182
Aged 80-84 I 11,461
Aged 75-79 I 7,024
Aged 70-74 I 3308
Aged 65-69 I 6,304
Aged 60-64 I 4725
Aged 55-59 | 444
Aged 50-54 -1,325 W
Aged 45-49 I 528
Aged 40-44 Bl 2972
Aged 35-39 I 2106
Aged 30-34 677 1
Aged 25-29 005
Aged 20-24 | 215
Aged 15-19 B 1381
Aged 10-14 | 328

Aged 5-9 B o34

Age 0-4 B 1203

-16000 - 4000




¥ Shropshire

Fewer couples with dependent children

Shropshire saw the West Midlands' second-largest percentage-point
fall in the share of households including a couple with dependent
children (from 19.5% in 2011 to 16.9% in 2021).

Number of Households 2021: 139,600

extra Households

ﬁ Almost 40,000

€a

A third of
households will be
single person

Number of Households 2050: 179,300

M 28% growth 2021-2050
34% growth 1991-2021

Household Composition

18,000 more single person households
+44°% growth 2021-2050

Other housenoid types - | 15 7%

Single family household: Lone-parent 8.5%
household 8.4%
Single family household: Cohabiting- 6.6%
couple family: All children non-dependent 6.9%
Single family household: Cohabiting- 19.5%
couple family: With dependent children 16.9%
Single family household: Cohabiting- _ 20.3%
couple family: No children 19.4%
One-person household: Other 11?3'9}&%
One-person household: Aged 66 years 13.9%
and over 15.4%
0.0% 10.0% 20.0%

m 2011 Census w2021 Census

30.0%




WY Shropshire

Council

0-4 year olds
AT AL ST
CHEA

LUANGOLLEN' = |« oy WHITCHURCH

°
STONE

g
ECCLESHALL

Population estimate: Persons: ages 0-4
The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
the population ages 0-4.
°
LLANFYLLIN Shropshire's estimated population in mid-year 2020
for ages 0-4 is 4.54% within a range of 1.42% to
9.23% across 193 LSOAs.
The England-wide LSOA distribution is 0.1% to
27.53% with a mean value of 5.6%.
Key

The colours represent the quintiles:
9% to 28%: 10 areas

9 to 79: 22 areas

® 5% to 6%: 30 areas

(©) 4% to 5%: 40 areas
sTouRBRIDGE () 0% to 4%: 82 areas

Data

KINGSWINFORD

Numerator:

o o
EeGBuRY. v
BEWDLE Persons: ages 04 estimate: 14,788

wnﬂmfi«}ggg‘g’,{";ﬁ
10-14 year O'ds

3 NaNTwicH
WRERHAM h : STOKE 9
205 MABELEV UN[
Population estimate: Persons: ages 10-14

I. LANGOLLEN’

Denominator:
Total estimated population: 325,415

BROMSGRDV{

KNIGHTON :

PRESTEIGNE Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020

Yy ONS: ons.gov.uk/../populationestimates
W@inon

The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
the population ages 10-14.
. Shlopsh\re 's estimated population in mid-year 2020
( e o ages 10-14 is 5.57% within a range of 2.19% to
11.22% across 193 LSOAs.

P la The England-wide LSQA distribution is 0% to 19.32%
NEWPORT,

o
ELANFYLU \,_\/_} with a mean value of 6.06%.
Key
o The colours represent the quintiles:
S WeLSHPoOL o
ot ) 7% to 19%: 14 areas
) 6% to 7%: 35 areas
o to 6%: 50 areas
o ) 5% to 6%: 45 areas

WEOWN En ¢ _ ) 0% to 5%: 49 areas

|
sTo!
= Numerator:

KIDDERMINSTE Persons: ages 10-14 estimate: 18,113

BEWDLEY Denominator:
KNIGHTON smunv& Total estimated population: 325,415
ON-SEVERN

TENBURVWELLS i Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020
eseriaih £ <2 T L |-, ONS:onsgov.

populationestimates

5-9 year olds

. WREXHAM STOKE ON TRENT

Ewasnz
L f 'MDELEV UNDERAYME

o
f/}&@um WHITCHURCH
cum
\_\\//\ 6 NMARKET STONE
DRAYTON'
5. 2o
ECCLESHALL
A

X
b \
‘ STAFFORD.”\ Shropshire's estimated population in mid-year 2020
" A

Population estimate: Persons: ages 5-0

The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
the population ages 5-9.

\

> ‘ for ages 5-9 is 5.12% within a range of 1.41% to

o
LLANFYLLIN ﬁ 9.46% across 193 LSOAs.

NEWPORT,

e
PENKRIDGE The England-wide LSOA distribution is 0.04% to

4% ‘ = Sealfoq 16:39% with amean value of 6.18%.
TELFORDJS ‘ x \ Key

o
NFAIR B
EINION & i
[ f oo Oy “ woLyErsANETON The colours represent the quintiles:

o:
WELSHPOOL,

) 8% to 16%: 9 areas

MONTGOMERY ) oARLASTC @) 79% to 8%: 21 areas
& < CHURCH BRIDGNORTH SEDGLEY ) 6% to 7%: 34 areas
NTOWN 5 IRETTON o 3 % to 6%: 51 areas
BISHOPISCASTLE e 0% to 5%: 78 areas
0 il
¥ ot STOURBRIDGE Data
CRAVENARMS
‘KIDDERMINSTER Numerator:
Persons: ages 5-0 estimate: 16,657
msoeuuv BEWDLEY
3 lUDl,,OW MORTI L/L, Denominator:
KNIGHTON STOURFORT- S Total estimated population: 325415
ity BROMSGROVE pop
"NBUR"W“LS Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020
{0 el ONS: ons.gov.uk/.../populationestimates
d
o
_LLANGOLLEN Y ® Population estimate: Persons: ages 15-19

1 \
C ” 3 The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
_r(/\ the population ages 15-19.
» eccLinay Shropshire’s estimated population in mid-year 2020
for ages 15-19is 5.13% within a range of 1.88% to
25.84% across 193 LSOAs.

The England-wide LSOA distribution is 0.19% to

3 o
s NEWPORT,
fLLin 63.1% with a mean value of 5.39%.

Key

The colours represent the quintiles:
@) 6% to 63%: 20 areas

6% to 6%: 25 areas

. 5% to 6%: 39 areas
Momé’omznv ” ( 4% to 5%: 40 areas

. 0% to 4%: 60 areas

' Data

Numerator:

S Persons: ages 15-19 estimate: 16,708
JKIDDERMINS) . i
Denominator:

CLEOBURY: BEWDLEV Total estimated population: 325,415

MORTIMER
sTouRPoRr Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020

IN- RN . .
YENBURYWELLS A ) SEVE ONS: ons.gov.uk/.../populationestimates

Where do our CYPs live?

Areas with the largest number of
children aged 0-19 are: Bayston Hill,
Column and Sutton, Oswestry East,
Market Drayton West and Wem,
with more than 1,800 children and
young people living in each of these
wards.

When broken down further, there
are variations in the areas CYPs in
Shropshire live.

» The highest number of 0-4
year olds live in Bayston Hill,
Column and Sutton ward,
Oswestry East and Market
Drayton West




¥ Shropshire Shropshire’s school population

Council

Percentage of all pupils at Shropshire schools by MSOA

A « Based on the Shropshire school census, there
4 y . & are just under 40,000 children who attend
» i e Shropshire local authority schoaols.

» 94% of children who attend Shropshire schools
live in Shropshire, however, there are children
who live in other areas.

GGT obed

* There are 1,624 children who are aged 0-4
who attend Shropshire schools. 75% of these
are children in the N2 school year (aged 3 on

31st August but turning 4 during the year).

% of all pupils in MSOA
0.011284 - 0.014530

B 0.014531 - 0020236

I 0.020237 - 0.025789
I 0025750 - 0.023154
195 - 0.044
Contains National Statstics data ® Crown copyright and databas erights 2024 - 0.033195 - 0,044301




¥a¥ Shropshire School population - SEND
support

Percentage of pupils in each MSOA who require Special Educational Needs support

« 5,103 pupils (12.9%) of the school
population require SEN support

9GT abed

* 1,493 pupils (3.8%) have an
education, health and care plan.

% of pupils in each MSOA who require SEN support
066381 - 0.098291

0.098292 - 0. 8

0.113209 - 0.134063

I 0.13406¢ - 0.153076

Contains Nationsl Statistics data ® Crown copyright and dstabas erights 2024 - 0.153077 - 0175385




S Wider determinants of health an
risk factors

Council

Child Safety and Welkbeing s opshire More detail

can be

found in the
full report.

o13 0120 | 144%

ies i Incom e Deprivation of children
SR e, RifLno Bl underTs (g in
inthetop 5 most Index(IDACI) absolutdow incom e
deprived arexfs score2019 families

Shropshire (2019) (England, 0.178) 2021/

22
(England, 15.3%)
1 8!0 /n per 1,0000-17 Children aged 0 -4

. yearoldchildren
households in arein looked after as of 31

Shropshire iffu el householdswith March 2023 in
povertyp21 toxictrio*, Shropshire (24% of all

/GT abed

2021/21 CLA vs 18%
-f‘ > (Eng]l%rz)c(l),)9 [prEr nationally)

\,‘,/- 1 =Mostdeprived
e B
N

Sl
S O
)

8’165 2!595 adm jssionsaused by

A&E attendances unintentional and
‘ Em ergency ol UGl G
R admissiossis dellbarate Injuries
617.3 per 1,000 0L e 0o 2021/22. 87.1 per
(England, 797.3) 2021/22 ,87.1p

(England, 161.5) (Englaﬁd,103.6)

I 0 - tlexctdeprived

5% of Shropshire’s population (15,082) liveinthe 20% most deprived
areasin England (Decile 1 and 2),2019

*cooccurring parental substance misuse, m ental ill health and dom esti




pshire Child Health Profile March 2023

1 ]
S h rO p S h | re The chart below shows how children’s health and wellbeing in this area compares with the rest of England. The local result for

Council each indicator is shown as a circle, against the range of results for England shown as a grey bar. The line at the centre of the
chart shows the England average. .
g g et @ Syt e g e S More detall
# # Increasing/decreasing and getling worse ) Sipnilicantly warse than the England average - _ — ’
- s conn e coe Osgueanscomottorestes e can be
Indicator frend  peryear* value  avg  woes best .
S2 1 infant mortaiity mte = 12 47 a8 T8 & Cmjem 12 found In the
Are aS Of EE 2 Child mortality rale (1 o 17 years) = 4 ro 103 117 _ Q B
. 3MMR vacanation for one dose (2 years) = 227 G653 882 664 * [ ] L fu I | re po rt .
IEE 4 Diap/PViHib vaccination (2 years) L 2 BB o B 530 TOB _ =R
= & Children in care immunisations i G S50 BS0 300 o o 100.0
n e e d B Children achieving a good level of development at e end of Recepion = 1861 BRSO BS2 &34 L T4.4
7 BCSE attainment: average ARainment & score - - 4732 487 a8z Ol B1.3
B GCEE attainment: average Afainment & score of children in care = - Hhe X2 o142 — () 3483
I = 516 o 17 year clds not in education, employment or training (MEET) = X34 &9 47 14.7 * 14 I
Urhis provides a high level §E Ty o T e = -
QJ . = 11 Children in relafie low income families (under 16s) * Bgat 168 8B 424 * B2
ooverview Of the H ealth and 12 Housshoids with children homelsss or a risk of homelessness — 7 o7 id4 353 o 4.5
Pwellbeing of children and | £ Crrm e o w0 2w o) x|
= I d 0 19 . 14 Children killed and serously injured (K51) on England's roads - [ 118 158 &S8O 0 26
Oung peop € age - In 15 Low birth weight of term babies: - 43 18 za &0 e @ 15
ShrOpShl re. 16 Obese children (4 to § years) = 260 87 101 148 & jo 54
17 Obese children (1082 11 years) - B0 190 X4 340 — (5] 12.4
£ 18 Chidren with experience of visualy cbviows dental decay (& years) = - Xip X4 508 -j- BT
Metrics which span all §1 10 ot i o e s 010 e - w2 i 2osema O . rs
ag es are Included |n thIS E 30 Under 1l conception rate / 1,000 ™ B2 18 130 304 [ Jle] 27
. g 21 Teenage mathers - - - 0E 24 (v ]
chapter. Metrics specific to 22 vt gt e bbb Uit % 13 22 33 38 '..".;, .
an age group are included in 23 Hosgital admissions due to substance misuse (15 ko 24 years] - a7 55 @i zos4 _iac 163
H I 24 Smoking status at Sme of delivery L 308 120 a1 21 _ a1 I
thelr relevant Chapte r. 25 Babry's first feed breastmilk - 1676 4B TIT 13 [N T
26 Breastfesding prevalence at 6 to 8 weeks after birth - 58 - 483 - | -
- 2T ARE attendances {0 fo 4 years) = TaRs BS54 TELE 20806 _ 3AT 2
EE 28 Hosgital admissions caused by injuries in children [0 to 14 years) - a8 E26 843 1622 B 1 308
£% _go Hosoisal gimizzons couzed by iniiies i you llfloeyears) — a0 eea  jias 26a0 o B
I 30 Hosgital admissions for asthma (under 19 ysars) - 18 1853 1315 4380 " 4740 I
31 Hospital admissions for mental heaith conditions - [5] G40 GuA 3651 [T 7] 3.3
32 Hospital admissions as a resull of seif-harm |10-24 years) = 168 2T 4273 10817 * 127 6

“Humbers in italics are caloulated by dividing She total numiber for the fhnee year period by thres 1o give an average figure
Notes and definitions Vifhers data is not available or fipures have been suppressed, this is indicated by a dash in the appeopeiate box




Indicators of general health of the
population

WY Shropshire

Council

Life expectancy at birth

Life expectancy at birth in Shropshire is higher
among females compared to males. Both are
rising over time and are above the regional
and national average

7.0
80 m—
s 0 Life expectancy at birth (females) Life expectancy at birth (males) o 5.0
o
O..
o 2 40 b S J’/_*d
@ @ w
o
g 83.0 > —— — % 3.0
3 820 s 8 ©
s P 20
g 810 g ‘
(]
3’@ 0 5 75.0 1.0
@9 0 74.0
«Q 73.0 0.0
8.0 N £V ] ™ ) ) A ) > Q N 92
d PFIEPPI RO DXL LN RO P P PIEEL PR ON L0000 2R P Cb}\ Q'\ \»\ "1,"\ ’b:\ b(l'\ QD:\ Q;N ,\,\ Q}"} o_,’q( (1951’
R S R S - SR N AR Y 00 A9 D S F P PP PPN DA D0 DD D M N N
U'THQ\@%%%Q S S T e T e s T FFFFFFFTTTTT ST 555 S FE P F S S S F S P
=@==Shropshire ==®=\Nest Midlands ==®==England =@==Shropshire  ==®=\\est Midlands e=®==England i .
(o] =@=—Shropshire ==@=\Vest Midlands e=#==England

Infant mortality

There were 37 deaths under one year of age in
Shropshire, equating to an infant mortality rate of 4.8 per
1,000 live births. Sixth lowest regionally, similar to the
regional rate of 5.6 per 1,000 and the national rate of 3.9
per 1,000 live births. Shropshire’s rate was the highest
compared to its statistical neighbours.




This page is intentionally left blank



a¥ Shropshire

- Council

Children and
Young People
Needs Assessment

Chapter 3: Early Years (aged 0-4)

2024

Page 161



Contents

T (oo 11 o3 1o o SRR 3
(O] ][ 1)Y= PP TPPPRP PP 4
EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ...ttt ettt e e e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e annees 5
POlICY QN GUILANCE ...ttt e s e e e e e s 7
2T E S A = 1 A (0] ) = PSSR 7
Health and Social Care ACt 2012 ..o a e e e e e e e e enes 10
The core public health Offer...........euiiiiii e rrrrrrrennes 10
Healthy Child Programme ............ooiiii oottt e e e e ae e e e e e e e e e eans 10
Healthy Child Programme: Pregnancy and first 5 years of life.......c.cccccccov v, 11
(0T 01U F= a0 I o o) 1= SRR 15
Where do 0-4 year OIS lIVE?.......ooi ettt e e 16
[T N IR 1= o o £ S UUPRRRR 17
KEY STALISTICS ....veeeeiiieieee ettt b ettt e e et e e e bt e e e anb b e e e e e e e e e e nnne e e e e nnnees 19
HIGN 1€VE] SUMMIAIY ..ot e e e e e e 19
® Under 18 conceptions (teenage PregnancCy) ......cceeveeeeeeeeeeaaeeeeeereeaeaeeaaneeeeeeeeeeeaaanes 20
® Smoking status at time Of dElIVEIY ...... ... 21
L 0 VA o1 IR =T o | | 23
L 7= U B g To T =111 PR PRRPRR 24
@  Neonatal MOAIILY .........ocoiiiiiiei e e e e e e s r e e e e e e e e aans 26
@ SHIDINN FALE ..t 27
® Post-neonatal MOMAILY ........uueeieiiiiiier e e e e e e e e e e 29
L =T == 1S3 1 =TT [T Vo PRSI 30
® Overweight (including obesity) — RECEPLION .......cueiiiiiiiiiiee et 34
O  AKE AENANCES (0-4S) «iiieieiiiiiiie ettt 36
® A&E attendances (UNAEr L YEAI) ...coicueueiiiiiie et e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e enes 37
® Emergency admissions (2ged 0 10 4 YEAIS) ..ccoiicuueiiiiieee e eeeiiieiee e e e e e e reieee e e e e 38
® Emergency admiSSIONS (UNAEE 1) .....uuuuururuiuiuiuinrururunnennnnnnnrnnnenmnmnrnrnrermn———.. 40
® Admission of babies UNder 14 dayS......cccccviveeiiiiiiiiieiieee e 41
® Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries in children
(1o [=To IO (o T AT T £ TR 44
® Hospital admissions for dental caries (0-5 YEAIS) .....ceveeeeviiiiiieiiiiee e, 46
VaCCINALION COVEIAQGE ...oiiieiiiiitiiiiiet e e e e ettt e e e e e e e s e e e e e e s s e st e e e e e eaeeessentbbaeeeaeeeeenanns 48
Health ViSitiNg METIICS ... ee e e 51
Child dEVEIOPMENT ...t e e e e e ennees 55
SEIVICE PIOVISION ....eeiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e st e e e st et e e e sb e e e e e nb e e e e e enbn e e e e annneeas 65
Public Health Nursing Service PerformancCe............oocuviiiiiiiiieiiiiiee it 66
6—8-week review: breastfeeding STAtUS.............oviiiiiiiii e 71

Page 162



Uptake of the Healthy Start Voucher Scheme..............ccooe i, 73

Children aged 0-4 With SEND .........cccuiiiiiiee e e e e rareea e 75
VUlNerable ChIlAIEN ... e 75
[T gUTe ES3F= T o 7Y (oo o | PRSP 75
[0 413 (o= | o T 1= U POPPRRRRR 75
(O o] (o [ =T T ] TSR 75
(04 o110 [ (=1 0 1T 0 I8 1= S 78
Children looked after (Children in Care) ..........cceveiiiiiie i 82
Vulnerable families with 0-4 year OIS ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e 84
Children’s Social Care Contacts and referrals.............ooooiiiiiiiinieeee, 88
Case study: COMPASS Help and Support Team (CHAST) ..., 90
S T VA =T LTS 1= 1T T P EEURR 93
Where are the Early Years settings in Shropshire in relation to areas of deprivation?...94
Voluntary and Community SECOr Offer ........ueeiii i 97
Stakeholder ENQAGEMENT.........uii it e s i e e e e anreee s 98
Parents and Carers NQGAGEIMENT .........uiii it e s et e st e e e e s assberaeesbreeeeaan 115
ACCESS 0 INFOMMALION ...oieeeii e e e e e e e e e e s enr e e eeaeeeeeanes 115
YN gl (] gt = I =To 11 o= U1 To] o PP 116
Health VISItING DENETILS........oeiii e 117
As a parent/carer of child (ren) aged 0-5, what are the most important considerations to
you, to help you look after your child’s health and wellbeing? .............cccocciieiiiiinnne. 117
RECOMMENUALIONS ....utieeiieeees ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e et b e e e e e e e e e s aannbneneeeeaaeeeaanns 119
Introduction

The JSNA will provide a detailed understanding of the needs of children, young people and
families in Shropshire to inform the direction and development of local services, with a view
to reducing health inequalities through identification, prevention and early intervention.

Due to the vast scope of this product, Shropshire’s Children and Young people JSNA will be
structured as a ‘JSNA pack’, comprising of individual chapters for each stage of the life
course:

Core JSNA chapters

1. Population and context for Children and Young People
2. Maternity (pregnancy & birth)

3. Early Years (0-4 years)

4. School aged children (5-11 and 11-16 years)

5. Young people (16-19 years)

This chapter presents an overview of the health and wellbeing of babies, infants and children

aged 0-4 across Shropshire. Other chapters are referenced throughout to refer to for certain
insights and further information.

Page 163



The period between conception and the age of 5 is recognized as having a significant
influence on a person’s life. The environment a baby experiences whilst in the womb and the
first 2 years of life are particularly critical for cognitive, emotional and physical development,
likewise, the health and mental health of parents at this time is also critical to family health
and wellbeing.

Objectives

Given the broad range of needs and services for children under 5 years, this report is not an
in depth review of any one specific service, but instead aims to provide an overview.

The objectives of this chapter of the Children and Young People’s needs assessment
therefore are to include the following:
e To describe the population profile of children under 5 and their families in Shropshire-
please also see the Population and Context chapter
e To identify risk factors that impact on maternal, infant and child health outcomes -
please also see the Population and Context chapter
e To provide an overview of the wider determinants of health and their impact on the
under 5s and their families- please also see the Population and Context chapter
¢ To identify relevant national guidance and local policy in relation to early years
e To provide an overview of the health and wellbeing of under 5s
e To provide an overview of current service provision and assessment of outcomes
including gaps in relation to domains impacting on early childhood outcomes;
physical, psychosocial and emotional, cognitive and language development
e To identify vulnerable children, and/or at risk groups
¢ To identify gaps, barriers, and unmet needs in current service provision
e To provide evidence-based recommendations to ensure that the needs of 0-5 year
olds are met in Shropshire

Page 164



Executive summary

Eal'ly YeaI'S 0'45 Shropshire

>

WLLEN' N

o
~WELSHPOOL,

G9T abed

4=
_/ MONTGOMERY
<

BISHOP!S CASTLE

/c?iuncu />

STRETTON

INEW
DRAYTON

NEWPORT

; X
° o
TELFOR g
{
& =
\Mucnw{u?\c  SROSELEY

SR SBURV

/5

CRAVEN :\’m;ls

KNIGHTON j

Where do 0-4s live?

The colours represent the quintiles:
@ 7% to 28%: 10 areas
®) 6% to 79%: 22 areas
® 5% to 6%: 39 areas
49 to 59%: 40 areas
) 0% to 4%: 82 areas

'KIDDERMINSTEI

BEWDLEY
MORTIMER,
STOURPORT

ON- SEVERN

L ,éeoBury
¥

TENBURV WELLS

= T

14,423

aged 0-4
in 2021, an 8% Fall

from 2011 (England
7% fall)

4.9%

aged 0-4

of Shropshire’s
population
(England 5.4%)

@ 2,567live birthsin
@ Shropshire (2022)
g

37 infant deaths
during 2020-22, rate
of 4.8 per 1,000 births

birth weightin 2021,

.@ 43 babies had low
1.8% of all births

(>
(=

3.6%

0-4s from
ethnic minority
groups in 2011,

567 children

91%49%

Male Female

2,033 new birth visits
by 14 days, 80.8% vs
England 79.9%

i

Q9
aa

00 (2022/23)
49.0% infants
L ® breastfed

d (provisional) at 6-8
weeks during Q4
2023/24 vs 52.0%
England

105 hospital @

admissions for
unintentional and
deliberate injuries (0
to 4 years), 74 per 1k
compared to 92 in
England (2022/23)

2y

Overall deprivation is low in Shropshire .5130r 3.6% of
babies, infants and children aged &4 live in the top 5 most
deprived areas (LSOAs) of Shropshire: Harlescott, Ludlow
East, central Oswestry, Monkmoor and Meole Brace.

290
v

0-4s with SEN
support in 2022/23
(5.7% of all children <19

with SEN support in
Shropshire)

2,690 per 1,000 emergency
admissions (0-4 years) 189
per 1kcompared to 158 in
England (2022/23)

68% achieving good level
of development at the end
of receptionin Shropshire,
67% England (2022/23)

22.1% reception aged
children (4-5-year-olds)
overweight or obese
England 21.3%

89.8% MMR vaccine
coverage two doses in
2022/23, target =>95%



Doing well

1. Low birth weight of term babies is falling over time

2. The level of School readiness: percentage of children achieving at least the
expected level in communication and language skills at the end of Reception
is steady and above to the national average

3. Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries in children
(aged 0 to 4 years) is below the national average and falling over time

4. Uptake of Healthy Start Voucher Scheme is rising in Shropshire, with the gap
closing between those eligible and those taking up the offer

5. Local data (not yet validated) indicates an improvement in 4 out of 5 health

visiting mandated contacts, with a rising trend compared to the previous year.

Largest improvement seen in % of children receiving their visit at 2- 2 % years

Qualitative information tells us that stakeholders feel our multi-agency working

and digital offer are particular strengths in Shropshire

No

Areas of need (below the national average)

1. Smoking status at time of delivery is above the national average but the rate is
falling over time.

2. Infant mortality — whilst similar to the national average, the rate in Shropshire has
been rising since 2014-16. The same trend is seen for neonatal mortality with a
steeper rise in infant mortality compared to neonatal.

3. Emergency admissions (0-4s) and under 1s, admissions for asthma (0-9s)

4. Population Vaccination coverage: MMR two doses (5 years old) is below the
national target of 95% but has remained steady over time

5. Breastfeeding prevalence — is below the national average but steadily improving

over time

Uptake of healthy start vouchers

Proportion of children receiving a 12 month review by 12 months : below the

national average and requires improvement at 47% compared to 83% nationally.

However, this rate has been improving over time. The reason for this low rate is due

to reviews taking place before 15 months, with a rate of 86%. This is due to mainly

due to the timing that the invites are generated and parental choice. The service
have made changes to the system to generate earlier appointments to ensure that
these are more frequently prior to the child’s first birthday.

8. Child development: % of children achieving a good level of development at 2 to
2Y years is below the national average but is improving

9. Child development: % of children achieving the expected level in communication
skills, gross motor skills, fine motor skills, problem solving skills and personal social
skills at 2 to 2% years

10. Stakeholders report transport/access and face to face provision is a barrier for
health visiting

11. Rise in looked after children over time in Shropshire, with 0-4 year olds making up
24% of all children looked after in the county. Shropshire had a higher proportion of
looked after children in the 1-4 year old compared to nationally.

~No

Data caveat: the data period covered in this report coincides with the COVID-19 pandemic
and national lockdowns (March 2020 onwards), therefore data may not be a true
representation of the service’s performance due to the substantial impact on service
delivery. For mandated service delivery, virtual contacts were counted as valid for all data for
2020 to 2021 during the period of the pandemic response.

Page 166



Policy and Guidance

Best Start for Life

The Best Start for life policy is a vision for brilliance in the 1,001 critical days from conception
to age 2. Commissioned by the Prime Minister, and chaired by Rt Hon Andrea Leadsom MP,
this vision was developed with input from families, professionals and academics.

The vision

The 1,001 critical days from conception to the age of two set the foundations for an
individual’s cognitive, emotional and physical development. Investing in this critical period
presents a real opportunity to improve outcomes and tackle health disparities by ensuring
that thousands of babies and families have improved access to quality support and services.

Developed as part of the early years healthy development review, this policy outlines 6 areas
for action to improve the health outcomes of all babies in England.*:

Action Areas

Ensuring families have access to the services they need

1. Seamless support for families: a coherent joined up Start for Life offer
available to all families.

2. A welcoming hub for families: Family Hubs as a place for families to access
Start for Life services.

3. The information families need when they need it: designing digital, virtual
and telephone offers around the needs of the family.

Ensuring the Start for Life system is working together to give families the
support they need

4. An empowered Start for Life workforce: developing a modern skilled
workforce to meet the changing needs of families.

5. Continually improving the Start for Life offer: improving data, evaluation,
outcomes and proportionate inspection.

6. Leadership for change: ensuring local and national accountability and building
the economic case.

The policy highlighted the international, evidence-based agreement on the importance of the
1,001 critical days. During this time, our brains lay the foundations for the emotional health,
physical wellbeing and social skills needed to live a healthy, happy life.

Figure 1: Human Brain Development from the Center on the Developing Child at Harvard
University, available at https://developingchild.harvard.edu/

1 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/phe-strategy-2020-t0-2025

Page 167


https://developingchild.harvard.edu/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/phe-strategy-2020-to-2025

Language Higher Cognitive Function

Sensory Pathways
(Vision, Hearing)

FIRST YEAR
I |

-8-7-6-5-4-3-3-1 12345678910 111234567891011121314151617 1819

Birth (Months) (Years)

Research shows that supporting babies’ development can lead to lifelong benefits,
including increased economic chances, longer life expectancy and reduction in crime.

Providing high quality services and support for babies is not only good for their lifelong
potential, it can also reduce demand for public services by responding to risks early.
Conversely, not dealing with issues at the earliest opportunity leaves individuals requiring
more support later in life. This can be expensive. To give just one example, the Early
Intervention Foundation estimated the cost of late intervention to be £17 billion a year in
England and Wales.

To help minimise these costs and bring lifelong benefits to babies, Start for Life support must
be focused on the right things and be well delivered. There are many services that all
families rely on during the 1,001 critical days. These include midwifery, health visiting, infant-
feeding support and perinatal mental health and parent-infant relationship support. Some
families also require additional help across a range of areas such as smoking cessation,
drugs and alcohol support, domestic violence reduction and debt and housing advice.
Evidence points to several important areas that particularly impact a baby’s health and
development and where improvements in services are needed. This includes, but is not
limited to, services that support breastfeeding, parent-infant relationships and perinatal
mental health 2.

The services that families currently receive.

There are many different services available to support families throughout pregnancy, as
their baby is born and in the months that follow. Currently, a small number of services are
offered to every new parent or carer — these include midwifery and health visiting services,
which sit alongside those services available to everyone, like General Practitioners (GPs)
and NHS 111.

Many local partners offer a broader range of services to all their families, but a significant
number only offer additional services on a ‘targeted’ basis in response to need. These
additional services include breastfeeding support, mental health support, smoking cessation
and intensive parenting support. Local authorities, working with partner organisations and
agencies, have a statutory duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of all children,

2 Best Start for Life: A Vision for the 1,001 critical days’
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/phe-strategy-2020-t0-2025

Page 168


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/phe-strategy-2020-to-2025

including babies, in their area. All of these services are vital for ensuring every baby gets the

best start.

The 6 Universal Start for Life services

Midwifery
Midwives provide
personalised support

to families throughout
pregnancy and labour.

%)

Infant Feeding

Infant feeding services
support parents with feeding
their babies, breastfeeding
support and advice

on nutrition.

Aims

O

Health Visiting

Health visitors work

with other Start for Life
professionals after childbirth
in supporting families.

They are responsible for
the 5 mandated child
development reviews.

O

S,

Special Educational
Needs and Disability

Special educational needs
and disability services
support disabled or
seriously ill babies and
their families.

QO

Parent-Infant
Mental Health

These services ensure

that parents, carers and
babies are forming a secure
bond and, where needed,
provide mental health and
relationship support.

OO

[

Safeguarding

Safeguarding services seek
to protect babies from
abuse and maltreatment.

The ambition of Best Start for Life is to help reduce inequalities and improve health
outcomes for children and families across England to ensure all mothers experience good
health before, during and after pregnancy and all children to have a happy healthy

childhoods.

e reduced rates of infant mortality and low birthweight

e improvements in rates of key protective factors linked to better child health outcomes,
such as maternal mental health and breastfeeding

e higher rates of childhood immunisation

e more children ready to learn by the age of two and ready to start school by the age of

five

e |lower rates of tooth decay and hospital attendances due to preventable accidents

and illnesses

3 Public Health England's 5-year strategy

Page 169


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/phe-strategy-2020-to-2025

Health and Social Care Act 2012

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 sets out local authorities’ statutory responsibility for
commissioning public health services for children and young people aged 0 to 19 years.

Public health services commissioned by local authorities form part of the ‘whole system’
of support for children and young peoples’ health and wellbeing. Local authorities are
well placed to ensure integrated commissioning and delivery with a wide range of
stakeholders who provide support for physical and mental health and wellbeing,
including the NHS and the voluntary and community sector, schools and colleges®.

The core public health offer

All families with babies are to be offered 5 mandated health visitor reviews before their child
reaches 2 and a half years old. The early years reviews are offered to all families. However,
this is not the extent of the health visiting service offer for families who may also require
additional support from the health visiting team, for example feeding, child development,
physical or mental health support.

The only mandated elements of provision for 5-19 services is the national child
measurement programme at reception and year 6. However, there are opportunities to
develop a framework of reviews based on evidence, intelligence, professional judgement
and service user voice which provides opportunities to review health and wellbeing needs,
support behaviour change and influence outcomes. This presents opportunities for bringing
together a robust approach for improving outcomes for children and young people across
both health and local authority led services for children and young people aged 0O to 19.

The core public health offer for all children includes:®.

¢ child health surveillance (including infant physical examination) and development
reviews
child health protection and screening
information, advice and support for children, young people and families or carers
early intervention and targeted support for families with additional needs
health promotion and prevention by the multi-disciplinary team
defined support in early years and education settings for children with additional and
complex health needs
additional or targeted public health nursing support, for example, support for children
in care, young carers, or children of military families

Healthy Child Programme

Good health, wellbeing and resilience are vital for all our children now and for the future of
society. There is good evidence about what is important to achieve this through improving
children and young people’s public health. This is brought together in the national healthy
child programme 0 to 19.

The 0 to 5 element of the healthy child programme is led by health visiting services and the 5
to 19 element is led by school nursing services. Together they provide place-based services
and work in partnership with education and other providers where needed. The universal
reach of the healthy child programme provides an invaluable opportunity from early in a

4 Health and Social Care Act 2012
5 Best Start in life and beyond: healthy child programme 0 to 19

Page 170 0


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/healthy-child-programme
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/healthy-child-programme
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/969168/Commissioning_guide_1.pdf

child’s life to identify families that may need additional support and children who are at risk of
poor outcomes.
The healthy child programme provides a framework to support collaborative work and more
integrated delivery. It aims to:
¢ help parents, carers or guardians develop and sustain a strong bond with children
e support parents, carers or guardians in keeping children healthy and safe and
reaching their full potential
protect children from serious disease, through screening and immunisation
reduce childhood obesity by promoting healthy eating and physical activity
promote oral health
support resilience and positive maternal and family mental health
support the development of healthy relationships and good sexual and reproductive
health
¢ identify health and wellbeing issues early, so support and early interventions can be
provided in a timely manner
¢ make sure children are prepared for and supported in all childcare, early years and
education settings and are especially supported to be ‘ready to learn at 2 and ready
for school by 5

Being ready for school is assessed as every child reaching a level of development which
enables them to:
e communicate their needs and have good vocabulary
become independent in eating, getting dressed and going to the toilet
take turns, sit still and listen and play
socialise with peers, form friendships and separate from parents
have good physical health, including dental health
be well nourished and within the healthy weight for height range
have protection against vaccine-preventable infectious diseases, having received all
childhood immunisations

It also involves:
e continued support through school age years to help every child to thrive and gain
maximum benefit from education, driving high educational achievement
e identifying and helping children, young people and families with problems that might
affect their chances later in life, including building resilience to cope with the
pressures of life

The Healthy Child Programme aims to bring together health, education and other key
partners to deliver an effective programme for prevention and support. Whilst recognising
the contribution of other partners, there will be some elements which require clinical
expertise and knowledge that can only be provided through services led and provided by the
public health nursing workforce, for example, health visiting and school nursing teams ©.

Shropshire Council recognises that giving every child the Best Start in Life is imperative to
reducing inequalities across the life course.

Healthy Child Programme: Pregnancy and first 5 years of life

Pregnancy and the first years of life are one of the most important stages in the life cycle.
This is when the foundations of future health and wellbeing are laid down, and is a time

6 Best Start in life and beyond: healthy child programme 0 to 19

Page 171 H


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/healthy-child-programme-0-to-19-health-visitor-and-school-nurse-commissioning

when parents are particularly receptive to learning and making changes. There is good
evidence that the outcomes for both children and adults are strongly influenced by the
factors that operate during pregnancy and the first years of life. We have always known this,
but new information about neurological development and the impact of stress in pregnancy,
and further recognition of the importance of attachment, all make early intervention and
prevention an imperative (Centre on the Developing Child, 2007). This is particularly true for
children who are born into disadvantaged circumstances’.

The Healthy Child Programme offers every family a programme of screening tests,
immunisations, developmental reviews, information and guidance to support parenting and
healthy choices — all services that children and families need to receive if they are to achieve
their optimum health and wellbeing.

The Healthy Child Programme is universal in reach. It sets out a range of public health
support in local places to build healthy communities and to reduce inequalities. It also
includes a schedule of interventions, which range from services for all through extra help to
intensive support. The Healthy Child Programme is also personalised in response. All
services and interventions need to be personalised to respond to families’ needs across
time. For most families most of this will be met by the universal offer.

The service model is based on 4 levels of service — community, universal, targeted and
specialist, depending on individual and family need. The use of community-based assets is
central to the universal offer, where health visitors and school nurses are well placed to
identify and signpost to local community support. Contact points or universal health and
wellbeing reviews can be utilised to identify needs and to develop a support offer or signpost
to specialist services if required.

Effective implementation of the HCP should lead to:

e strong parent—child attachment and positive parenting, resulting in better social and
emotional wellbeing among children;

care that helps to keep children healthy and safe;

healthy eating and increased activity, leading to a reduction in obesity;

prevention of some serious and communicable diseases;

increased rates of initiation and continuation of breastfeeding;

readiness for school and improved learning;

early recognition of growth disorders and risk factors for obesity;

early detection of — and action to address — developmental delay, abnormalities and
ill health, and concerns about safety;

identification of factors that could influence health and wellbeing in families; and

e better short- and long-term outcomes for children who are at risk of social exclusion.

The full schedule of the HCP can be found here.

High impact areas

The high impact areas have been developed to improve outcomes for children, young
people and families. They are based on evidence of where these services can have
significant impact for all children, young people and families and especially those needing
more support and impact of health inequalities®.

Early years (health visiting and school nursing) high impact areas are:

8 Best Start in life and beyond: healthy child programme 0 to 19

Page 172 -


file:///C:/Users/SCTMP2281/Downloads/Health_Child_Programme%20(1).pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/healthy-child-programme-0-to-19-health-visitor-and-school-nurse-commissioning

supporting transition to parenthood and the early weeks

supporting maternal and infant mental health

supporting breastfeeding (initiation and duration)

supporting healthy weight and healthy nutrition

improving health literacy; reducing accidents and minor illnesses

supporting health, wellbeing and development. Ready to learn, narrowing the ‘word
gap

High Impact Areas for early years

Preconceptuat
care & continuny
High Impact Area 1 of carer High Impact Area 4

Supporing Eanston 1o parenihood Supporting Peslitny weight & nulnos

Reducing
vuineraniiity
& inequalites

High Impact Area 2

SuUppOnng maternal & Bamily mental heatn
Improving
resilience &
promaoting
nhealth literacy

High Impact Area 3

Ready to learn
a1 2yr, ready
tor schooi at 6

Supporting treaslfeedng

A bundle of indicators is available to measure performance and outcomes, for example
through the Community Services Data Set (CSDS). Public Health Profiles are also available
from the Child and Maternal Fingertips.

Health visitors

Health visitors, as public health nurses, use strength-based approaches, building non-
dependent relationships to enable efficient and effective working with parents and families to
support behaviour change, promote health protection and to keep children safe.

Health visitors also undertake a holistic assessment in partnership with the family, which
builds on their strengths as well as identifying any difficulties. It includes the parents’
capacity to meet their infant’s needs, the impact and influence of wider family, community
and environmental circumstances.

This period is an important opportunity for health promotion, prevention and early

intervention approaches to be delivered. Working with parents and families, health visitors
identify the most appropriate level of support and intervention for their individual needs.

Family Nurse Partnership

Page 173 e



The Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) is an intensive, home visiting programme for vulnerable
young women and their families that provides an evidence based and targeted service for
vulnerable families. Commissioning and providing FNP will improve the life chances of first-
time young parents and their children, helping to break the cycle of disadvantage by:

Local authorities commission the Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) programme, an evidence
based, intensive parenting support intervention, as part of delivering the 0 to 5 public health
offers for children as detailed in the Healthy Child Programme?®.
e supporting young mothers to build self-efficacy and engage with education, training
and employment
¢ improving child health and development and early education outcomes particularly
for boys, children of very young mothers and mothers who are not in education,
training or employment
e delivering the Healthy Child Programme to first time young mothers
e helping young parents’ access and engage with local services

¢ identifying safeguarding issues and working alongside statutory services to support
interventions

FNP contributes to the Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF) for England which
focuses on:

e increased healthy life expectancy
e reduced differences in life expectancy
¢ healthy life expectancy between communities

Specifically, FNP contributes to achieving the 6 early years high impact areas set out in the
Healthy Child Programme (HCP) 0O to 19:
e supporting transition to parenthood and the early weeks
supporting maternal and infant mental health
supporting breastfeeding (initiation and duration)
supporting healthy weight and healthy nutrition
improving health literacy; reducing accidents and minor illnesses
supporting health, wellbeing and development — ready to learn, narrowing the ‘word
gap’

9 Best start in life and beyond- Family Nursing Partnership

Page 174 H


chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1011409/Commissioning_guidance_for_FNP.pdf

Population profile

In Shropshire, there are 14,422 infants, babies and children aged 0-4 year olds, 7,403 (51%)
of which are male and 7,020 (49%) are female0. This equates to 4.5 % of Shropshire’s total

population?t.

Between 2011 and 2021, there was an 8% reduction in the number of infants, babies and

children aged 0-4 in Shropshire!!.

Chart showing number of usual resident population by sex and five-year age bands in

Shropshire. Source: LG Inform

Number of usual resident population by sex and five-year age bands for Shropshire

90 and over

85-

80-

75:-

70-

65 -

60 -

55

50-

45 -

40 -

35-

30-

25+

20-

89

84

79

74

69

64

59

54

49

39

34

29

24

15k

12.5k

Powered by LG Inform

10k 7.5k

%
=
N
0
x~
o

2.5k 5k 7.5k 10k

Count

Shropshire - Male residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (count)

@ Shropshire - Female residents broken down by age band (5 year bands) (count)

10 Nomis - Official Census and Labour Market Statistics (nomisweb.co.uk)

Page 175

12.5k

90 and over

85-

80 -

755

70-

65 -

60 -

55:-

50 -

45 -

40 -

35-

30-

25~

20-

10-

89

84

79

74

69

64

59

54

49

44

39

34

29

24

=19

14

15


https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-usual-resident-population-by-sex-and-age?mod-area=E06000051
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/

For more information on population change, see this report.

To view more population data and wider determinants of health for children and young
people in Shropshire, please view the Population and Context Chapter of this JISNA pack.

Where do 0-4 year olds live?

The highest number of 0-4 year olds live in Bayston Hill, Column and Sutton ward, Oswestry
East and Market Drayton West.

Map showing population aged 0-4 years old (%) by Ward, Shropshire (ONS mid 2020),
Source: SHAPE tool

% & | STOKE-ON-TRENT
f = %

INEWCASTLE-

© Population estimate: Persons: ages 0-4

o) %
PENKRIDGE The analysis focuses on the estimated percentage of
2 the population ages 0-4.

"~ Shropshire's estimated population in mid-year 2020
for ages 0-4 is 4.54% within a range of 1.42% to
9.23% across 193 LSOAs.

The England-wide LSOA distribution is 0.1% to
o~ 27.53% with a mean value of 5.6%.
Y\ DARLAST

o Key
{SEDGLEY_ =~

The colours represent the quintiles:
(@) 7% to 28%: 10 areas
% to 7%: 22 areas
%% to 6%: 30 areas
4% to 5%: 40 areas

/ (::‘ 0% to 4%: 82 areas

Data

o - R 3 & 41 ~ Numerator:

KNIGHTON ’ a o sysdgeom'. ¥ eR ;SoéROVE Persons: ages 0-4 estimate: 14,788
- ON-SEVERN T ' 'y Denominator:

: Total estimated population: 325,415

PRESTEIGNE . 0 { - l-'JROI"I’WoI:C‘H SPA Small Area Population Estimates for mid-year 2020

o \ preg . >34/ b e ONS: ons.gov.uk/.../populationestimates
IRINNON 3 g = -( AN < A

Page 176 10


https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-usual-resident-population-by-sex-and-age?mod-area=E06000051
https://app.shapeatlas.net/place/E54000011#12/52.7197/-2.7411/l-rdi/b-E06000051/sc-pc/it-all/m-LA,ml-LA/rh-0,rdr-t

Future trends

Shropshire in 2050

The below population pyramid shows what Shropshire’s population is projected to look like in
2050. Notably, Shropshire is an ageing population and we expect to see a higher number of
residents aged 65+.

There is a projected rise in 0-4s of 1.9% equating +1,293 babies by 2050. Whilst this is an
increase in the number of children, the proportion of the population aged 0-4 will remain
steady.

Chart showing population projections Shropshire between 2021 and 2050. Projections are SNPP to
2043, then rolled on to 2050 using PopGroup

Aged 85 years and over
Aged 80 to 84 years
Aged 75 to 79 years
Aged 70 to 74 years
Aged 65 to 69 years
Aged 60 to b4 years
Aged 55 to 59 years
Aged 50 to 54 years
Aged 45 to 49 years
Aged 40 to 44 years
Aged 35 to 39 years
Aged 30 to 34 years
Aged 25 to 29 years
Aged 20 to 24 years
Aged 15 to 19 years
Aged 10 to 14 years

Aged 5 to 9 years

Aged 4 years and under

20000 15000 10000 5000 0 5000 10000 15000 20000

D2050 Male 12050 Female m 2021 Male 2021 Female

Charts showing population projections for 0—4-year-olds in Shropshire, 2018-2050. Projections are
SNPP to 2043, then rolled on to 2050 using PopGroup.

Page 177 o



Population projection: 0-4 year olds, Shropshire. Source: Shropshire
2050 project

mmmm Count  ==O==Proportion of total population

4.7% 5.0%

0, 4 4 4
16,000

——O— 4.0%

15,500 3.5%
3.0%

15,000 2.5%
2.0%

14,000 1.0%
0.5%

13,500 0.0%

2018 2023 2033 2043 2050

16,500

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) population projections predict that the 0 to 4

years population in Shropshire would increase by 1.9% (281) between 2023 and 2033
and by 9.8% between 2023 and 2043 (1,423).

Nationally, the population in this age group is predicted to rise between 2023 and 2033
by 0.1%. Shropshire can therefore expect a greater demand for early years services in
the future.

Chart showing ONS population projections for 0-4 year olds in Shropshire, 2023-2043.

Number

Population projection: 0-4 year olds, Shropshire

mmm Male === Female  =O==Proportion of total population

8,500 5.0%
)
8,000 M 4.0%
7,783
7,500 3.0%
7,225
7,000 2.0%
6,500 1.0%
6,000 0.0%
2033 2043

Proportion

Page 178

18



Key statistics

High level summary

The data below presents a range of performance and outcome monitoring measures relating
to babies and children aged 0-4 years old and are in line with assessing outcomes and the
success of the Healthy Child Programme?!:

OBetter 95% OSimilar ®Worse 95%  ONot applicable

— Could not be = No significant
calculated change

4 Increasing &
getting worse

Recent trends

Indicator

Under 18s conception rate / 1,000
Smoking status at time of delivery
Low birth weight of term babies

Infant mortality rate (L]

Breastfeeding prevalence at 6 to 8 weeks - current method
Reception prevalence of overweight (including obesity) (4-5 yrs)
A&E attendances (0 to 4 years)

Emergency admissions (0 to 4 years)

Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries in children (aged 0 to

4 years)

Children with one or more decayed, missing or filled teeth

Population vaccination coverage: MMR for two doses (5 years old)
B 90% to 95%

Proportion of New Birth Visits (NBVs) completed within 14 days

Proportion of infants receiving a 6 to 8 week review

Proportion of children receiving a 12-month review

Proportion of children who received a 2 to 2V year review

Proportion of children aged 2 to 2%zyrs receiving ASQ-3 as part of the Healthy Child

Programme or integrated review

Child development: percentage of children achieving a good level of development at 2 to

2 and a half years

Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in

communication skills at 2 to 2 and a half years

Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in gross motor

skills at 2 to 2% years

Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in fine motor

skills at 2 to 2%; years

Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in problem

solving skills at 2 to 2%z years

Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in personal

social skills at 2 to 2 and a half years

School readiness: percentage of children achieving a good level of development at the

end of Reception

School readiness: percentage of children achieving at least the expected level in

communication and language skills at the end of Reception

School readiness: percentage of children achieving at least the expected level of

development in communication, language and literacy skills at the end of Reception

11 OHID Fingertips: Early Years

getting better

Period

2021
2022/23
2021
2020 -
22
2022/23
2022123
2022/23
2021/22

2021/22
2016/17

2022/23

2022/23
2022/23
2022/23
2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

2022/23

Shropshire

getting better

4 Increasing & § Decreasing & § Decreasing &
getting worse

Region England

Recent Count Value Value Value

Trend
B
e

- @& &« = J lee §

b3

&

65
283
43

37

917
565
8,765
2,595

125

2,763

2033
2186
2,085
1,519

1,389

900
1,058
1,188
1234
1,207
1,168
1,973

2432

2,031

125
11.4%
1.8%
48
22.1%
617.3
180.8

872
18.8%

89.8%

80.8%
73.3%
75.9%
52.9%
91.4%

64.8%

76.2%

85.5%

88.8%

86.9%

84.1%

67.6%

83.3%

69.6%

Page 179

152
9.1%
3.0%

56

222%
837.7
1717

100.0
25.7%
83.7%

80.7%
79.2%
85.8%
77.0%

94.4%

76.3%

83.0%

92.0%

91.9%

90.3%

89.0%

66.0%

78.1%

67.4%

131
8.8%
2.8%

39
49.2%*
21.3%
7973
161.5

103.6
23.3%
84.5%

79.9%*
79.6%*
826%™
73.6%*

92.5%*

79.2%"

85.3%"

92.8%*

926%™

91.8%*

90.3%*

67.2%

79.7%

68.8%

Worst

25th Pe

Worst

315
19.4%
5.0%
76
296%
1,928.9
3283

2044
471%
56.3%

13.3%
4.9%
22.9%
5.3%

43.7%

41%

12.0%

13.3%

13.8%

11.3%

13.7%

58.5%

69.7%

59.4%

Benchmark Value

ercentile Best

England

Best
(o] 27
Bl @
T RF

Insufficient number of values for a spine chart

[ [ @) 4147
o 630
| @) 12.9%
K J 94.4%
@ | 99.0%
o 98.5%
o 99.0%
o [ 98.0%
(@ | 100%
ol 94.4%
e 95.9%
@ 98.8%
e 99.1%
@ 98.3%
L 97.2%

[ o |
mmo -
o) g

19


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223

©Better 95% O Similar @Worse 95%  @Lower 95% ©Similar OHigher 95%  OMNot applicable

Recent trends; — Couldnotbe = Mo significant 4 Increasing & 4 Increasing &  § Decreasing &  § Decreasing & Increasing  § Decreasing
calculated change getting worse getting better getting worse getting better
B ik Wl
I \-:'.I' oW ST Sth Percentile 75th Percentile Best/Highest
Shropshire Regions England England
i . (statistical)
Indicator Period Recent Count Value Value Value Worst/ Range Best/
Trend Lowest Highest
AE attendances (under 1 year) (ZTES) 02223 - 2135 7981 11968 1,323 26133 [ [e] 505.9
Emergency admissions {under 1 year) (ZZIEED 202223 = 1205 4505 4113 3754 8311 o] 1318
Emergency admissions (0 to 4 years) (X0 202223 - 2690 1894 1727 1580 3401 e 574
Neonatal mortality rate 2020-2 - 2 36 45 29 58 e | | 09
Post-neonatal mortality rate ([TEEEE) 020-22 - 9 12 12 11 28 (@ | 0.0
Hospital admissions for dental caries (0 to 5 years) (ZEEES) - 120 2284 %0 1788 00 o 9009
Admissions for asthma (0 to § years) ([EIEED 2022123 - 80 2619 1957 1547 4831 [ ] - 524
Admissions for diabetes (0 to 9 years) 202223 - 10 327 369 325 948 | @] 0.0
Admissions for epilepsy (0 to 9 years) 202223 - 15 491 1057 929 2729 BEo 0.0
Homelessness - households with dependent children owed a duty under the
Homalosanace Reduetion At 02223 - m o ne 159 161 358 o) 75
Population vaccination coverage: Hepatitis B (1 year old) 2022i23 - 4 100% * : -
Population vaccination coverage: Dtap IPV Hib HepB (1 year old) ) ’
90% 10 95%  295% 2022i23 - 2620 957% 915% 91.8% 67.8% 'D 97.6%
Population vaccination coverage: Hepatitis B (2 years old) 2022123 - - * * * -
Population vaccination coverage: Dtap IPV Hib HepB (2 years old) o - . - o
A0% to 05% | 2655 202223 e 2,673 96.5% 929% 92.6% T70.8% .O 98.5%
Population vaccination coverage: Hib and MenC booster (2 years old) . . . o .
ST 202223 - 2516 944%  88.2% 8B.T% 63.4% [ [e] 97.2%
Population vaccination coverage: PCV booster ’ ) . ’
o oo i o | 202223 = 2617 945%  883% 88.5% 67.7% || [e] 97.0%
Population vaccination coverage: MMR for one dose (5 years old) ’ ) . ’
SR 202223 = 2941 956%  926% 925% 812% e 97.4%
Paopulation vaccination coverage: MMR for two doses (5 years old) . . ., . .
R 02223 - 2763 898%  837% B845% 56.3% |le 94.4%
Low birth weight of all babies 2021 - 140 53% 79% 6.8% 11.0% Bl o 3.6%
Very low birth weight of all babies 2021 = 20 08% 14%  1.0%  20% [ [ o] 0.2%
Children aged 5 and under killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents 2020-22 _ > 13 6.9 75 299 ‘) 0.0
Papulation vaccination coverage: MMR for one dose (2 years old
% T 295,; @y i 02223 - 2622 947%  BB9% B893% 681% BEo 97.3%
Mewborn Blood Spot Screening: Coverage 201718 - - - 98.1%" 96.7%" - Insufficient number of values for 3 spine chart -
Mewborn Hearing Screening: Coverage 2022i23 - 2242 98.4% 98.7% 98.5%* &7.9% q 99.8%

How these measures relate to the six high impact areas can be found here.

® Under 18 conceptions (teenage pregnancy)

Most teenage pregnancies are unplanned and around half end in an abortion. As well as it
being an avoidable experience for the young woman, abortions represent an avoidable cost
to the NHS*2. And while for some young women having a child when young can represent a
positive turning point in their lives, for many more teenagers bringing up a child is extremely
difficult and often results in poor outcomes for both the teenage parent and the child, in
terms of the baby’s health, the mother's emotional health and well-being and the likelihood of
both the parent and child living in long-term poverty?2.

12 Pyblic health profiles - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 180 20


chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/967176/SP_Commissioning_Guide_3.pdf
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/conception#page/6/gid/1/pat/15/ati/502/are/E06000051/iid/20401/age/173/sex/2/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1

Research evidence, particularly from longitudinal studies, shows that teenage pregnancy is
associated with poorer outcomes for both young parents and their children??. Teenage
mothers are less likely to finish their education, are more likely to bring up their child alone
and in poverty and have a higher risk of poor mental health than older mothers. Infant
mortality rates for babies born to teenage mothers are around 60% higher than for babies
born to older mothers?2. The children of teenage mothers have an increased risk of living in
poverty and poor quality housing and are more likely to have accidents and behavioural
problems?2,

In 2021, there were 65 pregnancies among girls and women aged under 18, equating to rate
of 12.5 per 1,000 population, similar to the national rate of 13.1 and below the regional rate.
This ranks Shropshire third lowest in the West Midlands*2. There is no trend data for this
measure.

Under 18s conception rate per 1,000 in Shropshire including regional neighbours, with
West Midlands and England comparisons, 2021. Source: Child and Maternal Health
Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Better 95%  Similar NSRS Not compared

Recent trends: = Could notbe = No significant 4 Increasing &  # Increasing & § Decreasing & # Decreasing &

calculated change getting worse getting better getting worse getting better
Under 18s conception rate / 1,000 2021 Crude rate - per 1,000
Recat 95% 95%
Area Trend Count Value Lower Upper
cl cl
England - 12,361 131 H 129 133
West Midlands region - 1,587 152 I 145 16.0
Stoke-on-Trent - 107 1 e, | 20.0 295
Telford and Wrekin - 65 32 15.0 2438
Walsall - 101 18.0 NG 154 23.0
Coventry - 109 13.6 NG — 152 224
Wolverhampton - 87 185 NG 148 228
Dudley - 95 173 140 211
Staffordshire - 224 162 NG 141 185
Herefordshire - 41 147 _— 106 20.0
Sandwell - 93 141 — 114 172
Birmingham - 316 135 ol 120 15.0
Warwickshire - 125 13.0 = 1038 155
Shropshire - 65 125 | 97 16.0
Worcestershire - 116 17 = 96 14.0
Solihull - 43 14 [ — 82 153

® Smoking status at time of delivery

In the period 2022-23, 11.4% of women in Shropshire were known to be smokers at the time
of delivery, a proportion significantly worse than the West Midlands average of 9.1% and
England average of 8.8%. Shropshire currently ranks third highest in the West Midlands
region and highest among its statistical neighbours?®4.

Percentage of women known to be smokers at the time of delivery in Shropshire including
statistical and regional neighbours, with West Midlands and England comparisons, 2022-
23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Proportion (%)

14 Eng|and S
12 West Midlands — —
Birmingham =
10 I Solihull —
I Coventry —
{ 1 Warwickshire b=
8 I I§r fordshire =
age V&L stershire —
6 Dudley =—
Sandwell b=—
4 Walsall =
\AWnlvvarhamnton |



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1

In recent years, this proportion increased between 2019-20 and 2021-22, after which a
decline was observed in 2022-23.

Percentage of women known to be smokers at the time of delivery in Shropshire, including
West Midlands and England comparisons, 2010-11 to 2022-23. Source: Child and
Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Page 182 22


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1

18.0

16.0
12.0 \
10.0 ug

8.0
6.0
4.0
2.0

0.0

N0 X N R D N
R R I L A g
DR P P P L

Proportion (%)

== Shropshire = e===\\est Midlands === England

Low birth weight

Low birth weight increases the risk of childhood mortality and of developmental problems for
the child and is associated with poorer health in later life!®.

In 2021, 1.8% of infants (gestational age of at least 37 complete weeks) were born with a
low birthweight, a proportion better than the West Midlands average of 3.0% and England
average of 2.8%?¢. This proportion has been falling in Shropshire compared to the previous
two years and currently ranks Shropshire second lowest in the West Midlands region and
second lowest compared to its statistical neighbours.

Percentage of low of birth weight of infants in Shropshire, including statistical and regional
neighbours, with West Midlands and England comparisons, 2021. Source: Child and
Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Proportion (%)

4

England —
West Midlands m——

Herefordshire —
3 [ Shropshire  ————

Worcestershire =
[ Warwickshire =
ffordshire =
2 age 1 Dudley =
Solihull =
Coventry =
1 Telford and Wrekin —_



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/20101/age/235/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1

Percentage of low of birth weight of infants in Shropshire, including West Midlands and

England comparisons, 2010 — 2021. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,

OHID

4.0
35
3.0
2.5
2.0
15

Proportion (%)

1.0
0.5
0.0

—

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

== Shropshire = ====\\est Midlands === England

® Infant mortality

Infant mortality is an indicator of the general health of an entire population. It reflects the
relationship between causes of infant mortality and upstream determinants of population

health such as economic, social and environmental conditions. Deaths occurring during the

Page 184

24


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1

first 28 days of life in particular, are considered to reflect the health and care of both mother

and new-born 17,

In the period 2020-22, there were 37 deaths under one year of age in Shropshire. This
equates to an infant mortality rate of 4.8 per 1,000 live births!8. This is the sixth lowest
regionally, similar to the regional rate of 5.6 per 1,000 and the national rate of 3.9 per 1,000
live births. Shropshire’s rate was the highest compared to its statistical neighbours.

Infant mortality rate in Shropshire including statistical and regional neighbours, with West
Midlands and England comparisons, 2020-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile,

Fingertips, OHID

Rate per 1,000

7.0

6.0

5.0
4.0
3.0
M EEEN
1.0
0.0

@ @ &S Q@ Qb
Q‘}\ S(\ Qé *\,‘;(\ Q@\ é}'o RN (§b
(®) é $\ Q@ N @(\
“o‘\K «é'\ N4 \Q

€ P &

England —
West Midlands m———

Herefordshire —
Dudley —
Worcestershire =
Warwickshire =—
Solihull ——
Shropshire ——————
Staffordshire L
Telford and Wrekin ————|
Walsall ——
Wolverhampton —_—
Coventry =
Sandwell s
Birmingham =
Stoke-on-Trent —

0.0 20 4.0 6.0 8.0
Rate per 1,000

10.0

Shropshire’s rate increased between 2014-16 and 2018-20 but recently has started to level
off. Overall, the national rate has been declining over time however now remains steady

compared to the previous period.

Infant mortality rate in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons,
2009-11 to 2020-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

17 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

18 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.orgd.uk)

25

Page 185



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92196/age/2/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

7.0

60 '\0—0\‘/0/'_\_._—.—.

5.0

4.0 —

3.0

Rate per 1,000

2.0
1.0

0.0
N Xl e N R P Qﬁlzq’
Y A R T PEL AL G
S N NN o N O J
PP R DR P PP PPV

=@==Shropshire =@=\Vest Midlands ==®==England

Neonatal mortality

In 2015, the Government announced an ambition to reduce the rate of stillbirths, neonatal
and maternal deaths by 50% by 2030'°. The Maternity Transformation Programme brings
together a range of organisations and stakeholders to deliver on this ambition, among
others?8. Deaths occurring during the first 28 days of life (the neonatal period) in particular,
are considered to reflect the health and care of both mother and newborn?2. The first 28 days
of life — the neonatal period — represent the most vulnerable time for a child’s survival?8.

In the period 2019-21, there were 29 neonatal deaths (deaths under 28 days) in Shropshire.
This equates to a neonatal mortality rate of 3.7 per 1,000 live births?°. This rate was the 5™
lowest rate regionally, significantly lower to the regional rate of 4.3 per 1,000 and similar to
the national rate of 2.8 per 1,000 live births. Shropshire’s rate was the second highest
compared to its statistical neighbours.

Neonatal mortality rate in Shropshire, including statistical and regional neighbours, with
West Midlands and England comparisons, 2019-21. Source: Child and Maternal Health
Profile, Fingertips, OHID

8.0 England  me—
7.0 West Midlands — e——
. Dudley b=
o 6.0 d Telford and Wrekin _
8 50 Warwickshire =
S Coventry =
5 4.0 age 186  Shropshire s—
o Wolverhampton =_—
% 3.0 [ [ [ Walsall —
Staffordshire =
o 2.0 -[ I Candwnwall (R |



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92705/age/23/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92705/age/23/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92705/age/23/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92705/age/23/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Neonatal mortality rate in the period 2019-21 was highest in males — 4.0 per 1,000 live births
compared to females — 3.4 per 1,000 live births. As shown in the figure below, neonatal
mortality in Shropshire has been increasing since 2014-16. This is opposite to the trend
observed regionally and nationally where rates are levelling off.

Neonatal mortality rate in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons,
2010-12 to 2019-21. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

5.0

45 .
4.0 — ————

35 /
3.0 ;\_fﬁ o
25
2.0
15
1.0
0.5

0.0

Rate per 1,000

N N T N (S - T\ S I
R AR AT CA AR T P LS
PSSAPINRPS AP R S SN AP I AR P

=@=Shropshire ==@==\\est Midlands ==@==England

® Stillbirth rate

Stillbirth rates in the United Kingdom have shown little change over the last 20 years, and
the rate remains among the highest in high income countries?. Risk factors associated with
stillbirth include maternal obesity, ethnicity, smoking, pre-existing diabetes, and history of
mental health problems, antepartum haemorrhage and fetal growth restriction (birth weight

21 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 187 o


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92705/age/23/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92530/age/29/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

below the 10th customised weight percentile)®°. In 2015 the government announced an
ambition to halve the rate of stillbirths by 2030%°.

In the period 2019-21, there were 15 stillbirths (fetal deaths occurring after 24 weeks of
gestation) in Shropshire??. This equates to a rate of 1.9 per 1,000 births. This rate was the
lowest regionally, significantly lower than the regional rate of 4.3 per 1,000 and the national

rate of 3.9 per 1,0003%. Shropshire’s rate was the lowest among its statistical neighbours as
shown in the figure below.

Neonatal mortality rate in Shropshire including statistical and regional neighbours, with
West Midlands and England comparisons, 2019-21. Source: Child and Maternal Health
Profile, Fingertips, OHID

7.0 England —
6.0 West Midlands ~ se——
' Shropshire  e——
o 5.0 Solihull —_
o Staffordshire =
Sf 4.0 Dudley —
= Herefordshire e
g 3.0 1 Stoke-on-Trent P
9 Telford and Wrekin _
6:5 2.0 Worcestershire —_
Wolverhampton —_—
1.0 Coventry —_—
Sandwell —_—
0.0 Warwickshire —_
X, Walsall —
b§® O@\o(\ o@e Q}C’G *@‘{\\@ é(\\& b\,bﬁ\& g\fb(\b Birmingham ——
& © &N %&OQ N2 00 20 40 60
¥ ° $®% Rate per 1,000

8.0

As shown in the figure below, Shropshire’s stillbirth rate has decreased since 2010-12, with
a 54% decrease seen between 2016-18 and 2019-21. Overall, the national and regional rate
has been declining over time (since 2010-12).

Stillbirth rate in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2010-12
to 2019-21. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

22 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.orgd.uk)

Page 188 ?



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92530/age/29/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92530/age/29/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92530/age/29/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92530/age/29/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

6.0
5.0 —
S 4.0
c
T 30
(O]
o
]
= 2.0
o
1.0
0.0
N2 N A N Ao A Ne) ) DN N
I . IR . . . . .
SO g B g P 9 O e g e®
= Shropshire ~==—=\West Midlands —=England

Post-neonatal mortality

In the period 2019-21, there were 8 post-neonatal deaths (deaths occurring between 28
days and 1 year) in Shropshire?®. This equates to a rate of 1.0 per 1,000 births. This rate
was the 5" lowest regionally, similar to the regional rate of 1.3 per 1,000 and the national
rate of 1.1 per 1,000. Shropshire’s rate was the 2" highest among its statistical neighbours
as shown in the figure below.

Post-neonatal mortality rate in Shropshire, including statistical and regional neighbours,
with West Midlands and England comparisons, 2019-21. Source: Child and Maternal
Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

4.0 England  e—
35 West Midlands — m———
Solihull =——
3.0 Telford and Wrekin p————
8 25 Staffordshire  —
- Warwickshire —
T 2.0 Shropshire m——————
o Worcestershire e
£15 Page 189 sandwell ——
04 Walsall —
1.0 Wolverhampton _
0.5 [ Birmingham —
. <take-on-Trent N S—



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Shropshire’s rate saw an increase between 2010-12 and 2014-16, after which a steady
decrease in rate was observed. This trend is in line with what was observed regionally.
Overall, the national rate has been stable and declining over time (since 2010-12).

Post-neonatal mortality rate in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England

comparisons, 2010-12 to 2019-21. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,
OHID

3.5
3.0
2.5

2.0

1.5

1.0 /\/

0.5

Rate per 1,000

0.0
NN TN S - BN < B N S\ - B T I

SN AN AN MY AN - M M RN M
rLQ rLQ Q,Q Q«Q Q/Q Q/Q Q/Q Q/Q Q«Q '79

= Shropshire = ==—\Nest Midlands ==—England

® Breastfeeding

Increases in breastfeeding are expected to reduce illness in young children, have health
benefits for the infant and the mother and result in cost savings to the NHS through reduced
hospital admission for the treatment of infection in infants (Quigley et al 2007.) Breast milk
provides the ideal nutrition for infants in the first stages of life.

There is evidence that babies who are breast fed experience lower levels of gastro-intestinal
and respiratory infection. Observational studies have shown that breastfeeding is associated
with lower levels of child obesity. Mothers who do not breastfeed have an increased risk of

Page 190 %


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133257/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

breast and ovarian cancers and may find it more difficult to return to their pre-pregnancy
weight (World Cancer Research Fund; DH, cited in NICE Public health guidance PH11 24).

Current national and international guidance recommends exclusive breastfeeding for new-
borns and for the first six months of infancy 2.

Increasing rates of breastfeeding initiation and continuation is also recommended within the
DH Healthy Child Programme Breastfeeding initiation and uptake at 6-8 weeks are included
in the NICE proposals for the Commissioning Outcomes Framework.

The longer-term strategic solution for data collection and reporting for this indicator is NHS
Digital's Community Services Dataset (formerly the Children and Young Peoples (CYPHS)
data set). It is mandatory for the providers of public funded services to submit the dataset to
NHS Digital. Whilst the data set is operational and reporting has begun, providers are at
different stages of maturity with their submissions or readiness to flow the data therefore it is
expected to take some additional time for this data set to reach sufficient coverage for
reporting purposes.

In addition to the statutory checks, breastfeeding and healthy start vouchers/vitamins are two
other key service indicators for health and wellbeing

Breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8 weeks after birth

Shropshire’s published breastfeeding data on OHID’s Fingertips platform has data quality
issues, which means comparisons to the regional and national average are not possible.
Note: the denominator for this national measure is the number of infants due a 6-8 week
review.

During 2022-23, in Shropshire, 917 infants were reported to be totally or partially breastfed
at age 6-8 weeks 26. A rise compared to the previous year’s figure of 858 infants.

Breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8 weeks after birth in Shropshire, with West Midlands and
England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,
OHID

24 https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/phl1/chapter/2-public-health-need-and-practice
25

http://www.who.int/nutrition/topics/infantfeeding_recommendation/en/index.html http://www.nice.org.u
k/nicemedia/live/11943/40097/40097.pdf

26 Definition:

This is the percentage of infants that are totally or partially breastfed at age 6-8 weeks. Totally breastfed is defined as infants who are exclusively
receiving breast milk at 6-8 weeks of age - that is, they are not receiving formula milk, any other liquids or food. Partially breastfed is defined as
infants who are currently receiving breast milk at 6-8 weeks of age and who are also receiving formula milk or any other liquids or food. Not at all
breastfed is defined as infants who are not currently receiving any breast milk at 6-8 weeks of age. The numerator is the count of the number of
infants recorded as being totally breastfed at 6-8 weeks and the number of infants recorded as being partially breastfed. The denominator is the
total number of infants due a 6-8 weeks check.

Page 191 -


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/4/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92517/age/170/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph11/chapter/2-public-health-need-and-practice
http://www.who.int/nutrition/topics/infantfeeding_recommendation/en/index.html
http://www.nice.org.uk/nicemedia/live/11943/40097/40097.pdf
http://www.nice.org.uk/nicemedia/live/11943/40097/40097.pdf

Recent trend: Could not be calculated

Shropshire
95% 95% West
Period Count Value Lower CI Upper CI Midlands England
2015116 @ 1272 459% 44.0% 47.8%  * 43,29
2016/17 1,533 : - ; . 44.4%"
2017/18 1,360 . - - . 43.1%"
2018/19 1,188 - - - - 46.2%"
2019/20 1,030 . - - . 48.0%"
2020/21 738 " - - . 47.6%"
2021/22 858 . - - . 49.2%"
2022/23 917 . - - . 49.2%"

Source: OHID's (formerly PHE) interim reporting of health visiting metrics

To give an indication of the breastfeeding prevalence trends in Shropshire, the rate has been
calculated using data from the provider, which has not yet been validated. Please treat with
caution.

Provider data

The below data has not yet been validated but gives an indication of progress and direction
of travel.

Prevalence of breastfeeding in Shropshire including number of infants partially/totally
breastfed at 6-8 weeks and number of infants due a 6-8 week review, 2021-22 to 2022-23.
Source: SHROPCOM Provider data

The annual breastfeeding prevalence for 2022/23 for Shropshire was 30.6%, below the
national average of 49.2%. Whilst Shropshire’s rate of babies breastfed at 6-8-weeks is
below the national average, there has been a steady improvement quarter on quarter.

There is arising trend in breastfeeding prevalence over time in Shropshire. At the end of Q4
2023/24, one third (49%) of infants due a 6-8 week check were partially or totally breastfed.
This is the highest quarterly prevalence of breastfeeding since Q4 of 2021/22.

Page 192 >



Breastfeeding prevalence: provisional
Denominator: total number of infants due a 6-8 week review - data not
validated by provider and may change
100.0%
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0% .
52.0% 49.0%
40.0% =@ Shropshire
30.0% —@— England
. 0
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
Q Q Q o) O Q Q o)
= N w N [l N w S
N N N N N N N N
(@] o o o (@] o o o
N N N N N N N N
N N N [\ w w w w
N N N N} N N N N
w w w w N N N N

To view rates of breastfeeding where the denominator is the number of infants who received
a 6-8 week review- see here.

Page 193 >



Overweight (including obesity) — Reception

Studies tracking child obesity into adulthood have found that the probability of children who
are overweight or living with obesity becoming overweight or obese adults increases with
age?’. The health consequences of childhood obesity include increased blood lipids, glucose
intolerance, Type 2 diabetes, hypertension, increases in liver enzymes associated with fatty
liver, exacerbation of conditions such as asthma and psychological problems such as social
isolation, low self-esteem, teasing and bullying?®.

In the period 2022-23, 22.1% reception aged children (4-5-year-olds) were overweight or
obese in Shropshire, a rate similar to the national average of 21.3% and to the regional
average of 22.2%%8. This proportion was the 7" lowest regionally and Shropshire’s
proportion was the highest among its statistical neighbours as shown in the figure below.

Proportion of children aged 4 to 5 years classified as overweight or living with obesity in
Shropshire including statistical and regional neighbours, with West Midlands and England
comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Proportion (%)

25.0 England —

West Midlands m———

20.0 :[ :[ I Herefordshire —
I Warwickshire =
Solihull =—|
15.0 Coventry —
Birmingham 2
Worcestershire =
10.0 Shropshire  — ——
Staffordshire —
Sandwell =
5.0 Dudley —
Walsall =
Stoke-on-Trent —
0.0 N N Telford and Wrekin —
Qé{\\\@o & ’@,{\\@ béé\&o‘zﬁoo é\c}* 6\(&@9 CS'Z’Q Wolverhampton =i
,<<\° N & \@'\ 2 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0
° ¥ %O& & Proportion (%)

This proportion has decreased steadily over the last three years, however data from 2020-21
is missing. (2019/20 NCMP year was stopped due to the lockdown, and in 2020/21 areas
were asked to only sample 10% of children, again due to COVID).

27 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
28 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 194 >



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133224/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90319/age/200/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133224/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90319/age/200/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133224/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90319/age/200/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Proportion of children aged 4 to 5 years classified as overweight or living with obesity in
Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2007-08 to 2022-23.
Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

35

30

25

20

15

Proportion (%)

10

== Shropshire = ===\\est Midlands == England

Gobowen, Selattyn and Weston Rhyn 15.6%, Harlescott 14.0% and St Martin’s 13.9% had
the highest % of children in reception year (aged 4-5) classified as obese (2019 to 2022).

Map showing % of children in reception year (aged 4-5) classified as obese (2019 to 2022).
Children are classified as obese where their BMI is greater than or equal to the 95th centile of the
British 1990 growth reference. Data is collected by the National Child Measurement Programme,
Health and Social Care Information Centre. Note the gaps in the mapped data are where data is not
published due to small numbers of children in reception year in these areas.

Page 195 >


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133224/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90319/age/200/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

i ~ 7 Bangor-on-Dee

-

Obese children in reception year @

Ruabon

145§ Llangollen

% of children in reception classified as obese

@ Current Level: Electoral Wards/Divisions
2.86%-7.17%

7.18% - 8.70%

[l 870%-10.21%

W 1021%-11.95%
u

11.95% - 20.90%

=

Eccleshz -

ym-Mochnant
"

Hanfylin Four Crosses' _— i Ph
ynfa ’ i e DETAILS YOUR AREAS
Meifod L Y %
Guilsfield &

WD: None Value: None

Buttington Wroxeter
Welshpool

BV, WEESEENED. W aca

Balsall
Cleobury Knowle¥ cor
1 Mortime Lty ﬁ\r
Leintwardine s mm

Aveegurch= IR

lister

ra

Leanid LJd
o™ AR

Bleddfa

® AG&E Attendances (0-4s)

A&E attendances in children aged under five years are often preventable, and commonly
caused by accidental injury or by minor illnesses which could have been treated in primary
care?®,

In the period 2022-23, Shropshire’s A&E attendance rate was 617.3 per 1,000 population.
This equates to 8,765 attendances among children under five years old®°. This was
significantly better than the regional average of 837.7 per 1,000 and the national average of
797.3 per 1,000%2. Shropshire had the fourth lowest A&E attendance in the region and
among its statistical neighbours.

29 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
30 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 196 %


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93930/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93930/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

A&E attendance rate per 1,000 population aged 0-4 years in Shropshire and its statistical
and regional neighbours, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,
OHID

Rate per 1,000

900.0 1400.0

800.0 12000 = _
7000 I 1000.0 o
600.0 * 800.0 -
500.0 600.0 I
400.0 N 400.0
300.0 200.0
200.0 0.0
100.0

0.0

>

X
,96

Rate per 1,000

Dudley
Birmingham
Stoke-on-Trent

Telford and Wrekin
Solihull

Shropshire  ———

Walsall
Staffordshire

Coventry
Sandwell

<@ <@ @ Q 9
NI I i & S
P ©) ) @ Q o AP ©)
\é Q koQ &\ Q & @\b Q/Q
¢ > & X

Q‘Q} o @@6

Wolverhampton
Herefordshire
Warwickshire

Worcestershire

West Midlands —

England s—

Whilst Shropshire’s rate of A&E attendances is lower than the national average, the number
of 0-4 year old Children’s Social Care contacts from A&E has risen among compared to the
previous year, with 66 contacts in 2023-24 compared to 52 in 2022-23, a 27% rise year on
year.

Other contact sources which have risen are Midwives (doubling compared to the previous
year), health visitors (rise of 30%) and adult mental health services (rise of 36%).

Chart showing the contact source for contacts with Children’s social care aged 0-4, 2022-23 and
2023-24 across Shropshire. Source: Children’s Services, Shropshire Council.

® AG&E attendances (under 1 year)

During 2022/23, there were 2,135 A&E attendances among babies under 1 in Shropshire,
equating to a rate of 798.1 per 1,000 babies aged under 1. Shropshire’s rate has risen
slightly compared to the previous year, however this is still below the national rate of
1,132.3. Shropshire has the second lowest rate of attendances in the West Midlands region
and is mid table among it’s statistical nearest neighbours.

Page 197 >



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93930/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Chart showing A&E attendances for babies under 1 years old in Shropshire. Source: Fingertips

OBgetter 95% OSimilar @Worse 95% @ Lower 95% OSimilar OHigher 95% ONot applicable
A&E attendances (under 1 year) for Shropshire

1200

1000

800 6]

600

per 1,000

200

2021/22 2022423

@ England
© Shropshire

® Emergency admissions (aged 0 to 4 years)

Approximately 35% of all admissions in the NHS in England are classified as emergency
admissions, costing approximately £11 billion a year3!. Admitting a patient to hospital as an
emergency case is costly and frequently preventable, yet the number of emergency
admissions to hospital has been rising for some time. From a public health point of view,
emergency admissions data gives an indication of wider determinants of poor health, linked
to areas such as housing and transport.

Over one quarter of emergency hospital admissions in children aged under 5 years in 2014-
15 were for respiratory infections®3. Factors such as smoking in the home and damp housing
are known to increase the risk and severity of respiratory infections in young children.

Shropshire’s rate has been above the national average since 2013-14. More recently, there
has been a rise in emergency admissions, up from 181.0 per 1,000 in 2021-22 to 189.4 per
1,000 in 2022/23 32, This equates to 2,690 admissions, significantly worse than the national
average of 158.0 per 1,000 and the regional average of 172.7 per 1,00034. Shropshire’s rate
was the 6™ highest regionally and the 3" lowest among its statistical neighbours in 2022-23.

Rate of emergency admissions (per 1,000) among 0 to 4 years old in Shropshire and
England over time. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

31 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
32 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 198 >


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92477/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92477/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92477/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Emergency admissions (0 to 4 years)

Show confidence intervals Show 99 8% Cl values

250
200 [ ] L L

150 br

100

per 1,000

201011 2013/14 2016/17 2019/20 2022/23

@ England
@ Shropshire

Definition: Emergency admissions via A&E, GPs, Consultant outpatient clinic, Mental
Health Services or Baby born at home as intended

In 2022/23, more than two thirds of 0-4 emergency admissions were for three reasons:

o Diseases of the respiratory system (43%)

o Certain infectious and parasitic diseases (16%)

o Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinical and laboratory findings, not
elsewhere classified (includes fevers, febrile illness, nausea and vomiting)
(11%)

o Breaking these reasons down, showed acute upper respiratory infection,
viral infections and fevers as key drivers

However, across Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin, half (53%) of 0-4 admissions recorded
during the 2022/23 period had a zero length of stay.

This is due to the paediatric assessment unit referring babies and children into
hospital for tests and monitoring followed by a same day discharge. Shropshire does
not have a Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) offer which, if in place, could reduce
the rate of emergency admissions.

Seasonal pattern to the respiration admissions in persons aged 0-4, with activity peaking
around December each year

Page 199 %



Shropshire trend analysis (January 2021-February 2024) of emergency
admissions (aged 0-4) recorded under the following ICD-10 disease chapters :
Diseases of the respiratory system
Certain infectious and parasitic diseases
Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinic

200 Diseases of the

180 respiratery system

160
140
120

Crude rate per 1,000

100

80 Certain infectious

and parasitic

60 diseases
40
20 SN\ N YNV Y
0 Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinical and laboratory...
Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan
2021 2022 2023 2024

® Emergency admissions (under 1)

Shropshire’s rate has been above the national average since 2015-16. More recently, there
has been a rise in emergency admissions among babies under 1, up from 426.6.0 per 1,000
in 2021-22 to 450.5 per 1,000 in 2022/23 32, This equates to 1,205 admissions, significantly
worse than the national average of 375.4.0 per 1,000 and the regional average of 411.3 per
1,0003%4. Shropshire’s rate was the 6" highest regionally and the 6" lowest among its 15 NHS
England statistical neighbours in 2022-23.

Rate of emergency admissions (per 1,000) under 1 years old in Shropshire and England
over time. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

33 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 200 0


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92477/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92477/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Emergency admissions (under 1 year) for Shropshire

600

500

400 o ®

i 300 (@2 o

per 1,000

200
100

0
2010/11 2013/14 2016/17 2019/20 2022/23

@ England
© Shropshire

® Admission of babies under 14 days

High levels of admissions of either mother or babies soon after birth can suggest problems
with either the timing or quality of health assessments before the initial transfer or with the
postnatal care once the mother is home34. Dehydration and jaundice are two common
reasons for re-admission of babies and are often linked to problems with feeding.

In the period 2021-22, there were 195 emergency admissions of babies under 14 days in
Shropshire®®. This equates to a rate of 89.7 per 1,000 deliveries. This rate was the 7"
highest regionally, similar to the regional rate of 86.2 per 1,000 and the national rate of 81.6
per 1,0003%4.

Emergency admissions from babies aged 0-13 days (inclusive) expressed as a crude rate
per 1,000 deliveries in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons,
2013-14 to 2021-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

34 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
35 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 201 “


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92240/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92240/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92240/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

120.0

100.0

80.0

60.0

Rate per 1,000

40.0

20.0

0.0

=@ Shropshire
—8—\\/est Midlands

== England

Emergency admissions from babies aged 0-13 days (inclusive) expressed as a crude rate
per 1,000 deliveries in Shropshire including statistical and regional neighbours, with West
Midlands and England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile,

Fingertips, OHID

Page 202

42


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133222/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/92240/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

England

West Midlands
Dudley
Worcestershire
Coventry
Birmingham
Solihull
Warwickshire
Herefordshire
Shropshire
Sandwell
Telford and Wrekin
Wolverhampton
Staffordshire
Stoke-on-Trent
Walsall

o

a1
o

100 150
Rate per 1,000

N
o
o

250

Page 203

43



® Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries
in children (aged 0 to 4 years)

Injuries are a leading cause of hospitalisation and represent a major cause of premature
mortality for children and young people®®. They are also a source of long-term health issues,
including mental health related to experience(s).

During 2021-22, Shropshire’s rate of hospital admissions caused by unintentional and
deliberate injuries in children (aged 0 to 4 years) was 87.1 per 10,000 population aged 0-4%7.
This equated to 125 admissions and was significantly below the regional average of 100.1
per 10,000 and national average of 103.6 per 10,000%6. Shropshire’s rate was among the
lowest regionally and among its statistical neighbours.

Rate of hospital admissions (per 100,000) among 0 to 4 years old due to unintentional and
deliberate injuries in Shropshire and its statistical neighbours, including West Midlands and
England comparisons, 2021-22. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,
OHID

200
180
160

140 [
120 { {
100
80
60
40

20

Rate per 100,000

Rate in Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin has seen a steady decrease since 2013-14, from
168.9 per 100,000 in 2013-14 to 121.7 per 100,000 in 2020-2128. Overall, the national rate
has been stable and declining over time (since 2013-14).

Rate of hospital admissions (per 100,000) among 0 to 4 years old due to unintentional and
deliberate injuries in NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin, including England comparison,
2013-14 to 2020-21. Source: Public Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

36 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
37 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
38 Public health profiles - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 204 o


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90832/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/unintentional#page/4/gid/1938133236/pat/15/par/E92000001/ati/167/are/E38000257/iid/92760/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90832/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/90832/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/unintentional#page/4/gid/1938133236/pat/15/par/E92000001/ati/167/are/E38000257/iid/92760/age/28/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1

Rate per 100,000

200.0
180.0
160.0
140.0
120.0
100.0
80.0
60.0
40.0
20.0
0.0

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

=@==NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin =@==England

Page 205

45



® Hospital admissions for dental caries (0-5 years)

In Shropshire between 2020/21-22/23, there were 120 hospital admissions for dental caries
among those aged 5 and below, equating to a rate of 228.4 per 100,000 which is above the
national average of 178.8. However, this rate has been decreasing over time at a faster pace
than seen nationally.

Hospital admissions for dental caries (0 to 5 years) for Shropshire

700

600

Q
O

500

400

per 100,000
O

300
200

100

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020421
-17/18 -18/19 -19/20 -20/21 -21/22 -22/23

@ England
© Shropshire

Percentage of 5 year olds with experience of visually obvious dental decay

Oral health is an integral part of overall health; when children are not healthy this affects
their ability to learn, thrive and develop. This indicator therefore links to a key policy: Getting
the Best Start in Life. Poor oral health is a priority under Best Start in Life, it was also a topic
of a Health Select Committee inquiry, and the most common cause of hospital admission for
5 to 9 year olds. This indicator allows benchmarking of oral health of young children across
England, and is an excellent proxy measure of assessing the impact of the commissioning of
oral health improvement programmes on the local community. Dental caries is a
synonymous term for tooth decay.

In Shropshire in 2020-21, 14.6% of 5 year olds examined had at least one tooth decayed,
missing or filled, a lower rate than seen nationally (23.7%) and regionally (23.8%).
Shropshire’s rate also fell compared to 2019-20 however the pandemic may have impacted
this data.

Page 206 e



Percentage of 5 year olds with experience of visually obvious dental decay 2021/22 Proportion - %

Recent 9% 9%
Area Trend Count Value Lower Upper
Cl Ci

England - - 237 ] 233 240
West Midlands region (statistical) - - 238 H 2238 248
Herefordshire - - 337 I — 332 446
Stoke-on-Trent - - 35.0 NG 321 38.1
Coventry - - 342 I 291 39.7
Sandwell - . 30.0 I — 253 35.1
Walsall - - 248 = 203 30.0
Birmingham - - 238 E— 192 29.0
Wolverhampton - - 234 B 215 255
Telford and Wrekin - - 191 = 133 265
Warwickshire - - 17.7 § ~ 15.9 19.7
Worcestershire - - 176 | —_— 133 229
Dudley - - 173} _ 135 219
Staffordshire - - w8l 131 213
Solihull - - 16.4 —_— 120 220
Shropshire - - e 104 202

OBetter 95% OSimilar ®Worse 95% ONot applicable
Percentage of 5 year olds with experience of visually obvious dental decay for Shropshire

35
o
30
[
5]
25 @
® " ®
®
(]
20
]
15 o
10
2007/08 2010/11 2013/14 2016/17 2019/20
@ England

© Shropshire

Page 207 4



Vaccination coverage

The childhood immunisation programme

Immunisations are given to babies at eight, twelve and sixteen weeks of age, with further

immunisations given at one year of age 3° 4:

Routine childhood immunisations

Age due

Eight weeks old

Twelve weeks old

Sixteen weeks old

One year old
(on or after the
child's first birthday)

Eligible paediatric age group*

Three years four months old

or soon after

Boys and girls aged twelve

to thirteen years

Fourteen years old
(school Year 9)

Diseases protected against

Diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis
(whooping cough), polio, Haemophilus
influenzae type b (Hib) and hepatitis B

Meningococeal group B (MenB)
Rotavirus gastroenteritis

Diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis, polio,
Hib and hepatitis B

Preumococcal (13 serotypes)
Rotavirus

Diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis, polio,
Hib and hepatitis B

MenB
Hib and MenC
Preumococcal

Measles, mumps and rubella
(German measles)

MenB

Influenza (each year from September)
Diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis and polio
Measles, mumps and rubella
Cancers and genital warts caused

by specific human papillomavirus
(HPV) types

Tetanus, diphtheria and polio

Meningococcal groups A, C, Wand Y

From September 2023
Vaccine given and trade name Usual site'

. Infanrix hexa .
DTaF/IPV/Hib/HepB e — Thigh
MenB Bexsero Left thigh
Rotavirus Rotarix? By mouth

. Infanrix hexa .
DTaP/IPV/Hib/HepB or Vaxalis Thigh
PCV Prevenar 13 Thigh
Rotavirus Rotarix? By mouth

. Infanrix hexa or .
DTaP/IPV/Hib/HepB Vaxelis Thigh
MenB Bexsero Left thigh
Hib/MenC Menitorix Upper arm/thigh
PCV booster Prevenar 13 Upper arm/thigh

MMRwvaxPro® .

MMR or Priorix Upper arm/thigh
MenB booster Bexsero Left thigh
Live attenuatod Fluenz Tetra®® Baoth nostrils
influenza vaccine LAIV
dTaF/IPV Boostrix-IPV Upper arm
MMR (check first dose MMRvaxPro® or U
given) Priorix Pper arm
HPW® Gardasil 9 Upper arm
Td/IPV (check MMR status) | Revaxis Upper arm
MenACWY Nimenrix Upper arm

1. Intramuscular injectian into deftoid muscle in uppear arm or antarolataral aspect of the thigh.
2. Rotavirus vaccing should only be given after checking for SCID screening result.

3. Cantains porcing gelating.

4. Sae annual flu latter at: www.gov.uk/government/collections/annual-fu-programme

5. If LAIV (Fva attenuated influenza vaccing) is contrandicated or otherwise unsuitable
use inactivated flu vaccine (check Graen Book Chapler 19 for dataiks).

B. Sea Graen Baok chapler 1Ba for immunising mmunccompromised young paople
who will nead 3 doses.

39 A guide to immunisations for babies born on or after 1 January 2020

40 Routine childhood immunisation schedule - GOV.UK (www.goV.uk)

48

Page 208


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/a-guide-to-immunisations-for-babies-up-to-13-months-of-age/a-guide-to-immunisations-for-babies-born-on-or-after-1-january-2020#routine-childhood-immunisation-programme-from-january-2020

Vaccination measures

Childhood vaccine coverage in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England
comparisons, Source: PHOF, Fingertips, OHID

Vaccination Period | Shropshire West England | Recent

coverage Midlands trend

Dtap IPV Hib | 2022/23

(1 year old) 91.5 91.8

Men B (1 2022/23

year old) 90.6 91.0

Rotavirus (1 2022/23

year old) 94.1 88.3 88.7

PCV 2022/23 [INO6ONN| 932 93.7 A

Hepatitis B (2 | 2022/23 i i i -

years old

Dtap IPV Hib | 2022/23

(2.years old) - N

Men B 2022/23

booster (2 93.9 87.1 87.6

years old)

MMR — one 2022/23

dose (2 years 94.7 88.9 89.3

old)

PCV booster | 2022/23 94.5 88.3 88.5

Flu(2to3 2022/23

years old) 50.8 39.1 43.7

Hib and 2022/23

MenC

booster (2 94.4 88.2 88.7

years old)

DTaP and 2022/23

IPV booster 82.8 83.3

(5 years)

MMR - one 2022/23

dose (5 years 92.6 92.5

old)

MMR — two 2022/23

doses (5 83.7 84.5

years old)

Flu (primary 2022 -

school aged 52.1 56.3

children)
Recent trend: A Increasing & getting better No significant change
Benchmarking against goal: 90% to 95% -
Benchmarking against goal
Flu (2 to 3 years old): 40% to 65% -
Benchmarking against goal
Flu (primary school aged -

children):

Page 209


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/15/par/E92000001/ati/502/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1

e In the period 2022/23, vaccination coverage for 1 year olds in Shropshire for Dtap
IPV Hib and MenB were above the goal of >= 95% “1. Vaccine coverage for
Rotavirus for 1 year olds in 2022/23 was lower than the >=95% goal but fell between
90% and 95%.

e At 2 years, vaccine coverage was high and above the >=95%goal for Dtap IPV Hib at
96.5%, however MenB boosters, MMR first dose, and Hib and MenC coverage were
lower than the >=95% goal but fell between 90% and 95%*%.

e Flu vaccination coverage at 2-3 years was lower than the goal of >=65% but fell
between 40% and 65%, at 50.8%°. At 5 years old, coverage for Dtap and IPC
boosters as well as MMR second doses were less than 90%, at 89.5% and 89.8%
respectively, similar to the goal along with MMR second doses*.

e As shown in the figure below, MMR vaccine coverage for two doses in Shropshire
saw an increase between 2017-18 and 2021-22 (from 87.6% to 91.6%), after which a
decrease was seen between 2021-22 and 2022-23 (from 91.6% to 89.8%).

MMR vaccine coverage for two doses (5 years old) in Shropshire, including West Midlands
and England comparisons, Source: PHOF, Fingertips, OHID

Proportion (%)

r\\ r\q/ \(b r\b‘ \63 \‘b '(\ '\‘b \Z’ fl,g ‘]:\ ‘19’ 'Iib
’ . . ¢ ¢ ’ . v Q LN ('1;
U & Y%

== Shropshire = ==l==\Nest Midlands === England

Page 210 >0


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/15/par/E92000001/ati/502/are/E06000051/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/102/are/E06000051/iid/30301/age/30/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Health Visiting metrics

New birth visits within 14 days (NBV)

All infants and their families are eligible to receive a visit led by a health visitor within the first

within 14 days in Shropshire was 80.8%, a fall compared to the 2020-21’s rate of 89.3%.

two weeks from birth. This means that any problems can be identified early, and
interventions may be more successful the earlier they are put in place*?.

During 2022-23, the proportion of infants receiving a new birth visit (NBV) by a Health Visitor

Shropshire’s current rate is similar to the regional average of 80.7% and national average of

79.9%%3. Shropshire’s proportion was the 6™ lowest regionally and 4" lowest among its

statistical neighbours.

Proportion of new birth visits completed within 14 days in Shropshire and its statistical and
regional neighbours, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2022-23. Source:
Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

100.0
900 =

England me—
West Midlands — ——

80.0 = I Worcestershire
T Warwickshire H
g 700 Sandwell J
= 600 Coventry H
S Staffordshire H
S 50.0 Herefordshire H
g 400 Shropshire  ee————
o T Dudley
30.0 Walsall H
20.0 Stoke-on-Trent H
10.0 Wolvgrh_ampton H
Birmingham 1
0.0 Solihull H
@ LS S fo& Telford and Wrekin H
8 0o Qc., L X 0@ b\fo S
N L é\o‘ &2 F K 0.0 50.0 100.0 150.0
NG o $®%\ Proportion (%)
Shropshire’s proportion saw an increase between 2017-18 and 2020-21, after which a
steady decrease was observed. Overall, regional and national proportions have been
declining since 2020-21.
42 | G inform: Health and Wellbeing in Shropshire: A Focus on Children
43 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
51

Page 211



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93469/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-childrens-health-and-wellbeing-in-your-area-1?mod-area=E06000051&mod-group=AllSingleTierInCountry_England&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93469/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Proportion of new birth visits completed within 14 days in Shropshire, including West
Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal
Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Proportion (%)
(o)) (2] (o)) ~ ~ () 0] (o) O
(83} o ()] o ()] o (§)] o (&3]

[
o

2017118 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

== Shropshire = ====\\est Midlands === England

6 to 8 week reviews

The 6 to 8 week review is an opportunity for support with breastfeeding if required, and
allows an assessment of the mother’'s mental health, as well as reinforcing the discussions
and messages from the new birth visit*4. It is an opportunity to ensure the mother has had a
six-week postnatal check, and that the infant has received the infant physical examination,
as well as a reminder of the importance of the vaccinations that take place in the first few
months. Any difficulties the mother has had in receiving benefits she is entitled to can be
discussed and support offered.

During 2022-23, 73.3% of infants aged 6-8 weeks old received a review by the time they
were 8 weeks old in Shropshire, a rise compared to 2020-21’s figure of 57.6%*°. However,
Shropshire’s proportion is still below the regional average of 79.2% and national average of
79.6% and ranks Shropshire third worst regionally and 2" worst among its statistical
neighbours.

This is due to mainly due to the timing that the invites are generated and parental choice.
The service have made changes to the system to generate earlier appointments to ensure
that these are more frequently prior to the child’s first birthday.

44 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
45 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 212 >2


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93469/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93469/age/284/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93470/age/170/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93470/age/170/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Proportion of children receiving 6 to 8 weeks review in Shropshire and its statistical and
regional neighbours including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2022-23. Source:
Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

120.0

100.0

80.0

60.0

40.0

Proportion (%)

20.0

England m—
West Midlands  —
Worcestershire
Sandwell
Walsall H
Warwickshire H
Shropshire
Coventry H
Staffordshire "
Dudley H
Telford and Wrekin H
Birmingham I
Stoke-on-Trent H
Wolverhampton H
Solihull H
Herefordshire H

0.0 50.0 100.0 150.0

Proportion (%)

Shropshire’s proportion saw a decrease between 2017-18 and 2020-21, after which an
increase was observed. Shropshire’s proportion has remained stable in the past 2 years.
Overall, regional and national proportions have been declining since 2017-18.

Proportion of children receiving 6 to 8 weeks review in Shropshire, including West
Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal
Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

Proportion (%)

2017-18 2018-19

= Shropshire

2019-20

= \\est Midlands

\
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
e FEngland

53

Page 213



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93470/age/170/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/4/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93470/age/170/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/4/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93470/age/170/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

12-month reviews

All children should receive a review by a health visitor led team shortly before they turn one
year. This allows for assessment of the baby’s physical, emotional and social needs in the
context of their family, including predictive risk factors, and provides an opportunity for both
parents to talk about any concerns that they may have about their baby’s health, as well as a
reminder of the importance of the vaccinations at around one year. It also allows monitoring
of the baby’s growth, and discussions on weaning, oral health and home safety (particularly
relevant as babies are now sitting independently, rolling over, and may be starting to walk).
In addition, it presents an opportunity to discuss preconception health before any future
pregnancy. A review between 9 and 12 months ensures any issues can be identified early
and referrals made as appropriate. However, it is accepted that for many reasons these
reviews may be a little late and the content is still of value. This metric therefore shows the
proportion of children who have a 12-month review on time or slightly late (by 15 months) 46,

During 2022-23, 75.9% of infants aged 12 months old in Shropshire received a review by the
time they were 15 months, a significant rise compared to 2020-21’s figure of 13.1%*’.
However, Shropshire’s proportion is still below the regional average of 85.7% and national
average of 82.6% and ranks Shropshire 2" lowest regionally and among it statistical
neighbours.

Proportion of children receiving 12-month review in Shropshire and its statistical and
regional neighbours, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2022-23. Source:
Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Proportion (%)

120.0 England me—
West Midlands —
100.0 - Worcestershire
= = Walsall H
80.0 = Shropshire = —————
- Stoke-on-Trent H
Telford and Wrekin H
60.0 Coventry
Birmingham i
40.0 Warwickshire H
Dudley H
Wolverhampton H
20.8 Staffordshire |
Sandwell I
0.0 Herefordshire H
5 O S S sotndl "
& LSS 0§° & 0.0 500 1000  150.0
\2\0« %o& 2 @Q)e Proportion (%)

46 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
47 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 214 >



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93471/age/30/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/6/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93471/age/30/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93471/age/30/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Shropshire’s proportion saw a decrease between 2017-18 and 2020-21, after which a steady
increase was observed. Overall, regional and national proportions have increased since
2021-22.

Proportion of children receiving 12-month review in Shropshire, including West Midlands
and England comparisons, Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

100
90
80
70
60
50

40
30
20

Proportion (%)

10

0
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

== Shropshire  e==\Nest Midlands == England

Child development

All children in England are eligible for a Healthy Child Programme development review,
delivered as part of the universal health visitor service, around their second birthday. The
Ages and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ-3) is used to generate data for a population measure
of child development outcomes. The purpose is to drive improvements in outcomes at scale
with a particular focus on speech, language and communication needs and school
readiness*.

Child development: percentage of children achieving a good level of
development at 2 to 2% years

During 2022-23, 64.8% of children aged 2 to 2 ¥ years old achieved a good level of
development, ranking Shropshire worst among its statistical neighbours and 4™ worst
regionally*®. This proportion is worse than the regional average of 76.3% and national
average of 79.3%.

48 | G inform: Health and Wellbeing in Shropshire: A Focus on Children
49 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 215 >


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/4/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93471/age/30/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/lga-research-report-childrens-health-and-wellbeing-in-your-area-1?mod-area=E06000051&mod-group=AllSingleTierInCountry_England&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93436/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Proportion of children achieving a good level of development at 2 to 2 %2 years in
Shropshire and its statistical and regional neighbours, including West Midlands and
England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,

OHID
o England m——
01 West Midlands — —
I .
80 & Worcestershire
I Stoke-on-Trent -
S " Dudley B
T o Telford and Wrekin -
'5 Shropshire = — ———
5 " Wolverhampton -
S 40 Sandwell B
= 30 Wals.all .
Herefordshire .
20 Birmingham !
10 Staffordshire "
Solihull .
° Coventry .
o@é\ QT\OQ é‘\\ éée, \06 é{\\@ ,bob% \(bﬁ‘b Warwickshire "
J S
o0 \&\ ‘3’\0& @Q’@e & ®b ("QQ’ 0.0 20.0 40.0 60.0 80.0 100.0
& &> _
e o Proportion (%)

Shropshire has been below the regional and national average since 2017-18, though a slight
increase was observed between 2021-22 and 2022-23. However, there are data quality
concerns surrounding this data and figures should be interpreted with caution.

Proportion of children achieving a good level of development at 2 to 2 %2 years in
Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-23.
Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

Proportion (%)

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

%

2017-18

= Shropshire

2018-19

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

e \\/est Midlands == England

56

Page 216



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93436/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/4/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93436/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Achieving the expected level in communication skills at 2 to 2% years

Three quarters of children in Shropshire - 76.2%, achieved the expected level of
communication skills at 2 to 2 ¥ years in 2022-23%°. However, this was still lower than the
regional average of 83% and national average of 85% and ranks Shropshire fourth lowest in
the region and lowest amonyg its statistical neighbours*°. Whilst the proportion was below the
national average, it has remained steady over the last three years. However, there are data
guality concerns surrounding this data and figures should be interpreted with caution.

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in communication skills at 2 to 2 %
years in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-
23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

Proportion (%)

————

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

== Shropshire = ====\\est Midlands === England

50 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.orgd.uk)

Page 217 >


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/4/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in communication skills at 2 to 2 %2 in
Shropshire and its statistical and regional neighbours, including West Midlands and
England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,
OHID

100 England me——
90 & T I West Midlands — s——
80 " Worcestershire
Stoke-on-Trent H
;\3 70 Wolverhampton H
~ 60 Telford and Wrekin !
E Shropshire =— ————
5 50 Sandwell H
g 40 Dudley H
a 30 Birmingham H
Coventry H
20 Staffordshire "
10 Walsall H
Solihull H
0 Herefordshire H
& & ,\95‘ & NS ro‘\é Warwickshire H
NS &go P %Q;\ er ) \b\’b Q‘g
Qs}o 6‘6\ %,Q\ \@ & 0.0 20.0 40.0 60.0 80.0 100.0
€ P & Proportion (%)

Achieving the expected level in gross motor skills at 2-2% years

During 2022-23, 85.5% of children in Shropshire achieved the expected level of gross motor
skills at 2 to 2 %2 years®.. However, this was lower than the regional average of 92% and the
national average of 92.8%%°. This ranks Shropshire 3 lowest in the region and lowest
among its statistical neighbours. Whilst the rate is below the national average, it has
remained steady over the last three years. However, there are data quality concerns
surrounding this data and figures should be interpreted with caution.

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in gross motor skills at 2 to 2 %2 years
in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-23.
Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

51 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 218 >


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/3/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Proportion (%)

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

== Shropshire = e===\\est Midlands === England

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in gross motor skills at 2 to 2 ¥z years
in Shropshire and its statistical and regional neighbours, including West Midlands and
England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,
OHID

100 England m——
I West Midlands =——
95 I Worcestershire
Stoke-on-Trent H
§ I Telford and Wrekin H
\; 90 Shropshire —=—
L Dudley H
5 | 1 sandwell "
g 8 Staffordshire "
o
o Wolverhampton H
Walsall H
80 Warwickshire H
Solihull H
Coventry H
S « Birmingham '
8}.\\@ S Q}C}6 & & & \é‘b@ <§§° Herefordshire "
S T T FE ¢ 0.0 500 1000 1500
€ & ° & Proportion (%)

Achieving the expected level in fine motor skills at 2-2% years

During 2022-23, 88.8% of children in Shropshire achieved the expected level of fine motor
skills at 2 to 2 %2 years®?. This was lower than the regional average of 91.9% and the national
average of 92.6%. This ranks Shropshire eight lowest in the region and second lowest

52 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 219 >0



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

among its statistical neighbours. Whilst the rate is below the national average, it has
remained steady since 2018/19. However, there are data quality concerns surrounding this
data and figures should be interpreted with caution.

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in fine motor skills at 2 to 2 %2 years in
Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-23.
Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

100

90

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

Proportion (%)

2017-18

= Shropshire

2018-19

o~ =

2019-20

e \\/est Midlands

2020-21

2021-22 2022-23

e England

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in fine motor skills at 2 to 2 %2 years in
Shropshire and its statistical and regional neighbours, including West Midlands and
England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,

OHID
100 England
West Midlands m——
95 I I Worcestershire
R Stoke-on-Trent H
N Telford and Wrekin H
— 90 I I Walsall H
o Wolverhampton H
5 Sandwell H
g 85 I Dudley H
E Shropshire =—————
Coventry H
80 Warwickshire !
Birmingham 1
Staffordshire 1
75 Herefordshire H
C ST E G S \é@ Solihull "
&66 OQJ &@ fgé’\ OQ"O 00 . b\(b (\Q
S AP S I & 0.0 50.0 100.0 150.0
~2~®& %06\ ° & roportion (%)
. . 0
N solving skills at 2-21)23y8ars
During 2022-23, 86.9% of children in Shropshire achieved the expected level in problem
solving skills at 2 to 2 ¥ years®3. This is lower than the regional average of 90.2% and
national average of 91.8%. This ranks Shropshire fifth lowest in the region and lowest
among its statistical neighbours. Though Shropshire’s proportion is lower than the national
53 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)
60

Page 220



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

average, a slight increase was observed between 2021-22 and 2022-23. There are data
quality concerns surrounding this data and figures should be interpreted with caution.

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in problem solving skills at 2 to 2 ¥2
years in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-
23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20

Proportion (%)

10
0

2017-18

= Shropshire

2018-19

2019-20

e \\/est Midlands

2020-21

2021-22

e England

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in problem solving skills at 2 to 2 %2
years in Shropshire and its statistical and regional neighbours, including West Midlands
and England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,

OHID
98.0 England m——
96.0 I West Midlands — se——
94.0 Worcestershire
. I Stoke-on-Trent 2
S 92.0 Dudley H
Z 90.0 Wolverhampton H
S 880 I I Telford and Wrekin 3l
‘g : Shropshire m———
Q 86.0 Sandwell H
o
5 840 Walsall H
Coventry H
82.0 Staffordshire H
80.0 Solihull H
Warwickshire H
78.0 Herefordshire H
é{‘\@ 6\00 \(}* o‘%é\ é\\@ o}\\@ \@Q@ C},bob Birmingham '
é\éb Q 6@@?: F{ %Q@Q \@\b <& 0.0 20.0 40.0 60.0 80.0 100.0120.0
23
¥ X & Proportion (%)

During 2022-23, 84% of children in Shropshire achieved the expected level in problem
solving skills at 2 to 2 % years®*. This was lower than the regional average of 89% and the
national average of 90.3%. This ranks Shropshire 6" lowest regionally and lowest among its
statistical neighbours.

54 Child and Maternal Health - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Page 221

61



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93431/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in personal social skills at 2 to 2 ¥
years in Shropshire, including West Midlands and England comparisons, 2017-18 to 2022-
23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

Proportion (%)

e

—

2017-18 2018-19

= Shropshire

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

e \\/est Midlands == England

Proportion of children achieving the expected level in personal social skills at 2 to 2 %>
years in Shropshire and its statistical and regional neighbours, including West Midlands
and England comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips,

OHID
9.0 England ——
94.0 West Midlands — s——
92.0 I Worcestershire
I I Stoke-on-Trent H
;\C’\ 90.0 Telford and Wrekin H
= 880 Dudley H
i) I Wolverhampton H
5 86.0 I Sandwell H
8— 84.0 Shropshire = ————
o 820 Walsall H
Coventry H
80.0 Herefordshire H
78.0 Staffordshire H
Warwickshire H
80 T S . . . Solihul "
RN RN (%) RN i i ]
Qﬁo bé\\ S .@‘\\ S & Qé\\‘b\fo‘\b q\,bo Birmingham
é\o« @Q}e N 9“&0 \@\ <& 0.0 20.0 40.0 60.0 80.0 100.0
o & Proportion (%)

Page 222

62



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

School readiness: children achieving a good level of development at the end
of Reception

School readiness is improving and getting better in Shropshire. During 2021-22, 65% of
children achieved a good level of development at the end of reception. Shropshire’s current
rate for school readiness is similar to the national average of 65.2% and regional average of
63.7%. Shropshire ranks 2" lowest amonyg its statistical neighbours and 6" highest in the
region.

Proportion of children achieving a good level of development at the end of Reception in
Shropshire and its statistical neighbours, including West Midlands and England
comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

76
74

72 [
70

o

: R
62
60
58
56

Proportion (%)

Page 223 >


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Proportion of children achieving a good level of development at the end of Reception in
Shropshire and its regional neighbours, including West Midlands and England
comparisons, 2022-23. Source: Child and Maternal Health Profile, Fingertips, OHID

England

West Midlands
Sandwell
Stoke-on-Trent
Wolverhampton
Dudley

Walsall
Coventry
Birmingham
Shropshire
Worcestershire
Telford and Wrekin
Staffordshire
Warwickshire
Solihull
Herefordshire

o
o
H
o
o

20.0 30.0 40.0 50.0
Proportion (%)

o)
o
o

70.0 80.0

Page 224


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938133223/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/402/are/E06000051/iid/93432/age/241/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

Service provision

The Healthy Child Programme (HCP) aims to bring together health, education and other
main partners to deliver an effective programme of prevention and support.

In Shropshire the public health elements of this programme are commissioned by Shropshire
Council to cover children aged 0-19 years (up to age 25 for those with Special Education
Needs and Disabilities (SEND)). Shropshire Community Health Trust are the commissioned
providers of the Public Health Nursing Service which includes the Health Visiting Service,
school nursing service and the Family Nurse Partnership.

Health Visitors provide support for families and their children aged 0-5 and are uniquely
placed to reach every child in their own home and be connected to their whole family and
community. They build trusting relationships with children, carers and families, to positively
influence their future health outcomes. Health Visitors identify the child’s health needs and
strengths and deliver timely, effective, evidence-based interventions in partnership with
them. Shropshire’s Health Visiting service provides a universal offer that ensures support for
children and families is personalised, effective, timely and proportionate.

Shropshire Council also commission the Family Nurse Partnership which is a structured,
evidence based, personalised, intensive visiting programme of support for vulnerable young
parents. Young mothers-to-be and their partners are supported by a specially trained Family
Nurse who visits them regularly, from early pregnancy until their child is aged between one
and two.

Page 225 *


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/healthy-child-programme-0-to-19-health-visitor-and-school-nurse-commissioning

9¢e abed

Public Health Nursing Service Performance

Health Visiting: quarterly performance and trends

The national Child Health Programme sets out five mandatory checks which provide good proxies for how well the service is meeting the needs
of children and families. Locally sourced performance data up to Q4 2023-24 is shown below. This shows the gap as of Q4 2022/23 to the
national average (2022/23) as an indicator of performance improvement. Note, this data has not yet been validated by the provider but is
included to give an indication of progress and trends.

Quarterly data from the provider shows an improvement in the rate of most of the mandated contacts:

New Birth visits within 14 days
Shropshire’s performance for the New Birth Visits within 14 days and has been improving over time. In the latest quarter, 78% of mothers
received a new birth visit within 14 days of giving birth compared to 80% on average nationally.

6-8 week review
Shropshire’s rate of 6-8 week reviews by 8 weeks is how similar to the national average in the latest quarter, with 80% of mothers receiving a
check by 8 weeks compared to 80% nationally.

12 month review by 12 months
The percentage of mothers receiving a 12 month review by 12 months is below the national average and requires improvement at 61%
compared to 83% nationally. However, this rate is improving over time, up from 40% in Q4 of 22/23 to 61% in Q4 of 23/24.

The reason for this low rate is due to reviews taking place before 15 months, with a rate of 87%. This is mainly due to the timing that the invites
are generated and parental choice. The service have made changes to the system to generate earlier appointments to ensure that these are
more frequently prior to the child’s first birthday.

2-2 Y, year review
In Shropshire, 70% of mothers received a 2- 2 % year review, lower than the national rate of 74% but improving over time.

66



/zc abed

Health Visiting Indicators Summary - Shropshire

Trend Change .

Trend over compared fcompared to DUEATOREL EEDE
Indicator Q122/23 Q22223  Q322/23 Q422/23 Q123/24 Q223/24 Q323124 Q423124 - P P average national

time chart to previousf] previous X

2022/23 average
quarter quarter

Number of First face to face antenatal contact 17 19 19 21 24 20 32 38
% NBV within 14 days 7% 86% 81% 78% 79% 79% 80% 78% -2% 80% -2%
% NBV after 14 days 20% 12% 17% 18% 19% 19% 18% 18% 0% -
% 6-8 week review by 8 weeks 74% 75% 70% 73% 74% 71% 89% 80% -9% 80% 0%
% Breastfed at 6-8 weeks 28% 31% 31% 33% 38% 35% 40% 49% 9% 49% 0%
% 12 month review by 12 months 22% 48% 57% 40% 37% 41% 50% 61% 11% 83% -22%
% 12 month review by 15 months 65% 52% 88% 96% 88% 85% 82% 87% 5% - -
% 2-2Y, year review 58% 51% 41% 61% 66% 61% 78% 70% -8% 74% -4%
% 2-2Y2 year review using ASQ 3 90% 92% 90% 89% 81% 85% 86% 92% 6% 93% 1%
% at or above expected level in communication skills 78% 67% 2% 74% 78% 75% 79% 67% -12% 85% -6%
% at or above expected level in gross motor skills 86% 78% 75% 86% 87% 84% 89% 78% -11% 93% -4%
% at or above expected level in fine motor skills 88% 81% 85% 88% 92% 86% 91% 81% -10% 93% -2%
% at or above expected level in problem solving skills 86% 79% 84% 85% 86% 85% 90% 79% -11% 92% -2%
% at or above expected level in personal-social skills 83% 75% 79% 84% 87% 64% 89% 75% -14% 90%

% at or above expected level in all five areas of developm 64% 59% 63% 61% 65% 68% 67% 59% -8% 79%




8¢ abed

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Health Visiting Indicators by Quarter, Shropshire 22/23-23/24

Q122/23 Q222/23 Q322/23 Q422/23 Q12324 Q223/24 Q3 23/24

Q4 23/24

—e—00 NBV within 14 days

=o—00 NBV after 14 days

=0==0/0 6-8 week review by 8 weeks

=000 Breastfed at 6-8 weeks

=o—00 12 month review by 12 months

—=8—00 12 month review by 15 months

—e— 0 2-2> year review

68



Health Visiting: annual performance and trends

Data from published 2022/23 shows Shropshire worse than the national average for all
mandated contacts with the exception of New Birth Visits within 14 days, where Shropshire
was similar to the national average.

However, data for 2023/24, there has been an increase year on year for all mandated
contacts (in bold in table below) with the exception of New Birth Visits within 14 days which
remains steady.

e The proportion of babies receiving a 6-8 week review by 8 weeks increased by 5%
between 2022/23 and 2023/24.

e % Breastfed at 6-8 weeks increased by 10% in the same period.

e The proportion of children receiving a 12 month review by 12 months increased by
5% between 2022/23 and 2023/24.

e The proportion receiving 2-21/2 year reviews saw the biggest improvement, a rise of
16% compared to the previous year.

Year

Mandated = Shropshire = Shropshire on National | Gapto | Compared
Metric contact? average average average | national | to national
22/23 23/24 e 2022/23 | average | average
change
Yes
% NBV within 14 days 81% 79% -2% 80% -1% Similar
% NBV within 30 days No 19% 19% 0% - - -
%6-8 week review by 8 VS 73% 79% 5% 80%  -1%  Similar
weeks
0 - Yes
/o Breastred at 6-8 31% 41% 10% 49% 8%  Similar
weeks
% 12 month review by Yes
12 months 42% 47% 5% 83%  -36%  \orse
% 12 month review by Yes 7506 86% 10% ) ) )
15 months
Yes
% 2-2Y2 year review 53% 69% 16% 74% -5% Similar

Health Visiting: Open Access Clinics

Open Access clinics are located within Community and Family hubs across the county
offering families the opportunity to “drop in“ to see a health visitor for advice, guidance or
support related to their or their family's health and well-being.

The data below shows the additional contacts through the Health Visiting open access drop
in clinics. Please note, during Q4 23/24, only Sunflower House was operating.

During Q4 of 2023/24, there were 307 attendances, with 10 visits from service users out of
area. Growth monitoring was the most common arrival reason. ‘Other’ include; frequent
stools , teething and breastfeeding.

Weight review and weaning were the most common advice given. 5 onward referrals were

made following clinic visits, to GPs or paediatricians.

Page 229 ®°



Arrival Reason

350
298
300
250
200
150

100 71

0 —

Growth Health Advice Weaning/Diet
Monitor

Behaviour

Advice Given

350

300 289

250
200
150

100 85

-1 N
0 L

Weight Review Health Advice Weaning/Diet

The ‘Other’ break down as follows;
- Breastfeeding
- Height
- Development
- Reflux
- Birth Reflection
- Feeding
- Head Circumference

Behaviour

10

Sleep

15

Sleep

Other

19

Other

In Q1 of 24/25, there were 353 attendances, a rise compared to the previous quarter. Two
Early Help referrals were made. And four had an outcome of Targeted Early Help.

The most common advice was again, growth monitoring and diet/weaning.

Advice Total
Behaviour 5
Breastfeeding 87

Page 230

70



Development 46
Diet/Weaning 145
Parental Mental 5
Health and Well-
Being
Growth Monitoring 342
Health Advice 67
Sleep 19
Other 36
Other’ includes

- Walking

- Baby Bank

- Constipation

- Chesty Cough

- Physical Health

- Birth Reflections

- Skin irritations

- Torticollis

- Reflux

- Head Circumference/Shape
- Safety advice

- Dental Health

- Sun Safety

- Signposting to GP

- Referral to breastfeeding specialist
- Referral to Physio

- Speech

6—8-week review: breastfeeding status

Note: this data differs from data presented in the Breastfeeding Prevalence section. The
denominator is the total number of infants who received a 6—8-week review and does not
include those who did not receive a visit.

The proportion of infants partially or totally breastfed at their 6-8 week review has seen a rise
over time. As of Q4 23/4, 49% of infants were recorded as breastfed at their 6-8 week
review, a 14% rise since Q2 of the same year.

In Q4 of 2022/23, half (49%) of infants who were assessed at their 6-8-week review were
partially or totally breastfed, 33% of which were totally breastfed.

This is an improvement compared to the previous year, up from 46% partially or totally
breastfed in Q4 2021/22 to 49% in Q4 2022/23.

Page 231 "



Breastfeeding status at 6-8 week review
Denominator: the total number of infants who were assesed at their 6-8wk

review by the end of the quarter

Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 Q3 2022/23 Q4 2022/23

Page 232

m % not breastfed at 6-8
weeks

m % partially breastfed at
6-8 weeks

m % totally breastfed at 6-8
weeks

72



cge abed

Uptake of the Healthy Start Voucher Scheme

The Healthy Start scheme provides vouchers for pregnant women and parents with children under 4 years of age in receipt of certain
benefits to help buy some basic foods. This important means-tested scheme provides vouchers to spend with local retailers. The scheme
provides financial support to families to buy health food, milk and vitamins for pregnant women and parents of young children.

Take up in the most recent reporting period (January 2024) in Shropshire was 71% of eligible families, which was slightly below the
national average of 74% °°.This is a rise over the last three years, up from 49% in January 2021. However, this still means that over a
third (39%) of eligible families aren’t taking up this free support for their children. The chart below right shows the number of eligible families
and the number of people taking up healthy start vouchers. Both have been rising since January 2019, with a steeper rise in eligible families
compared to the number of those taking up the scheme. This is also seen nationally®®.

Uptake % , o
P Entitled Beneficiaries and Uptake
80% 0
70% 66% 1% =@ Eligible beneficiaries =& ptake (entitled beneficiaries)
70% ® 63%  63% 63% 64% e
® ® ® & 2250
%
60% 52‘% 49% 2000
50% d 1750
40% 1500
30% 1250
. 750
10% 500
0% 250
R T G 0
W N4 N N4 N N4 W N4 N Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22 Jan-23 Jan-24

55 https://media.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/news/nhs-healthy-start-uptake-data-released

% https://media.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/news/nhs-healthy-start-uptake-data-
released#:~:text=National%20uptake%20is%20currently%2062.7,the%20previous%20paper%20voucher%20scheme.&text=More%20families%20 are%20no
w%20eligible,than%2020%2C000%20since%20August%202021.

73


https://www.healthystart.nhs.uk/
https://media.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/news/nhs-healthy-start-uptake-data-released
https://media.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/news/nhs-healthy-start-uptake-data-released#:~:text=National%20uptake%20is%20currently%2062.7,the%20previous%20paper%20voucher%20scheme.&text=More%20families%20are%20now%20eligible,than%2020%2C000%20since%20August%202021
https://media.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/news/nhs-healthy-start-uptake-data-released#:~:text=National%20uptake%20is%20currently%2062.7,the%20previous%20paper%20voucher%20scheme.&text=More%20families%20are%20now%20eligible,than%2020%2C000%20since%20August%202021
https://media.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/news/nhs-healthy-start-uptake-data-released#:~:text=National%20uptake%20is%20currently%2062.7,the%20previous%20paper%20voucher%20scheme.&text=More%20families%20are%20now%20eligible,than%2020%2C000%20since%20August%202021

Healthy Start Voucher Scheme ¥ Shropshire

Planning Communications material Online

December 2021- January 2022 prod uced communications

= Explored data and refined objectives May- June 2022 cam paign went

= Recognition of pressures/limited capacdity of frontline Leaflet For Families produced adapting NHS HS .
staff to promote vouchers TR live
Mapped existing promotion Professionals poster produced with key messages August 2022 .
Planned who we needed to engage for professionals to build confidence Online comms campaign went
Explored NHS resources that could be adapted For QR code embedded live- Shropshire Coundil social
Shropshire ) Healthy Start ‘Ask your midwife or Health Visitor media, intranet (all relevant
Agreed target of 5% increase about Healthy Start’ stickers- maternity webpages), Family information
Linked to Health Inequalities plan agreement to stick these on all red books for services and organisations
Agreed to engage with relevant staff to see what they pregnant women added SC link to webpages.
needed to promote SWAY created For professionals with links to NHS

information For professionals

49% 65%

uptake uptake

Review of feedback & funding
2021 e 2023

= Professionals were not confident to promote
as did not feel knowledgeable. Changes to
HS move to digital was another barrier as
professionals were not aware of new

Campaign went live

Engagement with
Julyzozz August 2022 Ongoing

stakeholders and

professionals

January 202-April 2022

Meetings with midwifery, public health
nurses, food banks, sodal care, early
help, parenting team, Maternity voices
partnership and Shropshire Council

process. Professionals felt a visual leaflet
and QR code would be helpful alongside
professionals information.

Workforce group agreed messages and
resources needed based on stakeholder
engagement

Costed and budget secured through Public

Huge response with almost all
organisations requesting printed
posters

Positive feedback received from
organisations and professionals
Additional organisations
requesting resources- word of

August 2022 to present

= Regular online and
stakeholder promotion
Review of engagement with
social media comms
campaigns
Ask to the system to promote

colleagues (welfare team, public health, Health/Shropshire Coundil for resources mouth

registrars, housing, libraries etc)




Gee obed

Children aged 0-4 with SEND

Please see the Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) for 0-25 year olds JSNA here for data and intelligence relating to this group.

Vulnerable children

Drugs and Alcohol

Information on Parents/carers and families in substance misuse services can be found in the Population and Context Chapter of this JSNA.
Please refer to the chapter for more information.

Shropshire’s published Drugs and Alcohol Needs Assessment provides more detailed information here Drug and Alcohol Needs Assessment.

Domestic abuse

Information on Parents/carers and families in substance misuse services can be found in the Population and Context Chapter of this JISNA.
Please refer to the chapter for more information.

In 2022, Shropshire’s Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment was published, including a section on children and young people. For more
information, please see the main report here.

Child Benefits

See Population and Context chapter — Child Benefits section for detail.

In Shropshire, there were 11,260 children aged under 5 for whom benefit was received in August 2023, equating to 22% of all children for
whom benefit is received in the county. This is a small decrease compared to the previous year of 3% (equating to390 children).

Total number of children for whom benefit is received by age group, West Midlands Local authorities, August 2023

75


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna/drugs-and-alcohol/
https://www.shropshiresafeguardingcommunitypartnership.co.uk/media/tygemsvp/07-shropshire-domestic-abuse-needs-assessment.pdf

9gg abed

Total

Area Name Children:  Children: Children: Ch'llgfnnd number
Under 5 5t0 10 11to 15 of

over .
children
Herefordshire, County of 6,635 10,190 9,220 4,610 | 30,655
Shropshire 11,260 16,780 15,190 7,530 | 50,760
Stoke-on-Trent 13,515 19,320 17,120 7,910 | 57,860
Telford and Wrekin 8,860 13,055 11,750 5,745 39,415
Staffordshire 35,530 50,880 44,850 22,300 | 153,560
Warwickshire 22,720 33,185 29,530 14,285 | 99,720
Birmingham 58,830 90,140 80,550 42,140 | 271,660
Coventry 15,970 23,990 21,645 10,390 | 71,995
Dudley 15,170 21,740 18,815 9,490 | 65,215
Sandwell 18,060 27,170 24,410 12,420 | 82,060
Solihull 7,800 12,390 11,295 5,755 | 37,240
Walsall 15,150 22,185 19,385 9,730 | 66,445
Wolverhampton 13,555 20,465 18,195 9,090 | 61,305
Worcestershire 22,640 33,605 30,120 15,250 | 101,610
. Total
Area Name Children:  Children: Children: Chlllgraennd number
Under 5 5t0 10 11to 15 over _ of
children
Herefordshire, County of 22% 33% 30% 15% 30,655
Shropshire 22% 33% 30% 15% 50,760

76



/€¢ abed

Stoke-on-Trent
Telford and Wrekin
Staffordshire
Warwickshire
Birmingham
Coventry
Dudley
Sandwell
Solihull

Walsall
Wolverhampton
Worcestershire

Total number of children for whom benefit is received by age group, Shropshire, August 2022-23

23%
22%
23%
23%
22%
22%
23%
22%
21%
23%
22%
22%

Shropshire Aug-22 Aug-23
Children: Under 5 11,650 11,260
Children: 5to 10 17,270 16,780
Children: 11 to 15 15,145 15,190
Children: 16 and over 7,700 7,530

14%
15%
15%
14%
16%
14%
15%
15%
15%
15%
15%
15%

57,860
39,415
153,560
99,720
271,660
71,995
65,215
82,060
37,240
66,445
61,305
101,610

77



Children in need

Every local authority must protect and promote the welfare of children in need in its area. To
do this, it must work with the family to provide support services that will enable children to be
brought up within their own families.

Who are ‘children in need’
Children in need are defined in law as children who are aged under 18 and:
o need local authority services to achieve or maintain a reasonable standard of health
or development
e need local authority services to prevent significant or further harm to health or
development
o are disabled

Children in Need are a legally defined group of children (under the Children Act 1989),
assessed as needing help and protection as a result of risks to their development or health.

This group includes children on child in need plans, children on child protection plans,
children looked after by local authorities, care leavers and disabled children®’.

National picture

Children in need Children on protection plans Referrals

403,090 50,780 640,430

down 0.3% or 1,200 since 2022. down 0.3% or 100 since 2022. down 1.5% or 9,800 since 2022.

» Help P Help p Help

Children in need per 10,000 Children on protection plans Completed assessments

sa27  |asz~  |655.340

up 1.6% or10,500 since 2022,

» Help » Help » Help

Source: Department for Education (DfE)

In 2023, over 403,000 children were classed as in need and just under 51,000 children were
on protection plans.

All the headline measures (apart from completed assessments) have decreased at least
slightly compared with 2022. The number of children in need is higher than in 2020, which
(mostly) pre-dates the COVID-19 pandemic in England. However, the number of children on
protection plans, referrals and completed assessments is lower.

The latest annual decreases follow the increase in 2022, in which there was a rise in all the
headline measures, likely linked to school attendance restrictions due to COVID-19 no
longer being in place.

57 Citizens Advice

Page 238 ®


https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/characteristics-of-children-in-need#releaseHeadlines-summary
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/cymraeg/family/looking-after-people/local-authority-services-for-children-in-need/#:~:text=Children%20being%20accommodated&text=A%20local%20authority%20has%20a,and%20accommodation%20for%20whatever%20reason

In 2021, there was a fall in referrals, mainly driven by a drop in school referrals, attributable
to restrictions on school attendance being in place for parts of the year. This in turn likely
contributed to the falls seen in the other headline measures in that year®s.

Shropshire picture

Referrals

1,736

+151

Children on Protection Plans

238

A+35

Children in need

1,934

Children on Protection Plans
per 10,000 children

40.7

Children in need per 10,000
children

331

Completed assessments

3,606

A+100

Data at 31 March 2023: (arrows indicate change compared to 2022)
Source: Explore Education Statistics

In Shropshire, at 31 March 2023, there were 1,934 children in need (aged under 18). This
equates to a rate of 331 children in need per 10,000 children which is below regional and
national average but similar to our statistical neighbours. There were 238 on protection
plans, equating to a rate of 40.7 per 10,000, below the national average.

The rate of children in need in Shropshire has been rising over time since 2017, rising from a
rate of 199 in 2017 to 331 per 10,000 children.

The most common primary need for these children was abuse or neglect between 2013 and
2023, with 58% of children in need having this as their primary need. This rate has been
steady over the last 3 years

The rate of children on child protection plans in Shropshire has been falling since 2019,
however there has been a rise in the latest year, up from 34.7 per 10,000 in 2022 to 40.7 per
10,000 in 2023.

58 Children in Need- Gov.uk https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-
statistics/characteristics-of-children-in-need

Page 239 ”


https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/data-catalogue/characteristics-of-children-in-need/2023
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/characteristics-of-children-in-need
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/characteristics-of-children-in-need

Children in need in Shropshire aged under 18

= Fpisodes Rate per 10,000

2500 350
300
2000 c
g
® 250 ©
e =
8 [&)
-2 1500 o
o 200 &
o s}
5 8
—
) 150
o 1000 s
E g
>
=z 100 @
@
500 o
(o)) O o™ — (ce} (©2} N~ o™ N ™
< N © (o] — Lo Lo (o] (e} (o]
— - — - i — — -~ i -l
0 0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Children in Need rate per 10,000
Local Authority, Region and England Change from
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 previous year
893 Shropshire 210.70 273.80 271.90 198.60 202.20 26570 262,30 321.60 33000 331.00 1.00
984 West Midlands 378.20 368.60 368.90 362.20 360.20 362.30 338.10 343.80 36610 369.00 3.90
Statistical Neighbours 325.26 328.29 312.84 289.42 302.30 295.24 283.35 277.45 33085 325.69 -5.16
970 England 343.70 336.60 337.30 330,10 341.00 33420 323.70 321.20 343.80 34270 -1.10
Quartile bands
Upto and Upto and Up to and Up to and
Change from Latest Quartile including including including including
Trend previous year  Mational Rank Banding
893 Shropshire + 1.00 - = - - - -

Children in Need rate per 10,000

400.00
'\ R /4_————0
350.00 - e —
- _____..--—_._____._______:-— — - —
I———'\-\ / =G
a 300.00 —--...___—-—-——-— /_
=]
=
5 AN o
= 250.00
f
v
g / \ /
I 200.00 2
I
=
150.00
100.00
50.00
0.00 . . . . . - - - -
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Midlands i —t— England

Source: LAIT tool

Page 240

80



Primary need of children in need, Shropshire, at
March 2023

NO_Not_stated I 150
N9 Cases_other_than_CIN
N8_Absent_parenting Il 100
N7_Low_income 0
N6_Socially_unacceptable_behaviour 01 15
N5_Family_dysfunction Il 114
N4_Family_in_acute_stress [l 78
N3_Parents_disability_or_illness
N2_Childs_disability_or_illness N 334
N1_Abuse_or_neglect I 1127

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
Number of children

Outcomes for Children in Need (including Looked after Children)

Data is only published up to 315t March 2022. At this time in Shropshire, there were1,928
children in need (CIN) aged under 18.

Social Care group Definition
CIN Children in need
CINO children in need, excluding children on a

child protection plan and children looked
after. This includes children on child in need
plans as well as other types of plan or

arrangements.

CPPO children on a child protection plan,
excluding children looked after.

CLA children looked after (excludes children who

are in respite care in their most recent
episode during the reporting year).

Special education needs (SEN)

Special educational need and primary type of special education need for children in need
(excluding children on a child protection plan and children looked after), children on a child
protection plan (excluding children looked after) and children looked after.

In Shropshire, at 315t March 2022, there were 1,097 children in need who were pupils, 52%
(572) of which were pupils with SEN. This compares with 49% nationally.

Page 241 o




Of the 1,097 children in need who were pupils, 62% were children in need, excluding
children on a child protection plan and children looked after, 26% were children looked after
the remaining were on child protection plans. This is a similar profile to what we see
nationally.

Of those CINO pupils in Shropshire, 58% were pupils with SEN, compared to 48% of
children looked after and a third of children on protection plans were pupils with SEN. In
England, 48% were pupils with SEN, compared to 57% of children looked after and 39% of
children on protection plans were pupils with SEN.

Total
pupils in Number of i
" . pupils Number of
ALSLY | SOCid care | each % | with noidentified | % | pupils with | %
group e SEN SEN
group
CINO 139320 | 66% 72.140 52% 67.180 48%
CLA 41,940 | 20% 17.890 43% 24.060 57%
CPPO 20710 | 14% 18,050 61% 11,650 39%
Total 210970 | 100% 108,080 51% | 102,890 | 49%
CINO 682 62% 289 42% 393 58%
Shronehire CLA 284 26% 149 52% 135 48%
P CPPO 131 12% 87 66% 44 34%
Total 1,097 | 100% 525 48% 572 52%

Children looked after (children in care)

Children in care are a vulnerable group at greater risk of poor physical and emotional health
outcomes than their peers. This can lead to poorer health throughout their life, and shorter
life expectancy. Each local authority has a responsibility to understand a children in care’s
health needs and ensure that they receive the care they need.

On March 2023 in Shropshire, there were 656 children looked after, a rise of 7.5% compared
the previous year®®. Local data indicates that there will be a rise in 2024, with 719 looked
after children reported as at 25 March 2024.

In 2023, there were 161 children looked after aged 0-4 years old, making up 24% of all
children looked after in the county. Local data indicates that there are currently 154 looked
after children aged 0-4 in Shropshire as at 25 March 2024, making up 21% of all looked after
children.

59 Education Statistics

Page 242 %2


https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/data-catalogue/children-looked-after-in-england-including-adoptions/2022

Number of children looked after (all
ages) in Shropshire

700

600

500

395

400

300

200

100

2019

Published data showing the number of children looked after in each age group over time. Soruce:

504

399

2020 2021

Education Statistics.

656

610

2022

Children Looked After in
Shropshire on March 2023 by age

4%

2023

35%

23%

= Under 1
=aged1-4
aged 5-9
aged 10-15
= Aged 16+

Children looked after on 31 March in each year
Year Under 1 aged 1-4 | aged 5-9 | aged 10- | Aged Total
15 16+

2019 21 63 84 144 83 395
2020 17 71 86 149 76 399
2021 33 104 111 166 90 504
2022 41 127 133 199 110 610
2023 27 134 153 227 115 656

Table showing local data from Shropshire Children’s Services at 25 March 2024

As at 25/3/24 0-4 years Total
Full care order 67 433
Interim care order 57 150
Single period (s20) 27 126
Placement order * 9

LA on remand *

Total 154 719

* Numbers under 5 have been suppressed.

Trends

There has been a steady rise among all age groups compared to 2022, particularly in those
aged 5-15. However there has been a fall among children looked after aged under 1.

Page 243

83



CLA by age over time in Shropshire

250
200
=0-=Under 1 year
150
=0==1 to 4 years
10 to 15 years
100 =816 years and over
=@="5 to 9 years
0

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Compared to England, in 2023, Shropshire had a higher proportion of looked after children in
the 1-4 year old and 5-9 year old age groups, and a lower proportion in those aged 10 and
over.

% of children looked after in each age group, as at 31
March 2023. Shropshire vs England

® Shropshire ®England
40%

35% 38%
30% 35%
0,
25% 26%
20% 23%
20%

15% 18% 18%
10% 13%

5%

4% B 5%
o
Under 1 year 1to 4 years 5to 9 years 10to 15 years 16 years and over
Age group

Vulnerable families with 0-4 year olds

The Supporting Families Programme helps thousands of families across England to get the
help they need to address multiple disadvantages through a whole family approach,
delivered by keyworkers, working for local authorities and their partners.

Page 244 o



Supporting Families launched in March 2021 and builds on the previous Troubled Families
programme. As set out in ‘Supporting Families 2021 to 2022 and beyond’, its focus is on
building the resilience of vulnerable families, and on driving system change so that every
area has joined up, efficient local services which are able to identify families in need and
provide the right support at the right time.
The programme has two key ambitions:
e To see vulnerable families thrive, building their resilience by providing effective,
whole family support to help prevent escalation into statutory services.
e To drive system change locally and nationally, working with local authorities and their
partners to create joined up local services, able to identify families in need, provide
the right support at the right time, and track their outcomes in the long term

To help local authorities and their partners achieve these objectives, an outcomes
framework has been developed which includes ten headline outcomes. This enables more
detailed reporting on the problems families are facing, clarify what good looks like for these
outcomes, and what levels of evidence would be expected when measuring these outcomes.

The 10 headline outcomes are:
1. Getting a good education
2. Good early years development
3. Improved mental and physical health
4. Promoting recovery and reducing harm from substance use
5. Improved family relationships
6. Children safe from abuse and exploitation
7. Crime prevention and tackling crime
8. Safe from domestic abuse
9. Secure housing
10. Financial stability

What are the most common problems our families with 0-4 year olds face?

The below table shows a locally collated list of metrics grouped into criteria relating to the
Supporting Families Framework. This was used to identify vulnerable children and their
families in Shropshire, the common problems families face and to measure the impact of the
Supporting Families programme.

The following were matched by people and property:

Social Care (Adults and Children’s)
Education Management

Housing Options

Early Years census

School census

Police domestic abuse and violence
Youth offending

Universal credit

Drug and alcohol abuse (in progress)

Table showing metrics grouped into criteria relating to the Supporting Families Framework used to
identify vulnerable families

Criteria Metric

(Supporting
families
outcome)

Page 245 %


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/supporting-families-2021-to-2022-and-beyond

Children
Safeguarding

(Children safe
from abuse
and
exploitation;
Improved
family
relationships)

Child Looked After Episode

CIN Plan

Contacts

Child Sexual Exploitation or at risk of

Early Help Episode of support (with consent)

Child Missing from Home or Care Episode

Child on a Child Protection Plan

Open case on LCS - open referral and CIN at national level. Closed when services are
closed.

S47 Assessment

Crime

(Crime
prevention and
tackling crime)

Self-reported issues with crime recorded on Housing Application Form. Do you or anyone
else in the household have a Criminal Conviction/ ASBO or a Conviction for a sexual offence

Child Criminal Exploitation or at risk of

Accused and convicted of Crime Incident

Youth Offending Service Involvement

Anti-Social Behaviour interventions through housing or evicted due to Anti-Social Behaviour

Domestic A crime incident involving emotional, physical & financial domestic abuse. Includes all

Abuse victim/suspect type roles associated with each crime incident. Where blame cannot be
apportioned all parties recorded against the offence (including dependants of the nominals

(Safe from involved in the DA incident) will be recorded as an involved party.

ggumsis)t'c Accused and convicted of Crime Incident with a Domestic Violence marker or similar

Early Years Their children are eligible for 24U Funding (15 hours of free childcare) but are not taking this
up.

(Good early Child is eligible for Disability Access Fund-a one-off payment of £615 per child per year to

years the provider nominated by the parent (for parents receiving Disability Living Allowance for

development)

their child)

Child is eligible for Pupil Premium which is paid to provider to help with child's education if
parent is on specified benefits or child is looked after or has left care through adoption,
special guardianship order or a childs arrangement order

Child is recorded as having Special Educational Needs (in Early Years setting)

Education Child recorded on Liquid Logic as having Special Educational Needs
(Getting a Child has more than 10% absence
good Child has had an exclusion from school
education)
Primary Special Educational Need recorded
Secondary Special Educational Need recorded
Financial Self-reported financial issues recorded on Housing Application Form. Are you or anyone
else in the household in Debt, have Debts or Loans or is either Unemployed, Unable to work
(Financial or Neither of the potential household members are employed.
stability) Claiming Benefits
Rent arrears (having issues with rent)
Child has free school meals
Health Self-reported health issues recorded on Housing Application Form. Do you or anyone else
in the household identify as having a Medical Condition, Mental Health Issues or is receiving
(Improved Medical Benefits
mental and
physical
health)
Housing Is homeless (gained from the Housing register application)
(Secure On Housing Register
Housing) On the Emergency Accommodation list

Page 246 °°




Note: Substance misuse data is currently missing due to information governance issues as this
analysis required patient identifiable data. You can find information on parents/carers in drug and
alcohol treatment in the Population and Context Chapter.

Data was filtered to identify the number of 0-4 year olds for each metric. Between May 2022
and May 2023 in Shropshire, there were 10,541 records of activity in total:

e Of these 10,541 records, secure housing was the most common problem families
with 0-4 year olds were facing with 30% on a housing register, emergency
accommodation list or registered as homeless

e Child safeguarding was identified in 28% of all records
¢ Financial issues were identified in 18% of all records, indicating this as another
common issue

Note, one child can have records across multiple metrics.

Chart showing the most common vulnerability for families with
children aged 0-4 between May 2022-2023. Based on the Supporting
Families Framework.

18%
12%
4% 3% o
O -
[ | ] _

- ‘ : £ & 2 S .
) & O & o 4@ > C;‘\é\
J > @ 0 v $
& 8
K N N O Q S
o ) < N & &
N S @e»'”
& & o
&
»
o
Theme

Identifying our most vulnerable children and their families

Children/families with records across multiple criteria are our most vulnerable families in
Shropshire. This work has been undertaken to determine:

e Is Early Help working with the right families?

e Are we engaging the hardest to reach families?

For example: a child/family with a 0-4 year old could be on the housing register, have a
family member with health issues and a family member with a criminal record, therefore
having vulnerabilities across Housing, Health and Crime.

How many families with 0-4 year olds had records across three or more criteria?

There were 3,869 0-4 year olds in 3,421 properties known to Shropshire Council in the last
12 months (from 8 June 2024). These children where identified to have activity in one or
more of the eight criteria:

e Adult Safeguarding

e Children Safeguarding

Page 247 o7



Crime

Housing
Education
Finance

Health
Domestic abuse

Majority (93%) of 0-4 year olds had activity in 1-3 criteria, with over half having activity in one

criteria. Children Safeguarding and housing were the two most common criteria in this age

group.
Number of | Number of 0-4 % of 0-4 year olds
criteria year o0ld%
1 2,105 54%
2 861 22%
3 640 17%
4 214 6%
5 47 1%
6 * *
Total 3,869 100%

Early Help Hub dashboard

g Shropshir-e Children Known to Shropshire Council in the Last 12 Months
CToune

7 1. Child By Criteria

All Electoral Divisions

2K

08 June 2024

Electoral Division

Count of Children by Electoral Division

To exit full screen, press | Esc
@ (Blank) Central East H Central West H North East H North West South East South West Al
Open Early Help Open LL Child
[ne v ] B Criteria ®Adult Safe @ Children 5. ®Crime ®Domestic .. ®Education ¥
Any Early Help Any LL Child
| Ne ” Yes ‘ No H Yes |

e
. - ]
Count of Children by Criteria 5
2
Children Safe =
Adult secur. <
E K
5
3
o
cr. Fi.
Educa Healtn oK
Domestic Abuse 2 3 4 5 6
Criteria
Age Child Count Count Adult Children  Early Education Financial Secure Crime Domestic Health
3869 3421 Criteria Tables Rows Safe  Safe  Years Housing Abuse
People Praperties ! ! 1 0 0 0 0
01 1 1 0 0 0 0
01 1 2 0 0 0 0
8 22 01 1 1 0 0 00
. 01 1 2 0 0 0 0
riteria Tables ~ , . K .
Adult Safe Child Safe Early Years Education Financial Secure Housing Crime Domestic Abuse Health
[no e | [we e [ @ | [ v | [0 J[vee | [wo J[vee | [0 o] [oo v | [vo s |

Children’s Social Care Contacts and referrals

Contacts

In Shropshire in 2023-24, there were 2,698 Children’s Social Care contacts with babies,
infants and children aged 0-4, a fall of 82 contacts compared to the previous year. There

was a higher number of contacts for this age group between May and July 2023 compared

to the same period in 2022 however for the remainder of the financial year, numbers of
contacts were similar, with some months of 2023-24 being slightly lower than the same

period in 2022-23.

Page 248

88



The highest number of contacts were from a health services and school source over the last
two years. Compared to 2022-23, there has been a rise in contacts with babies, infants and
children aged 0-4 in Shropshire where the source of contact was schools, individuals, and
LA services. The number of contacts where the source was health services remains steady,
however there has been a rise in contacts from A&E.

Dashboard showing Children’s social care contacts for 0-4 year olds. Source: Shropshire Children’s
services

Total Contacts current Prev Year Diff Contact Qutcome co
Year

2,698

Financial Year ©2022-2023 @2023-2024

Progress to Early Help Episode

Contact Source o |l a T B Al
Advice/Signposting

Financial Year © 2022-2023 @2023-2024

NFA

sehoots Progress to Children's Social Care
Refer to CHAST
LA services Referral to Other Agency
Anonymous 170
Other | 14z | OLA Child I
0 500 1,000 0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
Contacts Quarter Age Band
200 QTR1 Motwa
2 240 287 246 244 Qrr2 5to09
5 208 o QTR3 10to 14
200 X . QTR4 15+
e 208 01 - 197
188 180 Financial Year
APRIL MAY JUNE JuLy AUG sep ocT NOV DEC AN FEB MAR 2022-2023

2023-2024

Financial Year ©2022-2023 @2023-2024

Referrals

In Shropshire during 2023-24, there were 408 Children’s Social Care referrals of babies,
infants and children aged 0-4, a fall of 28 referrals compared to the previous year.

The highest number of referrals were from Health Services and LA services in 2023-24, with
Police making most referrals in 2022-23 for 0-4 year olds.

Within health services referrals, midwives and ambulances made the most referrals in 2023-
24. The number of referrals from midwives, ambulances, consultants and A&E doubled
compared to 2022-23, with a large fall seen in referrals made by primary health services.

Dashboard showing Children’s social care referrals for 0-4 year olds. Source: Shropshire Children’s
services

Page 249 °



Total Refi 0 ¢ = Referral Outcome
current year
Financial Year © 2022-2023 @2023-2024

Referral Source sacial Work Assessmant 185
Financial Year ©2022-2023 @2023-2024 B Transfer From OLA - Transt. I
He I |
NEA
T OLA - Transfer in Child Protect.. I

FGC Episode |
Other legal

Place into Accommodation

100 150 200 0 100 200 300 400
Referrals Quarter Age ~1¢
51 QTR1 Moto4
2 QrrR2 5t09
D QTR3 10t0 14
z QTR4 15+
Financial Year Referral Type
APRIL MAY JUNE Jury AUG SEP ocr NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 2022-2023 MNew Referral
YEARSORT © 2022-2023 @2023-2024 2023-2024 Repeat <12 Mths

Case study: COMPASS Help and Support Team (CHAST)

The CHAST offer aims to address demand and capacity issues into Children’s Social Care in
Shropshire and to ensure parents and families access support and help to meet their needs
at the earliest opportunity. CHAST support is important as Early help can offer children the
support needed to reach their full potential (EIF, 2021). It can improve the quality of a child’s
home and family life, enable them to perform better at school and support their mental health
(EIF, 2021). Research suggests that early help can:

» protect children from harm

* reduce the need for a referral to child protection services

» improve children's long-term outcomes (Haynes et al, 2015)

The COMPASS Help and Support Team data shows that between September 2022 and
March 2023, 74 babies, infants and children were supported by the team, 65% of which were
aged 2-4. This data includes unborn babies. These were children largely from household
compositions of 1-2 children (76%). Half (53%) of those supported were males, 43% were
females with the remainder were unknown. Majority of babies, infants and children
supported were White British (68%). Referrals came from a wide number of sources, for
example ambulances, schools, and the police. The most common presenting issues were
domestic abuse (16%), parenting difficulties (13%) and neglect (12%). The most common
barriers to access were not needing support previously (38%), declining support (23%) or
being known to children’s services previously (18%).

Table showing the top 6 presenting issues to CHAST, September 2022 to March 2023,
Source: COMPASS Help and Support Team

Presenting issue Count Proportion
Domestic abuse 18 16%
Parenting Difficulties 15 13%
Neglect 14 12%
Adult mental health 11 10%
Parental acrimony 10 9%
Adult substance misuse 9 8%

Page 250 %0



* Figures under 5 have been suppressed for confidentiality reasons.

Table showing Early Help outcomes, September 2022 to March 2023, Source: COMPASS Help and
Support Team

Early Help Outcome Count | Proportion
None as no support given

Due to decline 23 18%
Keeping children safe from abuse and exploitation 16 13%
Improved mental and physical health 15 12%
Safe from domestic abuse 8 6%
Improved family relationships 8 6%
Secure housing 8 6%
No data 8 6%
Early years development 7 6%
Getting a good education * *
Promoting recovery and reducing substance misuse * *
Financial stability * *

* Figures under 5 have been suppressed for confidentiality reasons.

Impact of CHAST on Children and Families from their perspective

Feedback was collected from all families with children aged 0-18 engaged with the team
during the first three months of operation. Families rated CHAST 8.80 out of 10 for the
support they received, with majority feeling their lived experiences had improved, they were
empowered, listened to and approached in a non-judgemental way. This included 49 babies,
infants and children aged 0-4 years (out of a total of 179). The feedback received stated our
children and families felt more confident to ask for help in the future and would recommend
CHAST to their friends and family.

MW Strongly Disagree M Disagree M Meutral M Agree M Strongly Agree

My lived experiences have improved II.._
| felt judged by CHAST, for my family situation _.
| feel more confident to ask for help in the future III_
because of the support | received.
I would recommend CHAST Support to my friends and III_
family.

0%

100% 100%

Only those families who need social work intervention are being identified at front door,
this ensures help to families at the right time, at the right level.

Page 251 o



Impact of CHAST on Children and Families
from their perspective.

Knowing that there are agencies outthere,
and there are things that | can access to
support me and my family. CHAST put me
in teuch with lots of suppor, that | can
access mysel, and gave reassurance that
there was help, Ithelped me to identity
problems that the situation could be, and
things | had not considened before

It wias & very quick turnaraund, and
with our experience of dealing with
BEEU, the difference, was amazing. It
feltlike before, we weres a forgotten
family . However, with the support from
Jill and CHAS T, we falt as though we
existed, for the first timeina long time,
It weas the first time, that we were dealt

withas a Family and net just mie.

you have amazed me
Jill, you have bien
here for half an hour,
and | feel batter than |
hawe felt for taenty
YEars.,

woe have spent years of
peoplenot listening to

It s inereased my confidence in e, A | feel now, that
my ability to move pastthe issues, we are going to gat
that | felt] was facing. | did not feel same suppor,and yau
so alone, inthe problemsthat | was have been really kind,

experiencing. | felt the safety ofmy
family was wery much the point of

concerm, without any fault of blame
being proportionad to myself.

it's a lifi lirse

92

Page 252



%¥ Shropshire

Council

CHAST Service-Improvements and the way
forward to 6-month Review.

Service improvements from the feedback received from
CHAST have already started to be undertaken. Examples are:

d Feedback was given around children and families being
sign-posted, to services, but not having hands on support
to make referrals. CHAST responded to this, by
disseminating new guidance to family support workers
around & hand-holding approach and more hands on help
and support.

i
2 28 N
"~ -

d Feedback was also given, around a lack of knowledge in . ‘,}
support service arena's for different presenting issues. _\\ £
CHAST responded to this, and now have weeskly catch-up
meelings where partners are invited o discuss their

service, and referral pathway to support the knowledge of
front-line family support workers in CHAST.

d Waiting times when CHAST became busy, were also
raised. CHAST is in the process of responding to this, with
an advert for two further family support workers to meet the

current demand on the COMPASS Help and Support _
Team.

Early Years Settings

Early years settings provide a caring, supportive environment where children can learn and
develop. Early years settings such as nurseries, pre-schools and childminders support
parents and deliver crucial care and education for our youngest children.

Starting from April 2024, existing childcare support will be expanded in phases. By
September 2025, most working families with children under the age of 5 will be entitled to 30
hours of childcare support.

The changes are being introduced gradually to make sure that providers can meet the needs
of more families. This means that:

From April 2024, eligible working parents of 2-year-olds will be able to access 15 hours
childcare support.

From September 2024, 15 hours childcare support will be extended to eligible working
parents of children from the age of 9 months to 3-year-olds.

From September 2025, eligible working parents with a child from 9 months old up to school
age will be entitled to 30 hours of childcare a week.

Page 253 >



Like the existing offer, depending on your provider, these hours can be used over 38 weeks
of the year or up to 52 weeks if you use fewer than your total hours per week.

Sign up for more details about the upcoming expansion from April 2024, as well as how and
when to register for support with childcare costs.

Age Age Age
24 2 9-23
years years months
WORKING
FAMILIES
15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 30
HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS
Now APR SEP SEP Now APR SEP SEP SEP SEP
2024 2024 2025 2024 2024 2025 2024 2025
WORKING WORKING
FAMILIES FAMILIES
30 30 30 30 15 15 30
HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS
Now AFPR SEP SEP APR SEP SEP

2024 2024 2025 2024 2024 2025

Source: Child Care Choices - https://www.childcarechoices.gov.uk/upcoming-changes-to-
childcare-support/

Where are the Early Years settings in Shropshire in relation to
areas of deprivation?

As of May 2024, in Shropshire, there were 99 Early Years settings and 97 childminders
located across the county (see map below). Many settings are concentrated in the
Shrewsbury area and Oswestry. Reassuringly, settings are well-placed in relation to areas
with high levels of income deprivation affecting children (purple heat map below).

94

Page 254


https://www.childcarechoices.gov.uk/upcoming-changes-to-childcare-support/
https://www.childcarechoices.gov.uk/upcoming-changes-to-childcare-support/

Early Years settings in Shropshire

Legend

®  EY Chilgmingers

@ EY Setings

Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) by MSOA
Proportion of all children aged 0 to 15 living in income deprived families
[ Jea-a1

[a1-a7

I er-1ze

B 125- 181

| RLEEE

|emwzmqosaommmr15

Page 255

Yo




Early Years settings in Shropshire

| Chirbury and|Aorthen)

EY Childminders - Ofsted rating Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) by MSOA

D Good Proportion of all children aged 0 to 15 living in income deprived families
@ nadequate [ Ja4-81
® Met [ler-o7
@ Outstanding I a7 -128
@ Registration I i26- 181
@ Registration Visit B 15.1-26.7
EY Settings - Ofsted rating

@ Good

@ Outstanding

@ Registration Visit

@ Requires Improvement

© Crown copyright 2024 OS ACO000808715

Yo

Page 256




Two thirds (67%) of Early Years settings received a ‘Good’ Ofsted outcome, with 1 in 4

(23%) receiving an ‘outstanding’ outcome.

Ofsted outcome Number of Early Years settings Proportion
Outstanding 22
Good 65
Requires improvement 2
Registration visit 8
Total 97

23%
67%
2%
8%
100%

Two thirds (68%) of Childminders received a ‘Good’ Ofsted outcome, with 13% receiving an

‘outstanding’ outcome and 11% ‘Met’ ..

Ofsted outcome Number of Childminders Proportion
Outstanding 13
Good 66
Met 11
Inadequate 1
Registration visit 6
Total 97

Voluntary and Community sector offer

13%
68%
11%
1%
6%
100%

The Shropshire Community Directory has been developed by Shropshire Libraries to provide
a comprehensive database of up-to-date information on community groups, clubs, societies

and organisations.

The Shropshire Family Information Directory has a list of activities and groups available to
families with children 0-4 years olds. There is currently a piece of work underway to enhance
this offer regularly adding new groups that become available across the whole of Shropshire

and just over the borders.

Details can be found via the website under the ‘Things to do’ section, and can then be
filtered by area or age group.

Page 257

97


http://search3.openobjects.com/kb5/shropshire/cd/home.page
http://search3.openobjects.com/kb5/shropshire/fid/home.page

Childcare SEND Local Offer Domestic abuse Education and Family support
learning

SHROPSHIRE

\
Health and Money matters Safety Things to do Young people
wellbeing

Shropshire Family Information Service (FIS) has developed this on-line directory featuring local and national
organisations and services that exist to support children, young people and families.

The directory contains information on groups which can offer advice and support on some of the issues or
concerns any family may encounter. It can also help you find activities in your local area for children and young
people to take part in where they can learn new skills and make new friends.

If you are part of a group or service that isn't yet included in the service directory contact Shropshire Family
Information Service to add your details free of charge.

Stakeholder engagement

We asked stakeholders to work with us to identify and provide us with the relevant data,
intelligence, and evidence to inform the JSNA:
¢ To identify subjects which should be spotlighted and explored in more depth
(Spotlight JISNAS)
e To inform us of your outreach and engagement work with children, young people and
families in Shropshire
e To provide their views on key opportunities, challenges, and assets to be included in
the JSNA
e Once developed, to use the Children and Young Peoples JSNA to inform service
development and delivery

We engaged stakeholders and professionals using an online questionnaire through the
SurveyMonkey platform. The guestionnaire was developed to capture the views of all
services and organisations that support babies, infants and children and their families (age
0-4).

Responses were collected between 31 March 2023 and 1 May 2023. In total, 36 responses
were received. Over half (56%) of respondents were Shropshire Council employees, 22%
were Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust employees, 11% were from Other
organisations (e.g. NHS Shropshire Telford & Wrekin ICB and Town Councils) and 8% from
Third Sector/Voluntary Community Sector Enterprises/Charities:

Page 258 %



Q1: Which organisation do you work for?

Answered: 36 Skipped: 0

Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust
Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital Trust
Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust
Primary care
Education (nurseries, early years and reception)
Third Sector/Voluntary Community Sector...
Local Business
West Mercia Police and Probation
Fire and Rescue

Other (please specify)

10% 20 30% 40% 50

0% 60% 70% 80% 90%  100%

Which service area do you work in?

Organisation and Service area Number of respondents

N
o

Shropshire Council
Children's Social Care
Culture Leisure and Tourism
Early Help
Emergency planning biodiversity and public health
Housing Services
Learning and skills
Libraries
Public Health
Shropshire Museums and Archives
Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust
Community children's nursing
Community Paediatrics
Family Nurse Partnership
Health Visiting
PHNS
School Nursing
Other (please specify)
Designated Safeguarding Team
Education
Maternity & Neonatal

Town Councillor
Third Sector/Voluntary Community Sector
Enterprises/Charities

Autism specific support for families

PP PR DMNRPRNRPRRPRLROORNRPENRREROR®

w

=

Page 259



Breastfeeding Support 1
Children's Social Care 1
Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital Trust 1
Midwifery | 1
Total 36

Of the 20 responses from Shropshire Council, majority were from the Early Help service.
16 stakeholders from outside Shropshire Council also responded, half of which were from
the Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust.

Collectively supporting families to meet the needs of babies, infants and
children (aged 0-4)

Across the system, respondents rated Shropshire collectively supporting families to meet the
needs of babies, infants and children (aged 0-4) at 2.9, where 1 was not at all and 5 was
extremely well.

Some service areas felt that the system is collectively supporting families to meet the needs
of babies, infants and children (aged 0-4) very and extremely well (average rating of 4-5), for
example: Community children’s nursing, the Family Nurse Partnership, Housing and the
Museum.

Other respondents such as those working in service areas of Breastfeeding Support,
Education, Community Paediatrics, Maternity & Neonatal, Town Councillor, Designated

Safeguarding Team and the PHNS, reported room for improvement with an average rating of
2.

Page 260 +0



Service area

Average score: On a scale of 1-5, how do you feel that services
in Shropshire are collectively supporting families to meet the
needs of babies, infants and children (aged 0-4)? (where 1 =

not at all and 5 = extremely well)

Average score

(@]
[N
N
w
N
(&)

Community children's nursing

Family Nurse Partnership

Housing Services

Shropshire Museums and Archives

Learning and skills

School Nursing

Culture Leisure and Tourism
Emergency planning biodiversity and public..

Libraries

Midwifery

Public Health

Early Help

Children's Social Care

Health Visiting

Breastfeeding Support

Community Paediatrics

Designated Safeguarding Team

Education

Maternity & Neonatal

PHNS

Town Councillor

Page 261

101



29¢ abed

Areas doing well or areas for improvement in Shropshire:

The below charts indicate how respondents feel we are doing around the availability and accessibility of services and information; engagement
and co-production and organisational development and partnership working.

Q4: Availability of services and information
Answered: 34 Skipped: 2

Home visits (e.g. health visiting)
Community-based activities (e.g. rhythm time at the library)

Digital service provision (e.g. virtual appointments)

Information on what is available locally
Social media platforms to connect with families

Parenting support programmes (e.g. sleep tight workshops)

WW W[\‘

Face to face service provision

Parental peer support (e.g. breastfeeding groups)

Informal drop-in support for families (e.g. welfare drop-in...

Specialist services (e.g. speech and language therapy) -...

f

T T T T T T T T 1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

M \Very Poor M Poor Fair ™ Good M Excellent

102



Q5: Accessibility of services and information
Answered: 35 Skipped: 1

Home visits (e.g. health visiting)

Community-based activities (e.g. rhythm time at the library)

Digital service provision (e.g. virtual appointments)

Information on what is available locally

Social media platforms to connect with families

Parenting support programmes (e.g. sleep tight workshops)

Face to face service provision

Parental peer support (e.g. breastfeeding groups)

£9¢ abed

Informal drop-in support for families (e.g. welfare drop-in... _:

Specialist Services (e.g. speech and language therapy) -... —

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

M Very Poor M Poor MFair M Good M Excellent

103



9z abed

Q6: Engagement and co -production
Answered: 34 Skipped: 2

Actively involving parents in service development

Voice of the child — gaining wishes, thoughts and feelings of
children to inform our practice

Collating service user feedback (e.g. feedback forms)

Access data on children and young people (i.e. Do you have
access to the data you need?)

Using data to inform service planning and delivery

Sharing of information between agencies (e.g. multiagency
meetings)

0% 10%

M \ery Poor B Poor

¥ Fair

20% 30% 40% 50%

B Good M Excellent

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

104



Q7: Organisational development and partnership working:
Answered: 33 Skipped: 3

Partnership working  |E——
Integrated services |——
Continued professional development e
Supervision for workforce — |[EEEEE——————

Communication across services [ ———

G9g abed

Co-location of services/professionals to provide multiagency O
Support (I———

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

M Very Poor M Poor MFair MGood M Excellent

Availability of services and information Very Poor Poor

Excellent

105



99¢ abed

Home visits (e.g. health visiting) 0%
Community-based activities (e.g. rhythm time at the library) 3%
Digital service provision (e.g. virtual appointments) 3%
Information on what is available locally 0%
Social media platforms to connect with families 6%
Parenting support programmes (e.g. sleep tight workshops) 3%
Face to face service provision 6%
Parental peer support (e.g. breastfeeding groups) 6%
Informal drop-in support for families (e.g. welfare drop-in clinics) 10%
Specialist services (e.g. speech and language therapy) - Please state 19%
Accessibility of services and information Very Poor
Home visits (e.g. health visiting) 6%
Community-based activities (e.g. rhythm time at the library) 6%
Digital service provision (e.g. virtual appointments) 6%
Information on what is available locally 9%
Social media platforms to connect with families 9%
Parenting support programmes (e.g. sleep tight workshops) 6%
Face to face service provision 6%
Parental peer support (e.g. breastfeeding groups) 6%
Informal drop-in support for families (e.g. welfare drop-in clinics) 9%
Specialist services (e.g. speech and language therapy) - Please state 10%
Engagement and Co-production Very Poor
Actively involving parents in service development 16%
Voice of the child — gaining wishes, thoughts and feelings of children 9%
Collating service user feedback (e.g. feedback forms) 9%
Access data on children and young people (i.e. Do you have access to the data 12%
you need?)

Using data to inform service planning and delivery 13%
Sharing of information between agencies (e.g. multiagency meetings) 13%
Organisational development and partnership working Very Poor
Partnership working 0%
Integrated services 3%
Continued professional development 7%
Supervision for workforce 0%

26%
18%
19%
27%
15%
16%
31%
38%
39%
35%

Poor
32%
21%
13%
15%
15%
13%
32%
38%
41%
42%

Poor
38%
41%
33%

27%

16%
34%

Poor
22%
29%
13%
19%

58%
45%
53%
42%
42%
28%
44%
47%
42%
35%

Fair
45%
48%
65%
55%
52%
45%
48%
50%
41%
39%

Fair
38%
38%
42%

39%

47%
22%

Fair
44%
52%
57%
45%

16%
33%
25%
27%
33%
50%
16%
9%
6%
10%

Good
16%
24%
16%
18%
21%
32%
13%

6%
6%
10%

Good
9%
13%
15%

21%

22%
31%

Good
34%
16%
23%
26%

0%
0%
0%
3%
3%
3%
3%
0%
3%
0%

Excellent
0%
0%
0%
3%
3%
3%
0%
0%
3%
0%

Excellent
0%
0%
0%

0%

3%
0%

Excellent
0%
0%
0%

10%

106



/9¢ abed

Communication across services 6% 41% 31% 22% 0%
Co-location of services/professionals to provide multiagency support 6% 48% 29% 16% 0%

Availability of services and information

50% of respondents felt that there is good availability of parenting support programmes in Shropshire. Areas of need are also highlighted, for
example: 39% of respondents felt that there is poor availability of informal drop-in support for families and a further 42% felt availability was
“fair”. One in five respondents also reported that there is very poor availability of specialist services in the county, particularly for speech and
language and pre and post-natal care. Waiting times around specialise services was also highlighted as poor.

Accessibility of services and information

32% of respondents felt that there is good availability of parenting support programmes. However, 32% of respondents feel that there is poor
accessibility of face-to-face service provision and another 32% feel that there is poor accessibility to home visits”. One in ten respondents feel
that there is very poor availability of specialist services, especially for rural communities.

Engagement and co-production

38% of respondents reported poor co-production with parents in service development with a further 38% reporting “fair’. 41% reported poor co-
production with the voice of the child, highlighting a need for improvement. 34% feel that there is poor sharing of information between agencies,
however a further third feel that there is good information sharing between agencies.

Organisational development and partnership working
Almost half of respondents (48%) felt that co-location of services is “poor” and 41% reported communication across services as “poor”. On the
other hand, 34% reported good partnership working.

107



lack-of-transport

antenatal-services
sure-start-centres

face _to _face integrated-support
breastfeeding-support

drop-ins

89¢ abed

Detailed responses:
e “There is a lack of drop-in, face-to-face support for families, like they used to get with the Sure Start Children's Centres. The Short Break
activities are very limited in certain parts of the county.”

o “No face to face health visiting service for Bishops Castle. Parents can have phone calls or travel to Ludlow. Public Transport links are
poor. Sure Start filled all the gaps and now we are seeing the legacy .”

o “Gaps in provision of All In short breaks for this age group, also geographical gaps in wider provision around the county. Information
sharing between partners needs to improve about the service provision available, most is unknown and not promoted enough. Better
use of the Family Information Service central online database of services should be encouraged.”

Areas doing well in the service provision for families, babies, infants and children aged 0-4

108



online-support
family-information-service

multi-agency-working

home-visiting

“Family Information Service is a great source and accessible on many different levels”

“The work that is being completed in Oswestry is a good example of integrated working “

“Early Help team do an excellent job.”

“Use of libraries to deliver and support provision Delivery of speech and language intervention programmes -EY Talkboost Speech and
Language website, ST&W, is very informative and supportive”

69¢ abed

What you think are the key challenges for children (0-4) in Shropshire:

Respondents highlighted parental mental health as the key challenges for children aged 0-4, with 11 out of 34 respondents highlighting this as
the key challenge. Child development and neglect were the other two areas reported to be areas of need for 0-4s in Shropshire.

109



Child
development

Parent/Carer
Mental health

Obesity

Meglect

Deprivation

Domestic Abuse
within the...

Parental
Conflict

Parental drug
and alcohol use

0/¢ abed

Housing issues

Access to
community-ba...

Access to
specialist...

Information/sup
port for...

Feeding
including...

=]
1
IS
]
1]
=

12

14

16

18

110



T/ ¢ obed

How your service operating?

Q11: Please rate the following aspects of how effective you feel your
service area is operating:
Answered: 33 Skipped: 3

Referral process

Communication

Waiting times

Location of services

Quality of care

Partnership working

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

M Very Effective M Effective M Neither effective norineffective M Ineffective B Very ineffective

What are your biggest concerns when thinking about vulnerability of 0-4 year olds in Shropshire?
This was an open text question. The below chart presents the frequency of key themes emerging from responses.

111



2/ ¢ abed

What are your biggest concerns when thinking about vulnerability of
0-4 year olds in Shropshire? (thematic analysis of free text answers,

Rurality and access to services
Lack of Face-to-face interventions- no eyes on-
Hidden families

Lack of support for families with a children with disabilities - SEND.. !

Waiting times

Parental mental health

Parental conflict

Lack of early level parental support

Funding cuts for community/specialist support services for families
Lack of understanding of services available

Lack of workforce capacity (health visiting-safeguarding)
Domestic abuse

Lack of dentists

Communication between health services and early help
Cost of living for parents

Severe neglect/injuries

Child speech delay

Lack of early help support

Increase in children in care

n =36)

0%

N
X

4% 6% 8% 10% 12%

112



¢/ ¢ obed

Partnership working opportunities.

Q15: Which services do you regularly work in partnership with? (select all
that apply)

Answered: 35 Skipped: 1

Shropshire Council

Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust

Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital Trust

Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust
Primary care

Education (nurseries, early years and reception)

Third Sector/Voluntary Community Sector...

Local Business

West Mercia Police and Probation

Fire and Rescue

Other (please specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

113



v/ abed

Q16: Which service areas would you like to work more closely with?
(select all that apply)

Answered: 25 Skipped: 11

Shropshire Council _

Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust _
Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital Trust _
Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust _

Education (nurseries, early years and reception)

Local Business

West Mercia Police and Probation _

Other (please specify) -

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

100%

114



Parents and carers engagement

As part of the CYP JSNA, a best start of life early years parents and cares survey was
conducted. Parents and carers of children aged 0-5 were targeted to assess their
experiences of accessing services and support in Shropshire (including parent and carers of
children with Special Education Needs and Disability).

We engaged parents/carers of 0-4 year olds using an online questionnaire through the
Survey Monkey platform. The survey was distributed at a parents and carers event via a QR
code. Survey responses were collected between 26 October 2023 and 29 November 2023.
Unfortunately, we received a very low response rate with 18 responses were received.

Of the respondents, 71% had parent or caregiving responsibilities for more than 2 children
and 36% indicated that they had a child or children with an additional need or disability.

Access to information

When asked if they had accessed information or services to support in pregnancy or family
planning, 65% of respondents indicated that they did not. Parents and carers were asked
which information or services they accessed in a free text question. Respondents who
accessed information or services on pregnancy or family planning indicated that they
accessed the following:

e 15 free hours childcare

e Midwife support post miscarriage

e Maternity services

Did you access information or services in Shropshire to
support you in planning for pregnancy or family
planning?

Answered = 17; skipped = 1

70%
60%
50%
40%

30%

Percentage (%)

20%

10%

0%

Yes

Page 275 1o



Of those who accessed information or services on pregnancy or family planning, 57% had a
very good or excellent experience with the information or services accessed. However, there
was a very low response rate of 5 respondents. Service users indicated that:

“There should be more help for women/families who go through pregnancy loss”
“Maternity services were not great and there was little support with regards to antenatal care
and postnatal care, particularly with breastfeeding”

Antenatal education

Parents and carers were asked if either them or their partner accessed parent or antenatal
education during pregnancy. 38% of respondents accessed parent or antenatal education
(13% accessed it for free and 25% accessed it privately). 50% of respondents indicated that
this service was not offered to them. However, there was a very low response rate of 8
respondents

Did you and/or your partner access parent/antenatal

education during pregnancy?
Answered = 8; skipped = 10

No, it was offered but | did not access it [ NGl

No, it was not offered [ ——
Yes, accessed but paid privately [|[INEGRNNEENEGZE
Yes, accessed for free [N

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Percentage (%)

Page 276 1o



Health visiting benefits

Respondents were asked where they felt they would have most and least benefitted from the
support of a health visitor. For each category, 7 respondents answered the question.

o 57% felt they most benefitted from a health visitor during pregnancy,

e 57% indicated in the first 14 days after childbirth,

e 43% indicated when the child is aged between 12 months to 2 years,

e 43% indicated when the child is aged between 3 to 5 years.

0 = Least 5 = Most

Experiences benefitted benefitted
During pregnancy 29% 0% 0% 0% 14% 57%

In the first 14 days
following childbirth 0% 14% 14% 0% 14% 57%

Between 14 and
30 days following

childbirth 0% 0% 29% 29% 14% 29%
Baby aged 6-8

weeks 0% 0% 43% 29% 14% 14%
Baby aged 3-6

months 0% 14% 43% 14% 14% 14%
aged 12 months-2

years 14% 14% 14% 14% 0% 43%
child 2 to 3 years 14% 0% 29% 29% 0% 29%
child 3 to 5 years 14% 14% 0% 14% 14% 43%

As a parent/carer of child (ren) aged 0-5, what are the most
important considerations to you, to help you look after your child’s
health and wellbeing?

Respondents indicated the following when asked what the most important considerations
were when looking after their child’s health and wellbeing:

“Access to healthcare without a long wait”
“Being able to access services for information and support without delays”

”

“Physical health and nutrition, followed by mental wellbeing of child and how to support
“Regular check ins with health professionals for reassurance”

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about your family’s experiences of
health services you used in Shropshire?

“Increased focus should be placed on maternal postnatal health. Wasn't offered 6 week
postnatal check or further support about physical healing after birth”

“Long wait times in a&e and for appointments”

Page 277 t



“My middle child has Autism. The follow on care since we moved to Shropshire in April has
been difficult to obtain. Services and information are not linked and shared. It's had to know
what's available if someone doesn't advise you. Doctors don't always know the correct
paths and paediatrician will end you back to doctor and it takes a long time to get issues
resolved”

“My first pregnancy ended in miscarriage, there is absolutely no help or support out there for
ladies and families who have been through loss. The mental impact is horrific, but as soon
as you've passed the foetus/baby you are forgotten about, and no contact is made with
support or follow up doctor appointment to check health/mental health”

Page 278 e



Recommendations

Recommendations are based on the Areas of Need

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

To support partners / family members of pregnant women to stop smoking and to
reduce the rates of pregnant women smoking at time of delivery.

To continue to monitor child and infant mortality, adjusting action plans as required
to ensure appropriate mitigations are in place.

To improve the recording to show the accurate position of emergency admissions
of 0-4s, distinct from 0-4s who required same day emergency care. To monitor the
level of emergency admissions of 0-4s and take appropriate action.

To increase uptake of pregnancy and childhood immunisations to provide protection
and reduce the risks associated with these illnesses.

To continue to increase breastfeeding rates at 6-8 weeks to achieve at least the
national average.

To continue to increase and monitor the number of families accessing the
mandated contacts offered by the health visiting service.

To ensure the cost of living support and support for health and wellbeing is well
promoted through all services, including promoting the take up of healthy start
vouchers

To reduce the number of 0-4 year olds whose parents use drugs and alcohol who
become looked after and to increase the number of parents receiving appropriate
support at the earliest opportunity.

To reduce the number of 0-4s living in households where domestic abuse occurs
by supporting the workforce to identify perpetrators and support them to behaviour
change programmes

For all health and social care agencies to ensure they appropriately assess the
mental health needs of the child, mother and family and signpost to relevant
services and intervention.

To develop Women’s Health Hubs across Shropshire aligning with development of
Community & Family Hubs to improve outcomes for women & children aged 0-4.

To publish the Best Start for Life offer to enable families to access information
about services and support to increase visibility and accessibility of services and
improve child outcomes.

To continue to increase awareness of early help and prevention offers to support
families and prevent escalation.

To continue to monitor the level of children who are overweight or obese at
reception and to deliver on the Early Years actions of the Healthier Weight Strategy

To engage with stakeholders to inform recommendations.

Page 279 1o



PPPPPPP



T8¢ abed

Area of need

1. Smoking status at time of
delivery

2. Infant mortality

3. Emergency admissions
(under 1s and 0-4s)

4. Population Vaccination
coverage: MMR two doses (5
years old)

5. Breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8
weeks

6.Uptake of Healthy Start
vouchers

PRI

P

L ]

.

Mitigation

(What are we doing now)

Healthy Pregnancy service in SATH matemnity offering smoking cessation support
Health Lives Advisors offering behavioural support for smoking cession

Expansion of king tion offer

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Tobacco Dependency treatment pathways

Cascading leaming from infant deaths (CDOP reviews)

System wide Infant and Child Mortality workshops

Increasing awareness of Safer Sleep advice

Community and family hub development to increase available support
Dashboard in development to STW monitor trends and identify modifiable factors

Increased awareness of asthma and inhaler use

Schools programme.

GP practices audited blue inhaler prescriptions.

Community and family hub development to increase available support e.g. Health Visiting
drop in clinics opening across county

Priority focus of the infant mortality workstream

Accident prevention awareness

Increased circulation of resources to raise awareness of the importance of immunisations
through EY settings, schools, higher education, social media, staff newsletters.

GP practices offering catch up appointments to improve coverage.

Community and family hub development to increase available support

STW Infant feeding strategy

Breastteeding peer support groups

Additional breastfeeding training to PHNS

Online Antenatal/Postnatal Solihull Training

Baby Buddy App

Introduced open access HV clinics

HV single point of access and texting service

Community and family hub development

Provider is working on improving the data inputting as hasn't been as robust in recent
years but is now improving as staff have been made aware and are encouraged to
complete it.

Increased awareness through media

Awareness though Baby Buddy App

Increased training and information to professionals supporting pregnant women and
families

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Provider is currently looking at the process for being able to offer HS vouchers in clinic

Recommendation

(What we are intending to do and

how)

To decrease the number of pregnant women smoking at
time of delivery to England average

To decrease the number of infant deaths by addressing
modifiable factors

Learning from previous deaths

Identifying any local themes

Reduce the number of 0-4's being admitted from A&E by

increasing awareness of early identification and treatment

Increasing awareness of appropriate management of acute
and long-term conditions

Learning from case reviews

Embed paediairic Same Day Emergency Care in the
community and monitor activity

Increase vaccination coverage to 95% by

continued awareness of reasons for vaccination

Identify groups with lower uptake and target messaging and
work with these communities to increase uptake.

Improve referrzl pathways for complex breastfeeding support
Haise awareness ot breastieeding peer support groups and
HV open access dlinics

Improve reporting mechanisms.

Introduction of Womens' Health Hub

Continue to raise awareness
Increase availability of vitamins

Governance
(Where does this
recommendation sit)

LMNS
Health and Wellbeing Board

ICS System Quality Group
LMNS

ICS System Quality Group
LMNS

System Urgent and
Emergency care

CYP Oversight Group

Health Protection Quality
Assurance Board

LMNS
PHNS contract monitoring

Public Health — linking with
national team

121



00)
N

Area of need

7. Proportion of children receiving a
12 month review by 12 months

8. Percentage of children achieving a
good level of development at 2 to 2'%

years

9. Child development: percentage of
children achieving the expected level
in communication skills, gross motor
skills, fine motor skills, problem
solving skills and personal social

skills at 2 to 2'% years

10. Stakeholders report
transport/access and face to face
provision is a barrier for health

visiting

11. Looked after children, 0-4 vear
olds making up 24% of all children
looked after in the county (2023)

Mitigation

(What are we doing now)

Increased awareness of reviews to parents and families

Altered booking system to generate appointments early

Introduced open access HV clinics.

HV single point of access and texting service

Community and family hub development to increase available support

2 year integrated review in the early year's settings (2 vear development) and the open
access clinics (emergency admissions/minor illness management, breastfeeding, healthy
start vouchers).

Piloting integrated 2-year reviews with EY settings

Increase awareness of reviews and encourage parents to take up.

HV single point of access and texting service

Introduced open access clinics

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Physical activity is a key area within early years as part of a child's development. We will

continue to work with our Early Years setting to implement the CMO's recommendations

regarding physical activity and encourage them to use innovative ways to integrate those
across the early year's curriculum

Introduced Early Talk boost and Talk boost to increase speech and language development
Produced school readiness leaflet with information on how to support child development.
Raised awareness of child development.

Increase access to HV service for support.

HV open access clinics

HV single point of access and texting service

Increase uptake of early education

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Physical activity is a key area within early years as part of a child's development. We will
continue to work with our Early Years setting to implement the CMO's recommendations
regarding physical activity and encourage them to use innovative ways to integrate those
across the early vears curmiculum

Introduced open access clinics

Increased HV recruitment to vacant posts

HV single point of access and texting service

Restored face to face contacts

HV training places

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Transformation of Targeted Eary Help, Re-launch of the EH Partnership Board and launch
of Early Help Strategy,

Community and Family hubs and Integration panels

Communication on how to seek support particulary during school holidays and times of
increased pressure

Best Start in Life programme which includes the introduction of Family Foundations Course
and information on support available to first time parents/co-parents

Actions included within the Drug and Alcohol Partnership Plan

Recommendations
(What we are intending to do)

Continue to increase number of reviews at 12 months and monitor
Continue to raise awareness

Changing the way in which appointments are sent to meet timescales
Increase availability of HV open access clinics

Roll out integrated 2-year reviews with EY settings

Continue to raise awareness on effective interactions that improve child
development.

Roll out of the school readiness leaflet

Intreduction and roll out of HV open access clinics for parents/carers to
access support

Publishing Best Start for Life offer

Roll out of school readiness leaflet

Online Solihull programmes

To increase awareness of effective interactions from bump- toddlers to
improve development.

Intreduction and roll out of HV open access clinics for parents! cares to
ACCess support.

Continue to recruit to vacant posts

HV training places increasing

Publicise service offer

Intreduction and roll out of HV open access clinics

Reduce the number of 0-4's becoming looked after by

Increasing professional curiosity

Increasing awareness of professionals and families of early help to
support families and prevent escalation

Increasing number of families accessing early help

Improve identification of families in need

Continued audit of cases and leamning cascaded and acted upon

Governance
{(Where does
this sit)
ICS System Quality
Group

PHNS contract
monitoring

ICS System Quality
Group

PHNS contract
monitoring

Health and Wellbeing
Board

ICS System Quality
Group

PHNS contract
monitoring

PHNS contract
monitoring

Shropshire
Safeguarding
Community
Partnership

Health and Wellbeing
Board

122






8z abed

END OF REPORT

124



ooooo |

Children and Young
People JSNA

Early Years (0-4s) Chapter Summary
August 2024



¥4¥ Shropshire Aims & objectives

This JSNA chapter will provide a detailed understanding of the needs of children aged 0-4 and
their families in Shropshire to inform the direction and development of local services, with a
view to reducing health inequalities through identification, prevention and early intervention

Given the broad range of needs and services for children under 5 years, this report is not an in depth
review of any one specific service, but instead aims to:

e describe the population profile of children under 5 and their families in Shropshire- please also see the Population and
Context chapter

e identify risk factors that impact on infant and child health outcomes - please also see the Population and Context chapter

e provide an overview of the wider determinants of health and their impact on the under 5s and their families- please also
see the Population and Context chapter

e dentify relevant national guidance and local policy in relation to early years
e provide an overview of the health and wellbeing of under 5s

e provide an overview of current service provision and assessment of outcomes including gaps in relation to domains
impacting on early childhood outcomes; physical, psychosocial and emotional, cognitive and language development

e identify vulnerable children, and/or at risk groups
e identify gaps, barriers, and unmet needs in current service provision
e provide evidence-based recommendations to ensure that the needs of 0-4 year olds are met in Shropshire

98¢ abed



WY Shropshire

/8¢ abed

Contents

Council

The early years indicators offer information about
the health of children under 5 including:

* birth outcomes and associated risk factors
« accidents and injuries

 breastfeeding

* oObesity

* health visiting services

* child development and school readiness

Additionally, there are early years supplementary
indicators, including information on:

* hospital admissions

 vaccination rates

« Homelessness

« Safeguarding and vulnerable children

IO L O e 3
Objectives
ERECUtIVE SUMIMIAIY ..o ettt et e e st memmeemma et e e erne 5
Policy and GUIHBMCE ... ..o ettt et e 7
Best Start for Life ...
Health and Social Care Act 2012 ...
The core public health offer
Healthy Child Programme . 3 Aty Start v, e

Healthy Child Programme: Pregnan
Population profile ...

Where do 0-4 year olds live? ..

Future trends ...

ey
& Under 13 coenceplions (teenz Earjy Years S.

® Smoking status at time of de

& | ow birth weight

& |nfant mertality.........

® MNeonatal mortality ..

o Sfillbirth rate ...

L] Post-neonaflal martality . "Q'"'Eﬂatal educas,

® Greastfeeding ... Health Visiting ien

° E;;nrufh‘: [inl:lud(i;i:)b ;,i,s atpafﬁmfram:,::ﬁ,: .......................

L] ndances U, 10 hefy ey 0 CHild frapy -

® ASF attendances (unde Rﬁﬁommend;i?u fook aftey (Vo:g iﬁﬁg.g i ";-fhai e fhe nm,“: ................................. -
& Emergency admissions .., [l A WE”bEiné?,Tf’_?na"' conSideratit;};; lgu
® Emergency admissions (under 1) ... ---------------------- 110
® Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries in cowae.. T 111

(aged 0o 4 Wears) ...
& Admission of babies under 14 days .. -
& Denfal Health ... e
NV ACCINALION COVBIAIE ... oottt e e e m s et em e s et e e
Health Visiting metrics ...

Child development....
Service provision......
Service Performance data .


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/child-health-profiles/data

¥¥ Shropshire Policy & Guidance

Best start for life Healthy Child Programme

Goal is to ensure the best support throughout those 1,001 critical days, Health visitors lead the Healthy Child Programme O to 5.
setting babies up to maximise their potential for lifelong emotional and Below are the 6 high impact areas for early years and how they relate to the 4
physical wellbeing. To achieve this, we will focus on six Action Areas: overarching aims for early years:

-fction Areas

High Impact Areas for early years

Q
%Ensurlng families have access to the services they need
NJ. Seamless support for families: a coherent joined up Start for Life offer

00 available to all families. P
m High Impact Area 1 of carer High Impact Area 4

2. A welcoming hub for families: Family Hubs as a place for families to access
Start for Life services.

Supporting transition to parenthood Supporting healthy weight & nutnition

3. The information families need when they need it: designing digital, virtual i
and telephone offers around the needs of the family. i _—
i mpact Area ) mpes
Ensuring the Start for Life system is working together to give families the S mee improving he:

Supporting matemal & family mental heaith

support they need —

resilience &

liness & redu

promoting

4. An empowered Start for Life workforce: developing a modern skilled health literacy
workforce to meet the changing needs of families.

Early years High Impact Area 6
High Impact Area 3

Ready to learn

5. Continually improving the Start for Life offer: improving data, evaluation, :
outcomes and proportionate inspection. foe serisot a8

6. Leadership for change: ensuring local and national accountability and building
the economic case.

Supporting breastfeeding




Ea rly Years 0-4s Shropshire

" INEW

o S,
MANGOLLEN

MARKET ; <
DRAYTON

SO0
ECCLESHALL

A o b
LLIN ] NEWPORT,

AN

snazwsau RY -
y ~

o TELFORD

“WesHpooL,

QD

«Q

@ . 5 uucn WENLOCK /S“BROSELEY : WOLVI
N

@Nmoumv

= / C“U“C" smosuonm

STRETTON /'Vr
BISHOPf,CASTLE KINGSV

TOI

L CRAVEN ARMS
KIDDERMINSTE

b ' A CLEOBURYS _ BEWDLEY

. : LUDLOW MORTIMER }—\,
KNIGHTON f S STOURPORT-
TENBURY WELLS

ON-SEVERN

Where do 0-4s live?

The colours représent the quintiles:
. 6 1o 26%: 10 areas
W 6% o T8 22 areas

0 10 6% 39 arehs

6 10 5% 40 aneas

S ds LA Cl'\-
]

096 10 496 B2 areal

14,423

aged 0-4
in 2021, an 8% Fall

from 2011 (England
7% fall)

4.9%

aged 0-4

of Shropshire's
population
(England 5.4%)

2,567 live births in
Shropshire (2022)

37 infant deaths
during 2020-22, rate
of 4.8 per 1,000 births

43 babies had low
birth weightin 2021,
1.8% of all births

91% 49%

Male

[

o0

Overall deprivation is low in Shropshire. 513 or 3.6% of
babies, infants and children aged 0-4 live in the top 5 most

deprived areas (LSOAs) of Shropshire: Harlescott, Ludlow

East, central Oswestry, Monkmoor and Meole Brace.

Female

2,033 new birth visits
by 14 days, 80.8% vs
England 79.9%
(2022/23)

49.0% infants
breastfed
(provisional) at 6-8
weeks during Q4
2023/24 vs 52.0%
England

105 hospital
admissions for
unintentional and
deliberate injuries (0
to 4 years), 74 per 1k
compared to 92in
England (2022/23)

3.6%

290
v

0-4s from
ethnic minority
groups in 2011,
567 children

0-4s with SEN
support in 2022/23

(5.7%of all children <19
with SEN support in
Shropshire)

2,690 per 1,000 emergency
admissions (0-4 years) 189
per 1k compared to 158 in
England (2022/23)

P 68% achieving good level

ﬁ @ of development at the end
@Ml of reception in Shropshire,

67% England (2022/23)

@ 22.1% reception aged
children (4-5-year-olds)
overweight or obese,
England 21.3%

89.8% MMR vaccine
coverage two dosesin
2022/23, target =>95%



¥ Shropshire Future trends

Charts showing population projections for 0—4-year-olds in Shropshire, 2021-2050 (left) and 2018-2050
(right). Projections are SNPP to 2043, then rolled on to 2050 using PopGroup.

Aged 85 years and over [ Population projection: 0-4 year olds, Shropshire.
Aged 80 to 84 years | Source: Shropshire 2050 project
Aged 75 to 79 years
;? Aged 70 to 74 years mmmm Count  ==O==Proportion of total population
«Q Aged 65 to 69 years
(I-\DJ Aged 60 to 64 years 16,500 4.7% 5.0%
ed 55 to 59 9
8 Ag 0 59 years I 4. 3/0 4 1% 2% 4.2% 45%
Aged 50 to 54 years 16,000 .
Aged 45 to 49 years 4.0%
Aged 40 to 44 years 3.5%
Aged 35 to 39 years 15,500
Aged 30 to 34 years 3.0%
Aged 25 to 29 years 15,000 2.5%
ed 20 to 24 years
AB'Ed 15to0 19 . 2.0%
Ae o yesr 14,500
Aged 10 to 14 years 1.5%
Aged 5 to 9 years 1.0%
Aged 4 years and under 14,000
0.5%
20000 15000 10000 5000 0 5000 10000 15000 20000
13,500 0.0%
02050 Male 2050 Female m 2021 Male 2021 Female 2018 2023 2033 2050

Rise of 1,293 babies and children aged 0-4 by 2050




OBetter 95% OSimilar ®Worse 95%  ONot applicable

T, "
' rO p S | re Recent trends: — Could not be = No significant 4 Increasing& 4 Increasing & § Decreasing & § Decreasing &
&

calculated change getting worse getting better getting worse getting better

Council

Benchmark Value

Worst 25th Percentile 7Sth Percentile Best

Shropshire Region England England
Indicator Fetod Recent Count Value Value Value Worst Range Best
Trend
Under 18s conception rate / 1,000 2021 - 65 125 152 131 315 | @ | 27
a r e a r S Smoking status at time of delivery 2022/23 =» 283 114% 91% 88% 19.4% - 3.4%
Low birth weight of term babies 2021 = 43 18% 30% 28% 5.0% Bl © s
" Infant mortality rate 202220 - 37 48 56 309 76 ® | 14
I I l et r I C S Breastfeeding prevalence at 6 to 8 weeks - current method Newdala 2022/23 - 917 ~ ¥ 492%* - Insufficient number of values for a spine chart
Reception prevalence of overweight (including obesity) (4-5 yrs) 2022123 = 565 221% 222% 21.3% 29.6% (@ | 1%
A&E attendances (0 to 4 years) 2022123 - 8765 617.3 8377 7973 1,928.9 [ @] 4147
Emergency admissions (0 to 4 years) 2021722 - 2595 1808 1717 1615 3283 @ 63.0
Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries in children (aged 0 to -
Pt 2021/22 125 872 1000 1036 204.4 o 420
- Children with one or more decayed, missing or filled teeth 2016117 - = 188% 257% 23.3% 471% -:) 12.9%
H Population vaccination coverage: MMR for two doses (5 years old)
-@rg ets are the national w5 05| ISR 202223 = 2763 898% 837% 845% 56.3% | ® 94.4%
é?/e r ag e Proportion of New Birth Visits (NBVs) completed within 14 days 2022123 § 2,033 80.8% 80.7% 79.9%" 13.3% @ | 99.0%
N - Proportion of infants receiving a 6 to 8 week review 2022/23 & 2186 733% 792% 79.6%* 4.9% - 98.5%
O Proportion of children receiving a 12-month review Q] 2022123 =» 2,085 759% 858% 826%" 22.9% - 99.0%
= Proportion of children who received a 2 to 2% year review 2022/23 = 1519 529% 77.0% 73.6%" 5.3% O - 98.0%
i V7 &
See the ful I re po rt do Cu ment Proportion of children aged 2rto 2Y¥yrs receiving ASQ-3 as part of the Healthy Child 202223 4 1380 914% 94.4% 92 5% 4379 q 100%
Programme or integrated review
Child development: percentage of children achieving a good level of development at 2 to “ ’ ;
for trends and comparator s 20223 & 900 648% 763% 79.2% 419 oll 04.4%
1 1 Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in 2 = i = =
InfO rm atlon fOI' eaCh Of these communication skills at 2 to 2 and a half years A » 1058 162 630% B9.9% 12.0% .. 95.9%
. Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in gross motor . ; o "
metrlcs . skills at 2 to 2% years 2022123 & 1,188 855% 92.0% 928% 13.3% ﬂ 98.8%
Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in fine motor y iz i
skills at 2 to 2% years 2022123 =» 1,234 888% 919% 926% 13.8% - 99.1%
Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in problem , o o or ol o
solving skills at 2 to 2% years 2022123 =» 1,207 86.9% 90.3% 91.8% 11.3% - 98.3%
Child development: percentage of children achieving the expected level in personal o :
social skills at 2 to 2 and a half years 2022123 =» 1,168 84.1% 89.0% 90.3% 13.7% d 97 2%
School readmgss. percentage of children achieving a good level of development at the 200223 - 1973 676% 660% 672% 58.5% n
end of Reception e
School readiness: percentage of children achieving at least the expected level in _ L
communication and language skills at the end of Reception 2022123 2432 833% 781% T79.7% 69.7% - O g
School readiness: percentage of children achieving at least the expected level of
development in communication, language and literacy skills at the end of Reception 2022123 - 2031 696% 67.4% 68.8% 59.4% | e A



Va¥ Sh gl
e rO p S | re O Better 95% OSimilar @ Worse 95%  @Lower 95% O Similar OHigher 95%  OMNot applicable

Council
Recenttrends: = Couldnotbe = No significant 4 Increasing & 4 Increasing &  § Decreasing & § Decreasing & Increasing  § Decreasing
calculated change getting worse getting better gefting worse getting better
Benchmark Walue
-J’-n-<'_l’_r~_l=<' 25th Percentile Foth Percentile Best/Highest
Shropshire Regions England England

(statistical)

Indicator Period Recent Count WValue  Value Value Worst/ Range Best/
a r e ar S Trend Lowest Highest
AGE attendances (under 1 year) 202223 - 2135 7981 11968 11323 26133 BEo 505.9
. Emergency admissions (under 1 year) 202223 w1205 4505 4113 3754 8311 o] 1318
m t r I Emergency admissions (0 to 4 years) 202223 = 2690 1894 1727 1580 3401 o 57.4
Neonatal mortality rate 2020-22 - 28 36 45 29 58 e | | 0.9
Post-neonatal mortality rate 2020-22 - 9 12 12 11 28 (@) | 0.0
| |
§ . . 2020721 -
G O n t I n e d Hospital admissions for dental caries (0 to 5 years) 29173 - 120 2284 98.0 1788 0.0 n 900.9
u Admissions for asthma (0 to 9 years) 2022123 = 80 2619 1957 1547 4831 [ ] - 524
Q Admizsions for diabetes (0 to 5 years) L] 2022123 = 10 327 36.9 325 948 0.0
«Q
_% t th t | Admissions for epilepsy (0 to 9 years) 202223 - 15 491 1057 929 2729 BEo 0.0
r e S are e na |O na Homelessness - households with dependent children owad a duty under the
g Homelessness Reduction Act 202223 B 401 na 15.9 161 35.8 ‘ 5
ﬁe rage . Population vaccination coverage: Hepatitis B (1 year old) 2022i23 - 4 100% * - - - -
Population vaccination coverage: Dtap I[PV Hib HepB (1 year old) ) ) ) ) )
prrTTN 16067 15 6E9 | 1SOETE 202223 = 2620 957%  915% 91.8% 67.8% fo 97.6%
See the f | I J S NA C hapte r Population vaccination coverage: Hepatitis B (2 years old) 2022123 - - * * * - - -
u Population vaccination coveraga: Dtap IPV Hib HepB (2 years old) Ny . . . Ny
do cument for re nds an d e ——— 202223 - 2673 965%  929% 926% 708% o 88.5%
Population vaccination coveraga: Hib and MenC boostar (2 years old) w . o " o
com p arator info m ati(_)n for T ————— 202223 - 2616 944%  882% 837% 634% || [@] 972%
Population vaccination coveraga: PCV booster Ny . . . Ny
each of these metrics. e i o ns o 5y o il o B i R e — o
9% % % 9% 9%
9% 1o 957 IEEE 202223 - 2841 958%  926% 925% 812% e 57 4%
Population vaccination coveraga: MMR for two doses (5 years old) Ny . . . Ny
S5 g 202223 - 2763 898%  B837% B845% 563% | @ 84.4%
Low birth weight of all babies 2021 o 140 53% 79% 68% 11.0% | | e 36%
Very low birth weight of all babies 2021 - 20 0.8% 14% 10% 2.0% @) 0.2%
Children aged 5 and under killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents
2020-22 - 2 38 69 75 299 o 0.0
Population vaccination coveraga: MMR for one dose (2 years old) o . o " ,
90% 10 95%  205% 202223 w2622 947%  88.9% 89.3% 68.1% Bmo 97.3%
MNewborn Blood Spot Screening: Coverage 2017118 - - - 98.1%* 98.7%" - Insufficient number of values for & spine chart -
Newborn Hearing Screening: Coverage 2022123 o 2242 98.4% 98.7%" 98.5%" &7.9% q 99.8%



% >hropshire Areas of need for 0-4s

Smoking status at time of delivery
Infant mortality — not red, local rise — work in progress through child mortality Mc():;endbeeta'l
Emergency admissions (0-4s) and under 1s, admissions for asthma (0-9s) found in the

full report.

Population Vaccination coverage: MMR two doses (5 years old)

Breastfeeding prevalence

Uptake of healthy start vouchers

£6¢ obed

% of children receiving a 12 month review by 12 months

Child development: % of children achieving a good level of development at 2 to 2% years

© 0 N O O K~ WD PE

Child development: % of children achieving the expected level in communication skills, gross motor
skills, fine motor skills, problem solving skills and personal social skills at 2 to 2% years

10. Transport/access and face to face provision is a barrier for health visiting

11. Looked after children



® Emergency admissions 0-4s
Deep dive example

WY Shropshire

Council

* In 2022/23, more than two thirds of 0-4 emergency admissions _ _
were for three reasons: Shropshire trend analysis (January 2021-February 2024) of emergency
o Diseases of the respiratory system (43%) admissions (aged 0-4) recorded under.the following ICD-10 disease chapters
o Certain infectious and parasitic diseases (16%) Diseases of the réspiratory system
o Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinical and Certain infectious and parasitic diseases
laboratory findings, not elsewhere classified (includes Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinic
fevers, febrile illness, nausea and vomiting) (11%) -
o~  Breaking these reasons down, showed acute upper ° re'gis,?:;ers gf;?gm
Q®  respiratory infection, viral infections and fevers as key 8 180 pirafory sy
K  drivers _
o 160
B- However, across Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin, half (53%) of e 140
& 0-4 admissions recorded during the 2022/23 period had a zero E
length of stay. = 120
. L . . &
+ This is dueto the paediatric assessment unit referring 100
babies and children into hospital for tests and monitoring
followed by a same day discharge. Shropshire does not 80 Certain infectious and
have a Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) offer which, if 50 parasitic diseases
in place, could reduce the rate of emergency admissions. :
L . : 40
» Seasonal pattern to the respiration admissions in persons \ S ‘
aged 0-4, with activity peaking around December each year. 20 ' ________________________________
0 Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinical and laboratory findings, not...
RN = = == > c S + FEN = b
5822853758285 85828553338288583885323882885%
2021 2022 2023 2024

Definition: Emergency admissions via A&E, GPs, Consultant
outpatient clinic, Mental Health Services or Baby born at
home as intended




¥a¥ Shropshire Service performance: Breastfeeding

Council

During Q4 2023/24, 49% infants totally or partially breastfed at 6-8 weeks in Shropshire.

__ Breastieeding prevalence: provisional Breastfeeding status at 6-8 week review
Denominator: total number of infants due a 6-8 week review - data not Denominator: the total number of infants who were assessed at their 6-8
validated by provider and may change ' .
wk review by the end of the quarter
100.0%
90.0%
80.0%
U 70.0% ® % not breastfed at 6-8
g weeks
o) 60.0%
52.0%
N 49.0%
g1 ==@= Shropshire
40.0%
==&—England = % partially breastfed at
30.0% 6-8 weeks
20.0%
10.0%
0.0% m % totally breastfed at 6-
. 8 weeks
2 {8 Q8@ f ®° £ 8 7 S & & & &
N N N N N N N N
o o o o o o o o o N N I N
S § B 8 8 8 B B 8 5 R 5 ]
o N N N R N R N o o o (o3 o




Council

¥&¥ Shropshire Service performance: Healthy Start vouchers

0 . .
Uptake % Entitled Beneficiaries and Uptake
80% —e— Eligible beneficiaries =~ =—=®=Uptake (entitled beneficiaries)
0% 1% 2250
70% L 66% . )
° 63%  63% 63%  64%
. > S . 2000
60%
U 5206 1750
2 . A%
D 50% ® 1500
™~ 250
S 40% 125
1000
30%
750
20% 500
0
0% Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22 Jan-23 Jan-24

Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22 Jan-23 Jan-24

Similar to national average of 74% as of Jan 2024




Council

¥a¥ Shropshire Service performance: Health visiting

During 2022/23, Shropshire’s health visiting rates were worse than the national average however, more
recent data indicates an improvement in rates.

P u b I I S h ed m et r I CS OBetter 95% OSimilar ®Wworse 95%  ONot applicable
Recent trends: — Could not be = No significant 4 Increasing & 4 Increasing &  § Decreasing & & Decreasing &
20 22/23 calculated change getting worse getting better getting worse getting better
Benchimatk Walue
Source: Fingertips e e oo pee | G
Shropshire England
Indicator Period pecent Count Value Value Worst Range Best
Trend
Proportion of New Birth Visits (NBVs) completed within 14 days (Persons, <14 days)2022/23  § 2,033 80.8% 79.9%" 13.3% Cl 99.0%
-U Breastfeeding prevalence at 6 to 8 weeks - current method (Persons, 6-8 weeks)  2022/23 - 917 * 49 2%* - Insufficient numbsr of values for a spine chart
g Propomon of infants receivmg a 6 to 8 week review {Persons. 6-8 weeks] 2022/23 ‘ 2186 73.3% 79.6%~ 49% - 98.5%
CD Proportion of children receiving a 12-month review (Persons, 1 yr) 2022123 = 2,085 75.9% 82.6%* 22.9% - 99.0%
Proportion of children who received a 2 to 2% year review (Persons, 2-2.5 yrs) 2022123 = 1,519 529% 73.6%~ 5.3% . - 38.0%
N
(o)
\l
.. . : Compared
Provisional metrics _ Shropshire  Shropshire Year on National | Gap to to Mitigation:
Metric average average year average | national .
2023/24 22123 23/24 EhEnge 202223 | average | Natio nal The reason for the low 12 month
average review rate is due to reviews
Source: SHROPCOM - i
% NBV within 14 days 81% 79% 2% 80% taking place before 15 morths,
with a rate of 86%. This is due to
Note this is comparing Shropshire 2023/24 data % NBV within 30 days 19% 19% 0% - - - the timing that the invites are
with the published 22/23 national average. ) enerated and parental choice.
P 9 % 6-8 week review by 8 weeks 73% 79% 5% 80% '?’he service havg made changes
This data has not yet been validated by the f
provider but is included to give an indication of % Breastfed at 6-8 weeks 31% 41% 10% 49% to the system to generate earlier
progress and trends. appointments to ensure that these
% 12 month review by 12 months  42% 47% 5% 83% are more frequently prior to the
child’s first birthday.
% 12 month review by 15 months 75% 86% 10% - -
% 2-2% year review 53% 69% 16% 74%




WY Shropshire

Council

L ooked after children

Supporting families

Vulnerable children in Shropshire

NOTE This slide is still in development and data is likely to change. E.g. COMPASS is now EHAST

COMPASS Help and Support Team

Number of children looked after (all ages)
in Shropshire

700 610 656
600 504
500 395 399
40
30;‘,,0
10(5'D

oo 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

% of children looked after in each age
group, as at 31 March 2023. Shropshire
vs England
® Shropshire ®England
40%
35% @
30% ol BS
25% s
N
20% ;3
15% 2
1% 3 8 2
5%

Under 1
year

5t09 10to 15 16 years
years years  and over

Age group

Chart showing the most common
vulnerabilities for children aged 0-4 and their
families between May 2022-2023. Based on
the Supporting Families Framework.
Note: substance misuse will be added in due

course
30%
28%
18%
12%
4%
3% 204
T
e & & @
: O a o O
Oe?\ & (\fo‘\o Q\Q’ NN & &
g @3\' < SR
& P &«
& J
2" & Q
S
oD

Criteria

Shropshire’s front door for children’s social
care

74 babies, infants and children aged 0-4
were supported by the team between
September 2022 and March 2023 (6
months).

Top 6 presenting issues:

Table showing presenting issue to CHAST, September 2022 to March 2023,
Source: COMPASS Help and Support Team

Presenting issue Count Proportion
Domestic abuse

Parenting Difficulties 15 13%
Neglect 14 12%
Adult mental health 1 10%
Parental acrimony 10 9%
Adult substance misuse 9 8%



https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/looked-after-children/
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/early-help/professionals-information/
http://search3.openobjects.com/kb5/shropshire/fid/service.page?id=Et0sic3FsdQ&familychannel=0

S h rO p S h | re Early Years settings in Shropshire
=

Council

Early Years settings

As of June 2024 in Shropshire, there were 97 Early Years
settings and 97 childminders located across the county. Many
settings are concentrated in the Shrewsbury area and
stestry.

@

Reassuringly, settings are well-placed in relation to areas
With high levels of income deprivation affecting children.

EY Childminders - Ofsted rating Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) by MSOA
@ Good Proportion of all children aged 0 to 15 living in income deprived families
@ inadequate [ ]e4-81
@ met [a1-e7
@ Outstanding I a7-128
@ Registration B 125181
@ Regisiration Visit I 181-267

EY Settings - Ofsted rating
@ Good
@ Outstanding
@ Registration Visit
@ Requires Improvement

© Crown copyright 2024 OS ACDDD0B0E7 15




00g abed

Shropshire

Council

The Shropshire Family Information
Directory has a list of activities and
groups available to families with children
0-4 years olds.

There is currently a piece of work
underway to enhance this offer regularly
adding new groups that become
available across the whole of Shropshire
and just over the borders.

g’?”ggzo“’g’"n..,
VSCE offer [

Sor Osge, \ y O d
Our (0]
Gty 37,
0 h
Anj I
Ars, W 1o, af,
(‘/u:/% ey Sorge . Gon Urned 2
s 4 % o0 Rey 6
Conm, oypg o Y SVance rGSU
Coyyy Wt Y 0y, ! e It
- Ur/_r,}, Py a’”fr/g . Idd/ D
e
1, aﬁcw"’am " 9 o, : onda.?sa oy
Tore 22 “Ses . 7 7, Nl
) Cry. Sy, M Qe/a Ay
&l - 1 Oy
D, 88 1 S 10 7 Trep, "ortsy
= "5 g, n . h, Y Se,
Xog, 2y, 1€ engy, i, Shor, Q) T ey
e
Soers Yoy, SV, e Ao s 5 Cleg,
) o 7 a
2 e, RSSU/ " yeg hang""g Py o OV o Sear,
— & " e s, EVE’]’n e Clas, e,
0784 S Qg o, 68 e inp,
/a) ¢ 3294, Lsga”’b‘sm e /""“p/e 4 /Ofe,r ooy,
o, My o, M 4 g 7S i,
g, Ong, ey
“oers) Our Re P ’ RN
~16 Supy, Oy thrg,
¥ ey s Yh, idy,
"1 O dopeh,',, Stle R it
202, (7 Stairs 9 Yays  Nay, /
25, Years - gy Nay 7 i
Year, (75 ca imes . Ust o
3y Ve, g 6/77(}1,4/ Sthe s a ary, P {i Oy,
57); Sarg @, e, 4 N dq\ lleg ove, . ez h’O o 5 ) Em,
o Yegy, (115 o g@anz/t: age i Lentl”/es /Casz e . Oe P . Qg
7 o g n, il 0
o f1n ! 01933 4wpedlfe gard@/? in S L/ :tbya W, o Shory,
- - - St

Childcare SEND Local Offer Domestic abuse  Education and Family support o
learning Emay ’
400t
Sh"f?//sr
() SHROPSHIRE
oL g
:
Health and Money matters Safety Things to do Young people
wellbeing

Shropshire Family Information Service (FIS) has developed this on-line directory featuring local and national
organisations and services that exist to support children, young people and families

The directory contains information on groups which can offer advice and support on some of the issues or
concerns any family may encounter. It can also help you find activities in your local area for children and young
people to take part in where they can learn new skills and make new friends.

If you are part of a group or service that isn't yet included in the service directory contact Shropshire Family
Information Service to add your details free of charge.



http://search3.openobjects.com/kb5/shropshire/fid/home.page
http://search3.openobjects.com/kb5/shropshire/fid/home.page

& >hropshire Stakeholder engagement

36 responses online-support

family-informatjon-service .
multi-agency-working

We engaged stakeholders and home-visiting

Tjprofessionals using an online questionnaire.
& The questionnaire was developed to

o capture the views of all services and
Sorganisations that support babies, infants lack-of-trans port
and children and their families (age 0-4). -

antenatal-services
sure-start-centres

face —tO _.I’.'ace integrated-support
breastfeeding-support

drop-ins



¥ hropshire Parents/carers engagement

When would you have most and least benefitted from the support of a health visitor?

Least Most
Experiences 0 1 2 3 4 5

_ During pregnancy 29% 0% 0% 0% 14% | 57%

We engageq parents/garers of 0-4 In the first 14 days following childbirth 0% 14% | 14% | 0% 14% | 57%

year (_)lds using an online Between 14- and 30-days following childbirth | 0% | 0% | 29% | 29% | 14% | 29%

guestionnaire. The survey was Baby aged 6-8 weeks 0% | 0% [ 43% | 29% | 14% | 14%

v distributed at a parents and carers Baby aged 3-6 months 0% 14% | 43% | 14% | 14% | 14%

Q , aged 12 months-2 years 14% | 14% | 14% | 14% | 0% | 43%

% eventvia a QR code. Survey child 2 to 3 years 14% 0% 29% | 29% 0% 29%

@ responses were collected between child 3 to 5 years 14% | 14% | 0% | 14% | 14% | 43%
"™ 26 October 2023 and 29 November

2023.

As a parent/carer of child (ren) aged 0-5, what are the most important

considerations to you, to help you look after your child’s health and wellbeing?

Response rate n=18 | _
“Access to healthcare without a long wait”

“Being able to access services for information and support without delays™

“Physical health and nutrition, followed by mental wellbeing of child and how to support™
“"Regular check ins with health professionals for reassurance”




WY Shropshire

Council

Recommendations

Based on the Areas of Need highlighted on slide 10

€0g abed




Area of need

Mitigation
(What are we doing now)

Recommendation

(What we are intending to do and

Governance
(Where does this
recommendation sit)

1. Smoking status at time of
delivery

2. Infant mortality

3. Emergency admissions
(under 1s and 0-4s)

0g abed

4. Pépulation Vaccination
coverage: MMR two doses (5
years old)

5. Breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8
weeks

6.Uptake of Healthy Start
vouchers

Healthy Pregnancy service in SATH maternity offering smoking cessation support
Health Lives Advisors offering behavioural support for smoking cession
Expansion of smoking cessation offer

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Tobacco Dependency treatment pathways

Cascading learning from infant deaths (CDOP reviews)

System wide Infant and Child Mortality workshops

Increasing awareness of Safer Sleep advice

Community and family hub development to increase available support
Dashboard in development to STW monitor trends and identify modifiable factors

Increased awareness of asthma and inhaler use

School nursing service have trained school staff and also implemented Asthma Friendly
Schools programme.

GP practices audited blue inhaler prescriptions.

Community and family hub development to increase available support e.g. Health Visiting
drop in clinics opening across county

Priority focus of the infant mortality workstream

Accident prevention awareness

Increased circulation of resources to raise awareness of the importance of immunisations
through EY settings, schools, higher education, social media, staff newsletters.

GP practices offering catch up appointments to improve coverage.

Community and family hub development to increase available support

STW Infant feeding strategy

Breastfeeding peer support groups

Additional breastfeeding training to PHNS

Online Antenatal/Postnatal Solihull Training

Baby Buddy App

Introduced open access HV clinics

HV single point of access and texting service

Community and family hub development

Provider is working on improving the data inputting as hasn’t been as robust in recent
years but is now improving as staff have been made aware and are encouraged to
complete it.

Increased awareness through media

Awareness though Baby Buddy App

Increased training and information to professionals supporting pregnant women and
families

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Provider is currently looking at the process for being able to offer HS vouchers in clinic

how)

To decrease the number of pregnant women smoking at
time of delivery to England average

To decrease the number of infant deaths by addressing
modifiable factors

Learning from previous deaths

Identifying any local themes

Reduce the number of 0-4's being admitted from A&E by

increasing awareness of early identification and treatment

Increasing awareness of appropriate management of acute
and long-term conditions

Learning from case reviews

Embed paediatric Same Day Emergency Care in the
community and monitor activity

Increase vaccination coverage to 95% by

continued awareness of reasons for vaccination

Identify groups with lower uptake and target messaging and
work with these communities to increase uptake.

Improve referral pathways for complex breastfeeding support
Raise awareness of breastfeeding peer support groups and
HV open access clinics

Improve reporting mechanisms.

Introduction of Womens' Health Hub

Continue to raise awareness
Increase availability of vitamins

LMNS
Health and Wellbeing Board

ICS System Quality Group
LMNS

ICS System Quality Group
LMNS

System Urgent and
Emergency care

CYP Oversight Group

Health Protection Quality
Assurance Board

LMNS
PHNS contract monitoring

Public Health — linking with
national team



Area of need

Mitigation
(What are we doing now)

Recommendations
(What we are intending to do)

Governance
(Where does
this sit)

7. Proportion of children receiving a
12 month review by 12 months

8. Percentage of children achieving a
good level of development at 2 to 2%
years

9. Chrfyl development: percentage of
childien achieving the expected level
in cgmmunication skills, gross motor
skills, fine motor skills, problem

solv skills and personal social
skillgyat 2 to 2% years

10. Stakeholders report
transport/access and face to face
provision is a barrier for health
visiting

11. Looked after children, 0-4 year
olds making up 24% of all children
looked after in the county (2023)

Increased awareness of reviews to parents and families

Altered booking system to generate appointments early

Introduced open access HV clinics

HV single point of access and texting service

Community and family hub development to increase available support

2 year integrated review in the early year's settings (2 year development) and the open
access clinics (emergency admissions/minor illness management, breastfeeding, healthy
start vouchers).

Piloting integrated 2-year reviews with EY settings

Increase awareness of reviews and encourage parents to take up.

HV single point of access and texting service

Introduced open access clinics

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Physical activity is a key area within early years as part of a child's development. We will
continue to work with our Early Years setting to implement the CMO's recommendations
regarding physical activity and encourage them to use innovative ways to integrate those
across the early year's curriculum

Introduced Early Talk boost and Talk boost to increase speech and language development
Produced school readiness leaflet with information on how to support child development.
Raised awareness of child development.

Increase access to HV service for support.

HV open access clinics

HV single point of access and texting service

Increase uptake of early education

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Physical activity is a key area within early years as part of a child's development. We will
continue to work with our Early Years setting to implement the CMO's recommendations
regarding physical activity and encourage them to use innovative ways to integrate those
across the early years curriculum

Introduced open access clinics

Increased HV recruitment to vacant posts

HV single point of access and texting service

Restored face to face contacts

HV training places

Community and family hub development to increase available support

Actions developed and implemented as a result of the Children's summit (2023)
Transformation of Targeted Early Help, Re-launch of the EH Partnership Board and launch
of Early Help Strategy,

Community and Family hubs and Integration panels

Communication on how to seek support particularly during school holidays and times of
increased pressure

Best Start in Life programme which includes the introduction of Family Foundations Course
and information on support available to first time parents/co-parents

Actions included within the Drug and Alcohol Partnership Plan

Continue to increase number of reviews at 12 months and monitor
Continue to raise awareness

Changing the way in which appointments are sent to meet timescales
Increase availability of HV open access clinics

Roll out integrated 2-year reviews with EY settings

Continue to raise awareness on effective interactions that improve child
development.

Roll out of the school readiness leaflet

Introduction and roll out of HV open access clinics for parents/carers to
access support

Publishing Best Start for Life offer

Roll out of school readiness leaflet

Online Solihull programmes

To increase awareness of effective interactions from bump- toddlers to
improve development.

Introduction and roll out of HV open access clinics for parents/ cares to
access support.

Continue to recruit to vacant posts

HV training places increasing

Publicise service offer

Introduction and roll out of HV open access clinics

Reduce the number of 0-4's becoming looked after by

Increasing professional curiosity

Increasing awareness of professionals and families of early help to
support families and prevent escalation

Increasing number of families accessing early help

Improve identification of families in need

Continued audit of cases and learning cascaded and acted upon

ICS System Quality
Group

PHNS contract
monitoring

ICS System Quality
Group

PHNS contract
monitoring

Health and Wellbeing
Board

ICS System Quality
Group

PHNS contract
monitoring

PHNS contract
monitoring

Shropshire
Safeguarding
Community
Partnership

Health and Wellbeing
Board



Wa¥ Shropshire Summary of DRAFT recommendations

90¢ abed

w

S -

10.

11.
12.

13.
14.
15.

Council

To support partners / family members of pregnant women to stop smoking and to reduce the rates of pregnant women smoking at time of delivery.
To continue to monitor child and infant mortality, adjusting action plans as required to ensure appropriate mitigations are in place.

To improve the recording to show the accurate position of emergency admissions of 0-4s, distinct from 0-4s who required same day emergency care. To monitor the
level of emergency admissions of 0-4s and take appropriate action.

To increase uptake of pregnancy and childhood immunisations to provide protection and reduce the risks associated with these illnesses.
To continue to increase breastfeeding rates at 6-8 weeks to achieve at least the national average.
To continue to increase and monitor the number of families accessing the mandated contacts offered by the health visiting service.

To ensure the cost of living support and support for health and wellbeing is well promoted through all services, including promoting the take up of healthy start
vouchers

To reduce the number of 0-4 year olds whose parents use drugs and alcohol who become looked after and to increase the number of parents receiving appropriate
support at the earliest opportunity.

To reduce the number of 0-4s living in households where domestic abuse occurs by supporting the workforce to identify perpetrators and support them to
behaviour change programmes

For all health and social care agencies to ensure they appropriately assess the mental health needs of the child, mother and family and signpost to relevant services
and intervention.

To develop Women’s Health Hubs across Shropshire aligning with development of Community & Family Hubs to improve outcomes for women & children aged 0-4.

To publish the Best Start for Life offer to enable families to access information about services and support to increase visibility and accessibility of services and
improve child outcomes.

To continue to increase awareness of early help and prevention offers to support families and prevent escalation.
To continue to monitor the level of children who are overweight or obese at reception and to deliver on the Early Years actions of the Healthier Weight Strategy

To engage with stakeholders to inform recommendations.




WY Shropshire

Council

Review, feedback and next steps:

v HWBB- draft April 2024

v' EH Partnership board — 27 June 2024

v' SHROPCOM

v Children's Safeguarding Oversight Group- March 2024

v" ShIPP- July 2024 — feedback by 2 Aug 2024

v Further engagement with stakeholders to inform recommendations, target setting exercise and comms
plan.

0 HWBB- September 2024

O How do we promote this product? Webinars?

10¢ abed

For feedback and queries, please contact Jess Edwards
Public Health Intelligence Manager
less.edwards@shropshire.gov.uk



mailto:jess.edwards@shropshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

Shropshire
together | |
| ) ) O% R AYYV (=% i 4./ |
SHROPSHIRE HEALTHAND WELLBEING BOARD
Report
Meeting Date 19 September 2024
Title of report Cost of Living - Dashboard
This report is for Discussion and Approval of X | Information only
(You will have been advised agreement of recommendations (No
which applies) recommendations (With discussion recommendations)
by exception)

Reporting Officer & email | Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
Which Joint Health & Children & Young | x Joined up working X
Wellbeing Strategy People
priorities does this Mental Health Improving Population Health X
report address? Please Healthy Weight & Working with and building strong X
tick all that apply Physical Activity and vibrant communities

Workforce X Reduce inequalities (see below) X
What inequalities does Inequalities arising from factors affecting the cost of living among our
this report address? residents, such as fuel costs, income, employment and house and

rent prices.

Report content - Please expand content under these headings or attach your report
ensuring the three headings are included.

1. Executive Summary

This report presents to the Health and Wellbeing Board an update on Shropshire’s Cost of Living
dashboard, progress to date, future direction, and timescales.

2. Report
The Shropshire Cost of living interactive dashboard can be found here:

https://app.powerbi.com/Redirect?action=0 penApp&appld=c36bab57-92cf-4323-b55d-
d23d5152b2d4&ctid=b6c13011-372d-438b-bc82-67e4c7966€39

The Cost of Living project started before Christmas 2023 and is based on the Suffolk County
Council's Cost of Living dashboard.

Shropshire’s Cost of Living dashboard includes data from various public sources such as DWP
(Department for Work and Pensions), ONS (Office for National Statistics), Education statistics and
data from local partner organisations, such as Citizens Advice.

The dashboard includes the following sections:

Household Spend
Employment and Earnings
Housing

Health and Society

The dashboard went for comment to the Poverty and Hardship group in February 2024, involving
statutory and VCSE (Voluntary, Charity and Social Enterprise) partners working to support people in
hardship and poverty in Shropshire. This group feeds into the Social Taskforce. The dashboard was
then reviewed by the Social Task Force Group in March and was circulated in August 2024, receiving
positive feedback and interest. We are still waiting for data from other partners to incorporate into the
tool, it will be an iterative intelligence product, and more data will be added as it becomes available.

Page 309


mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
https://app.powerbi.com/Redirect?action=OpenApp&appId=c36bab57-92cf-4323-b55d-d23d5152b2d4&ctid=b6c13011-372d-438b-bc82-67e4c7966e89
https://app.powerbi.com/Redirect?action=OpenApp&appId=c36bab57-92cf-4323-b55d-d23d5152b2d4&ctid=b6c13011-372d-438b-bc82-67e4c7966e89
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNjdkMDZlZjgtOTQ3NC00ZGM4LWI2MzgtMWQ3NDU0NTA1NDZjIiwidCI6IjEwOWM2YWVjLTUwNDYtNGE5NS04ZjNjLTg0ZjYzYmExOGFmNCJ9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNjdkMDZlZjgtOTQ3NC00ZGM4LWI2MzgtMWQ3NDU0NTA1NDZjIiwidCI6IjEwOWM2YWVjLTUwNDYtNGE5NS04ZjNjLTg0ZjYzYmExOGFmNCJ9

Dashboard contents

« * Cost Of Living Dashboard

Contents

Page Information: Household Spend

Use this page to navigate through the
dashboard. The dashboard is split into
themed sections, with multiple pages
within each section.

Data within the dashboard will be updated
automatically be updated.

The dashboard will be expended over time Employment & Earnings
to include additional data sources and
visuals. For queries please contact public
health and intelligence team.

Employr

Weekly Pay

Weekly P

Credit C

Data Sources:

The latest available data is included in this
report. However, some of the data sources

within this report may only be updated Housing
annually, and in some cases, less
frequently.

House And Rent Prices

The reporting period will be clearly marked

on each page and will vary by page.

Health And Society

Crime

Examples of reports by section:

Household spend: Fuel Poverty

Household Spend
Fuel Poverty

ing the Low Income Low Energy Eff (LILEE) indicator. A
r if they are living in a property with a fuel poverty energy Note: The darker the
band D or below, and when they spend the required amount to heat their home, gradient colour on the
ual w the official poverty line. The ub regional data map, the higher the
nublished in 2024 usina 2022 data.
households in that

LAName Number of households Number of households in fuel poverty
-

Shropshire 142,625 25,730

Proportion of households per area which were fuel poor in 2021

West Midlands (Me.
Walsall 19.7%
East Staffordshire
Shropshire
Staffordshire Moorl
Newcastle-under-Ly.. 18.0%
Ducley
Staffordshire 1
Cannock Chase
Stafford
Telford and Wrekin
South Staffordshire
Tamworth
Lichfield
England

Solihull

National Data Data Source:BEIS Fuel Poverty SUb-regional Statistics Data availability: Public 0: 2022, published in 2024

Employment and Earning: Universal Credit claimants

Page 310




' l Employment & Earning
Universal Credit Claimants Demographics

Page Information: Areas Age groups

This page shows the number of people in Shropshire that are claiming Universal Credit. People on Universal Credit
includes those who have started Universal Credit and have not had a termination recorded for this spell. The rollout of
Universal Credit is ongoing with existing benefit claimants being moved to Universal Credit. For this reason, Alternative 24/08/2021 - 23/08/2024
Claimant Count should also be considered when assessing the number of benefits claimants in Shrewsbury. The Alternati

Claimant Count measures the number of people claiming unemployment benefits by modelling what the count would

have been if Universal Credit had been in place since 2013 with the broader span of people this covers. Use the ‘Areas’ and

Shropshire Vv All |3 || vears

-dit claimants by age group hropshire Universal Credit claimants by gender

Age group @16-19 @20-24 @Over 65 Gender @Female ®Male

ata Sourc Universal Credit Data availability: Public

Housing
Homelessness
10lds assessed as
threatened with
homeless
homelessness
Number of households assessed as homeless by Quarter and Area Number of households assessed as homeless per 1,000 by Quarter and Area
Area ®England @Shropshire ®West Midlands Area ®England @Shropshire @West Midlands
100K 8
80K
b n 6
c =
[=]
5 6o S
o ]
@ 35
wn S
W <
T o
s =
E 40K T4
= =
i 2
T
® 3
20K
2
0K
20, 0 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022 2022 2023 2023 2023 2023
Qr1Qr2 Q3 Qrd4 Qr1 Q2 Q3 Qir4 Q1 Qr2 Qir3 Qtr4 Qir 1 Qr2 Qtr 3 Qur 4 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ability: Publi

Healthy & Society: Citizen's advice

Page 311




A\ Health And Society
« ﬁ * Citizens Advice (Data Based On Shropshire)

Comment- Filter On Ward
The Citizens Advice (CA) service are a network of independent charities offering confidential, impartial advice online, over the phone and in

person, for free. The data on this page has been provided by CA Shropshire. il

61

Jan 2023 Jul 2023 lan 2023 Jul 202 Jan 2023 Jul 2023

People helped with charitable support,food bank enquiries
by month

an 2023 Jul 2023 Jan 2023 Jul 2023 - Jan 2023 Jul 2023

Data Source: Citizen's Advice Data availability: Internal Data Latest Data to: 12-2023

Work continues with the integration of partner data, for example from VSCE partners. We aim to
publish this tool on the public facing Shropshire Council website alongside the Economy dashboard to
provide a set of tools to inform planning and decision making.

Risk assessment and None

opportunities appraisal
(NB This will include the
following: Risk Management,
Human Rights, Equalities,
Community, Environmental
consequences, and other
Consultation)

Financial implications None

(Any financial implications of

note)

Climate Change None

Appraisal as applicable

Where else has the paper | System Partnership Social Taskforce

been presented? Boards
Voluntary Sector Social Taskforce
Other -

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not include
items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your organisational
lead e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead
ClIr Cecilia Motley

Appendices
(Please include as appropriate)

Page 312



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

Agenda Iltem 10

Shropshire
together
Ay L O 21y X > O WYAR__ 1
SHROPSHIRE HEALTHAND WELLBEING BOARD
Report

Meeting Date 19 September 2024
Title of report Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) KPI and performance

outcome monitoring update
This report is for Discussion and Approval of X | Information only
(You will have been advised agreement of recommendations (No _
which applies) recommendations (With dlsc_ussmn recommendations)

by exception)

Reporting Officer & email | Rachel Robinson

Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
Which Joint Health & Children & Young | x Joined up working X
Wellbeing Strategy People
priorities does this Mental Health X Improving Population Health
report address? Please Healthy Weight & X Working with and building strong
tick all that apply Physical Activity and vibrant communities

Workforce X Reduce inequalities (see below) X
What inequalities does
this report address?

Report content - Please expand content under these headings or attach your report
ensuring the three headings are included.

1. Executive Summary

This report provides an overview of the approach to Population Health Managment (PHM) across the
Intergrated Care System. This report then specifically provides an update of the KPl and Performance
Monitoring element of the work programme and specifically those metrics that relate to the Integrated
Care Strategy which build on the Health and Wellbeing Board and SHIPP Metrics.

2. Recommendations
e That the Board review and comment on the outcome metrics including in this report
e That the Board note the progress to date against the Integrated Care Strategy and Health and
Wellbeing Board Strategy Outcomes and consider any additional or amended outcomes for
consideration within the framework at the Board

3. Report

Background

Population Health Management (PHM) is a way of working to understand current health and care
needs and predict what local people will need in the future. It helps shape evidence-based actions to
address these needs. This is used to inform and define commissioning intentions and planning of
future services/ required outcomes for strategic planning/commissioning. It can also support those
on the frontline, our local communities and teams to understand and support actions to improve
outcomes for example through local action planning and pathway redesign.

PHM uses historical and current data to understand what factors are driving poor outcomes in
different population groups. The use of joined up data across local health and care partners and
techniques like population segmentation and risk stratification can offer deeper insight into the holistic
needs of different population groups and the drivers of health inequalities. Alongside the use of
gualitative data sources and ad hoc research and evaluation as required.

At an Integrated Care System level, a Population Health Management Group has been established to
oversee the work programme to deliver a population health management approach across the
system. It is chaired by the Director of Public Health for Shropshire and membership is comprised of
the strategic lead and analytical lead for each partner organisation to drive the work forward.

Page 313


mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk

SpeC|f|caIIy, the purpose of the PHM group is to:
To establish a system approach to embedding and leading Population Health Management
approaches across all programmes of work and to co-ordinate the delivery of key programmes
of work across the system including the prevention and inequalities

* Touse all data (qualitative and quantitative and information, evidence of best practice to
develop intelligence and insight in a systematic way to better understand, plan, deliver and
ultimately improve our populations health and care whilst making best use of all available
resources. This includes specifically informing strategy development and linking back into
strategic plans

* Tolead the approach across the system to benefits realisation, evaluation and monitoring of
outcomes and impact

The PHM work programme is split into the following headings;
* Programme population health intelligence
* Health needs assessments
» Elective recovery
+ KPI and performance outcome monitoring
* Modelling and forecasting
* Infrastructure

This report provides an update on the KPI and performance outcome monitoring element of the
work programme and specifically the development of a framework for monitoring committee and
Board level KPIs and outcomes.

KPIs and Monitoring including the Intergrated Care Partnership Outcomes

A pyramid approach has been taken to monitor performance and impact of the Population Health
Management programme. Multiple dashboards monitor programme delivery through key performance
indicators and outcome measures. Key KPIs from programme dashboards will feed up to committee
level and to the Integrated Care Partnership. The below infographics demonstrate this.

Committee
level KPIs

Page 314




Priorities: KPI and Performance Outcome %

Health Inequalities Monitoring

ICP dashboard i
outcomes Strategic

«  Child Mortality ICB, HWBBs (‘T\/‘"J = S) Outcomes

SHIPP, TWIPP, STG, QPC, Workforce, UEC ol
levelKPIs

Programme/

Strategic f
Health i 5 ProjecKPls
Inequalities Transformati

dashboard

(SSCP)
dashboards

To determine a list of KPIs for reporting to the ICP Board, a long list of KPIs were collated from the:
» Shropshire Health and Wellbeing Board KPIs
* Telford and Wrekin Health and Wellbeing board KPIs
*  ShIPP KPIs
« TWIPP KPIs
* Integrated strategy (owned by the Integrated Care Partnership)

The list of metrics would be taken to each Board and Committee for consideration in draft before the
final version would be signed off by the Integrated Care Partnership

The Population Health Management Planning Group considered and agreed a short list of key
performance indicators to report to the ICP board, as shown below.

Page 315




B A

Council

Shropshire Suggested ICP Board metrics

ICP Planning group met in June 2024. Agreed a short list of high-level
metrics from a long list collated from both HWBBs, SHIPP, TWIPP and the
Integrated strategy metrics

KPI1 Where from? Metric
Shropshire HWB strategy!
1 Increase healthy life expectancy in all people TWHW strategy'  Healthy life expectancy at birth (male and female)
Integrated Strategy
2 Improve life expectancy at birth and 65+ years TW HWB Strategy  Life expectancy at birth and 65+ years (male and female)
TWHWB
3 Narrow the gaps in life expectancy and healthy life expectancy. Strategy/integrated  Inequality in LE and HLE
Strategy
) . Shropshire HWB Premature mortality in adults with severe mental illness
4 Increase healthy life expectancy for those with Severe Mental lliness (SMI) strategy/SHIPP/ Integrated(SMI) and Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with

Strategy TW HW Strategy severe mental illness (SMI)
Shropshire HWB

5 16-17s not in education, employment or training strategy/SHIPP/ Integrated16-17s not in education, employment or training
Strategy
6 Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with Severe Mental liness (SMI) Shropshire HWB strategyExcess under 75 mortality for people with SMI
TWC HW Strategy-
7 Improve infant and maternal health outcomes Integrated neighbourhoodSmoking status at the Time of Delivery
health and care
8 Improve infant and maternal health outcomes SHIPP Infant mortality rate
9 Diabetes treatment outcomes Integrated Strategy  Treatment outcomes - diabetes care processes
TWC HW Strategy- : " ‘
10 Reduce preventable mortality Protect, prevent and detecionder 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular diseases
early considered preventable
TWC HW Strategy- ) .
1 Reduce preventable mortality Protect, preventand dmedUm:Ier 75 mortality rate from cancer considered
early preventable
TWC HW Strategy- i )
12 Reduce preventable mortality Protect, prevent and deteci2nder 75 mortality rate from causes considered
early preventable
13 E04b — Under 75 mortality rate from Cardiovascular diseases seen as preventable (2019 SHIBP Under 75 mortality rate from Cardiovascular diseases
definition, 1 year range) seen as preventable ( 1 year range)
14 Reduce impact of ACEs on our communities Integrated Strategy  Report at Place. Overarching position ICP level.
15 Increase the number of residents describing their community as a healthy, safe and Number of residents describing their community as a
positive place to live Integrated Strategy  healthy, safe and positive place to live
B . .
6 Increase the % of residents who report that they are able to access services they need, Integrated Strategy  Tbe
when they need them
17 Reduce carbon footprint generated through travel by patients to our services Integrated Stategy o0 footprint of patients travelling to senices
18 Early diagnosis and treatment for cancer SHIPP % cancers diagnosed al stage 1 and 2

The expectation is to produce a first draft of the outcomes framework by October 2024 for the
Integrated Care Partnership to review. However, the framework and the KPIs/Outcome metrics will
be an ongoing development with senior leaders and members. Targets, tolerance and benchmarks
will be set and clarified over the coming months with where possible, regular updates. This will be
developed into a dashboard and published on the Intergrated Care System website. This will be the
main source of performance information enabling greater insight, transparency and scrutiny of the ICS
performance and delivery of its outcomes as set in the Integrated Care Strategy.

Next Steps
To move the work forward our next steps involve:
+ Seeking endorsement of metrics from Shropshire Health and Wellbeing Board and Telford and
Wrekin Health and Wellbeing Board
» Seeking endorsement of metrics from ShiPP and TWIPP
» Ensuring metrics still align with Integrated strategy and JFP
* The Dashboard build — commence September 2024
» A draft of the metrics to be shared with the Integrated Care Partnership for review comment
and amendments
* For programmes of work to be continuously reviewed and amended in the pyramid
« Each metric to be mapped to a programme of work at the bottom of the pyramid.
» If there are exceptions or areas of need, a deep dive will follow and a report will be presented
to the ICP board.
» Final first version of the framework to be published

Risk assessment and None
opportunities appraisal

Page 316




(NB This will include the
following: Risk Management,
Human Rights, Equalities,
Community, Environmental
consequences and other
Consultation)

Financial implications None
(Any financial implications of
note)
Climate Change None
Appraisal as applicable
Where else has the paper | System Partnership ShIPP 19 September (as August cancelled)
been presented? Boards
Voluntary Sector
Other

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not include
items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your organisational
lead e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead

ClIr Cecilia Motley

Appendices

Appendix A. ICP KPI's and Dashboard update — presentation

Page 317



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

This page is intentionally left blank



b, Integrated NHS

lr Care System Shropshire, Telford
Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin and erkin

ICP KPIs and Dashboard
update




Purpose and approach

The KPls were collated from the:

» Shropshire Health and Wellbeing Board KPls
 Telford and Wrekin Health and Wellbeing board KPls
* ShIPP

 TWIPP

* |ntegrated strategy

¢ abed

TthHM planning group met, considered and agreed a long list of metrics to monitor impact of the
PHM work programme




A pyramid approach

* Multiple dashboards monitor programme
delivery through KPIs and outcome
measures

* Key KPIs feed up to committee level and
to ICP level

T2¢ obed

Two levels of performance monitoring

Committee
level KPls




KPI & Performance Outcome Monitoring

* Priorities:

* Health Inequalities

* |CP dashboard - outcomes )
*  Child Mortality Strategic
ICB, HWBBs (TW — S) Outcomes

LY C .
ommittee
o) ShIPP, TWIPP, STG, QPC, Workforce, UEC
< level KPIs
(9]
w
N
N
Shropshire S Programme/
Saf di rategic ;
I Heallt_?_ Child go?:qal:nil{;/g lxlenltt:ra]I UEC el Transformati Workforce Project
nequaities mortality Partnership = dashboard das(:rlaggard on dashboard KPlIs

dashboard (SSCP) dashboard
dashboards

Group/ICB

NHS§



Suggested ICP Board Metrics

¥the Integrated
These aim to provide

oversight and assurance to the ICP

KPI Where from? Metric

Shropshire HWB strategy/ TW HW

1 Increase healthy life expectancy in all people strategy/ Integrated Strategy Healthy life expectancy at birth (male and female)
2 Improve life expectancy at birth and 65+ years TW HWB Strategy Life expectancy at birth and 65+ years (male and female)
3 Narrow the gaps in life expectancy and healthy life expectancy. TWHWB sét{f;;%);'megrated Inequality in LE and HLE
. . Shropshire HWB strategy/ShIPP/ |prematyre mortality in adults with severe mental illness (SMI) and Excess
4 Increase healthy life expectancy for those with Severe Mental lliness (SMI) IntegratedSSt:;r—.tl;eggyy/ TWHW  er 75 mortality rate in adults with severe mental illness (SMI)
5 16-17s not in education, employment or training Shmpsmtr:g':i%Sé[f;ffgfhmp/ 16-17s not in education, employment or training
6 T Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with Severe Mental lliness (SMI) Shropshire HWB strategy Excess under 75 mortality for people with SMI
Q . TWC HW Strategy - Integrated . . .
7 % Improve infant and maternal health outcomes neighbourhood health and care Smoking status at the Time of Delivery
8 W Improve infant and maternal health outcomes ShiPP Infant mortality rate
9 % Diabetes treatment outcomes Integrated Strategy Treatment outcomes - diabetes care processes
. TWC HW Strategy - Protect,  Under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular diseases considered
10 Reduce preventable mortality prevent and detect early preventable
1 Reduce preventable mortality Tvglz\:\:]\/t gggtggt);;tpgg:gd’ Under 75 mortality rate from cancer considered preventable
12 Reduce preventable mortality ﬂg’g\:\:‘v‘ gggtjgéétpgg:gd’ Under 75 mortality rate from causes considered preventable
13 E04b — Under 75 mortality rate from Cardiovascular diseases seen as preventable (2019 definition, 1 year range) ShiPP EJ;‘ ?;;Z?ar:ggf lity rate from Cardiovascular diseases seen as preventable
14 Reduce impact of ACEs on our communities Integrated Strategy Report at Place. Overarching position ICP level.
. - . . . . Number of residents describing their community as a healthy, safe and
15 Increase the number of residents describing their community as a healthy, safe and positive place to live Integrated Strategy bositive place to live
16 Increase the % of residents who report that they are able to access services they need, when they need them Integrated Strategy Thc
17 Reduce carbon footprint generated through travel by patients to our services Integrated Strategy Carbon footprint of patients travelling to services
18 Early diagnosis and treatment for cancer ShiPP % cancers diagnosed at stage 1 and 2

] AN s



Endorsement of metrics

Ensure metrics still align with Integrated strategy and JFP
Dashboard build — commence August
Share draft Dashboard to ICP board — October 2024

Share draft Dashboard with HWBBs and ShIPP/TWIPP
« 18t September -TW HWBB and TWIPP
« 19 September- Shropshire HWBB and ShIPP

Programmes of work will continuously be reviewed and amended in the pyramid
Each metric will be mapped to a programme of work at the bottom of the pyramid.

If there are exceptions or areas of need, a deep dive will follow and feed into ICP
board

A\
| 5 NHSE

yze abed




Integrated Strategy KPlIs

Outcome Focus — potential high level outcomes

The health of our population will

be improve through a focus on.... Qur Qutcomes

We will improve our ability to attract, recruit and retainour staff

We will im prove stafftraining and development opportunities across all our partners
We will improwve self-reported health and wellbeing amongst our staff
We will increase Equality and Diversity workforce measures in all organisations

The health of our STAFF

0

ol

We will reduce the impact of poverty on our communities

We will reduce levels of domesticviolence and abuse

e will reduce the impact of alcohal on our communities

We will reduce the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences [(ACEs] on our communities

We will reduce the number of young pecple not in education, training or em ployment

We will increase the number of owur residents describing their community as a healthy, safe and positive place to
live

The health of our COMMUNITIES

Geg abed

U Ol o

1. We willincrease the proportion of energy used by the estates of our partner organisations from renewable sources
2. We will reduce the total carbon footprint generated through travel of patients using our services

3. We will increase the use of active travel, publictransportand other sustainable transport by our staff, service users
and communities

The health of our ENVIROMNPMEMNT

Integrated
.r Care System .

Shrapshire, Telford and Wrekin

Telford & Wrekin ShI'CIF}Sh Ires
GCo-operative Council tﬁgether




Integrated Strategy KPlIs

Outcome Focus — potential high level outcomes

The health of our population will

be improved through a focus Our Outcomes
on....

We willincrease healthy life expectancy across STW and narrow the gap between different population groups
We willreduce early deaths from preventable causes— cardiovascularand respiratory conditions, cancers and liver
disease- focussing on those communities which currently have the poorest outcomes

We willimprove life expectancy of those withSerious Mental lllness

We willincrease the proportion of peoplein STW with a healthy weight

i

The health of our RESIDENTS We will improve selfeported mental wellbeing

We willreduce the numberof children & young people who self-harm
We willreduce alcohol related hospital admissions
We willreduce the proportion of pregnant women who smoke

9zg abed

We willlower the burden and minimise the impact of infectious diseasein all population groups

ol U o

We will increase the proportion of our residents who report that they are able to find information about health and
care services easily
2. We willincreasethe proportion of our residents who report that they are able to accessthe services they need,

The health of our SERVICES

when they need them
3. Wewillincrease the proportion of ourresidents who report that their health and care is delivered through joined
up services as close to home as possible

Telford & Wrekin Shrop5h|re JL Integrated
Cooperative Councl together 0| Care System "

Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin




Agenda Item 11

Shropshire
together | |
Imm ) ) O% R AYYV (=% i 4./ |
SHROPSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Report
Meeting Date 19th September 2024
Title of report Women'’s Health Hubs: Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin
This report is for Discussion and Approval of X | Information only
(You will have been agreement of recommendations (No
dvised which i recommendations (With discussion recommendations)
advised which applies) by exception)

Reporting Officer & email | Naomi Roche: Public Health Principal - Healthy Population
Lead & Women'’s Health Hubs Lead STW

naomi.roche @shropshire.gov.uk

Which Joint Health & Children & Young | X | Joined up working X
Wellbeing Strategy People
priorities does this Mental Health X | Improving Population Health X
report address? Please | Healthy Weight & | X | Working with and building strong | X
tick all that apply Physical Activity and vibrant communities

Workforce X | Reduce inequalities (see below) | X
What inequalities does The work has reducing inequalities at its core. Person Centred
this report address? approaches and personalising care ensures active

consideration of the needs of different communities.

As described in the Women'’s Health Strategy, 51% of the
population faces obstacles when it comes to getting the care
they need.

Although women in the UK on average live longer than men,
women spend a significantly greater proportion of their lives in ill
health and disability when compared with men. Not enough
focus is placed on women-specific issues like miscarriage or
menopause, and women are under-represented when it comes
to important clinical trials. This has meant that not enough is
known about conditions that only affect women, or about how
conditions that affect both men and women impact them in
different ways.

As the national directive says, the impact of failing to put
women at the heart of health services has been clear to see
through the number of recent high-profile independent reports
and inquiries. This has included the:
o report of the Independent Medicines and Medical
Devices Safety Review (IMMDS review), which
considered how the health system in England
responds to reports from patients about side effects
from treatments.
e report of the independent inquiry into the issues
raised by convicted breast surgeon lan Paterson
o recent final report of the Ockenden review, which
was an independent review of maternity services at
the Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust

Page 327


mailto:naomi.roche@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-medicines-and-medical-devices-safety-review-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-medicines-and-medical-devices-safety-review-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/paterson-inquiry-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/paterson-inquiry-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/final-report-of-the-ockenden-review

As these independent reports have shown, too often itis
women whom the healthcare system fails to keep safe and fails
to listen to.

There are specific actions in the Ockenden Report requiring the
local system to improve support for women'’s health, including
pre-conception care.

The LMNS, Maternal Medicine Networks and trusts must
ensure that women have access to pre-conception care.
Trusts must provide services for women with multiple
pregnancy in line with national guidance. Trusts must
follow national guidance for managing women with
diabetes and hypertension in pregnancy. Women with pre-
existing medical disorders, including cardiac disease,
epilepsy, diabetes, and chronic hypertension, must have
access to preconception care with a specialist familiar in
managing that disorder and who understands the impact
that pregnancy may have.

The trust has referral process in place to manage pre-existing
disorders and multiple pregnancies however, there is a gap
regarding ensuring women have access to pre-conception care
in general as this is not a specific commissioned pathway. As a
priority theme for the women’s hub steering group with links to
LMNS health pregnancy and healthy families workstreams. This
also links in with reducing infant mortality, preventing stillbirth,
and prevention of many other congenital issues including foetal
alcohol syndrome, spina bifida and others.

Additionally, the T&W Child Sexual Exploitation Inquiry Report
highlights long and extensive exploitation of young women in
the area, with numerous recommendations of collaborative
working to prevent exploitation in the future. Health services are
a key part of this. By improving joint working with Public Health
Nursing Services, Sexual health, pre-conception support,
parenting support (as part of the offer), we can improve the
visibility of young women inour communities and reduce CSE.

Report content -

1. Executive Summary

In response to the National (Women’s Health Strategy) and Local Drivers (including the
Ockenden Report, local Joint Strategic Needs Assessments, Child Sexual Exploitation

Inquiry, and a range of community engagement results highlighting the distinct and increasing
need of health, care and community support for women, in particular), collaborative and joint
working is underway to deliver women'’s health and wellbeing hubs.

The work encompasses specific needs of women and young women, with a focus on
inequalities and rural inequalities. This includes sustainable, community-based Women’s
Health Hubs, ensuring equitable access to clinical and non-clinical support by building on

Page 328




family & community hubs within PCN areas and other clinical offers informed by the JSNAs,
population health and clinical data.

2. Recommendations
¢ Note: the content and programme updates and reflect on the progress to date.
¢ Note: the first programme delivery milestone was successfully met.
¢ Note: the work reflects the delivery area of Shropshire, Telford, and Wrekin.
e Endorsement of the approach and discussion.

3. Report
The recently published 2024/25 Operational Planning Guidance asks ICBs to “establish and

develop atleast one women’s health hub inevery ICB by the end of December 2024 in line
with the core specification, improving access, experience and quality of care” and sets the
expectation that at least 75% of ICBs have a hub in place by July 2024 that meets minimum
requirements.

« menstrual problems assessment and treatment, including but not limited to care.
for heavy, painful or irregular menstrual bleeding, and care for conditions such as
endometriosis and polycystic ovary syndrome contraceptive counselling and provision
of the full range of contraceptive methods including LARC fitting for both contraceptive
and gynaecological purposes (for example, LARC for heavy menstrual bleeding and
menopause), and LARC removal, and emergency hormonal contraception.

« preconception care

» breast pain assessment and care

« pessary fitting and removal.

« cervical screening

« screening and treatment for sexually transmitted infections (STIs), and HIV screening

+ menopause assessment and treatment

This guidance was issued with a supporting letter by Dame Ruth May, Chief Nursing Officer,
England & Ed Waller Deputy Chief Financial Officer, Strategic Finance to all ICB Chief
Executives with a clear expectation that the year 2 allocation could only be used for the
implementation of each system’s women’s health hubs plans to take into consideration the
core specification.

“The funding allocated to each ICB for hubs must be spent only for this purpose and any ICB
underspend against this funding will be adjusted for in month 12 2024/25. Each ICB is
encouraged to make full use of their funding allocation to accelerate progress, noting

that they will not be expected to incur costs implementing a model that is not recurrently
affordable’.

Key programme milestone successfully achieved:

The first Women's Health Hub went live in Highley at the Severn Centre in July 2024,
delivering 2 core specifications of the programme:
» Sexual health outreach support including the C-card, STI testing and contraception
advice and guidance (core specification).
* Menopause education and support by way of a GP led menopause talk with group
discussion and Q&A. Supported by blood pressure and cancer care champions and
local VCS organisations (core specification).

The enhanced offers in Highley meeting STW Womens Health Hub ambitions include:

Page 329



https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/PRN00715-2024-25-priorities-and-operational-planning-guidance-27.03.2024.pdf

Health Visitor open access clinics to support child development, health and parental
health, including mental wellbeing.

Early Help partnership working with health visitors.

Family and Community information drop-in sessions where information, advice and
guidance can be obtained from various health and wider determinant focused
partners.

Social Prescribing

Themed Library information displays

Food share

Stay and play

Key updates, highlights, and activities:

Sexual Health & Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) joint working and collaboration including:

Sexual Health Services providing updates to FNP on contraception and sexually
transmitted infections. Sharing and discussing case studies and best practice to
develop, improve and evaluate services.

The formulation a FNP antenatal sexual health pathway and exploration of a direct
phone line to a sexual health nurse for young people to access more timely information
regarding their sexual health.

The aim is to forge strong links to enable FNP clients in Shrewsbury to better access
the sexual health service at Severn Fields and for all FNP clients to have access to
information regarding contraception and every opportunity to access Long-acting
reservable contraception (LARC) fitting.

Community & Family hubs alignment, development and collaboration including:

Shrewsbury PCN Cancer Care Coordinator delivering monthly information & guidance
drop-in sessions in collaboration with Health Visitor Open Access Clinics & Early Help
Family Information Drop in at Sunflower House, Shrewsbury.

Exploring the possibility of cervical screening clinics at Sunflower House Community &
Family Hubs

Multi organisation meeting set up with SATH, ShropCom, South West PCN, MPFT
Sexual Health Services, Targeted Early Help & Public Health to explore development
and collaboration opportunities specific to Women'’s Health for South West Shropshire
Thursday 26™ September.

Public Health School Nursing exploring improving pathways for emergency
contraception with Sexual Health Services building on work with FNP.

Developing plans for menopause awareness month in October including working with
libraries across STW to support information sessions and a spotlight on raising profile
and awareness of women'’s health hubs work and resources.

Discussions in relation to support for migrant and refugee women & girls living in STW
with Shropshire Supports Refugees and Shropshire Community Health Trust. Exploring
the opportunity to run a series of education sharing sessions delivered by women to
health care professionals focusing on culture, health beliefs and barriers.

Ongoing engagement & collaboration with Telford & Wrekin most notably

* Family Hubs — connections to GP Practices (Donnington, Dawley & Woodside)

* Public Health commissioned services, Sexual Health & PHNS collaborative
working

+ Teenage Conception Steering Group

» FASD Task & Finish Group

Page 330




* Perinatal Mental Health

With the support of the ICS Women's Health Hub Steering Group and Clinical Design Forum
the following key developments have been made.

« SLT approved programme budget.

« Delivering the ambition of STW to focus on the approach of sustainable, community-
based Women’'s Health Hubs, ensuring equitable access to clinical and non-clinical
support by building on family & community hubs, PCN areas and other clinical offers
informed by JSNA, population health and clinical data.

+ Establishment of a Clinical Design Forum Chaired by Dr Priya George, Clinical Lead for
Womens Health Hubs. The forum meets monthly and has representation from Primary
& Secondary Care as well as Community Services, including pharmacy.

+ Establishment of an ICS Women's Health Hub Steering Group. The forum meets

monthly and has representation from Primary & Secondary Care as well as Community
Services, including pharmacy.

» Developing funding application process for STW PCN'’s to support collaborative working
towards the development of Womens Health Hubs focusing on inequalities, meeting
population health needs and improving experiences for women and girls.

* Developing a training plan in collaboration with the Training Hub & and Clinical Forum
with input from GPs, nursing, and secondary care consultants

* Developing an approach to group menopause consultations collaboratively with GP and
community pharmacy with a view to replicating across PCNs.

* Supported to set up and delivery of the first STW Womens’ Health Hub in Highley.

« Partner working and collaboration to deliver joined up services in one location at
the same time to aid ease of access to residents. E.g., Health Visiting Open
Access sessions, Early Help family support worker and Sexual Health Outreach
support worker.

» Stepped approach to the introduction of a group menopause offer across the
Southeast PCN. The first of these being specific to Menopause linked to the GP
led menopause talk at Highley.

* Developing approaches to creating clear signposting and pathways for women
& girls

Submission of key NHSE reporting including regular update meetings with NHSE Midlands
team

+ System Maturity Matrix

+ System Hubs Delivery Plan Review

* Quarterly returns —moved to monthly from June 2024

Aligned key program activities with system transformation programs including:

* LMNS - Perinatal Mental Health

* Cancer — Cervical Screening

» Shropshire — Community & Children’s Hubs
* Telford & Wrekin —Family & Children’s Hubs

Page 331




Risk assessment and
opportunities appraisal
(NB This will include the
following: Risk
Management, Human
Rights, Equalities,
Community, Environmental
consequences and other
Consultation)

Risks to the delivery of this programme are highlighted in the
EQIA. Without sufficient investment many elements will not be
available to deliver, namely:
« Response to the Ockenden Report requiring the
local system to improve support for women'’s health,
including pre-conception care.
« Sustainability - training and backfill to develop
skills, confidence, and capacity within the workforce
to support women’s health.
« The provision of any sustainable, equitable
woman’s health offer significantly impacts on health
inequalities.
o« STW’s ability to safeguard women and children,
as outlined in the CSE Inquiry.
« STW’s ability to provide access to a broad range
of vital preventative integrated services.

Financial implications
(Any financial implications
of note)

None directly related to this report.

Climate Change
Appraisal as applicable

N/A

Where else has the paper
been presented?

System Partnership ShiPP
Boards

Voluntary Sector

Other

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not
include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your
organisational lead e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead

Clir Cecilia Motley, Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities
Dr Priya George, Clinical Lead for Women’s Health Hubs.

Appendices

Appendix A. Women’s Health Hubs — presentation

Page 332



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

P

Women’s Health
Hubs

m August Update




Highley Women’s Health Hub

‘4‘.’ : . Let’s talk about menopause... OpenClinic® NHS
({7" = 0 Find out more about

Shropshire s local health services at

Health UISItlng e 7 ) : Severn Centre Highley, WV16 6HG

7 1.30-4.00
0-5 YEARS DROP-IN CLINIC - HIGHLEY Tuesday 23 July

TUESDAY 23" JULY 1:30 - 4pm

Severn Centre, Highley, WV16 6HG
(Community/Family Hub) @ *
Come atong to our drop-in clinic for health advice, information and support for . Cyd
you and your baby/child. No appointment needed. grec

Together for better health

C-Card and free STl testing and
condoms treatment

- EMOTIONAL HEALTH & WELLBEING

- GROWTH/WEIGHT REVIEW & HEALTH ADVICE Wednes day 31st July ‘ 7PM

Highley Library, Severn Centre

wHAT IS MENOPAUSE>

INHS| Join us to discuss menopause with a female Contraception sidvics

Shropshire Community Health GP: what to expect, the symptoms, possible
G treatments, group discussions, a question

and answer session and more. k openclinic.orguk [l Open Clinic NHS X @OpenClinicNHS @ @openclinicnhs

- DEVELOPMENT, BEHAVIOUR & SLEEP SUPPORT

Call: 0333 3583654  Text: 07520 635212




Highley Womens Health Hub

What topics would be helpful for next time?

Teenage mental health

Y70 EA o0

Mental health

Y70 E2 0

Dementia

¥70 Ao

Menopausal mental health, how to dodge cancer, holistic mental health,
support for carers.

Nutrition
20 £Ao
All covered
o Ao
IBS
Yo Gilo
Unsure
I o o
Have you found this talk helpful? L& e
ves
100%
Mo
0%
Did the talk cover the topics you expected?
Yes
(N -
No

0%

&

What one thing you will take away from this talk?

The different options of HRT available & speaking at the end, that | need to
make myself a GP appointment

o Ao

Risks

o Ao

Useful websites..and information on medication

30 Elo

I didn't realise you are more fertile whilst on hrt

Jan Fin

So much information! Absolutely brilliant! @ thank you to all involved

0 £Ao

I know who to refer my Cleobury patients to

0 £Ao

Very helpful, and informative for someone who suffers migraines

o glo

Benefits of HRT

30 £Ao

bt

= <

<



Other activity - Sexual Health & FNP Partnership

Working

» Sexual Health Services providing
updates to FNP on contraception and
sexually transmitted infections. We had
a great interactive morning discussing
case studies and sharing best practice
together.

* We are formulating a FNP antenatal
sexual health pathway and looking at a
direct phone line being available to a
sexual health nurse for our young
people who need more timely
information regarding their sexual
health.

* Quraim is to forge strong links so that
FNP clients in Shrewsbury can access
the sexual health service at Severn
Fields more easily and all FNP clients
will have access to information
regarding contraception and every
opportunity to access LARC.




Key Highlights & other activity

 NHSE return for 31/7 completed demonstrating core specification activity with a developing approach to
creating clear signposting and pathways as well as a stepped approach to menopause support and

treatment.

« Approval to move forward with PCN funding allocation to support collaborative working towards the
development of Womens Health Hubs. EOI will be sent out week ending 7/9.
* Wngoing engagement & collaboration with Telford & Wrekin most notably
o * Family Hubs — connections to GP Practices (Donnington, Dawley & Woodside)
@ « Public Health commissioned services, Sexual Health & PHNS collaborative working
« Teenage Conception Steering Group
« FASD Task & Finish Group
« Perinatal Mental Health

¢ ab

« Training plan shared for review & prioritisation
« Womens Health Training Co-ordinator Post ECF completed and awaiting approval



Key Highlights & other activity

« Shrewsbury PCN Cancer Care Coordinator delivering monthly information & guidance drop-in sessions
in collaboration with Health Visitor Open Access Clinics & Early Help Family Information Drop in at
Sunflower House, Shrewsbury commencing on Tuesday 20" August.

» Exploring the possibility of cervical screening clinics at the Shrewsbury Community & Family Hubs

« Multi organisation meeting set up with SATH, ShropCom, South West PCN, MPFT Sexual Health
Serwces Targeted Early Help & Public Health to explore development and collaboration opportunities
8 specmc to Womens Health for South West Shropshire — Thursday 26™" September.

'ooPub|IC Health School Nursing exploring improving pathways for emergency contraception with Sexual
&Health Services building on work with FNP.

* Developing plans for menopause awareness month in October including working with libraries across
STW to support information sessions and a spotlight on resources.

» Discussions in relation to support for migrant and refugee women & girls living in STW with Shropshire
Supports Refugees and Shropshire Community Health Trust — exploring the opportunity to run a series
of education sharing sessions delivered by women to health care professionals focusing on culture and

health beliefs.



Key Programme Enablers

Shropshire Telford & Wrekin System Steering Group

Clinical Design Forum
ICB Training Hub

Alignment of key program activities with system transformation programs including.
« LMNS
« Cancer — Cervical Screening, PMD
« Extended Community Pharmacy Pathfinder
» Shropshire — development of Community & Children’s Hubs
» Telford & Wrekin — development of Family & Children’s Hubs

6E€ abed

« Collaboration with existing commissioned and noncommissioned providers including but not limited to
« Sexual Health Services
» Public Health Nursing Services
* Drug & Alcohol Services

» Local population health data, focus on inequalities
 NHSE Midlands
 Womens Health Champion National Network



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

Shropshire
together
I _ " a, LAY}y ol 8./ |
SHROPSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Report

Meeting Date 19.09.24
Title of report Shropshire Integrated Place Partnership (ShIPP) Update
This report is for Discussion and Approval of Information only | x
(You will have been agreement of recommendatio (No
advised which applies) recommendatio ns (With recommendations

ns discussion by )

exception)

Reporting Officer & Penny Bason
email Penny.Bason@shropshire.gov.uk
Which Joint Health & Children & Young | x Joined up working X
Wellbeing Strategy People
priorities does this Mental Health X Improving Population Health X
report address? Please | Healthy Weight & Working with and building strong | x
tick all that apply Physical Activity and vibrant communities

Workforce X Reduce inequalities (see below) | x
What inequalities does | The ShIPP Board works to reduce inequalities and encourage all
this report address? programmes and providers to support those most in need.

Report content

1. Executive Summary
The purpose of Shropshire Integrated Place Partnership (ShIPP) is Shropshire’s Place
Partnership Board.
It is a partnership with shared collaborative leadership and responsibility, enabled by ICS
governance and decision-making processes. Clinical/care leadership is central to the
partnership, to ensure that services provide the best quality evidence-based care and support
for our people, improving outcomes and reducing health inequalities.
It is expected that through the programmes of ShIPP, and routine involvement and
coproduction local people and workforce can feed ideas and information to inform and
influence system strategy and priority development. The new governance of the ICB has
named ShIPP as a formal subcommittee of the ICB Board. The governance will be developed
over the coming months.

2. Recommendations
That the HWBB note the progress and actions of ShIPP

3. Report

The ShIPP Board meeting of 18" July 2024 was well attended and there was good
discussion and engagement across the membership, Rachel Robinson chaired the meeting
as deputy for Andy Begley.

Children & Young People’s Mental Health: i-Thrive Model — Vicky Jones & Penny
Bason

Vicky & Penny presented the i-thrive model for children and young people's mental health
and asked for feedback on the leadership, risks and prevention aspects. There was
discussion about:

Page 341


mailto:Penny.Bason@shropshire.gov.uk

e GP’sissues in the treatment of children and young people and connections with social
prescribers and muti agency teams.

e The importance of prevention

e Early Help Partnership Board acting as place-based leadership for i-thrive service in
Shropshire

e data work should have ongoing links into the population health management system.

JSNA Update - CYP JSNA Early Years chapter for comment — Jess Edwards
Jess gave an overview of the population context chapter of the JSNA for children and young
people, highlighting the trends, inequalities and health outcomes. Jess and Paula shared the
early years chapter of the JSNA for children and young people, identifying the areas of need,
the mitigations and the draft recommendations.
There was discussion about:

e Emergency admissions data for children — management and interpretation of data

e connecting the metrics for the Children & Family Hubs and Early Help Partnership

Board to avoid duplication - a dashboard for common use.

Housing & Health Workshop update and action plan — Laura Fisher & Penny Bason

a housing paper brought to the health and well-being board led to joint workshops aimed at
improving health through housing and reducing inequalities.

Two workshops held in April focused on case studies and collaborative discussions. The first
workshop identified key areas and gaps in the system, while the Local Government
Association provided a framework and action plan that aligned well with local findings.
Discussions highlighted issues like mould and housing conditions and identified early
planning as crucial for communities with greater needs. The second workshop used the LGA
template to outline an action plan, recognising the need for continued collaboration across
partnership boards to implement key areas of focus.

Links and opportunities for further development were discussed, a subgroup to manage the
resulting action plan was proposed.

Women’s Health Hubs update — Naomi Roche

Naomi updated the group on the progress of the women's health hubs programme, outlining
the national and local ambitions, the key highlights and the enablers.

Naomi thanked colleagues from primary care and across they system that have worked so
collaboratively in developing this work.

Links with community pharmacy and support for young people at the start of menstruation
were discussed.

Risk assessment and N/A
opportunities appraisal
(NB This will include the
following: Risk
Management, Human
Rights, Equalities,
Community,
Environmental
consequences and other
Consultation)

Financial implications There are none associated directly with this report.

Page 342




(Any financial implications
of note)

Climate Change N/A
Appraisal as applicable
Where else has the System Partnership ICB
paper been presented? | Boards
Voluntary Sector
Other

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not
include items containing exempt or confidential information)

N/A

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) Portfolio holders can be found here or your
organisational lead e.g., Exec lead or Non-Exec/Clinical Lead

CliIr Cecilia Motley — Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities
Rachel Robinson — Executive Director, Health, Wellbeing and Prevention

Appendices

None

Page 343



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130)

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Suicide Prevention Strategy Update
	6 Inequalities Plan, Progress update
	7 Rural Proofing - approval and progress
	7. Appendix A - Rural proofing in Health and Care Task and Finish Group Report

	8 CYP JSNA update
	8. Appendix A. Population and Context Chapter
	Introduction
	Contents
	Shropshire on a page
	Shropshire’s population
	Summary
	Population structure
	Ethnicity
	Household composition
	Population change
	Fewer couples with dependent children
	An older Shropshire
	Shropshire 2050

	Shropshire’s child population
	Where do children and young people aged 15 and under live in Shropshire?
	Where do children and young people aged 0-19 live in Shropshire?
	Population aged 0 - 4 years old
	Population aged 5 - 9 years old
	Population aged 10 - 14 years old
	Population aged 15 - 19 years old



	Shropshire’s school population
	School Population
	Languages spoken


	Wider determinants of health and risk factors
	Deprivation
	Child poverty
	Children in absolute low income families (under 16s)
	Children in relative low income families (under 16s)
	Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI)
	Eligibility and claiming free school meals

	Child Benefits
	Families claiming Child Benefit
	Children for whom child benefit was claimed:
	Regionally and local picture

	Rurality and inequalities
	Rural and Urban classification
	Rural deprivation index (RDI) for health
	Barriers to housing and services: IMD 2019
	Access to GPs

	Drugs and alcohol
	Parents/carers and families in substance misuse services

	Domestic abuse
	National prevalence
	West Midlands, West Mercia Police Force and Shrophire prevalence
	Regional
	Sub-regional (West Mercia area)

	Shropshire
	2022 Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment findings:
	Children’s social care domestic abuse contacts in Shropshire



	Child Health Profile (all ages)
	General Health of the population
	Life expectancy at birth
	Infant Mortality
	Child mortality rate


	8. Appendix B - Population & Context JSNA Summary - presentation
	Slide 1: Children and Young People JSNA 
	Slide 2: What is a JSNA?​
	Slide 3: JSNA design
	Slide 4: Contents
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Population Structure 2021
	Slide 7: Population change (2011 vs 2021)
	Slide 8: Population projections 2050
	Slide 9: Household Composition
	Slide 10: Where do our CYPs live?
	Slide 11: Shropshire’s school population
	Slide 12: School population - SEND support
	Slide 13: Wider determinants of health and risk factors
	Slide 14
	Slide 15: Indicators of general health of the  population

	8. Appendix C. Early Years (0-4 years) Chapter
	Introduction
	Objectives
	Executive summary
	Doing well
	Areas of need (below the national average)

	Policy and Guidance
	Best Start for Life
	The vision
	The services that families currently receive.
	Aims

	Health and Social Care Act 2012
	The core public health offer
	Healthy Child Programme
	Healthy Child Programme: Pregnancy and first 5 years of life
	High impact areas
	Health visitors
	Family Nurse Partnership


	Population profile
	Where do 0-4 year olds live?
	Future trends

	Key statistics
	High level summary
	⚫Under 18 conceptions (teenage pregnancy)
	⚫Smoking status at time of delivery
	⚫Low birth weight
	⚫Infant mortality
	⚫Neonatal mortality
	⚫Stillbirth rate
	⚫Post-neonatal mortality
	⚫Breastfeeding
	Breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8 weeks after birth

	⚫Overweight (including obesity) – Reception
	⚫A&E Attendances (0-4s)
	⚫A&E attendances (under 1 year)
	⚫Emergency admissions (aged 0 to 4 years)
	⚫Emergency admissions (under 1)
	⚫Admission of babies under 14 days
	⚫Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries in children (aged 0 to 4 years)
	⚫Hospital admissions for dental caries (0-5 years)
	Vaccination coverage
	The childhood immunisation programme
	Vaccination measures

	Health Visiting metrics
	New birth visits within 14 days (NBV)
	6 to 8 week reviews
	12-month reviews

	Child development
	Child development: percentage of children achieving a good level of development at 2 to 2½ years
	Achieving the expected level in communication skills at 2 to 2½ years
	Achieving the expected level in gross motor skills at 2-2½ years
	Achieving the expected level in fine motor skills at 2-2½ years
	Achieving the expected level in problem solving skills at 2-2½ years
	Achieving the expected level in personal social skills at 2-2½ years
	School readiness: children achieving a good level of development at the end of Reception


	Service provision
	Public Health Nursing Service Performance
	Health Visiting: quarterly performance and trends
	Health Visiting: annual performance and trends
	Health Visiting: Open Access Clinics

	6–8-week review: breastfeeding status
	Uptake of the Healthy Start Voucher Scheme

	Children aged 0-4 with SEND
	Vulnerable children
	Drugs and Alcohol
	Domestic abuse
	Child Benefits
	Children in need
	National picture
	Shropshire picture
	Outcomes for Children in Need (including Looked after Children)

	Children looked after (children in care)
	Trends

	Vulnerable families with 0-4 year olds
	What are the most common problems our families with 0-4 year olds face?
	Identifying our most vulnerable children and their families

	Children’s Social Care Contacts and referrals
	Contacts
	Referrals

	Case study: COMPASS Help and Support Team (CHAST)

	Early Years Settings
	Where are the Early Years settings in Shropshire in relation to areas of deprivation?

	Voluntary and Community sector offer
	Stakeholder engagement
	Which service area do you work in?
	Collectively supporting families to meet the needs of babies, infants and children (aged 0-4)
	Areas doing well or areas for improvement in Shropshire:
	Availability of services and information
	Accessibility of services and information
	Engagement and co-production
	Organisational development and partnership working

	Areas doing well in the service provision for families, babies, infants and children aged 0-4
	What you think are the key challenges for children (0-4) in Shropshire:
	How your service operating?
	What are your biggest concerns when thinking about vulnerability of 0-4 year olds in Shropshire?
	Partnership working opportunities.

	Parents and carers engagement
	Access to information
	Antenatal education
	Health visiting benefits
	As a parent/carer of child (ren) aged 0-5, what are the most important considerations to you, to help you look after your child’s health and wellbeing?

	Recommendations

	8. Appendix D. Early Years JSNA summary - presentation
	Slide 1: Children and Young People JSNA 
	Slide 2: Aims & objectives
	Slide 3: Contents
	Slide 4: Policy & Guidance
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: Early Years  metrics
	Slide 8: Early Years  metrics continued
	Slide 10
	Slide 12:  Emergency admissions 0-4s      Deep dive example 
	Slide 14: Service performance: Breastfeeding
	Slide 15
	Slide 17
	Slide 19: Vulnerable children in Shropshire
	Slide 21: Early Years settings
	Slide 22: VSCE offer
	Slide 23: Stakeholder engagement
	Slide 24
	Slide 25:  Recommendations  
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28: Summary of DRAFT recommendations
	Slide 29


	9 Cost of Living Dashboard update
	10 ICP Dashboard update
	10. Appendix A. ICP KPIs and Dashboard update - presentation

	11 Women's Health Hub Progress report
	11. Appendix A. Women's Health Hubs - presentation
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7


	13 ShIPP Update



